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Pharos Energy is an independent oil and gas exploration and production
company with a focus on sustainable growth and returns

to stakeholders.

With a registered office In Landen and listed on the London Stock Exchange.

we have production. development and exploration interests in Egypt and

Vietnam and exploration interests in Israel.
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JANN BROWN
INGCOMING CHIEF EXECUTIVE CFFICER

Our distinctive portfolic in the energy regions of Asia and MENA, together with

a robust and disciplined capital allocation framework, supports our strategy of
delivering long-term, sustainable growth. We have a range of opportunities in the
portfolio to position us for a positive future. Our purpose is to continue to provide
energy for communities around the world and fuel their lives and businesses.

INVESTMENT CASE
Capital discipline
Portfolio of low-cost growth opportunities
Diversity & Inclusion
Sustainability
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PHAROS AT A GLANCE

Pharos at a Glance

2021 KEY FIGURES
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Qil & Gas fields

508 65

Employees
(020, 71 employeas)
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2021 GROUP HIGHLIGHTS

il
Ga5)

il

$16.05

Cash operating costs * {$/boe)

(2020: $11.80/boe)

$271Am

Cash & cash equivalents ($m)

(2020: Net loss $215.8m)

$163.8

Revenue ($m)
Prior to hedging loss of $29.7m

{2020: $142.0m}

Op

Return to shareholders
(Pence per ordinary shares)

8,878

Average net production (boepd)

(2020: 11,373 hoepd)

Non-IFRS measures on page 163
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WHERE WE OPERATE

Responsible, Disciplined, Focused

We have production, development and exploration
assets in Egypt, Israel and Vietnam.

Cparations Review on page 26

EGYPT (D,RE)

We have high quality oil production operations,
development and exploration assets in Egypt.
Preduction is from 10 development leases in the
El Fayumn Concession located in the Western
Desert south west of Cairc and close to local
energy infrastructure. In 2021, Pharos was also
an operator with & 100% working interest in

the North Beni Suef (NBS) Concession, which
is located immediately south of the El Fayum
Concession. Upon completion of the farm-

out transaction with IPR, IPR waill hold a 55%
working interest and operatorship in each of the
£l Fayum and North Beni Suef Concessions.
Pharos will hold 2 45% non-operated working
interest in both Concessicns.

VIETNAM (D,P,E)

We have valuable and long-
established producing fields in
Vietnam. Production 1s from two
fields (TGT & CNV) and there is
further potential for growth from two

exploration blocks (Blocks 125 & 128).

ISRAEL (E)

Pharos, together with Capricorn
Energy PLC (formerly known as
Cairn Energy PLC} and Israel’s
Ratio Oil Exploration, have eight
licences offshore Israel. Each party
has an egual working interest and
Capricorn Energy is the operator.

3,31 8bopd

2021 Average production
{2020: 5,270 bopd)}

D: Development  P: Production  E; Exploration

5,560boepd

2021 Average production (net)

33.33%

Working interest

{2020: 6,103 bopd) :
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INVESTMENT CASE - CAPITAL DISCIPLINE

Robust capital discipline
in our DNA

As a business, our ability to deliver value is key to
our investment case. Capital discipline and financial
stability have always been key to the Company and
continue to underpin the business.

GO statenent page 58

We take great care with our investors' money and Use our expertise;

* To allocate capital to those assets which offer @ combination of cash flow, growth and sustainability
* To focus on aur cost base wherever we are

* To assess and develop high grade growth opportunities

¢ To provide cash returns to shareholders

2020 was a year of significant change for Pharos, with the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the associated low oll prices, and
2021 continued to see a sustained macroeconomic environment of uncertanty. A major priortty for the Board and the Group in the
pericd was the preservation of cash in order to protect balance sheet strength. Therefare, in addiion to a series of financing activities
such as the eqguity placing and refinancing of the RBL, the Beard had to make a difficult decision to restructure the London office and
continue to suspend dividend payments for the second year. A commitment to cash returmns to shareholders remains a core element of
our overall allocation framework. We are not complacent about the situation, and it is our intention to return ta shareholders threugh the
combination of annual dividends and capital growth as soon as appropriate.

1. Responsible management

* Cost and balance sheet actively managed through continued uncertainty in the macroeconomic
environment

+ Positive operational cash flow
* Active hedging programme
e (Gearing remains modest (net debt to EDITDAX 1.0Cx)

2. Flexibility in allocation

* Low level of commitments

* BBL facility in place

¢ PR carry on farm-down Egyptian concessions \

Capital allocation framework
= Focus on shareholder returns over the long term
* High-grade investment opportunities using a number of metrics

¢ Focus on near-term cash flow positive development opportunities '

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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CUR CASH POSITION

$10.8m
10.96m 27.1m
$24.6m $ $
$20.6m
$41.8m $2m
Cash Balance at Operating Investment Activities  Investment Activities  Financing Activities Financing Cash Balance at
31 December 2020 CF - Capital Expenditure - Advanced - RBL Refinancing, Activities 31 December 2021
consideration NBE and Interest - Placing
on farm out
of Egypt

3. Returns to shareholders
* Integral part of approach to cost control
»  Growth opportunities in all areas of the portfolio

* All opportunities screened for cash generation

* QUR HISTORY OF SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

In 2021, the Board had to make a difficult decision to continue to suspend dividend payments for the secend year, given the
continued uncertainty in the macro envirenment driven by COVID-12 and the pressure on oil price against this backdrop.

The Board will continue to use the well-documented capital allocation criteria to assess where and how to apportion any free
cash flow generated. The key goals are to preserve batance shast strength, to invest in growth opportunities in excess of the
cost of capital and to generate sustainable returns to sharehclders, as we have done since 2008.

Capital 1a'sed durng equity
placing 2021 for the first time 11.7
since 1997 ($m)

2018

2006 2016 23.3] 2019

f13-5 17.5‘1 l 1727.4
Shareholder returns 2013 :
since 2006 ($m) - 2134

1 t 2012

2011 32.9

6.8

* Note: No dividends were issued in 2020 and 2021,

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021



INVESTMENT CASE - PORTFOLIO OF LOW-COST GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

Portfolio of low-cost growth
opportunities to access free cash flow

Over the past few years, we have created multiple growth opportunities in our
diverse and complementary portfolio in Asia and MENA. We are always focused on
value-adding activities that have potential to generate free cash flow.

In Vietriam, our current growth opportunities include fully funded near-term developrment drilling programme in TGT and CNV, and
seismic mapping on Block 125 & 126 to identify future prospects.

In Egypt, this includes the full deployment of the waterflood programme to provide reservorr pressure support and mantain production,
Upon complation of the transaction with IPR and transfer of operatorship in Egypt. the first phase of the main multi-year and multi-well
development drilling programme at Bl Fayum will commence in order to increase production in break-even price on the Concession.

EGYPT

Egypt is a dynamic and growing economy, providing a stable business enviranment. In
2021, Pharos had & 100% working interest” In two concessions in Egypt - Bl Fayum and -

North Beni Susf. The B! Fayum Concession is located in the Western Desert, about 80km

south west of Cairo and close to local energy infrastructure. The El Fayum Concession MMBBL OF 2F RESERVES
covers an area of 1,722 km” in Egypt's low-cost and highly prolific Western Desert, and {2020: 40.8 mmbbl)

s0 benefits from extensive existing infrastructure and a well-developed service industry.

Additionally, the El Fayum development area 1s 256 kmi. The North Beni Suef Concession

covers an area of 5,080 km” in the Beni Suef basin, immediately south of the El Fayum

Concession and close to existing Egyptian production in adjacent development leages. 3 31 8

The existing dataset on the North Beni Suef Concession consists of 3,101 km 2D |

seismic, 1,625 km? 3D seismic and data from eight wells. BOPD 2021 PRODUCTION

FROM EL FAYUM
(2020: 5,270 bopd)

.

In September 2021, Pharos announced the farm-out and sale of a 55Y% working
interest and operatorship in each of the Bl Fayum and North Bani Susf Concessians 1o
IPR Lake Qarun Petroleum Co. a wholly owned subsidiary of IPR Energy AG. Pharos
and EGPC have finalised all necessary documents to be presented to the Minister

of Petroleurn and Natural Resources to approve the transaction with IPR and this

approval 15 expected shortly.

QlL FIELDS AT THE

- EL FAYUM CONCESSION
Growth opportunities
= Completion of the farm-out transaction and transfer of operatorship to 1IPR, which will
provide the investment needed to aceelerate the first phase of the main multi-year and
mult-well development driling programme at Bt Fayum and increase production ? 038km2
* Waterflood programme in the Fl Fayum Concession provided reserveir pressure ,
support and mantain preduction ahead of the main development programme ACREAGE (EL FAYUM

, ) ‘ . AND NORTH BENI SUEF)
+ Ei Fayum fuli field development investment case that identifies a path towards

nroduction of over 10,000 bbls/day. The 2022 and 2023 work programme and budget
associated with the investment case have been agreed in principle by IPR under the El
Fayurn farm-aut agreement.

* Potential for low-cost ol exploration in the North Beni Suet Concession, as well as
possible extensions inte the block of producing properties within separate development
ieases held by a third party JV

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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VIETNAM

COur 25-year history with Vietnam has been a success story both for the company and
the country. As at 2021, Phargs has invested ¢.$1.2 billicn in the exploration, appraisal
and development of ol and gas prajects located offshore Vietnam since inception, of
which $6.2 million was for training levy and charity donation projects, making Pharos ong
of the largest British investors in the country, The Group's current producing interests,
the Te Giac Trang (TGT) and Ca Ngu Vang (CNV) fields in the Cuu Long basin off the
southern coast, together, are amongst Vietnam's largest oil producers. We have further
potential for growth from two deep-water exploration positions in Blocks 125 & 126 in
the Phu Khanh basin off the eastern coast, where we expect to seek an industry partner
to fund our commitments and develop the blocks befere drilling. We continue to have an
excellent safety record in Vietnam, and are careful to maintain this.

Growth opportunities

» Two additional TGT wells planned to be driled from cash flow in Q3 2022 as part of the
approved TGT Full Field Development Plan (FFDP), following completion of the initial
four-well drilling programme in 2021

+ One well on CNV planned to be drilled in Q4 2022 after completion of the drlling of the
two TGT wells

+ Submission of licence extension requests for both TGT & CNY
* Ravised Full Field Development Plan for TGT & CNV by Q4 2022

* Final 3D seismic processed results on Block 125 expected in July 2022 and will
proceed to seismic mapping to identify prospacts and bring in an industry partner
before driling

5,560

BOEPD 2021 AVERAGE
NET PRODUCTION FROM
TGT & CNV

{2020: 6,03 boepd)

15.2

MMDBOL OF 2P RESERVES
(2020: 17.2 mmbos)

c.$1.2

BILLION

INVESTMENT BY PHAROS
IN OIL AND GAS PROJECTS
OFFSHORE VIETNAM SINCE
INCEPTION

114

MMBOE OF 2C RESERVES
(2020: 12.2 mmboe)

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021 n



INVESTMENT CASE — DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Diversity and Inclusion at the
heart of the business

Greater diversity and inclusivity brings greater understanding of people. Led by
the Pharos Guiding Principles of ‘Openness and Integrity’ and ‘Empowerment and
Capability’, we have demonstrated our commitment to maintaining and building a
culture of diversity and inclusion in meaningful ways. approach to sustainability by
engaging with and taking into account views of these stakeholders.

We believe in a workforce with a diversity
of experience. nationalities, cultural
backgrounds and gender, to support our
business strategy of long-term sustainable
growth. It 15 crucial 1o the success of

our business that we retain and develop
the diversity of our workforce and have
diversity and inclusion at the heart of our
recruitment, development and promaotion
processes.

Cur Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, associated policies and the Pharos
Guiding Principles commit us 1o providing
a workplace free of discrimination where all
employees can fulfil their potential based
on merit and ability. They alse commit us
to providing a fully nclusive workplace.
while prowding the right development
opportunities to ensure existing staff have
rewarding careers,

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Diversity in all forms

The spirit of dversity, inclusion and trust
lies behind everything we do. In 2021,
four of nine Pharos Board members were
women, and we are proud that women
accounted for nearly 60% of employees
at our London head office. Our offices
across the organisation recruit talents
from diverse backgrounds, ethnicity and
experience. Most notably, our London
head office has 17 people from 10
different nationalities, which ensures that
we cultivate a culture that recognises and
promotes diversities in all forms, where
every voice 1s heard.

Regional knowledge and
experience

We apply our expertise locally with
operational teams in each region, working
closely with joint operating companias.

We encourage dialogue and co-operation
between the different business assets to
ensure new ideas and solutions are always
being considered.

We are committed to providing meaningful
opportunities for traning and capacity
building In host countries. We have
mamtained a gender-neutral recrutment
process and, wherever possible, are
ensurng that we first look to fill any
vacancy internally with & local candidate in
Londaon, Vietnam and Egypt.

Further Board refreshment

I 2021, various Directorate changes were
made to the Board to ensure that Pharos
is guided by a lsan management team
with diverse knovdedge, deep experience
and greater gender diversity, In March
2021, the Company announced the
appointment of Sue Rivett to the Board as
Chief Financial Officer {*CFO") effective 1
July 2021, Additionally, upen completion of
the transaction with IPR, Ed Story will step
down from the Board as Chief Exacutive
Officer {"CEQ") but will remain as President
of the Vietnam business, and Jann Brown
will assume the role of CEO as one of

two Executive Direclors alongside Sue.
Mike Watts will also step down from the
Board on completion, though Mike will be
avallable to advise the Board for a pericd
In relation to its ongoing interests as the
Company may require, Finally, in suppont
of the policy to slim down the Board and
having served as Non-Executive Director,
Senior Non-Executive Director ond Deputy
Chairman in his nearly 9 years on the
Board, Rab Gray will not be putting his
name forward for re-election as a Director
at the 2022 AGM in May. The result of
these changes is reduction in the size

of the Board from nine Directors {four
Executive Directors and five Nan-Executive
Directors) to six (two Executive Drectors
and four Non-Exacutive Directors), of
which four out of six Directors are women.

The Company is committed {0 good
governance and will continug to review the
balance and effectiveness of the Board
commensurate with our size and needs.

Corporate Governance Report page 86 - $1 and
Corporate Responsibility Report page o8 - 78,
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INVESTMENT CASE — SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability in all areas
of our business

Our goal is to have a responsible and positive presence in the regions in which

we operate, resulting in value for host countries, local communities, employees,
contractors and shareholders. Pharos continually monitors and reviews its
approach to sustainability by engaging with and taking into account views of these
stakeholders.

Corporate Responsibility Report page 68 - 78.

Responsibility framework

Environment

O Further alignment with TCFD through the completion of Phase Two of our project to bring our disclosures in
line with the requirements of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD"}. Resuits of the
completion of Phase Two can be found in the Corporate Responsibility Report on page 60 to 63 and the Risk
Management Report on page 45 to 48.

VaVaVaV A number of key factors, such as ail price, operating and capex costs and discount rate, considered likely to be
affected by climate climate-related risks are subject to sensitivity analyses and stress testing under various scenarios
including testing the forward cil curve based on the IEA Net Zero Emissions scenario
Society

Q $500,000 combined total training levies in Vietnam and Egypt for industry capacity bulding in 2021
OOO $265,000 in community and charitable investments supperting 12 social projects in Vietnam through the

HLHVJOC Charitable Denation Programme

Business

100% TGT & CNV Qil and 100% El Fayum Ol sold domestically, contributing to host country development goals
and access to enargy

Ethics
Q 100% of staff received anti-bribery and corruption training

$198.2m taxes and royalties to host governments in 2021, which includes $146.7m of host governments'
entitlement share of production

D
D,

People
Zero Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (number of lost time injuries per million man-hours) across all operations in

2021
(m 4/9 Board positions held by women

@)
OD
O

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021 10



CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Chair’s Statement

JOHN MARTIN
Non-Exacutive Chair

Pharos Energy Annuai Report and Accounts 2021

Rebalanced and focused on values

| am pleased to report that Pharos has
successfully navigated another challenging
yaar in 2021 whilst continuing te make

the improvements necessary to rebalance
our cost base, our capifal structure and
our assets. We start 2022 with a clear
roadmap of how the company can drive
valug for all our stakeholders and we have
the nght team in place to deliver that.

The hackdrop of the global pandemic
perasisted throughout 2021 and the
ongoing cfiimate of uncertainty remained
the dominant challenge in planning,
forecasting and managing capial. After
the swift and decisive actions taken

in 2020 to reduce costs and preserve
liquadity, 2027 saw us take further vital
steps to strengthen the capital structure
of the business, which had been severely
impacted by the loss of revenues as a
result of the oil price crash. The $11.7
milion equity placing, subscription and
retail offenng, completed in January
2021, was the first capttal raised from the
market since 1997 and the support we
received is a testament to the strength

of our existing shareholder base and

the attraction of the company to new
investors. | welcome these new investors
and thank all eur investors for their
support, The refinancing of our RBL over
the assets in Vietnam. compiteted in July
2021, pravided additional liquidity while
maintaining our leverage at a comfortable
level. The approval of improved fiscal
terms in Egypt reset the economics for
the &l Fayum Concession, bringing down
the breakeven price and improving the
overall returns. The farm-down of our
Egyptian assetls, a process thal started in
2020, achieved a key milestone with the
signature of conditional agreements with
IPR in Septernber. The transaction with
IPR 1s a key step n the realgnment of our
asset base to match the levels of funding
avallable to generate cash flow and
value. We now have a clear path to cash
generation and value creation in Vigtnam,
where our programme is sslf-funded. and
in Egypt where we will be carried through
the next phase of investment by IPR.

As part of our reshaping for the future we
have driven down costs and created a
new, leaner organisational structure in the
UK and these efforts will continue in Egypt
in 2022, This positions us well to thrive in a
stronger oll price environment.

Board Changes

We have long recognised that our board
would need to be reshaped following

the farm-down af our assets in Egynt

to IPR and the associated transfer

of operatorship. We anncunced the
proposed changes in January of this year
and Ed Story and Mike Watts will step !
dawn from the hoard once the farm-down
transaction completed. Ed will reman as
President of the Vietnam business, while
Mike will be available to advise the Board
during his notice period of one year. |
would like to take thiz opportunity to
thank Ed for his considerable cantribution
to Pharos over many years, We are
delighted that he will stay with us 1o help
the management of our relationships and '
activity in Vietnam. | would also like to
thank Mike for lus long-term dedication

to the Company and for s important
contrnbutions during that time. Our Senior
Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chair,
Roh Gray, will also step down in May of
this year at the 2022 AGM and again we
thank him for hus long and valued service.

The result of these changes will be to
reduce the size of the Board from nine
Directors to siX, commensurate with the
scale of the business, and we have all

of the skills and expenence required to
provide the necessary governance and
avarsight of a Pramium Listed Company.
Pharos’ commitment to inclusion and
diversity remains strong. Following the
hoard changes described abave, both of
our executive directors will be female, with
a total of four of the six directors being
women, representing two thirds of the
Board,

{ am delighted Jann will be the CEO of
Pharos and [ ook forward to working
with her, Sue and the rest of my Board
colleagues into this next phase.

Sustainability

Sustainabifity 15 an increasing focus for our
entire industry. We recognise that oil and
gas will continue to play an egsential role
in the provision of energy secunty and the
global energy mix for many years to come
and that the importance of produsing

this energy In a safe, environmentally
sustainable and socially responsible way
will continue to grow amidst the wider
energy transiion. We stand ready to

play our part in thig transition and we
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can do that by providing transparent and
comparable sustainability disclosures,
embedding sustainability considerations in
the way we operate and identifying where
changes in our field practices could make
a difference in our efforis to reduce our
carpon footprint.

We have also continued to participate

in various climate disclosures. Over the
past four years, we have participated in
the CDP Climate Change Guestionnaire
and have maintained our score (G}, which
is also the Industry average. 2021 also
marks the first year that the Company
submitted their response to the CDP
Water Security Questionnaire, which was
completed at a basic level in 2021 and we
plan to improve our level of transparency
on water usage and protection by
completing the full version in 2022. More
recently, we commenced Phase 2 of the
project to bring our disclosures in line
with the requiremenis of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
{("*TCFD"} in accordance with £ R .8.6.

Over the years, Pharos has embedded
sustainahility considerations throughout
our operations, We set up an ESG
Committee at Board level and an ESG
Working Group to operationalise our
approach. Climate change is now,
following TCFD guidance, recognised
as a principal risk for the Campany and
we engage our stakeholders regularly
on all aspects of environmental, social
and economic impacts. In 2021, the
Remuneration Committee has ncreased
the level of management incentives
which affach to improvements in our
sustainability performance in order to
further encourage action on this agenda.

Following the COP26 summit in Glasgow
in November 2021, we recognise and
understand the growing need to accelerate
business action on climate changa. The
Board welcomed the outcomes of the
Glasgow Climate Pact and is now focused
on reviewing what a possible pathway
towards Net Zero entails. This will not be
straightforward, for Pharos and for the
wider industry, with a lot of salutions being
currently tried and tested. But we commit
to being transparent in what can and

what cannot be delivered and to keeping
stakeholders updated on the progress.
During the net zero transition, we want

to ensure we do not lose sight of the

role our energy plays in driving economic
development of those countries where it is
produced,

Purpose and organisation

Our purpose has been expanded to
inciude our commitment to sustainability;
to provide the energy to support the
economic development and prosperity of
the countries, communities and families
wherever we work, in ine with recognised
sacially and environmentally responsible
practices.

Quir organisation has proved itself to be
resilient beyond expectations this year. We
have had difficult decisions to make on
reducing our staffing levels in the UK as
part of our efforts to manage costs. We
have lost many talented colleagues and |
am delighted that so many of them have
found new positions so quickly. The team
who have stayed with us have all risen to
the challenges of delivering what has been
needed and | have every confidence that
they will continue to do so,

The culture of the workforce is strong and
is built on openness, safety and care, trust
and respect for each other. Our workforce
in the UK has indicated a clear preference
for retaining flexibility in our way of working
and, throughaut the period of mandatory
remote working, we have built well-
astablished channels of communication
and ways of working which can
accommodate these preferences with
minimal disruption and no adverse impact
on delivery and efficiency.

Qutlook

Despite the turmoil we have all
experienced in the global macro-economic
environrment, our strategy to deliver
long-term, sustanable value for all our
stakeholders remains unchanged. We
have capital to allocate to exciting work
programmes in 2022 and our commitment
to returning cash to shareholders remains
a core element of our overall allocation
framework.

it 1s with great sadness that we note the
terrible situation that is ongoing in Ukraine.
Alongside the humanitarian issues, there
are increased business risks due to the
heightened volatility in commedity price
and impact on inflation. We have no direct
business in the region but we are carrying
out due diligence checks and reviewing
the supply chain mplcations in all parts
of the business. No immediate impact
has been identified but we will continue

to keep this under close review and will
devise mitigating actions if needed.

In Vistnarm our status as a major investor in

country plus our track record of managing
operations stand us in good stead to
deliver the next phase of value from our
existing producing fields. In Egypt, we
have a period of collecting revenues with
all costs covered by the carry provided by
IPR, our new partner. IPR has proven itself
to be a technically proficient, effective and
low-cost operator and are well capitalised

to fund the right work programme on

both Concessions in Egypt to maximise
long-term growth and cash flow. Their
long-standing in-couniry presence and
relationships with the Egyptian government
and regulatory authornties will support the
expansion of operational activity needed
to develop the resource base. The Board
firmly believes that IPR is the right partner
for Pharos in Eqypt, and we look forward
to working with them in 2022 and beyond.

Thanks to the effort and hard work of alf of
our colieagues, the businesses is now in
significantly better shape, with funding in
rlace to make the investments needed to
deliver value from the assets already in the
portfolio. Cn behalt of the Board, | would
like to thank our shareholders for their
support through the yeat, as well as our
staff, pariners, suppliers and advisers all
of whom have helped to provide stability
through this period of uncertainty and
volatility.

We anter 2022 with a more confident
outlook. Pharos has a unigue combination
of complementary assets, a talented and
diverse workforce and capital discipling in
its DNA. Most importantly, it has a clear
roadmap to cash generation and value
creation for the coming year.

JOHN MARTIN
Non-Executive Chair

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021 12



MARKET OVERVIEW

Market overview

While 2020 was characterised by the initial widespread shock brought about by
the COVID-18 pandemic, 2021 will be remembered for the year where global
vaccination programmes vastly changed how we lived and helped ease restrictions.
Global growth was significant, albeit in an environment of caution, as virus
mutations provided a reminder of how quickly circumstances can change. As well
as volatile rates of COVID-19, there was significant volatility in the oil price. In 2021,
we saw improved prices to an average Brent crude price of US$70.68 per barrel, a
68% increase from the previous year.

Economics and political

Unsurprisingly the pandemic remained a
significant force influencing global growth
1 2021 as most economies began the
year in the grip of restrichons stifing
growth. However, as vaccination rates
increased and restrictions were eased, the
economy made significant headway and
business practices returned 1o something
simitar to pre pandemic timeas, even if
most economic metrics remained lower.
Global monetary and fiscal policies during
the crisis provided stimulus that has

had a significant effect for a prolonged
period across various economies,

which, added ta the reopening of many
previously closed sectors, led to demand
and prices increasing. In many countries
this has meant inflationary pressures are
now prominent in many governments'
economic thinking going forward,

From a market perspective, the S&P500
in the US finished the year just under
27 % up while the MSCI World index
finished up 31%, showing how global
equity markets reacted to the favourable
economic conditions. While in late 2021
the rapid spread of the Omicron strain of
the COVID-19 virus provided a reminder
of the fragility of the world's markets, the
outlook for 202215 regarded as positive
with levels of global vaccination and
antipody count in the general papulation
high enough that returning to a situaten
akin to the beginning of the pandemic is
seen as unhkely.
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Oil price

While an average Brerit crude price of
US$70.68/bbl in 2021 was a significant
68% increase from the average price in
2020. the picture was one of a steady
recovery throughout the year as demand
for ol grew by 5.7mmbbis/d from the
previous period. This increase in demand
was primarily due to fiscal and monetary
stimulug supporting a buoyant economy,
with restrictions in movement easing
throughout the year as vaccination
programmes were deployed. This increase
in demand significantly cutpaced supply
as OPEC+ retained its restrictive policies
spanning from the depressed prices of
2020, and prolonged periods of restrained
investment from other off producing
nations such as the US meant that supply
capacity was constrained. As wall as
increased pricing for crude, the markst
saw significant inventory draws as nations
attempted to meet demand as best as
they could leading to the EIA estmating
that global petroleum inventories dropped
by 46G million barels in the year.

The cngoing volatility in the ofl price was
still prevalent in 2021, Average reahsed
oil price per barrel achieved for Vietnarm
was ¢.$73/obl representing a premium
of just under $2/bbl to Brent. For Egypt
the average realised price was ¢.$65;
bhl, representing a discount of ¢.$5/cbl
to Brent.

The Board's strategy to mitigate this
principal risk of commodity price nstabiity
15 set out on pages 49 to 57 In our
discussion on principal risks. Pharos
regularty evaluates whether the benefit of
hedging its oil production is in the best

imerast of shareholders by considenng
the balance between protecting the
Group in low ol price scenarios, set
against the opportunity cost of being
unhedged. In addition, Pharos continues
to manage ils overall portfolic to target

a low break-even ol price, regardiess

of actual oif prices. Our strong ethos

of capital discipling ensures that cost
efficiencies are maintained, even In higher
oil price environments, Pharos ensures

all operational decisions — including new
country entry, production optimisation and
acquisitions — are reviewed through the
lens of full-cycle project economics in a
range of oil price scenarios.

Commentary around the outlpok for oil
prices in 2022 is rmostly positive with an
estimated world GDP growth forecast of
4.2%, meaning a repetition of the strong
demand seen Jn 2021, Tight supply is
expected to remain as investment in
upstream agsets remains subdued while
OPEC estimates glebal demand to nse by
4.15 million barrels a day in 2022. Looking
forward, while interest rate increases |
likely to be used as a tool to supress rising
inflaton by many central banks) pose as

a potental suppressant to the ol price,
the crude market 1ooks set tc be well
supported in the pericd.

For more information on the impact of
climate change on the long-term ail prices
and demand. please sge pages 56 to

57 the Viabdity Staternent.
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E&P Merger & Acquisition activities

As with the ail price in 2021, M&A activity within the industry during the year increased significantly with a rise of 42% on deal value
compared 1o 2020, with over US$00 Lilion worth of E&P deals coourring in the year. The acquisition of North Sea producer Lundin

Energy AB by Aker BP represented the largest deal of the year at just under US$11 bilion, with Australian producer Santos Ltd’s
acquisition of il Search following closely behind at over US$10.5 billion.

Climate change regulation

2021 continued 1o see developments

on clmate change regulation, with

wider ESG concerns at the forefront of
thinking for the wider global economy,.
The 2021 United Nations Climate Change
Conference, mors comrmonly known as
COP26, was hosted by Glasgow In the
latter part of the year, putting focus on
world leaders and their commitments to
reducing the effects of clmate change.
The end of the canference saw nearly 200
countries agreeing the Glasgow Climate
Pact to seek to limit global warming to
1.5C and accelerate action on climats
change this decade,

Pharos has continued to review emissions
with the objective of reducing them
wherever possible, We saek to be
transparent N out emissions parformance
reporting andg in 2021 we continued to
report our emissions and disclose them in
accordance with UK industry requirements
and standards. Pharos participated in the
CDP 2021 Climate Change Questionnaire
and Water Secunty Questicnnaire and we
set an objective to continue to work to
improve GHG emissions management by
identifying realistic initiatives for emissions
reduction. Work to ensure we are
prepared to report in Ine with the TCFD

GLOBAL CRUDE OIL CONSUMPTION 201 2-2022E
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recormmendations progressed well in 2021
with Phase 1 completed and the adoption
of our new Climate Change policy. Phase
2 of this work was interrupted by the
impact of the COVID-18 pandemic in
2020 but resumed in Q4 2021, Resuits of
the completion of Phase 2 can be found
in the Corporate Responsibility Report on
pages 56 to 57,
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2021 was a cntical year for Pharos and
several key steps were taken which
provide the foundations for the exciting
programmes, focused on growth, cash
flow generation and value, in 2022 and
heyond.

* InJanuary, we had strong suppaort for
an equity placing, subscription and
retail offer, raising $11.7m in gross
proceeds, with net proceeds invested
in the El Fayum waterflood programme
to support production levels.

* in March, we announced a reduction
of our head office headcount of ¢.50%,
significantly reducing our ongoing
annual G&A cost. Many talented
colleagues left the Company in this
recrganisation and it is a testament to
the team whao have stayed with us that
they have continued to deliver.

¢ In March we announced that we
had reached agreement with EGPC.
the Industry regulator and state
oil company in Egypt, to various
amendments to the El Fayum
Coneession (known collectively as "The
Third Amendment”} the most impaortant
effect of which was an improvement
in the fiscal terms backdated to
November 2020. The improved terms
were subjected to parliamentary and
presidential approval, which wera
cobtamned in January 2022. As a result
of this Third Amendment, Contractor
share of revenues increased by 20%,
from ¢.42% to ¢50% whilst in full cost
racovery mode. Signature of the Third
Amendment was a key Condition
Precedent for the transfer of 3 55%
participating interest {and operatorship)
in the El Fayum and North Beni Suet
Concessions to IPR.

* In July. we completed the refinancing
of our Reserve Based Lending Facility
{"BBL") which provided access to
a committed $100m with a further
$50m avallable on an uncommitted
“accordion” basis and has a four-year
term that matures in July 2025. The
revised RBL facility extends the tenor of
the facility by 22 months, rephases the
repayment schedule and has provided
additional liquidity without taking
gearing to unacceptable levels.

s |n September, we announced the
gignature of agreements for the farm-
down to IPR to of a 55% working
interast in, and operatorship of, both
of our concessions in Egypt, full details
of which transaction are set out in the
Financial Review, Pharos and EGPC
have finalised all necessary documents
to be presented to the Mimister of
Petroleurn and Natural Resources to
approve the transaction with PR and
this approval is expected shortly. The
IPR Energy group has been present in
Egypt for 40 years, currently has eight
concessions pre-acquisiticn, five of
which are operated, and has achieved
significant growth in net production. We
lock forward to working with them to
deliver the full potential of these fialds.

These steps, alongside the operational
activity set out below, have reset the
Group's potential. That potential was
already there in the portfclio, but we now
have the access tn funding to exploit
these to grow cash flow and increase
shareholder value. We enter 2022 with a
refreshed portfolio, cost base, and access
1o capital.

Consistent operational
delivery amidst ongoing global
uncertainties

In Yietnam, the Group had a busy
operational vear, Most notable was

the commeancement of the TGT wall
intervention and devetopment drilling
programme in July 2021, following the
approval of the updated FFDP and the
two year extension on hoth the TGT and
CNV licences which was announced

In 2020, Phase 1 of the campaign was
succassiully completed in November
2021, ahead of schedule and ¢.$20 million
below the JV gross budget. In 2021, the
crude produced from the fields in Vietnam
commanded a premium to Brent of just
under $2/bbl and the payback period for
the wells drilled 18 estimated at below 12
maonths, making investment in these fields
an attractive proposition.

Production for 2021 from the TGT and
CNV fields net to the Group's working
interest averaged & 560 boepd, in line with
guidance, and guidance for 2022 is set at
5,000 10 6,000 hoepd.
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In . aly 20v21, the Company announced the
completion of its 3D seismic acquisition
programme on the western part of Block
125 in the Phu Khanh Basin, offshore
Vietnam. The seismic processing work is
ongoing, with the final processed results
expecied in mid-2022. In September
2021, Pharos received approval for a
two-year extension of the initial exploration
phase under the Block 125 & 126 PSC.
which now runs until Novermnber 2023,
There is a2 commitment to drill one well on
thase Blncks within the initial exploration
phase and, following completion of the
seismic processing, we will look to bnng in
an additicnal partner pre-crill.

In Egypt, after an operational hiatus

in 2020, Phase 1B of the waterflond
programme on Bl Fayum commenced,
supported by the net proceeds of the
equity placing, subscription and retail offer
completed in January 2021. A three-well
development drilling programme was
started in November 2021 to provide
reservoir pressure support and maintain
preduction ahead of the multi-year, multi-
well development programme planned
following completion of the transaction
with IPR. Pharos will be carried through
the first part of this programme by IPR
for its retained 45% working interest in £
Fayum.,

In June 2021, Pharos announced the
modest discovery on the Batran-1X
exploration commitment well, which
reconfirmed the potential for addiional ol
on the B} Fayum concession.

The Board believes that 2021 was a
turning point year far Pharos, with key
building blocks now in place to move
farward into exciting programmes in hoth
Vietnam and Egypt.

Sustainability

Sustainability has been a challenge for our
industry for many years and the focus on
our activities on this front is increasing,
and rightly eo. Alongside our statutory
obligations in the United Kingdom (where
we are listed) and Egypt, Israel and
Vietnam (whete we operate), we recognisa
that the expectations of all stakeholdars
are growing in this respect. At Pharos, we
have been diligently preparing to ensure
that our disclosures are in line with the
Task Force on Climate-related Financal
Disclosures (*TCFD") recommendations
and can report that we are on track to do
50, having completed Phase Two of our
alignment project with TCFD's reporting
requirements. We also continue to meét
ouir obligations under the Modern Slavery
Act and anti-bribery legislation. As part

of local agreements, we are focused on
meeting legal environmental, sccial and
economic abligations: that is why we
provide $500,000 every year for local
capability training in Vietnam and Egypt.

I am proud that we continue to achieve a

zero on our Lost Time indicatore. In 2021,
we paid $198.2m in taxes and royalties 10
host governments, including their share
of production entitlements. With 100%

of production sold domestically in 2021,
this has made a valuable contribution

to the host countries' socic-economic
development, energy security and access
to energy.

But we go beyond what’s legally required,
noting the growing expectations of all our
stakeholders, As we work predominantly
through Joint Operating Companias
“JOCs™ we work collaboratively with

our partners to identify what slse

we can do. This extends to all our
community initiatives, where our financial
contribution amaunted to $265,000 0
2021 via HLHVJOC Charitable Denation
Programme. We are investigating
opportuntties to reduce our carbon
footprint by adopting different methods
and processes to power our operations
and other carbon reduction technologies
in the longer term and will provide updates
on our progress. We will not make
commitments or set targets which are
vague or which rely on new technologies
or those being developed in the future,
and which do not carry the support of our
partners.

Outlook - Reaping our rewards in a
new phase of growth

Over the past five years, we have buillt a
portfolio in Asia MENA with a combination
of assets which offer resilience in difficult
times, strong cash returns in better times
plus valuable growth potential when
nvestment capital is available.

In Vietnam, the economics are attractive
on all fronts — premium commaodity pricing,
a low LOF Breakeven price, attractive
nethacks and rapid payback periods

on new development wells - with all
planned actwities funded from cash flows
generated. Following the four wells drilled
on TGT in 2021, twe further TGT wells
are planned for 2022 plus one on CNV
The JOC is now progressing waork on
submitting licence extension requests for
both TGT & CNV, with a Rewised Full Field
Development Plan (*FFDP"} for both fields
to he submitted by Q4 2022, This wollld
take the licence terms out to 2031 (TGT)
and 2032 (CNV} and would add two years
of reserves to the production profiles and
economics for these fields,

In Egypt, upon completion of the
transaction with IPR and transfer

of operatorship which is expected
imminently], we will enter a new phase,
and will benefit from IPR's experience as
an Operator plus the carry of our retained
45% waorking interest through the first
part of the multi-year and multi-well
development programme. With the field
economics enhancead by the signing of
the Third Amendrnent and the Group's

own oconemics furthor improved by the
carry, we consider that Egypt is now in an
excellent position to deliver on its potential.

| would ke 1o pay tribute to my colleagues
leaving the board at this time. To Ed Story,
as he ends his 25 year leadership of the
company, having taken it through many
different territories and phases, always with
a focus on shareholder returns. He will he
a key part of the team in Vietnam to deliver
on his long held view of the potential there.
Mike's association with Pharos has also
heen formative and instrumental over the
long term. Finally, Rob Gray will step down
in May from his roles ac both Deputy Charr
and as Senior Non-Executive Director.

All three have played an important role in
putting the company whara 1t is today and
1 thank each of them for their own unigue
contributions.

I would also like to thank our shareholders
and wider stakeholders for their ongoing
support.

Last but not igast, | would also ike

to express my gratitude towards my
colleagues for their efforts, continued
hard work and commitment as we
have navigated through challenges and
uncertainties to build a business with a
return to growth.

TN

JANN BROWN
Incoming Chief Executive Cfficer
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CORE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Navigating through
challenging times

1. Responsible & Flexible stewards of capital
A culture of prudent financial management, capital allocation and capital return.

We exhibit capital discipline through a focus on cost management and control. Capital allocation decisions are taken to make
investments where they will provide risk-adjusted full-cycle returns. It is this approach that has allowed us to return significant amounts of
capital to shareholders. We have looked to add ancther strand to the story - capital growth — to underpin the sustainability of dividends
over the longer term,

Activities in 2021 Priorities in 2022 Risks
e Disciplined capital investment and s Continue to actively manage our cost s Commodity price risk

flexible allocation through:

- Completion of the eguity placing,
subscription and retail offer in January
2021 to fund Phase 1B of the
waterflood programme in Bl Fayum

- Refinancing of the Reserved Based
Lending Facility ("RBL™} which prowvided
access to a comnitled $100m
with a further $50m available on an
uncommitted "accordion” basis, thus
allowing the Company more financial
flexibility

Responsibie and decisive cost-cutling
actions to preserve balance sheet
strength through:

- Continued reviewing and reducing of all
G&A costs across the Group. including
voluntary salary reductions from staff
and the Board

- Continuation of waorking from home
WFH). thus reducing pre-pandemic
office rental cost

- Reorgatisation and redundancy
programmes within the Lendon and
Cairo offices

Revenue stability through active

hedging programme — approximately

59% of production hedged in 2021.

With the ongoing volatility in the oil

price stil prevalent, Pharos used

hedges judiciously to protect against
the downside

Maintained financial strength through

bnnging in an industry partner (IPR) to

support the next stage of development
in Egypt

Modest gearning level — Net debt to

EBITDAX 1.00x
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base, capital allocation and investrnents
into growth opportunities already in the
portfolio

Manage a smooth transition of
operatorship to IPR to accelerate
investrment intc the Egyptian assets

Complete the development drilling in
TGT and CNV

Complete the seismic processing

and interpretation on 125 & 126 and
initinte the process for seeking a further
industry partner pre-drill

Evaluate what we cando as a
responsitle operator and geod
corporate citizen te reduce our carbon
footpnnt; and what commitments can
be made towards our progress to Net
Zero

»

Carbon tax

Insufficient funds to finance growth
plans and maintain dividends

Rising operational cost

Composition of the new workforce and
Board / HR management

Regulatory risk; new regulations

Climate related risk — transition and
physical risk

Partner akgnment risk

Mitigation

Qil price hedging

Close menitoring of business activities,
financial position, cash flows

Control over procurement costs/
effective management of supply chains

Capital discipline with focus on
controlling and managing costs

Stress testing scenanos and
sensitivities to ensure a level of
robustness to downside price, carbon
tax, discount rates, and praduction
sensitivities, and review of capital
expenditure and operating cost

Discretionary spend actively managed

Cultvvating and maintaining good
relationships with lenders
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2. Focus on stakeholders

Dialoguc with shareholders, local communities, host governments, employees,
contractors, and others in the supply chain.

We continue to consult and engage, through formal and infarmal processes.
in an open dialogue with our stakeholders. These conversations consider matters that are important both to our stakehclders, and to the

successful delivery of our corporate objectives.

Activities in 2021

Board refreshment to bring further
knowledge and deeper experience

Active employee engagement by the
Executive Directors with UK, Egypt and
Vietnam employees during the entirety
of lock-down via anonymous surveys,
weekly Monday business meetings,
and off-site away days

A hybrid working model of working from
home and waorking from physical offices
after consultation with employees

Cpen and active dialogue with
shareholders throughout the year via
analyst research feed, Investor Meet
Company online meetings and Q&A,
and Results rcadshows

Engagement across our supply chain
to identify and address red-flag areas
of concern

Continued social engagement with local
communities during the pandemic to
ensure continuous investments in local
projects with the most positive impact

Transparent disclosure of ESG-related
metrics. Maintained grade C in CDP
Climate Change guestionnaire, with
first time participation in the CDP Water
Security questionnaire. Completion of
Phase Two of the implementation of
Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations

Priorities in 2022

Continue workforce and stakeholder
engagement, building on work in 2021

Regular staff training and development

Build on and improve new ways of
working and communication to make
the business base it for the workforce
going forward

Further Board redustions te ensure a
flatter organisational structure, shorter
iines of management and more direct,
accessible channels of communication
with leadership

Risks

HSES reputational and operational risk

Climate change —-speead of the energy
transition and physical risks from
extreme weather events

Human resource risk
Political and regional risks
Business conduct and bribery

Partner alignment risk

Mitigation

Premoting a positive health and safety
culture

Continuing the implementaton of
COVID-19 precautionary measures
based on applicable law, regulation and
public health guidance

Emergency preparedness

Embedding climate change scenarios
and evaluate decisions on key business
operations where we have control

Complying with all legislative/regulatory
frameworks and focus on a goal based
approach to Improve safety

Adhering to the Group's Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and
assoctated poficies

Annual training and compliance
certifications by all assosiated persons/
whistleblowing facility in place

Active participation in JOC
management

Engaging directly with the relevant
authorities on a regular basis
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CORE STRATEGIC OBJEGTIVES - CONTINUED

3. Enhanced growth potential

A portfolio of low-cost growth opportunities that is resilient in difficult times, and
thrive when economic environment improves.

Building and entrancing growth opportunities in our current portfolio. Actively managmg our portfolio through investments and
divastments. Focusing on near-term development opportunities to create value for stakeholders whilst maintainng high operational and
safety standards usmg local staff and suppliers.

Activities in 2021

Egypt

.

Improved hscal terms signed n January
2022 with revenue increases backdated
1c November 2020

Commencerment of Phase 1B of the
waterflood programme in & Fayum

Return to drilling with commencement
of the B! Fayum Phase 1B waterflood
programme, thres-well development
driling programme, and Batran-1X
commiiment well oIl discovery

Interpretation of the large pre-existing
3D seisrmic survey on the NBS
Concession continues with several low
risk drilable prospects already identified

Commeancement of the farm-out
transaction with IPR to fund the capital
programme on the Egyptian assets to
ncrease production and fulfil the full
potential of the concessions

Vietnam

Successful completion of the first
phase of the 2021 TGT well ntervention
and development drilling campaign, on
schedule and below budget

Approval for a two-year extension to
the terms of Phase 1 of the Block 125
& 126 Exploration Period from the
Ministry of industry and Trade

Completion of the 30 seismic
acquisttion programme on Block 125 in
the Phu Khanh Basin, with processing
cf the new data underway
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Priorities in 2022

Egypt
s Completion of the three-wall
development drilling programme

+  Completion of the farm-out transaction
with IPR and transfer of operatorship to
support the next stage of development
in Egypt

Vigtnam

e Commencemant of development
drilling programme of two TGT wells
in the FFDP in Q3 2022, and one CNV
well

* Processing 30 seismic results on Block
125 in order to identify future prospects

= Progressing work on submitting
icence extension requests for both
TGT & CNV, and a revised Full Field
Development Plan for both fields

Risks
» Insufficient funds to meet commitments

« Commodity price volatility, volatility in
production levels — sub-optimal well
performance

e Fartner alignment risk

Mitigation

+ Regular review of funding options

+ Stress testing farecasts

* Down side protection through hedging

+  Cultivating and maintaining good
relationships with lenders

* Active participation in dialogue with
JVs/ JOCs
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BUSINESS MODEL

Our Business Model
Is to Build for the Future

We are building a business focused on generating sustainable returns. We look
to grow Pharos through the responsible management of our current portfolio

and careful selection of new opportunities, particularly those with near-term low-
cost development and, where appropriate, exploration assets with transformative
potential within Asia and MENA.

VALUE INPUTS

Our people

* Extensive industry experience

+ Technical expertise
¢ Commercial acumen
+ Relationship-driven

We assess opportunities which offer

a superior risk-weighted return, Qur
experienced management team identify
established high margin, low-rigk
producing assets enabling geographical
asset diversification and an increase in
exploration acreage growth leading to
value growth. In our assessment of capital
allocation processes, we look to take
account of the interests of all stakeholders
and to balance the value of investing In
the business against the value of returns
to shareholders,

VALUE INPUTS

Our assets

+ Mix of complementary assets

+ Mature, short payback in Vietnam
* Pevelopment drilling in Vietnam

*» Low-cost onshore driling in Egypt

Invest

Our investment programme will continue
ta be allocated over our asset base in a
disciplined manner to deliver sustainable
returns for our stakeholders. We
maintain a culture of prudent financial
management, capital allccation, and
capital returns.

VALUE INPUTS

Our capital

* Low operating cost

* Low breakeven oil price in Vietnam
* Financial prudence

* Modast gearing

» Strict capital allocation process

Develop
flill & Produce

Our production increases through the
development of existing discovered
resources. We seek to maximise margins
through optimising production and low
operating costs. We are commiitted to
responsible and safe operations at all
times,

VALUE CUTPUTS

Growth opportunities
* Development of existing
discovered resourteas

* New prospects and leads in
Egypt and Vietnam

*« Conventional and unconventional
+ exploration potential

VALUE OUTPUTS

Stakeholders

* Net Asset Value [NAY) growth
and share price

¢ Return to shareholders

* | ocal capability

* In-country economic contribution
and social investment

* Employment and training

VALUE QUTPUTS

Growth production
metrics

* Responsible and safe operations
s Low cost per barrel

* Development of discovered
Egyptian resources with our
partner IPR

¢ Continued development of
Vietnam assets
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KEY METRICS

Reporting on
our performance

The financial and non-financial metrics facilitate better management of long-term
performance and enable us to deliver on our sustainable responsible business
plans. They are kept under periodic review and regularly tested for relevance
against our strategies and policies.

Financial measures

LOW CASH OPERATING COST ]
%/BOE * 2021 16.05
2020 | NG -
1 6 05 2010 [ - -

n

Description
Low operating expenditure helps deliver high margin production revenues. The cost of producing a single barrel of oil is influenced by industry
costs, inflation, fixed costs and production levels,

Objective
To be profitable at lower oil prices.

Performance
Pharos achieved an oparating cost of $16.05/boe 1n 2021, an ncrease over 2020, largely due to fixed costs in Vietnam such as the FPSG
and other facilities being spread over fewer produced barrels and higher withholding tax.

Outlook
We continue to target improverments in 2022 and beyond through managing costs and increasing production.

Links to strategy Associated risks
» Deliver value through growth « Partner alignment risk
« Pdlitical and regional risk

Links to Remuneration Report (See pages 102 - 11g)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE _

CASH $M (includes abandonment funding) 2021 39.8

coco [N -

39 8 2010 R -
n

Description
Investment in the asset base required to mamntan and grow the business and directed to the assets in Egypt and Vietnam.

Objective
To achieve returng in excess of cost of cagital,

Performance

Tho 2027 cash capilal expenditure was rmarginally higher than 2020, when all discretionary capex was deferred. In 2021, the TGT infill
developrnent programme completed under budget and, in Egypt, Pharos return to driling with commencement of the Bl Fayum Phase 18
waterflood programme, three-well development driling programme, and Batran-1X commitment well ol discovery.

Outlock
Post farm-out, the cash capex is forecast as $27.8m.

Links to strategy Associated risks

= Defiver value through growth « Commodity price nsk

s [nvestment growth s Partner alignment risk

CASH

- AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2021 _ 57.1

27 1 201 [ :
|

Description
Phares has a history of stable finances and a strong balance sheet dus to the prudent management of producing assets.

Objective
To maintain financial strength through preserving the balance sheet, to invest in growth opportunities in excess of the cost of capital and to
generate sustainable returns to shareholders

Performance
Pharos has a cash balance of $27.1m, an increase of 10% on prior year.

Cutlook
Capitat discipline and financial stability have always been key to the Company and continue to undarpin the business.

Associated risks
» Deliver value through growth « Commaodity price risk
» Return to shareholders « Financial discipline and governance nisk

Links to strategy
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KEY METRICS - CONTINUED

RETURNS TO SHAREHOLDERS

PENCE PER ORDINARY SHARES 2021 0

2020 0

0 2o+ [N -

Description
Commitment to cash returns to shareholders remains a core element of our overall allocation framework,

Objective
Tao provide sustainable cash returns to shareholders.

Performance
In 2021, the Board had 1o make a difficult decision to continue to suspend dividend payments for the second year, given the continued
uncertainty in the macro environment driven by COVID-19 and the pressure on ¢il price against this backdrop.

Outlook
An annual dividend is a key agpect of the Company's capital discipline and investment thesis and the Board will keep this under review.

Links to strategy Associated risks
» Deliver value through growth « Commadity price risk
+ Return to shareholders « Climate change risk

» Sub-optimal capital allocation risks

Operational measures

LOST TIME INJURY FREQUENCY [“LTIF")

PER MILLION MAN-HOURS WORKED 2021 0

zoz0 NN -

0 2019 0

Description
Safety of our workforce remains our number one prionty. The Group is committed to operating safely and responsibiy at all tmes. Having a
positive imnact on the walibeing of our emplayess, our contractors and the local communities n which we cperate is a priority.

Objective
To achieve zero LTIF across the Group's operations.

Performance

In Vietnam, our Joint Operations continue to deliver an exceptional record of safety, reporting zero 1 Tls since operational nception,
representing ten production years on TGT and 13 production years on CNV, In Egypt, we continually reinforce and implement safe working
procedurss such as ingpection of afl instruments and equipment. obtainng the requisite permit to work applications, providing trainng and
awareness sessions and above all implementing checks to ensure risks arg reduced to acceptable levels and encourage the immedate use
of stop-cards. In Vietnam, the JOC conducied aver 200 and 100 HSE traning sessions and emergency response drills raspectively durng
2021 to ensure safety and preparedness remain a top priority.

Outlook
Continue to work with the Joint Operating Companies 1o maintain high safety standards and training with the aim of driving continuous
improvement year-on-vear.

Links to strategy Associated risks
» Focus on stakeholders + HSES and scoal nsk
o Partner alignment rgk

Links to Remuneration Report (See pages 102 - 116)

ra
(o5}
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GROUP NET PRODUCTION

SROUS 2021 [ ¢ 575

207 |, 7

8.878 - K
y

Description
Production revenues generate cash flows which are re-invested in the porifolic of assets, new business opportunities, and in returns to
shareholders,

Objective
To optimise production from the Group's asset base.

Performance
Vietnam 2021 praduction 5,560 boepd net. Egypt production 3,318 bopd.

Qutlook
2022 production guidance for Vietnam is 5,000-6,000 boepd net.

2022 production forecast for Egypt will be evaluated following completion of the farm-down to IPR and transfer of cperatorship. Guidance will
be given at the AGM.

Links to strategy Associated risks

» Deliver value through growth » Reserve risk
s Sub-optimal capital allocaticn risks
« Commodity price risk

Links to Remuneration Report (See pages 102 - 116}

AL
g AND ECONONIC IVESTMERT 2021 | 75,000

765,000 " R, -2

Description

In Vietnam, a traning levy of $150,000 for each joint operating company goes into a fund which is ring-fenced to support the development of
future talent in the industry. In Egypt, under the El Fayurmn and North Beni Suef Cencession Agreements, the Company contributes a total of
$200,000 per year splt equally between the two Concessions to support training and development within the Industry,

Objective
To continue supporting locat capability building and sccial investments in Vietnam and Egypt.

Performance

In 2021, in addition to the aforementioned training levy funds, the HLHVJOC Chantable Donation Programme also invested $265,000 in 12
community and charitable partnerships and investment projects in Vietnam. Additionally, in cocperation with the Ministry of Higher Education
and Scientific Research, Petrosilah holds an annual surnmer training programme for all students applying from public and private Egyptian
universities for training in the administrative office and the company's figlds, of which they can obtain a training certificate from the company.

Outlook
Build on previous work, and continuously assess and review where the most valuable contribution to long-term social projects, both at the
local level and more widely, can be made.

Links to strategy Associated risks

* Focus on stakeholders e Commodity price risk
+ Financial discipline and governance risk
« Business conduct and bribery
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KEY METRICS - CONTINUED

EMPLOYEES UNDERTAKEN ANTI-BRIBERY 0021 — 100
AND CORRUPTION TRAINING %

o0 [ o
100 0o RN

Description
Our Anti-Bribery and Corruption ("ABC") programme is designed to prevent cormuption and ensure systems are in place to detect, remediate
and learn from any potential wolations. All personne! are required to complete annual ABC training.

Objective
To have all Group personnel complete the annual ABC programme including training, testing and self-dleclaration staternent.

Performance
100% of parsonnel completed the ABC training as at 31 December 2021,

Outlook

Maintain 100% completion rate for the ABC training and testing. Comply with new legislations and industry best practices and ensure the
training programmes are up-to-date.

Links to strategy Associated risks
e Deliver vaiue through growth + Partner alignment risk
« |nvestment growth + Business conduct and bribery
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Egypt

In 2021, Pharos had 100% interest in two concessions in Egypt - El Fayum and
North Beni Suef. ~

El Fayum (D&P)

The El Fayum Concession is located in the low-cost and highly prolific Western Desert,
) boepd about 80km south west of Caire and close to local enerqgy infrastructure,
2021 Egypt production + See page 27

North Beni Suef (E)

o The North Beni Suef (NBSYConcession is located south of the B Fayum Concession.
Ol fields Pharos entered into the NBS Concession Agreement on 24 December 2019,

+ See page 28

]
El Fayum Concession
-’+

»

I"+

North Beni Suef Concession

* In September2021, Pharos announced the farm-out and sale of a 55% working interest and operatorship in each of the Bl Fayum and
North Beni Suef Concessions to IPR Lake Qarun Petroleurn Co, a wholly owned subsidiary of IPR Energy AG. Pharos and EGPC have
finalised all necassary documents to be presented 1o the Minister of Petroleum and Natural Resources to approve the transaction with IPR
and this approval is expected shortly.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - CONTINUED

El Fayum

Located in the Western Desert of Egypt

El Fayum Concession

El Fayum Production

Production for 2021 from the E! Fayum
Concession averaged 3,318 bopd (2020:
5,270 bopd). This is in line with the 2021
production guidance given in our Interim
Results statement on 15 September
2021.

El Fayum Development and
Operations

El Fayum Phase 1B waterflood
programme commenced in H1

2021 with one workover rig, with a
second workover 11g contracted in
August dedicated to the maintenance
programme. Plans were put in place

{0 accelerate production enhancement

in the second half of the year, which
included the arrival of a second workover
rig and the commencement of a three-
well development drilling programme in
November 2021, Thig was to help provide
reservoir pressure support and maintan
production ahead of the main multi-year
and mutti-well development programme to
be implemented following completion of
the transaction with IPR.

Petrosilah, the £l Fayum joint operating
company, has tendered for a Driling Rig
and a candidate has been idsntified for
a Q2 commencement of operations. The
results of the recently dnlled wells have
been encouraging and confirm our latest
subsurface modelling waork.

EFER FPharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

El Fayum Exploration

The Batran-1X commitment well was
drilled in May 2021 inside the Tersa
Developrment Lease. The well started

the first phase of a long production test
through Early Production Facility (EPF)

in November by testing the single Upper
Baharnya UB-1 zone to evaluate reservoir
continuty and pressure support. During
the intial test the well produced betwean
90 and 25 hopd and the rate of the well
continued te drop during the test. There
remains the option to test further reservoir
zones at a later date following complstion
of the farm-~down to IPR.

El Fayum Commercial

On 20 January 2022, the Cormnpany
announced that the Third Amendmant

1o the El Fayum Concession Agreement
had been signed by His Excellency Eng.
Tarek El Molla (Minister of Petroleum &
Mineral Resources of the Arab Republic
of Egypt), EGPC and the Company . The
agreement, and the improved fiscal terms,
are retroactively effective from November
2020.

While in full cost recovery made,
Contractor's share of revenue increases
from ¢.42% to ¢.50% as from November
2020 (corresponding to additional net
revenues to Contractor of ¢.$7 millon to
the date of signature) significantly lowenng
the development project break-even. The
Nnew arrangements will Strongly encourage
new axploration and development
Investments, aimed at maintaning and
Increasing production rates and optimising
resources, to the mutual benefit of Egypt
and the Gontractor parties.

The Third Amendment also grants
Contractor a three-and-a-half-year
extension 1o the exploration term of the El
Fayurm Concession Agreement, with an
additicnal cbligation on Cantracior to drill
two exploration wells and acquire a 3D
seismic survey in the northern area of the
concession.
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North Beni Suef
Located south of the El Fayum Concession

North Beni Suef block

Interpretation of the large pre-existing 3D seismic survey on the NBS Concession continues with several low risk drillable prospects
already identified. Following completion of the farm-down to IPR, the partners are planning to drill two low-risk low-cost commitment
wells by end of 2022.

Farm- down transactlon and transfer of operatorship

st Petrosilah started 3 the SPA was signed in
3 ) tablishe transition of operatorship
to IPF’ transfer the knowledge of Phalos to IPR and set up collaborative partnership envirenment.

2022 Work Programme

The three-wall driling programme, which commenced in November 2021, is ongoing. Two wells have been completed and
are on production, with the third one due to spud soon.

Following award of the drilling rig contract by Petrosilah on behalf of the Joint Venture and upon completion of the
transaction with IPR and transfer of operatorship, the Contractor parties expect to commence the main El Fayum multi-
year and multi-well development programme in Q2 2022.

Production forecast for 2022 wilk be evaluated following completion of the farm-down to IPR and transfer of operatorship.
Guidance will be given at the AGM.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - CONTINUED

Vietham

A valued asset with organic future growth opportunities. Supportive relationships
developed at the highest level of government.

Block 16-1 TGT Field
(D&P)

The TGT Field is located in Block 16-1,
offshore Vietnam in the shallow water
Cuu Long Basin multi-stacked sandstone
reservoirs.

+ See page 30

Block 9-2 CNV Field
(D&P)

The CNV Field is located in Block 9-2,
offshore Vietnam, in the shallow water
Cuu Long Basin. In conlrast to the
geoclogy of TGT, the CNV Field reservorr 1s
fractured granitic Basement.

+ See page 30

Blocks 125 & 126 (E)

Blocks 125 & 128 are located in
moderate to deep waters in the Phu
Khanh Basin, north east of the Cuu Long
Basin.

+ See page 31
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We have established and valuable assets
in Vietnam. Production is from two fields
(TGT & CNV) and further potential for
growth from two additional exploration
blocks (Blocks 125 & 126).

Blocks 18-1 and 8-2, which contain

the TGT and CNV fislds respectvely,

are located in shallow water in the
hydrocarbon-rich Cuu Long Basin, near
the Bach Ho Field, the largest field in the
region with production already in excess
of cne bilion barrels of oil equivalent. The
Blccks are operated through non-profit
joint operating companies In which each
partner holds an interest eguivalent to
its share in the respective Petroleum
Contract. The Group holds a 30.5%
working interest in Block 16-1 which
containg 97% of the Te Giac Trang (TGT)
field and is operated by the Hoang Long
Jomt Operating Company. The Group's

unitised interest in the TGT field 1s 29.7%.

Pharos also has a 25% working interest
in the Ca Ngu Vang {CVN) field located
in Block 9-2, which is operated by ths
Hoan Vu Joint Operating Company. lts
partners in both blocks are PetroVietnam
Exploration and Production, a subsidiary
of the national oil company of Vietnam
and PTTEP. the national oil company of
Thailland.

QUY NHON

e Block 125
sl Block 126

Block 16-1 TGT Field
++
Block 9-2 CNV Field

Vietnam Production

Production in 2021 from the TGT and
CNV fields net to the Group's net working
interest averaged 5,560 boepd. This igin
ling with the 2021 production guidance.

TGT production averaged 13,887 bhoepd
gross and 4,120 boepd net to Pharos

in 2021 {2020: 15,296 boepd gross

and 4,547 boepd net to Pharos). CNY
production averaged 5,762 boepd gross
and 1,440 boepd net to Phares in 2021
(2020: 8,223 boepd gross and 1,556
boepd net to Pharos).

Vietnam production guidance for 2022 is
5,000 to 8,000 boepd net.
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Block 16-1 TGT Field
Located in Block 16-1, offshore Vietnam, in the shallow water Cuu Long Basin.

30.5% I V& HO CHI MINH C]TY..

Working interest; operated by HLJOC

4,120

boepd net

TGT 2021 production averaged
13,887 boepd gross and
4,120 beepd net to Pharos

¢

Block 9-2 CNV Field

2021 Activity on TGT

TGT Well Intervention and Development Drilling

In November 2021, the Company anncunced that the Hoang Long Joint Operating Company (HLJOC) had successfully completed its
2027 four-well developmient drilling campaign.

The 2021 drilling campaign was completed safely {on 15 November 2021] with four wells successiully drilled ahead of schedule
(approximately 54 days ahead) and budget. The production contribution of the driling campaign mitigated against the field's natural
decline and maintained figld production levels. The four wells were put on production by November 2021, Qverall, field production was
affected by the fault of the GTC-A compressor which was down for 74 days while the repair was done. This 1s now fully back in service.

The resuits of the drilling and intervention activity will ultimately improve recovery from the field and support the additional opportunities
set out in the Full Field Development Plan (1.e. nine contingent wells and an extensive well intervention programme), and a TGT licence
extension reguest to December 2031.

Block 9-2 CNV Field

The CNV Field is located in Block 9-2, offshore Vietnam, in the shallow water
Cuu Long Basin.

25 % . _ HO GHI MINH CITY

Working interest; operated by HLJOC

1,440

boepd net

CNV 2021 production averaged
5,762 boepd gross and 1,440
boepd net to Pharos

VIETNAM

Al

Block 9-2 CNV Field

2021 Activity on CNY

Ag planned, no new drilling activities took place on CNV during 2021, Cperations on CNV focused on routing well maintenance and acid
stimulation for two wells.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - CONTINUED

Blocks 125 & 126

Located in moderate to deep waters in the Phu Khanh Basin, north east of the
Cuu Long Basin.

70%

Operated working interest

B e ]

g e

—

2021 Activity on Blocks 125 & 126

In July 2021, the Company announced the completion of the 3D seismic acguisiton commitment on the western part of Block 125
in the Phu Khanh Basin, offshore Vietnam. The 909 km? 3D seismic prograrmime was acquired on behalf of Pharos by Shearwater
GeoServices Singapore Pte Ltd, using the SW Vespucai seismic vessel, across water depths of between 100m and 2,300m.

The capital spend for the acquisition of the 3D survey was $8.5m. The seismic processing contract has been awarded, the work is on
schedule and the final processed results ars expected in July 2022.

On & September 2021, Pharos received approval for a two-year extension 1o the initial exploration phase of the Block 125 & 126 PSC
from the Vietnamese Ministry of Industry and Trade.

2022 Work Programme

Following completion of the driling of the initial four development wells in the TGT Full Field Development Plan (FFDP) and
the HLJOC management committee’s budget approval in 2021, two additional TGT development wells are planned to be
drilled in Q3 2022, with the Groug's share of the cost of the wells expected to funded from cash flow. In addition, extensive
well interventions are planned for TGT in 2022,

On CNV, one well is planned to be drilled in Q4 2022 after completion of the drilling of the two TGT wells.

Additiorally, as part of the work programme, the JOC is progressing work on submitting licence extension requests for

both TGT & CNV, with a Revised Full Field Development Flan {“FFDP") for both fields to be submitted by Q4 2022. This
would take the licence tarms out to December 2031 for TGT and Decernber 2032 for CNV and would add two years of
reserves to the production profiles and economics for these fields.

On Block 125, final 3D seismic processed results are expected in July 2022, Following this, the Group will proceed to
seismic mapping to identify prospects and expects to seek a further partner on the PSC before drilling.
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Israel

Option on East Mediterranean gas play.

Zone A & Zone C (E)

HO CHI MINH CITY
L J

8

Licences

33.33%

Working Interest

VIETNAM

i~
Block 9-2 CNV Field

Pharos, with Caprcorn Energy PLC (formetly known as Cairn Energy PLC) and Israel's Ratio Cil Exploration, have eight licences offshore
Israel. Each party has an egual working interest and Capricorn Energy 1s the operater, Evaluation of all reprocessed seismic data has

been finalised with an assessment of prospectivity being undertaken.

2021 Group reserves and contingent resources

The Group Reserves Statistics table below summarises our reserves and contingent resources based on the Group's unitised net
working Interest in each field. Gross reserves and contingent resources have been independently audited by RISC Advisory Pty Ltd

(RISC} for Vietnam and McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. (McDaniel} for Egypt.

GROUP RESERVES STATISTICS

Net Working Interest, MMBOE TGT CNV Vietnam Egypt* Group
Qil & Gas 2P Commercial Reserves ' B o . _ . -
As of 1 January. 2021 13.0 4.9 17.9 40.8 58.7
Production {1.5} (0.5} 12.0) {1.2) (3.2}
Revision (0.6} (0.1} 0.7} {1.8) (2.5}
2P Commercial Reserves as of 31 December 2021 10.9 4.3 15.2 378 830
Qil & Gas 2C Commercial Reserves '~ o _ _ - -

As of 1 January, 2021 8.3 3.9 12.2 15.0 31,2
Revision 0.7) 0.1 {0.8) EO.4) (1.2)
2C Contingent Resources as of 31 December 2021 7.6 3.8 11.4 18.6 30.0
Total Group 2P Reserves & 2C Contingent Resources 18.5 8.1 26.6 56.4 83.0

as of 31 December 2021

1. Reserves and contingent resources are calegorised in line with 2018 SPFE standards.

2. Assumes an oll eguivalent conversion factor of 6,000 standard cubic feet per barrel of oil equivalent.

3. Reserves and Contingent Resources have been independently audited by RISC

4. Reserves and Contingent Resources have been independently audited by McDaniel, 100% working nterest pre-farm-down with IPR.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW - CONTINUED

Vietnam Reserves and Contingent Resources

in accordance with the requirements of its Reserve Base Lending Facilty, the company commissioned RISC 1o provide an independent
audit of gross (100% field) reserves and contingent resources for TGT and CNV as of 31 December 2021.

VIETNAM RESERVES STATISTICS

Net Working Interest, MMBOE TGT CNY Total Vietnam

Qil & Gas 2P Cormmercial Reserves

Asof 1 January, 2021 13.0 49 7 17.9
Production ' ' as (0.5) ) 2.0)
Rewision ’ ' (0.6 ©n (0.7)
2P Co-mmercial He;erves as of 3-1 December ;’2021 1'0'.9 ' 4_.3 ’ 15.2

Oil & Gas 2C Commercial Reserves "¢

As of 1 January, 2021 ' 8.2 39 12.2
Revision 0.7} 0.1 0.8}
2C Contingent Resources as of 31 December 2021 7.6 3.8 11.4

Total Vietnam 2P Reserves & 2C Contingent Resources *

as of 31 December 2021 18.5 8.1 26.6

1. Reserves and cortingent resources are categarised n line with 2018 SPL standards,
2. Assumes an ol equivalent conversion factor of 6,000 standard cubic feet per barrel of ot equivalent.
3. Beserves and contingent resources have beenindependently audited by RISC.

On TGT, 2P reserves and 2C contingent resources were revised downwards due to lower-than-expected well performance and reduced
well intervention activity n the second half of the year because of driling operations.

On CNV, the 2P reserves and 2C contingent resources were revised downwards due to lower than anticipated results from the well
interventions completed in the first half of 2021.

Egypt Reserves and Contingent Resources

EGYPT RESERVES STATISTICS

Not Working Interest, MMBOE gyt

QGil 2P Commercial Reserves

As of 1 January. 2021 ) 40.8
Production ) (1.2}
Reviswoﬁ- - ) - 1.8}
2P Commercial R-e-z-serves as of 31 December _2021 - ) 378

Qil 2C Commercial Reserves

As of 1 January, 2021 ' N ' 19.0
RGV;SIOH - i G.4)
ZC Contingent Resources as of 31 December 2021 ' 18.6
Total Egypt 2P Reserves & 2C Contingent Resources- as of 31 December 2021 56.4
1. BRegerves and contingen! resources are categonsed n ling with 2018 SPL standards.

2. Reserves and Contngent Fesources have been ndependently audited by, McDaniel, 1003 warking nterest pre-fanm-down wath PR,

On B Fayum, lower than expected field performance and the delay in the implementation of the field development plan have resulted in a
downwards revision of the 2P reserves and 2C contingent resaurces.
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Group’s Net Working Interest Reserves and Contingent Resources

EL FAYUM FIELD AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 (MMBOE)

Rescrves 1P 2P 3P
oil 16.8 37.8 50.2
Contingent Resources ST S 1C- - 20 N ) 3C
o I S 75 186 38.8
Sun of Reserves and Contingant Resources - PaIcC °P&2c 3P & 3C
Total 243 56.4 89.0

1. Feserves and Contingent Resources have been audited independently by McCarel, 100% working intersst pre-fanm-down with (PR
2. The summation of Beservas and Contingent Resources has been propared by the Cormpany.

TGT FIELD AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 (MMBOE) (NET TO GROUP’S WORKING INTEREST)

Reserves: 1P 2P 3P
Qil 8.0 10,0 12.0
Gas T S 06 oo 12
Total 8.6 10.9 13.2
Contingent Resources 10 2C 3C
Oil 4.2 7.2 10.2
Gas - o1 04 Y
Total 4.3 7.6 10.9
Sum of Reserves and Contingent Resources’ 1P &1C 2P & 2C 3P &3C
el 12.2 17.2 2.2
Gés' - - S o7 3 - 1.9
Total 12.9 18.5 241

1. Assurmes oil equivalent conversion factor of 6,000 standard cubic feet per barrel of oil equivalent.
2. The summation of Reserves and Contingent Resources has been prepared by the Cormpany.
3. Reserves and Contingent Resourcas have been audied independently by RISC.

CNV FIELD AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 {MMBOE} (NET TO GROUP’S WORKING INTEREST)

Reserves” 1P 2P 3P
Qil 2.4 2.8 3.2
Gés‘ S i - 1 .2_ . - 1 .5-_ - _‘l 7
Total 3.6 43 4.9
Contingent Resources 1C 2C 3C
Gl 1.5 25 3.5
Gas' - S 08 13 19
Total 2.3 38 5.4
Sumy of Reserves and Contingent Resources: 1F&1C 2P & 2C 3P &30
Ol 3.9 53 6.7
Gas' I - 20 28 36
Total 59 8.1 10.3

1. Assumes oll eguivalent conversion factor of 6,000 standard cubic feet per barrel of ol equivalent,
2. The summation of Reserves and Contimgent Resources has heen prepared by the Gompany,
3. Reserves and Contingert Resources have been audited independently by RISC.
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S.172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006

S.172(1) Companies Act 2006

The duty under section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006 is applied in addition
to the other duties of a Director, Each Director must discharge these duties in
accordance with the duty of care, skill and diligence both objectively and to a

subjective standard.

In accordance with section 172(1) of

the Companies Act 2008 (*s.172(1)",

the Directors of the Company have a
statutory duty to promote the success

of the Company. The Board at Pharos,
as Individuals and together, consider

that they have acted in a way that would
most likely promote the success of the
Company, and deliver the goals and
objectives for the benefit of it~s members
as a whole in relation to all stakeholders
who may be affected by or engaging with
the Company's activities.

Board meetings and discussions

The Board has always taken into account
its .172{1) obligations during the year in
line with current reporting 1equirements.
Their key decisions have been specifically
confirmed at each Board meeting to

take into account these matters. This

has been supplemented by the roles of
the individual directors giving due regard
and consideration of each element of the
$.172{1} requirements including:

a} The hkely conseguences of any
decisions in the long-term;

=

The interests of the employees;

Qo

The requirements to foster business

relationships with supplers, customers,

and others:
d

The impact on the community and
environment of the Company's
cperations;

e} The desirability of the Company
rmaintaining a reputaticn for high
standards of business conduct; and

fi The need to act farly as between
members of the company.

Hiustration of how s.172{1} factors have
been applied by the Board can be found
throughout the strategic report.

Pharos Energy Annuzal Report and Accounts 2021

a) The likely consequences of any
decisions in the lfong-term

Durling its meetings and discussions, the
Board considers decisions with keen
regard o consequences in the long term
for the business, for example, the decision
to defer all discretionary spend in Egynt
in order to preserve the group’s balance
sheet and position it for the longer term.
Board papers are drafted to promcte
discussion and provide options for the
Board to hold an informed and balanced
debate.

For more information on how the Board
consider decisions with regards to the
long-term consequenceas for the business,
see pages 43 to 57 of the Risk
Management report for all principal risk.

b) The interests of the employees

The interests of the Company’s employees
is a key elerment of the statutory duty
under s. 172{1). Throughout the year, we
have run a dedicated Monday weekly
meeting to ensure all colleagues are
continucusly informed about important
business developments in the Company
and have channels through which they
can ask guestions and provide input.
Additionally. there was increased use

of video camera during virtual calls to
maintain visibility and connection. The
recent reorganisation of the Group has
instituted a flatter organisational structure.
allowing for shorter lines of management
and more direct, accessible channgls of
communication with leadership.

The Executive Directors receive reguiar
updates on colleague engagement to
understand any complaints or troubles
tram the changing work environment.
Following feedback from various
anonymous staff surveys, the Executive
Directors took on board feedbacks
from the team and organised an off-
site away day for the London team to
better understand employees’ working
preferences for working and to explore

any concerns arising from working from
home in the past year. Ed Story, who was
CEOQO at the time, could not travel 1o the
UK due to COVID-12 travel restrichons,
but joined the off-site meeting virtually via
Micresoft Teams in order to participate In
the sessions with the rest of the team. Ed
alzo used the opportunity to commuricate
the Company’s long-term strategy going
forward, which was an additonal area of
feedback from the anonymous surveys,

In ancther survey, colleagues gave views
on future working patterns. Regardiess
of location, there was a clear preference
for permanently blending office with
home working in the future. This has
informed the development of our balanced
working programme and led to our rental
of a WeWork office space in central

i ondon, which seeks to address UK
employees’ working needs and provide
greater flexibility in how and from where
those employees work after removal or
relaxation of travel and public gathering
restrictions introduced in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic,

For more information on the Board's
engagement with employees, see
pages 86 to- 87 of our Corporate
Governance report, pages 11 tc 12
of our Chair's Statement, and pages
59, 6C, 65 10 68, V6, 77 of

our Corporate Responsibility report.

c) The requirements to foster
business relationships with
suppliers, customers, and others

The Group's business relationships

with suppliers, customers and

others are subject to regular review

and consideration through vendor

due dilgence and active contracts
management. Vendor due diligence 1s
actively undertaken before a service
provider of any size is engaged. Significant
contracts, concessions and commitments
are considered by the executive and

the Board, supported by Board papers
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outlining impact and consequences of
potential decisions. Our relationships
with our joint venture partners are key in
developing these strong foundations and
will support our business in the future.

The Board regularly monttors the Group's
business activities, financial position,

cash flows and liquidity through detailed
forecasts. Scenarios and sensitivities are
regularly presented to the Board, including
changes in commadity prices and In
production levels from the existing assets,
plus other factors which could affect the
Group's future performance and position.

For more information on how the
Company foster relationships with
suppliers and business partners, see
pages 59, 64 to 68, 75 to 77 of our
Corporate Responsibility report.

For more information on Board oversight
on business activities and financial
position, see pages 43 to 57 of the Risk
Management report,

d) The impact on the community
and environment of the Group’s
operations

The organisation has provided robust
evidence of its commitment to ESG in
the sector through its ESG Committee
and ESG Working Group. Over the

past four years, we have participated

in the CDP (Climate Disclosure Project)
Climate Change Questionnaire and have
maintained our score (C), which is also
the industry average. 2021 also marks
the first year that the Company submitted
their response to the CDP Water Security
Questionnaire, which was completed

at a basic level in 2021 and we plan to
improve out level of transparency on water
usage and protection by completing the
full version in 2022. More recently, we
re-engaged with Verisk Maplecroft, a
third party Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) consultant,
to commence Phase 2 of the project

to bring our disclosures in ine with the
requirements of the TCFD. These efforfs
had been interrupted by the impact of
the pandemic in 2020 but have resumed
in Q4 2021. Results of the completion of
Phase 2 can be found in the Corporate
Responsibility repart.

In addition to thiz, the Company has
always remained committed to creating
value in a sustainable manner for host
countries and local communities as

well as for staff. In recent years, we

have structured cur social Investment
programme to align more with the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals
{UN SDGs). We've worked closely with our
local partners and joint ventures in arder
to make sure that our social initiatives In
the region continue to bring more pasitive
impacts to the region. In 2021, a total

of $765,000 was invested in long-term

community projects and ring-fenced funds
for training to develop future talents in the
industry.

For more information on the Board's
commitment to ESG and considerations
on the community and the environment,
see pages 92 to 94 for the ESG
Committee report. pages 11 to 12 for the
Chair's Statement, and pages 58 to 78 for
the Corporate Responsibility report.

€) The desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct

Qur Anti-Bribery and Corruption ('ABC’}
Policy and Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics have been followed rigorously
in 2021, ensuring that our engagements
with government officials in all countries
are recorded and monitored internally.
This demonstrates that our Company
undgerslands its Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics and places it at the
forefront of our engagement with public
officials. Cur Whistleblowing Policy
ensures that employees are protected
from possible reprisals when raising
concerns in good faith. In addition to
internal reporting channels, we have a
confidential ethics hotline supported by
EthicsPgint with numbers displayed in
local offices available 24 hours a day all
year round.

The Board has an obligation and duty to
ensure that we exercise our intention to
behave responsibly. The management
team is obliged to execute the business
responsibly and to the highest standards.
We communicate regularly with the
Executive Directors and maintain open
communication with the management
tearn to ensure the two-way information
flow is clear and open. Each Board
member brings individual judgement and
considerable experience to decision-
making and carefully assesses the course
of action which is most likely to promote
the success of the Company. For
example, in 2021, following anonymous
feedback from the London office staff to
the Board and Executive Directors, the
Company introduced a hybrid waorking
model of working from home and working
from a physical office in central Londen,
seeking to address UK employees’
working needs and provide greater
flexiility in how and from whers those
amployees work after removal or
relaxation of travel and public gathering
restrictions introduced in response to the
COVID-19 pandenic. For more
information on the Company’s
commitment {o maintaining high
standards of business conduct, see
pages 59, B0, 66, 76 of the Corporate
Responsibility report and pages 11 to 12
of the Chair's Statement.
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f) The need to act fairly as between
members of the company.

We believe in a workforce with a diversity
of experience, nationalities, cultural
backgrounds and gender, to support our
business strategy of long-term sustainable
growth, It is crucial to the success of

our business that we retan and develop
the diversity of our workiorce and have
diversity and inclusion at the heart of cur
recruitrment, development and promotion
processes.

QOur Caode of Business Conduct and
Ethics, associated policies and the Pharos
Guiding Principles commit us to providing
a workplace free of discrimination

where all employees can fulfil their
potential based on merit and ability. We
remain respectful and accepting in cur
relationships with current and future
employees without discnimination or
prejudice on grounds of age, disability,
gender, marital status, sexual crientation,
colour, race, religion or any other
characteristic protected by applicable
laws. They also commit us to providing a
fully inclusive workplace, while providing
the right development opgortunities to
ensure existing staff have rewarding
careers.

For more information on our commitment
to act fairly as between members of

the company. see page 9 of the
Investment Case, pages 67 to 68

of the Corporate Responsibility report, or
visit our website at https:/Awww.pharos.
energy/responsibility/policy-statements/
for our Human Rights statement.

The Company 15 committed to good
governance and will continue to review the
batance and effectiveness of the Board
with a view to maintaining the right skills,
experience and diversity to align with the
Group’s strategic goals.

We will act and make decisions
rasponsibly in the interests of the
Company, cur shareholders and other
stakeholders, delivering our plan and
working closely to consider the best
opportunities for the Company. Detailed
Board and Committee papers are carsfully
prepared and analysed to ensure all
scenarios and options are fully considered
in a timely and consistent fashion in
mestings.

In accordance with s. 172(1), the
Board has also continued to consult
with, and take account of, the views
of our investors, employees, partners,
governments, suppliers and other
stakeholders throughout the year.




S.172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006

Cur initiatives on stakeholder engagement included, but not limited to:
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Robust process to refresh Board
members and reduce Board size

Agile and responsible response to
continued COVID-19 work restrictions
— protecting pecple, cutting costs and
deferring capex

Ensuring the health and safety of

our workforce by adhering 1o the
requisite precautionary procedures and
vaccine recommendations, in fine with
the government directives in Egypt,
Vietnam and the UK

Re-engagement of Verisk Maplecroft
to complete Phase 2 of the project to
kring our disclosures in line with the
requirements of the TCFD

Submission of COP Water Security

Questionnaire, In addition to the Climate
Change Questionnzire, for the first time

in 2021 {c ensure transparency on
water usage and protection

Open and active dialogue with

its institutional private and retail
shareholder via website, Twitter and
LinkedIn, email communications, and
onling mesting with Q&A to allow the
wider public a free platform to raise
questions directly to the Executive
Directors

Rigorous assessment of all suppliers/
potential suppliers/ partners and off-
takers

Frequent meetings between Executive
Directors and in-country regulators and
partners, reporied to the Board

A secticn of the agenda for each
regularly scheduled meeting of the
Board being dedicated to investor and
stakeholder considerations.

Reports from brokers and financial PR
firm on feedback from investors and
research analysts.

Confidential ethics hotline supported by
EthicsPoint with numbers dispiayed in
local offices avalable 24 hours a day all
year round
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S STATEMENT

CFO’S Statement

SUE RIVETT
Chief Financial Cfficer

Finance strategy

Our finance strategy continues 1o
underpin the Group's business model and
goes hand in hand with our commitment
to building shareholder value through
capital growth and sustainable dividends.
In 2021, we recommencead investment in
Vietnam and with the additional liguidity
offered by our farm-in partner in Egypt,
we are on the path back to focusing on
investing for cash flow generation and
growth in 2022.

Operating performance

Revenues

Group revenues for the vear totalled to
$163.8m pricr to hadging loss of $29.7m,
representing a 38% increase over the prior
year (2020: $118.3m plus hedging gain of
$23.7m).

The revenue for Vietnam of $131.0m
{2020: $87.7m) increased significantly
year on year. The average realised crude
ol price was $72.61/bbl (2020: $44.70¢
bbl}, a 62% increase year on year, and
the premium to Brent was just under $2/
bbl (2020: just over $3/bbl). Production,
however, declined from 6,103 boepd to
5,580 boepd primarily due to the GTC-A
compressor fault on the TGT field in
November 2021,

The revenue for Egypt of $32.8m {2020;
$30.6m) increasad largety as a result of
the higher average realised crude oil price,
o 76% 1o $ob.12/bbl (2020 $37.08/
bbl), offset by lower average production,
of 3,318 boepd from 5,270 boepd .
There are two discounts applied to the

El Fayum cruge production — a general
Western Desert discount and one related
specifically to El Fayum. Both are set by
EGPC and combined stayed consistent at
nearly $5/bbl over the year.

QOperating costs

Group cash operating costs were $52.0m
(2020: $48.3m), Vietnam increased by
17% from $26.5m to $31.0m in 2021,
which equates to $15.28/bhl (2020:
$11.86/bbl). The increase is due to higher
costs relating to the FPSO as a result of
i) lower TLJOC production throughput
which increased Pharos’ share of the
costs and {i) higher foreign contractor's
withholding tax, of which the CIT element
impacts the FPSO costs included in
operating costs, from 2% 1o 5% from 27
August 2018 to date, which was also
spread over fewer produced barrels. Cash
operating costs in Egypt were $21.0m

in 2021 (2020: $21.8m}, which equates
to $17.34/bbl (2020: $11.530/bbl). The
decrease in cash operating costs relates
predominantly to a reduction in variable
costs as a result of decreased preduction,
partially offset by higher well workover
costs, but spread over fewer produced
barrels.

DD&A

Group DD&A associated with producing
assets decreased to $51.0m (2020:
$63.3m) due o the lower depreciating
cost base following 2020 impairments
taken on both Vietnam and Egypt,
combined with lower production. DD&A
per bbt is currently $21.1%/boe for
Vietnam (2020: $21.40/ o) and $6.61/
boe in Egypt (2020: $8.04/boe).

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expensas in 2021 of
$13.2m (2020: $14.7m) are lower than
prior year, due to continucus efforts

to reduce the head office costs. After
adjusting for the non-cash items under
IFRS 2 Share Based Payments of $2.2m
(2020: $2.8m) and IFRS 16 Leases $nil
(2020: $0.7m), the administrative expense
is $11.0m {2020: $11.2m). Voluntary staff
salary reductions at 20% centinued from
2020C through to 1Q 2021, The executive
directors, who had previcusly volunteered
a 35% reduction in base salary in 2020
agreed to a further reduction from 1 April
2021 to 50% of base salary. The non-
executive directors reduced their fees
throughout miost of 2020 and continued
those reductions throughout the whole
of 2021, The fees will revert to previous
levels post completion of the transaction
with IPR. A programme of phased
redundancies toock place at head office in
London during 2021.

Operating Profit

Operating profit from continuing
operations for the year was $6.3m (2020
$3.5m) excluding the net impairment
reversal of $42.0m (2020: $234.8m
impairment charge), reflecting the higher
commadity price environment throughout
the year, offset by lower praduction
volumes.

Other/Restructuring Expenses

Other/restructuring expenses for the

year totalled $3.3m {2020: $5.8m} and
included restructuring costs for both the
head office in London and the Egypt office
in Cairo ($3.0m). In addition, there was
$0.3m charge relating to the premium on
the transfer of the lease on the London
office.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased to $6.4m (2020
$4.2m), mainly related to amortisation

of capitalised borrowing costs of $2.4m
{2020; $1.5m gain due to changes in
future cash flows), interest expense
payable and similar fees of $3.8m (2020:
$4.8m) and unwinding of discount on
provisions of $0.8m (2020: $0.8m}.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021 38



CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S STATEMENT - CONTINUED

CASH OPERATING COST PER BARREL*

2021 $m 2020 $m
Cost of sales 114.6 123.8
Less - -
Depreciaﬂon. demétion and amortisation (51.0) {63.3)
F’roductioﬁ bése-d 'léxes ’ - ' (10\17) ' [7.0)
Inventories ) 0.1 (2‘37}
Other COS{ of sales (1-.6) 2.9
Cash 6pe§at‘mg éosts 52.6 48.3
Prodkiction (BOEPD) 8,878 11.373
Gash operating cost per BOE (§) 16.05 11.60
DD&A PER BARREL"
2021 $m 2020 $m
Depreciation. depletion and amorhsaton {51.0) 163.3)
Production (BOEPD) 8,878 11,373
DD&A per BOE (8) 15.74 15.21
CASH OPERATING COST PER BARREL BY SEGMENT
Vietnam $m Eaypt $m Total $m
Cost of sales 84.3 30.3 114.6
Lesy
Depreciation. deplehon and amontisation {43.0) 18.0) {51.0)
Production basad taxes 9.8) (0.3 {10.1)
Inventortes o1 - 0.1
Cther cost of sales 0.65) (1.9 (1.6§
Cash operating costs 31.0 21.0 52.0
Produchon (BOEPD) 5.560 3.318 B,é?B
Gash operating cbst per BOE () 15.28 17.34 16.05
DD&A PER BARREL BY SEGMENT
Vietnam $m Egypt $in Total m
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation {43.0) 8.0) {51.0)
Production (BOEPD) - 5,560 3318 8,878
DD&A per BOE (%) 2119 £.61 15.74
® Cash uperabing cost per barrel ard DD&A per barre! are alternatis e perfarmance measures See pages 163 164,
MOVEMENTS IN THE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2021 $m 2020 $m
Asat i Jan 435.8 676.9
Capital spend 7 247 335
hevisnoﬁ i JecomrnissIonng asssts - (1.9) B.6
Disposél of ot}zer assels - (0.5
Derecognrt[dm of rlgﬁvof—use asset - (5.71
Ra-classification of assets held fbr sake (62.0} -
DD&A- Gil and gés prbperties ) (51.0) 63.3)
DD_&A - O-ther aésets (0;4) 1.2}
luﬁpa‘lrmem réversaV(charge) - PPR&E 54.6 (210.5)
As at 31 Dec 399.8 43553
Property, Plant and Equipment 7 399.8 435.7
Right:tqusefAsset !!-FRS 16 hripact) - 0.1
As at 31 Dec ' 399.5 435.8
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Taxation

The overall net tax charge of $43.3m
(2020: $25.6m credit) relates to tax
charges in Vietnam of $24.8m plus

the deferred tax charge on impairment
reversal of $18.5m (2020: Vietnam tax
charges of $11.1m offset by a deferred
tax credit on impairment of $36.7m).

The Group's effective tax rate
approximates to the statutory tax rate in
Vietnam of 50%, after adjusting for non-
deductible expenditure and tax losses not
recogrised.

The Egypt concassions are subject to
corporate income tax ¢l he standard
rate of 40.55%, however responsibility
for payment of corporate income taxes
falls upon EGPC on behalf of Pharos El
Fayum (PEF). The Group records a tax
charge, with & correspending increase in
revenug, for the tax paid by EGPC on its
behalf, Due 1o accumulated tax-deductible
balances, there is no tax due on PEF this
period.

One of the Group company entered into
commodity swaps designated as cash
flow hedges. In accordance with IAS
12, a deferred tax asset has not been
recognised in relation to the hedging
losses of $29.7m recorded in the year
as it is unlikely that the UK tax group
will generate sufficient taxable profit in
the future, against which the deductible
temporary diffaerences can be utilised.

Loss post tax

The post tax loss for the year from
continuing operations and prior to

the impairment reversal of $42.0m,
impairment tax charge of $18.5m and
exceptional costs of $3.3m was $24.9m
{2020: post tax loss for the year of
$11.7m from continuing operations

and prior to the impairment charge of
$234.8m, imparrment tax credit of $36.7m
and exceptional costs of $5.8m). The
overal! loss for the year was $4.7m (2020:
$215.8m).

Cash flow

Operating cash flow {before movements
in working capital) was $60.1m (2020:
$70.8m), after tax charges of $39.9m
(2020 $26.5m), restructuring expense
$0.7m (2020: $2.7m}) and working capital
adjustments of $8.6m (2020; $14.7m),
the cash generated from operations was
$10.8m (2020: $56.4m).

Operating cash flow {before movements
in working capital} adjusted for the impact
of the hedging positions of $29,7m loss
{2020: gain $23.7mj} gives an underlying
operational performance of $88.8m (2020:
$47.1m), which is consistent with the
improverment seen In commodity prices
offset by the production decrease year on
year.

The increase in receivables was $7.2m
{2020: decrease in receivables of $19.6m).
The movement is mainly commodity price
driven, from YEZ20 the average oil price
realised has increased from $44.70/bbl

to 70.95/bbl, therefore increasing the
receivables balance held at YE21.

Capital expenditure on continuing
operations for the year was relatively flat at
$41.8m (2020: $41.3m). All discretionary
capex was deferred during 2020 following
the oll price crash to preserve balance
sheet strength and hiquidity. During 2021,
the TGT four well infill development

was successfully carried out within
schedule and under budget. Egypt
capital expenditure included the adrlling of
commitment exploration well Batran-1X

in May 2021 and a three-well back-to-
back development drilling programme
commenced in Novermnber 2021,

Net cash inflows from financing activities
of $31.1m {2020: $48.5m outfiow)
included net inflow of the RBL totalling
$£20,8m foliowing the refinancing in July
2021 ($21.8m further barrowing, offset
by $0.9m settlement of the original RBL).
The revised RBL has provided access of
up to a committed $100m with a further
$50m available on an uncommitted
“accordion” basis and has a four year
term that matures in July 2025, In 202G,
the significant decrease in the oil price
during H1 2020 led to a reduction in the
borrowing base and principal repayments
during the year on the BBL totalled
$42.8m. In addibon for 2021, the Group
drew down on a new facility with National
Bank of Egypt for a net amaount of $6.5m
{(318.1m principal facility, less $11.6m

of repayments}. The carrying amount of
our trade receivables balance includes
receivablas in Egyot which are subject

to an Uncommitted Revolving Credit
Facility for Discounting {with Becourse)
arrangement. This facility has been put in
place to mitigate the risk of late payment
of our debtors. Under this arrangement,
Pharos is able to access cash from

the facility using the El Fayum oil sates
invoices as evidence to support its ability
to repay the facility. The ol sales invoices
remain due to Pharos and it retains the
credit risk, The Group therefore continues
to recognise the trace receivables in thelr
entirety on the balance sheet.

In January 2021, also within financing
activities, the Company announced the
successful completion of the placing,
subscription and retail offer resufting in the
issue of 44 661,490 new ordinary shares.
Through this transaction, Pharos raised
additional capital of $10.9m (net of direct
issue costs of $0.8m).

No final dividend was paid for the year
(2020: $nil).

Tax strategy and total tax
contribution

Tax is managed proactively and
responsibly with the goal of ensuring that
the Group is compliant in all countries in
which it holds interests. Any tax planning
undertaken is commercially driven and
within the spirit as well as the letter of the
law,

This approach forms an integral part of
Pharos' sustainable business model.

The Group's Code of Business Caonduct
& Ethics seeks to build open, cooperative
and conatructive relalionships with tax
authorities and governmental bodies in

all territories in which it operates. The
Group supporis greater transparency

in tax reporting to build and maintain
stakeholder trust. We have a number of
overseas subsidiaries which were set up
sorme lime ago and the Group is now
proactively planning to bring these into the
UK tax net to ensure greater transparency
and comparability. No additional taxes
are expected to be due as a result of this
EXBrcise.

During 2021, the total payments to
governments for the Group amounted

to $198.2m (2020: $150.9m), of which
$151.9m or 77% (2020: $104.9m or 70%,)
was related to the Vietnam producing
licence areas, of which $102.6m {2020:
$72.5m) was for indirect taxes based

on production entittement. In Egyot
payments to government totalled $44.7m
(2020: $42.2m), of which §44.1m (2020:
$41.3m) related to indirect taxes based on
production entitlement.

Balance sheet

Intangible assets increased during

the period to $12.4m (2020: $1.5m).
Additicns for the year related to Blocks
125 & 126 in Vietnam $10.6m (2020:
$2.0m}, Egypt $3.9m {2020: $1.1m} and
$0.7m {2020: $1.2my} for the lsraeli bid
round licence fee. The Group has written
off $2.2m relating 1o the Israel asset as
no substantive expenditure has been
identified under IFRS 8. In addition, $2.1m
of intangible assets relating to the Egypt
concessions has been re-classified as
assets held for sale.

The movements in the Property, Plant and
Equipment asset class are shown above.

Impairment

As a result of ongoing ail price volatility
and movements in 2P resarves, we

have tested each of our il and gas
producing properties for impairment and
impairment reversals. The results of these
impairment tests are summarised below.
For Vietnarm producing properties, the
recoverable amount has been determined
using the value in use method which
constitutes a level 3 valuation within
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the fair valug higrarchy, The recoverable
amount is based on the fair value derived
from a discounted cash flow valuation

of the 2P production profile for each
producing vroperty. For Egypt producing
property, the recoverable amount has
been determined using the value-in-use
method.,

For CNV, a pre-tax impairment reversal

of $3.8m (2020: impairment charge
$23.3m) has been reflected in the income
statermnent with an associated deferred
tax charge of $1.4m (2020: deferred tax
credit $8.7m). As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of the CNV ol and
gas producing property, after additions

of $0.3m, changes in decommissioning
asset due to discount rate ($0.9m), DD&A
($10.2m}) and the impairment reversal
$3.8m), is $84.2m (2020 the carrying
amount of the CNV oll and gas producing
property, after additions ($1.9m), DD&A
$11.5m) and the impairment charge
($23.3mj was §91.2m}.

For TGT, a pre-tax impairment reversal

of $49,1m {2020: imparment charge
$81.8m}) has been reflected in the income
statement with an associated deferred
tax charge of $17.1m (2020; deferred tax
credit $28.0m}. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of the TGT ol and
gas producing property, after additions

of $11.4m, changes in decommissioning
asset due to discount rate ($1.0m}, DD&A
($32.8m) and the impairment reversal
{$49.1m). is $266.0m (2020 the carrying
amount of the TGT oil and gas producing
croperty, after additions ($14.8m). DD&A
($36.3m) and the impairment charge
($21.9m1) was $239.3m).

For Egypt, an impairment reversal {pre-
and post-iax) in the amount of $1.7m
(2020 impairment charge $105.4m) has
been reflected In the income statement.
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amaunt of the Egypt oil and gas producing
property, after additions ($12.9m), re-
classification of PP&E to assets held for
sale of ($1.4m), DD&A ($8.0m) and the
impairment reversal {($1.7my, is $109,3m
{2020: the carrying amount of the BEgypt
oll and gas producing property, after
additions ($22.7m), DD&A ($15.2m) and
the impairment charge ($105.4m) was
$104.1m). After the reclassification to
assets held for sale, the Egypt ol ana gas
progucing property amounts to $49.2m.

The total non-cash, post tax impairment
reversal amounts to $36.1m and the
balance sheet carrying vaiues of the all
and gas praducing properties stands at
$399.4m, after reclassification of agsets
held for sale in relation to Egypt of $61.6m
{2020: the total non-cash, post tax
impairment charge amounts to $173.8m
and the balance shest carrying values
of the ofl and gas producing propérties
stood at $434.6m). Further details of
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these impairment charges and olf price
scenano sensitivity testing, including

key assumptions in relation fo oil price,
discount rate and 2P reserves in Vistnam,
are provided in Note 16 of the financial
statements.

The agreement pesl year end of the Third
Amendment to the El Fayum Concession
Agraement, with retroactive application of
the improved fiscal terms from November
2020 and a three and a half year
extension 1o the exploration period was
not considered certain at 31 December
2021 and so hag been treated as a non-
adjusting post balance sheet event. An
impairment reversal of $28.2m utilising the
circumstances of 31 December 2021 as
the basis has been calculated and will be
factored into the impairment reviews gaing
forward,

Balance sheet continued

Cash is set aside into abandonment
funds for both TGT and CNV. These
abandonment funds are operated by
PetroVietnam and, as the Group retans
the legal rights to the funds pending
commencement of abandonment
operations, they are treated as other non-
current assets in our financial statements.

Oltinventory was $5.9m at 31 December
2021 {(2020: $5.6m), of which $5.4m
refated to Vietnam and $0.5m to Egypt.
Trade and other receivables increased to
$28.1m (2020: $22.9m) of which $18.2m
{2020: $11.2mj relates to Vietnam and
$8.5m (2020: $10.0m) to Egypt, driven
mainly by the higher cil price and timing of
crude ofl cargos,

Cash and cash equivalents at the end oi
the year were $27.1m (2020; $24.6mj)
mainly due to the BBL refinancing in July
and also the Placing in January 2021,
offset by the reduction in nat cash from
operating activities as a result of the
hedging losses during the year.

Trade and other payables were $30.6m
(2020: $35.6my), of which $14.5m (2020:
$23.3m) relates to the Egypt payabies,
$4.8m (£2020: $1.7m} Vietnam payables
and $6.5m (2020: $6.8m) net hedging
liability. Tax payable decreased to $5.4m
(2020: $6.7m), consistent with lower
revenues.

Borrowings were $80.5m (2020 $53.7m),
an increase of $26.8m and $20.3m
related to the RBL refinancing in July,
inclusive of capitalised borrowing costs.
In April 2021, the Group drew down on
the new facility with the National Bank of
Egynt and the amount repayable under
the agreement at 31 December 2021 was
$6.5m (2020: $nill. Net debt was $57.5m
{2020: $32.6m).

Long-term provisions comprise the
Group's decommissicning obligations and
the royalty over the El Fayum asset, In
Vigtnam, the decornmissioning prowvision
decreased from $68.0m at 2020 year-
end to $66.9m at 20271 mainly due to

an increase in discount rate from 0.9%
to 1.5% as a result of an increase in
prevailing tisk-free market rates, partially
offset by the TGT infill well programme.
The amounts set aside into the
abandonment funds total $48.1m (2020:
$45.9m). No decornmissioning obligation
exists in the El Fayum producing area
under the terms of the Concession
Agreement in Egypt.

The royalty provision relates to a historical
arrangement granting a 3% royalty on
Pharas’s share of profit ol and excess
cost recovery from Bl Fayum in Egypt. At
21 Dacember 2021, the provision was
increased by $0.2m, giving a total of
$5.6m ($3.4m of which is deemed 1o be
repayable in 2022},

Own shares

The Pharos EBT holds ordinary shares
of the Company for the purposes of
satishying long-term incentive awards
for senior management. At the end of
2021, the trust heid 1,767.757 (2020:
2,181,655}, representing 0.40% (2020:
0.54%} of the issued share capial.

In addition, as at 31 December 2021,
the Company held 9,122,268 (2020:
9,122.268) treasury shares, representing
2.02% (2020 2.24%) of the issued share
capital.

Assets held for sale

In December 2021, the Company
announced that shareholders had
approved the farm-out of 55% of the
Group's operated intérest in each of cur
Egyptian Concessions, El Fayum and
North Beni Suef, to IPR, a group that has
exlensive experience in Egypt.

As part of the transaction, PR will fund
Pharos’s share of the costs to a maximum
of $33.425m (to be adusted for working
capital and interim period adjustments
from the effective economic date of 1 July
2020). This is in addition to the deposit

at signing of the farm-out agreements of
USE2 million and a further US$3 million
payable on completion. This investment
programme should result n an increase
In producticn and also fulfil commitments
under the concessions. In addition,

the Group will be entitled to contingent
consideration depending on the average
Brent Price each year from 2022 to the
end of 2025, capped at a maximum total
payment of US$20 million.
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An impairment of $10.4m was recognised to bring the value of the net assets classified as held for sale down 1o the fair value less costs
to sell caiculated as at 31 December 2021, The breakdown of assets held for sale at year end is as follows:

2021 $m
Intangible assets 21
Property, plant and eguipiment :_oil and gas ng-emes - N-B-V 61.6
Impainnent charge - Assels classified as hélﬁ?&r sale o ) - {1 o’Z)
Property, plant énd equ!‘plTlénrt - oll ;';nd garsip?pe;‘[ics —after impainvent 51 2
Property, plant ;aéquipmcn-t-—_c;g]er - NBV i 7 - 0.4
nventories ’ o - 6.3
Tré; énd other receivables - o 7 2.0
Assets classified as held for sale 62.0
Trade and other payables {(8.5)
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale (8.5}
Net assets classified as held for sale 53.5

Going concern

Pharos continuously monitors its business
aclivities, financial position, cash flows
and liguidity through detalled forecasts.
Scenarios and sensitivities are also
regularly presented to the Board, including
changses in commodity prices and in
production levels from the existing assels,
plus other factors which could affect the
Group's future performance and position.

A base case forecast has heen
considered which uses an oil price of
$76.9/bbl in 2022 and $70.2/bbl in
2023.The key assumptions and related
sensitivities include a "Reasonable Worst
Case” (RWC) sensitivity, where the Board
has constdered the risk of an ail price
crash broadly similar to 2020 as a result
of the global cutbreak of the COVID-19
virus. This assumes the Brent oil price
drops 1o 48.0/bbl in April 2022 and
gradually recovers to base price in next
12 months, concurrent with reductions in
Vietnam and Egypt production compared
to our base case of 5% from March
2022. Both the base case and RWC
take into consideration the hedging that
has already been put in place for 2022
and 2023 which covers 24.6% of the
Group's forecast Q2 2022 to (32 2023
entitlement volumes securing a minimum
and maximum price for this hedged
volume of $67.5 and $81.4 per barrel,
respectively. Under the RWC scenario,
we have identified appropriate mitigating
actions, which could look to defer capital
expenditure programme as required.

We have also developed a reverse stress
test sensitivity, which shows the extenl to
which cil prices would need to fall before
our financial headroom is breached,
keeping all other variables unchanged.

tin Egypt, the Base case assumes a full
investment scenario and a farm-down.

Our business in Vietnam remains robust
with a breakeven price of ¢.$25/bkl. We
have limited capital expenditure cutside

of the two TGT wells and one CNV well

in Vietnam over the rest of the business
with most falling cutside 2022, Most of
our debt is secured against the Vietnam
assets under the RBL with just $6.5m
drawn on an uncommitted revolving credit
facility on the Egypt revenue invoices.

The forecasts cutlined above show that
the Group will have sufficient financial
headroom for the 12 months from the
date of approval of the 2021 Accounts.
Based on this analysis, the Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adeguate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Therefore, they continue to use
the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the annual Financial
Statements.

Financial outlook

Pharos’ financial strength s founded on
our long-term approach to managing
capital to provide risk adjusted full

cycle returns, which has allowed us to
return significant amounts of capital

to shareholders in previous years. In a
prevalling stronger il price environment,
our focus can turn again to returns to
shareholders.

We continue to have the support of

our strong RBL lending banks who
approved the refinancing of the RBL
during July, extending the tenor to July
2025. Additionally, we also signed an
uncommitted revolving credit facility with
National Bank of Egypt, which provides
modest additional liquidity.

The improvement in the fiscal terms and
the farm-down of cur concessions in
Egypt to IPR means that we will enjoy the
benefit from completion in 2022 and into

2023 of the carry of our share of operating

and capital costs. During the carry pericd
we continue to receive our revenues with
only Pharos 100% costs to cover.

The low breakevens and continuation
of the TGT miield development ptar in
Vietnam with two addiional wells and
one well infield well in CNV will support
the production profiles in a strong price
environment.

The restructure of the London and Cairo
offices will be fully completed following
the transfer of operatorship of the Egypt
conhcessions to IPR, The restructure
resets the cost base for the Group moving
forward.

The measures we have taken during
thig period have set us up to be able to
reap the benefits of stable production
from our assets, improved fiscal terms,
low breakevens, improved liquidity from
our lenders, a streamlined crganisation
against a hackground of improved long
term prices.

SUE RIVETT
Chief Financial Cfficer
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

Report

Risk Management Framework
at Pharos

Pharos carred out regular and robust
risk assessments to identify and manage
its Principal and Emerging risks during
2021 and continues to monitor closely
the evolving risk landscape during the
COVID-13 pandemic and the global
macroeconomic environment. Our
management undertook a number of
deep-dive exercisas as the pandemic
unfolded to gauge its risk appetite and
recalibrate its risk tolerance to ensure
the appropriate mitigating actions were
implemented. The Board has clesely
considered the potential impact and
probability of these nsks and related
events on s corporate strategy,
cbjectives and stakeholders' perspectives
of the Group.

MANAGING OUR RISKS

Principal risks in 2021

Control environment

The Group's control environment 1s based
orimarily on its Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics, which carsies a number of
fundamental values, ncluding openness
and integrity, safety and care for the

environment and respect for human rights.

The control envircnment is also supported
by a series of carporate policies, which
form part of the Group’s Business
Management Systern. These documents
are distributed to all employees, followed
up with training as required and are
availoble on the Intranet. As part of the
compliance programme, all employees
have to do an anti-bribery and corruption
training and assessment at least onee a
year.

Govemance, authorities
and accountability

The Board of Directors, supported by

its various Commitiees, ensures that

the internal control functions operate
property. The Audit and Risk Committee
oversess the implementation by the
Senior Management Team of the internal
control and risk management procedures
based on the risks identified to support
the Group's objectives.

Principal and Emerging risks in 2022

* Further lockdowns dampening cil demand s Further lockdowns dampening oil demand

+ Insufficient funds to meet commitments

*  Commodity Price volatility
« Volatility in Production levels

* HSE & Social

* Unsuccessful Farm-out of Egypt assets

¢ Partner alignment

* Reserves downgrades

s Cyber security

* Human Resources

*  Sub-optimal capital allocation
* Pdiitical and Regional

* Business Conduct and Bribery
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* Insufficient funds to meet commitments

* Commodity Price volatility

* Vaiatility in Production levels

+ Climate Change and speed of energy transition + Rising operational costs

» Climate Change - transition and physical risks

* HSE & Public Health Risk — COVID-19 resurgence

* Partners’ alignment

* Reserves downgrades

* Cyber security

* Human Rescurces

s Sub-optimal capitat alocation
+ Political and Regicnal
» Business Conduct and Bribery
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

TOP DOWN Pharos Risk Management framework

Set Define Identify Apply risk Deliver
Oversight strategic risk Principal assessment strategic
ohjectives appetite risks Process objectives

Accountability
Maonitoring

Deep-dive

o Audit&npisk MM  ESG
e Esiites P T Commites

The Pharos Risk Management Framework
requires that all business units within

the Group conduct on-going risk
management and reporting to the

Audit and Risk Committee and the
Board. The Group’s Risk Management
Policy defines the specifics of the risk
management process, describes the risk
tools (for example, the preparation and
maintenance of a Group risk matrix and
risk register) and outlines the reperting
process and responsibilities in crder

to meet the Group’s risk governance
framework.

Risk management and reporting is a
necessary and important activity at
Pharos. It is an internal control process
implemesnted by the Board, management
and all other personnel; applied
throughout the organisation and ali
functions, designed to identify potential
events which may affect the buginess,
and manage those nsks within its risk
appetite. In addition, risk managsment

is a process that provides reascnable
assurance regarding the achievement of
the Group's objectives. A comprehensive
nsk management approach allows Pharos
10

*  Agsist the Group in achieving its
cerporate objectives and develop
alternate strategies

= Better manage the business by
anticipating potential risks and devise
preventive / mitigating measures

* Meet regulatory reguirernents

* Premote sustainability and help build
more resilient systems

The Busingss Management System
(BMS) evolves continually at Pharos
but at its core comprises a set of
policies and standards, including the
Risk Management Policy based on ISO

Risk Management Framework

The Board

31000 Risk Management Principles

and Guidelines. The BMS is supported
by procedures and processes for each
function and business unit to control day-
to-day business activities. The internal
control framework and risk management
process under the BMS seeks to ensure
that rigk identification, assessment and
mitigation are ail properly embedded
throughout the organisation. Whilst the
Group's approach 1o risk management

is designed to provide a reascnable
assurance that material financial
irregularities and control weaknesses

can be detected, the process does not
totally eliminate that a risk could have a
material adverse effect on our operations,
earnings. iquidity and financial outlook.

Risk is often described as an event,
change of circumstances or a
consequence. The Group's risk reponting
will focus onidentifying risk as a "potential
event”. Each event will be assessed

on its potential impact to pecple, the
environment, the respective asset /
financial impact on operations, and the
Group's reputation in terms of seventy and
likelihood.

A challenging future

COVID-19 was originally declared a
pandemic back in March 2020, more
than two years age. During this time, this
virus has caused millicns of deaths and
triggered changes to people’s lives and
the way of domg busingss that previously
have been difficult to imagine. The
sclentific community developed a number
of COVID-18 vaccines in record time and
many governments fast-tracked their
approval and use far the general public.
Numerous variants emerged leading to
renewed lockdowns, internaticnal travel
restrictions and forcing many governments
to apply fiscal incentives to boost their

ESG

*

Review & Escalation

Risk identification
and mitigations

Maintain Risk registers

Risk Owners

BOTTOM UP

economies. Many sectors, such as
hospitality, aviation, transport and energy.
have been greatly impacted as demand
for their products and services dropped
drastically while scme other sectors

such as technology and pharmaceutical
benefited from an unexpected surge in
demand, causing supply chain issues and
inflationary pricing.

The oil and gas sector expetienced o
roller-coaster ride in the last two years,
with the Brent price dipping to as low as
$20:bbl at the start of the pandemic and
averaging $42/bbl and $71/bbl in 2020
and 2021 respectively. The second half of
2021 saw a rising oil price and this trend
has continued in Q1 2022, However,
outlock for Brent price remains uncertain
well into 2022 due to a number of factors
and also due to the knee-jerk reactions
of the financial markets on demand and
supply outlook for energy:

e OPEC + world geopolitics

= Changes to national strategic snergy
resernes

¢ Renewed lockdowns further reducing
demand for oil

¢ Natural Gas shortages in Europe and
Asia
¢ Oil futures trading and speculations

* Large investors and banks avoiding
fossil fuel investments

IEA’s sustainable cutlook where fossil
fuels' share may reduce in the overall
energy mix

* New legislation and regulation resulting
in increased costs for heavy CO,
polluters

+ Ukraine/Russia conflict
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Public Health risk - COVID-19 and
the future variants

The rise and fall of the Cmicron impact
around the world is being closely
watched by scientists and governments
- precautionary measures such as the
effectiveness of lockdowns to contral any
spread are dividing camps and may be
risky 1n triggering another recession. The
waning immunity of those vaccinated and
the need for regular boosters can cause
many legistical and equity issues. With
very high levels of infection worldwide,
further virus mutations are inevitable and
50 is the emergence of new variants of
concern. With this landscape, 2022 witl
remain full of uncertainties and cil price is
likely to see significant swings either way.

The health, safety and welfare of cur staff,
contractors and host communities across
our business remains the highest priority
on the Board agenda, especially during
the pandemic. The Group adhered to the
requisite precautionary procedures and
restrictions, in line with the government
directives in Egypt, Vietnam and the

UK, In Egypt at Petrosilah and Pharos

El Fayum. a vaccination carnpaign for all
employees in the main offices and fields
started in Q2 2021 and culminated to
97 % (2 doses] of the workforce being
vaccinated at the end of December 2021,
In Vietnam, the HLHV JOC strict 5-7 days
quarantine regulations are being applied
for the workforce going offshare, In
addition to rapid and PCR tests one day
prior to offshore mobilisation ~ 100% of
the workforce are vaccinated with at least
two doses at the end of December 2021.
For the office workforce at all locations,
Pharos has continuously applied a hybrid-
working mode and will do so until further
notice.

The new mode of working under the
pandemic has led to the culture of many
organisations including Pharos to change
overnight with more focus on flexibility
and mutual trust. However, it is important
that companies watch for any pessible
negative signs - can workers’ health

and productivity suffer as a result of
pralonged Working from Home (WEH)?
How tc ensure operational staff do not
feel disadvantaged as they cannot WFH?
An active and regular programme of
engagement between management and
the workforce is important so that any
issues can be discussed and tackled
early.
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Climate Change risks

During 2021 a number of trends peppered
the energy sector; the energy price
inflation crisis, the rise of the activist
blarming companies on overpromising

and under dslivering on climate and the
speed of recovery of ol price particularly
in the second half of 2021 as the Omicron
COVID-19 variant was still causing rising
infections and uncertainty on the markets.
in August 2021, a landmark report from
IPCCT warned that global warming will it
1.5C by 2040, thus potentially breaching
the targets of the Paris Agreement. The
repert found that immediate, rapid and
large-scale reductions in emissions were
needed to avert a calamitous effect on the
planet.

The COP26 summit in Glasgow in
November 2021 culminated with the
agreement of the Glasgow Climate Pacl
{GCP), where each participating country
commita to their submitted nationally
determined contnbutions (NDCs) but how
the various governments will achieve ther
respective GO, reduction commitments by
passing Fegvs!étion to tax heavy poluters
or incentivise renewable investments
rematns uncharted territory. As the
succass or falure of COPZ26 is debated, a
numbser of ESG topics have been elevated
and will Ikely dominate 2022:

¢ Focus on reporting and reducing Scope
3 emissions

*» How private capital can influence and
assist the energy transition journey?

s Carbon markets - how 1o set a globally
acceptable price and ensure carbon
offsets are verifiable?

* The rise of sustainability accounting

» Focus on diversity, equity and inclusion

UN Intergovernmental Panel on
Clmate change

Climate Risk and Resilience

Climate change risks, both arising from
energy transition and the physical effects
of changes in climate are identified ang
assessed as part of the Group’s integrated
risk management approach and mitigated
within the remit of a diverging set of key
stakeholders’ aspirations and calbrated
within the Group's risk appetite and
corporate strategy.

In January 2022, Pharos further advanced
its alignment with the four TCFD piffars
and disciosures on Governance,

Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics
and Targets. A detailed analysis was
commissionad with the help of aa Climate
Change and TCFD specialist consultancy
which produced in-depth assessments of
the transition and physical climate risks
followed by a hi-grading risk exercise
based on the Group internal risk matrix,
These assessments were then discussed
with the Senior Management Team and
submitted to the ESG commuttee of the
Board.

The physical nsk assessment focused
on gcreening our interasts in Vietnam,
Egypt and Israel using the consultant's
physical risks datasets and an attempt to
guantify changes in key climate vanables
{e.g. drought, ranfall, wave height) over a
& and 10 vear timeframe under the three
emissions scenarios — Representative
Concentration Pathways (RCPs). The
transition analysis focused on the potential
impacts of different fulure scenanos on
the key transition nsks facing the Group
and the oll and gas sector more broadly
aver the next 5-10 years. By undentaking
these assessments, Pharos is in a belter
position to formulate strategies which
will increase its rasilience to climate
related risks - and better cope with the
uncertainty, speed and extent of the
energy transition. The transition risk
analysis conducted by an independent
Climate Change and TCFD specialist
consultant was assessed under the
International Agency (IEA} Sustainable
Development Scenario (SDS) and

Stated Policies Scenario (STEPS)

aver a timeframe of 5 and 10 years.
Additionally, Pharos has considered

the risk that chimale change pressures
could reduce ol prices dunng the 3-year
WViability Statement window under the
recommended IEA's Net Zero Emissions
scenaric. For more information, please
see pages 56-57 for the Viabilty
Staternent.
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OVERVIEW OF THE KEY CLIMATE RISKS

EGYPT:
Water stress — limited saline ground water used for O&G operations
Drought hazard

PHYSICAL Sand and dust storms — health threats to workers, risk of downtime and damage to
RISKS infragtructure
Assessment Supply chain disruptions — caused by the frequency and severity of extreme weather events
timeframe: arcund the world
Until 2050 VIETNAM:
Both heatwave events and extreme temperatures will become mare frequent and longer in
duration.
Rises in sea levels pctentially raising risks for facilites and infrastructure
A strengthening of the dominant monsoonal circulation will result in greater disruption risks
from winds
Commodity prices: cil & gas price volatility
TRANSITION Challenges in raising capital: prassure in investors to divest / avoid fossil fuel companies /
RISKS projects
Lack of portiolio diversification: transition towards low-carbon economy will see a reduced
Assessment demand for ol
timeframe: o = T o
Carbon price: increased price of carbon through national and international schemes
Over the next5-10. ~ — : — -
years International measures to limit fossil fuel use: net zerc commitments will result in a decreased

demand for fossil fuels
Uncertainty in the energy market: Shift in demand to less carbon intensive primary energy
SOUICes

in the South China Sea due 1o shifts in
the prevailing wind direction, reducing

efficiencies and even operational
downtime.

Physical Climate Risk Scenario

analysis:

This analysis adopted a data-driven
approach to identify and analyse the

most material physical climate risks facing
Pharos Energy's activities in Egypt, Israel
and Vietnam and how those risks may
rmanifest differently under three emissions
scenarios. It assesses current climate
extreme, such as flooding, heat stress and
storms, as well as how long-term shifts if
climate features wil! affect these events.

The information provided will halp Pharos
understand the inherent risk profile of the
locations and identify current and future
operational weaknesses, vulnerabilities
and opportunities and inform strategic
decision around making resilience
building. Furthermore, the assessment
can inform climate risk disciosures in

line with the recommendations of the
Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosure (TCFD).

Key findings:

* Common to all cnshore and offshore ol
and gas activities, projected increases
in the frequency, duration, and intensity
of extreme heat events will pose
threats to the healtth of workers and
heat-sensitive equipment, which in
some cases could result in reduced

Offshare sites will experience increases
in sea level of between 18cm and
22cm under all emissions scenarios
considered with direct implications of
offshore activities as well as onshcere
infrastructure.

Onshore Egyptian operations are found
in locations which already experience
extrermely hot and dry conditions,
climate change will marginally raise
risks of disruption from rare extreme
rainfafl and flash flooding everts.

Offshore sites in the Eastern
Mediterranean currently have low
exposure to climate-relataed disruption
risks. A reduction in average wind
speeds and wave heights is projected
under all emission scenanos.
suggesting that these threats could
weaken further by 2045,

The southern offshore Vietnamese
blocks are more exposed to higher
wird speeds than the northern blocks
and these are projected to Increase in
the future under all emission scenarios.
creating more challenging operating
environments for oil and gas activities.
However, wave heights are projected
to fall under most emission scenarios

disruption risks to platforms and service

vessels.

Transition Risk Scenario Analysis

The aim of this analysis is to supplement
the work that Pharos has already
undertaken by assessing the potential
impacts of different future scenarios

on the key transition risks facing the
company, and the oil and gas industry
more broadly, over the naxt 5-10 years,

By assessing how a range of transition
risks manifest differently under these
contrasting scenarios, Pharos can
demonstrate how it tests portfolio
resilience amid the uncertainty of the
speed and extent of the energy transition
in line with the recommendations of

the TCFD. As Pharos has already used
the International Energy Agency {IEA)
Sustainable Davelopment Scenario
{SDS) and NZE to benchmark its
Reasonable Worst Case price curve,

the same scenario is used here. This

is supplemented by the [EA's Stated
Policies Scenario (STEPS). Under

3D8§, it is assumed that there is a rapid
implementation of clean energy policies
that set the planet on course to mest the

objectives of the Paris Climate Agreement.
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AISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

Meanwhile STEPS is a more conservative
view of the future, in which only current
ang planned pohcies are enacted, and oil
and gas play a greater role in the energy
system for longer.

To tackle the climate and environmental
challenges Pharos will continue to facus
on the following:

* Measunng and assessing our
environmental footprints

e Conducting climate scenaric analysis

¢ Evaluating our alignment with market
frameworks and regulations designed
to support the transition 1o a low
carbon, sustainable and equitable
future

*  Continuing on our TCFD cormmitments
and alignment

*  Exploring partnerships with effective
CO, reduction solutions

Identifying the costs of mitigating
climate risks

Cne of the most important considerations
in assessing clirmate risk 18 the cost of
mitigation action and solutions. Given the
uncertainties surrounding potential losses,
and the need to generate reasonable
returns in the naar term, it i1s necessary to
balance the protection afiorded with any
economic costs of such measures. These
questions are debated at the Board and
with senior management:

* What sort of action 1o take to mitigate
climate change?

+  QOver what timeframe?
*  And with what cost?

In Q4 2021, Phares undentock a review
of our Vietnamese cperations and assets
with the assistance of an independant
energy consultant fecusing on the
paotential application CO, reduction
technolcgies. Besides considenng the
apptlication of simpler technologies like
the installing solar panels and hydrogen
storage batteries to power our operations
thus reducing our own produced gas

as fuel, 2 number of more advanced
technologies such as the injector
technology and gas to liquid process will
be investigated further in 2022/23.

These feasibility studies will be progressed
during 2022 to further assess their
technical applicability on the existing
infrastructure as there may be a number
of logistical constraints on the existing
Infrastructure. Onge the studies support
that the technical hurdles can be
overcome and potential CO | reduction
will ensue a more detaled cost/benefit
analyses will be undertaken - when an
investment case for a particular CO,
reduction technology shows it has
potential for implamentation into our
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operations, Phares will then try to get
partners’ approval to support the CO,
reduction investrnent,

Commodity Price risk

One of the key uncertainties In the energy
world in 2021 was the extent and timing
of the recovery in demand for oil, natural
gas and electricity from lows earfier in the
pandemic, Then in G4 2021, both Brent
and WT ol spot prices climbed inexorably
causing geo-political and economic
tensions among some governments
forcing them o tap into their oil / gas
strategic reserves and boost supplies to
avoid excessive petrol rises af the pump
and further inflationary pressures. Europe
and Asia in the meantime faced a severe
gas shortage causing gas prices to

shoat up. Further energy shocks can be
expected as a result of the recent Ukraine/
Russia conflict.

A buoyant ail market and price 18
sometimes perceved as an unconditional
positve for the oil and gas sector, but
the costs of material and services in this
capital intensive industry can lead 1o big
changes to predicted returns and stifle
cash flows,

Carbon Tracker, a London-based not-for-
profit think tank researching the impact
of climate change on financial markets,
warned ol producers they should not let
high prices today lure investments into
pricey new projects that will lose money
when the fever breaks and the energy
transition cripples fossil fuel demand over
coming years.

Commodity price uncertainty persists and
is factored into all stages of the pianning
process. Please refer to the Viability
Statement on pages 56 to 57 for

more details of how the Group has stress
tested its assels and projected cash flows
against its principal risks.

Cyber risks

WFH also creates an increased
dependence on cloud-deployed services
and thus openmg more vulnerabilities to
cyber-attacks. Pharos continues {0 its
focus on the robusiness of its business
contnuity and collaborate closely with its
IT partners to minimise disruption to our
business.

Insurance costs / pollution liability

The energy insurance premiums have
increased more or 1ess in line with inflation
over the last twelve months. This year the
enargy insurance markets may be more
difficult to tap into and significant premium
increases can he expected — selective
covers and reduced limits may have to be
evaluated to aveoid excessive premiums
but this strategy can result in increased
exposure in the event of a loss. Some
other insurance markets have been badly
affacted by the havoc caused by extreme
weather events across the globe and this
can lead 10 a shrinkage in the Insurance
energy market capacity as climate change
risks will be high on insurers’ radar for

oil and gas assets. As ESG issues and
disclosures continue tc dominate how
financial markets should cperate, the
energy insurers may have to recalibrate
the portfolio and pricing to reflect the
increased risks of liability claims,

The cost of directors’ and officers’

liability nsurance (D&O) has increased
dramatically over the last two years due to
reduced D&O capacity being offered and
an increase in lability claims during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The D&C market

is unlikely to ease off in 2022 as both
businesses and insurers face increased
uncertainty on many fronts,

Operational Cost risk

Rising operational costs may become

a big rnisk because they are directly
mpacted by the other factors, particularly
our ability to meet capex cormmitments.
Generally speaking, the larger a project,
the greater the legal and regulatory
burden and associated costs. In addition,
higher oil prices result in services
companies increasing prices, creating
further inflationary pressure, With the
unpredictability of ol and other commodity
prices and owing to global manufacturing
beyond any one company's control, there
are genuine cost concerns.

Additionally many oil and gas firms
struggle to ind and keep skilled
employees during boom penods. Thus
payroll can rapidly grow to add anather
expense to the total picture. The cost

of training employees in the ol and

gas secter has increased, reducing the
number of firms in the industry. As a result.
ol and gas have become a very capital-
intensive business with fewer participants
each year. Out--sourcing is becoming
more common in the industry, and while
this offers flexibility to operatars, it also
results in greater exposure to increases
in dally rates for essential services, such
as driling and well services, when the oil
price rises.
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The long-term ramifications of COVID-18
on labour and business practices to
ensure a safe working environment
and workforce welfare will likely lead to
further HSE regulations which can add
to operaticnal costs. With heightened
scrutiny on erwvironmental, social, and
governance (ESG) transparency. there
will be continuous and more cnerous
regulatory challenges which oil and gas
companies must handle to sustain their
growth and purpose.

There has been a major organisation
re-structuring of the workforee through
a managed edundancy programime at
Head Office during 2021. In January
2022, Pharos announced directorate
changes reducing the size of the Board
from nine Directors to six {two Executive
Directors and four Non-Executive
Directors) upon completion of the farm-
cout transactions with IPR and the 2022
AGM. The headcount reduction at all
levels will contribute to lower G&A costs.

Emerging Risks

As the pandemic persists into its second
year, it acts as a catalyst for many
changes and creates opportunities for
businesses to re-assess their resilience.
Other areas of emerging risks will be
around regulatory changes, digital
transformation, remote working, risks of
social disorders and the role of the Board
in crisis situations. The pandemic has
highlighted further existing inequalities
such as the disparity to access to digital
information and the unequal vaccine
rollout between high and low income
countries.

ESG activism continues to grow - the
COP26 summit in Glasgow in November
2027 highlighted that governments
around the world must reassess

and renew their commitrments to the
Parie Climate Agreement to avert
catastrophic irreversible consequences.
However, the path to decarbonisation
must garner much more cohesive
participation and collaboration from

the highest CO, emitling countries. as
otherwise a disorderly climate transition
will exacerbate inequalities and lead

to significant economic and societal
hardships. With so much uncertainty,
severe short-terrm commaodity shocks
may manifest more regularly and will
make busingss planning and cash flow
foracasting increasingly difficult.

Similar to our principal risks, emerging
risks are identified using our bottcm

up approach with the regular risk
assessments with risk owners and
reporting to and discussing the emerging
trends at the quarierly management

risk meetings and the Audit and Risk
Committee meaetings. Pharos is engaged
with the industry with organisations such

as BRINDEX and assesses news alerts
from such sources as Oil & Gas UK,

FT, Refinitiv (Eikon and Worldchackong)
Bloomberg Green and World Eccnomic
Forum. Pharos also conducts internal
benchmarking analyses with its industry
peers to better understand emerging
trends 1in the sector.

Opportunities

For the oil and gas sector the Jack of
liguidity and increased scrutiny from
invastors on fossil fuel producers to
decarbonise may create investment
opporlunities for oll and gas independents
with a lower ¢ost base than the cil majors
and which are more able to adapt to a
rapidly changing nisk landscape. In the
short term, capital allocation and discipline
will be rigorously maintained while at the
same time exploring opportunities to
reduce our carbeon footprint by adopting
different methods / processes (o power
our operations, including the possibilities
of solar powet, and cother carbon
reduction technologies in the longer term.
Our asset base is operated by separate
independent Joint Operating Companies,
leaving our role in both Egypt and Vietnam
ane of joint, rather than unitateral, control,

Board Responsibility

The Board fulfils its role in risk oversight
by developing policies and procedures
around rigk that are consistent with the
arganisation's strategy and nsk appetite,
taking steps to foster risk awareness
and encouraging a company culture of
nisk adjusting awareness throughout the
Group. The Audit and Risk Committee
reports back to the Board regarding the
adequacy of risk management measures
so that the Beard has confidence that
management can support them. The
Board periodically reviews the principal
and emerging risks facing the business,
including an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management
process in identifying, assessing and
mitigating any significant risks which may
affect the Group's business objectives,

Risk management and the principal
financial risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are discussed in Note 3 and Note
36 to the Financial Statements. The
Group's Risk Management Framework,
Policy and associated procedures are
further discussed in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 86 to 91
and in the Audit and Risk Committee
Report on pagss 97 to 101, where the
significant issues related to the 2021
Financial Statements are also reported.
The Group's Business Management
System, which includes the Health, Safety,
Ernvironmental and Social Responsibility
('HSES') Management System, which
incorperates the Company’s internal

control mechanisms of policies,
procedures and guidelines through which
the Group assesses, manages and
mitigates its HSES risks and Impacts, Is
described more fully in the Corparate
Responsibility Report on pages 58 to 78.

The Board has carried cut a review

of the uncertainties surrounding the
Group's principal and emerging risks

and recognised that a potential adverse
event can have a material impact on the
Group's future earnings and cash flows.
The fluctuating prices of crude oil and gas
remain a significant variable to monitor
clogely for the Group. Flash events

are happening more frequently from
nternational trade tensions, geopolitical
tensions, sudden outbreak of diseases,
speed of climate change transtion and
physical risks which may require changes
to our corperate price assumptions and
productions cutlook which in turn may
trigger impairment of assets.
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RISKS

Principal risks
and mitigations

A summary of the key risks affecting Pharos and how these are mitigated to enable
the Company to achieve its strategic objectives is as follows:

@ No Change 0 Decrease 0 New Risk

Risk Mitigation

Key to change in likelihood o Increase

Change in

Principal risks likelihood Causes

STRATEGIC

1. Further
lockdowns
dampening oil
demand

* Sub-optimal pricing
on commodity sales

* Reduced revenue to
finance operations

2. Insufficient
funds to meet
commitments

= Inability to invest
in ling with growth
strateqy

3. Volatility in
Production
levels

+ Sub-Optimal well
performance

* Reduced drilling

Y Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Emergonce of new variants or other
VIFUSES

Waving efficacy of vaccinations and
boosters

COVID-19 infections continue to go up

The virus mantams its pandenic status
throughout 2022

Social disorder as poarar nations /£
populations fall hehind on vaccination
programmes

Reallocation of capral away from oil
and gas

Huge swings i oil and other
commodiy prices

Asgets bubble bursts
Global debt crises emerging
Inadeguate cost control

Poor technical data to support
allocations

High inflation

Inadequate waterfiood responses
Incorrect well placements

Development wells uncommercial

Poor reserveir models

Lack of financing for driling programime

Continue to maintain and promote
precauhionary measures to ninnmise disruption
to husiness

Procure tong lead iterns as early as possible
from reliable supplicrs / contractors

Tight cash management and forecasting
Hold back on discretonary spend
Ol price hedaing

The bulk of our output scld on the local
markets whete demand remaing strong

Closely follow and comply with all applicable
law. reguiation and public health guidance
relating to the COVID-19 pandemic

Regular review of funding options

Proactive dialogue with banks and other
providers of capital

Cpportuntty screening

Effective project management and
resourcing

Cost carry by farm-in partner(s)
Thorough capital allocation process

Develop a clear wells strategy, focusing
on performance improvement, regulatory
complance and increased activity

Increase driling activity / plan-dnll additional
injection wells / frac injecton zone

Reduce cost of well construction
Increase surveillance and intervention rates

Perform Target workovers on Producer /
inection wells

De-nisk best prospects / drill best prospects
Improve Reservoir models
Implement planned driling programmes
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Change in
Principal risks likelihood Causes Risk Mitigation
4. Health, Safety, * Business disruption due to workforce s |mplement precautionary measures based
Environmental @ affected by COVID-19 on WHO guidance, restrict business travel

and Social Risk

* Reputational

= Operaticnal outages
leading to lower
production

* Heallh and safety and environmental
risks of major explosions, leaks or spifls

* High risk cperating conditions and
HSES risks

+ Climate change impacts on the sector,
such ag extrerne weather, sea level
rise and water availability affecting
production

* Gas venling and flaring hasards and
risks - well blow outs. land/water
contamination

* Non-alignment of new acquisitions
HSES practices with Pharos Corporate
standards

Increased disparties and societal risks
in health, technology or workforce
opportunitics

and faciltate working frem home, PCR
testing

* Improve structural and Asset Integrity
through strong operational and
maintenance processes which are critical to
preserving a safer environment

¢ Comply with all legislative / regulatory
frameworks and transitioning to a goal
based approach focused on improving
safety

* Promote a positive health and safety culture
where workers are given proper training
and incentives to work “safe” with a zero
tolerance for non-compliance

Environmental and Social Impact
Assessments relating 1o, for example:
- clmate mpacts and need to adapt to

changing chimate conditons over the life of
the assel

- regulatory developments

+ Enhance emergency preparedness and spill
prevention plan
- Controfled venting
- Control and management of pressurised ol
and gas from boreholes
- Use of low mpact extraction chemicals where
alternatives exist

- Water management - securing al a
sustaitable water supply, recyeling and reuse
wastewater

- Marine management plan - especially for
oftshiare drilling

- Carry ol scenario excreises (o mprove
preparedness

+ Maintaining adeguate energy insurance for our
assets and operations
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RISKS - CONTINUED

Change in

Principal risks likelihood

Causes

Risk Mitigation

5. Ciimate
Change -
transition and
physical risks

.

L3

* Lack of Capital
* Reputational .

* Increased capex and
operating costs

Physical Damage 1o
Assets

Lower oil prices

Stranded assets

Regutatary changes —
potential taxes
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Pressure on investors 1o divest J avoid
fossil fuel companies / projects

inability to find econenucally viable CO.
reduction sofutions

Lack of aligniment betweaen our key
stakeholders™ priorites and climate
change concerns

Global transition to a lower carhoi
intensity econormy

Increased climate regulation and
disclosure

hcrease m carbon takes /
dacarbonisation charges

transformational shifts leading o
reduced demand for fossil fuefs

Ciimate activists pressing proniinent
institutions and imvestors to abandon
fossil investiments - "greening” the
financial system

Increased trequency of extrames
weather events

Supply chain distuptions causing delay/

shuldowns to operations

Lack of partner alignment on
decarbonisation initiatives

L4

Transparent reporting and participation in
Carbon Disclosure Prolect (COPjand Water
questionnaire

Continue alignment with TCFD
recommendations

Further integrate climate risk managerment
within Pharos Risk Management
Framework

Stress test our going concerns under a Net
Zero Emissions price scenario and carbon
tax

« Embed Climate change scenarics and
evaluate decisions on key business
operations / directions

Continuous improvement of GHG emissions
management and get JOCs to support CO,
emissions reduction initiatives

* Undate our Climate Change Policy and
keep it fit for purpose and In fing with
evolving decarbonisation developments

s Comprehensive insurance cover far
Physical Damage

Regional close monitornng of extreme
weather developments so that evacuation
or shut-down are activated in good time

Regular and timely control of inventories
to ensure essential spares are sourced in
advance

Prepare business case or hack pay study
to suppott decarbonisation intiatives
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Principal risks

Change in
likelihood

Causes

Risk Mitigation

FINANCIAL

6. Commodity
Price risk

e Uncertainty on
planning

o Inability to fund work
programme / dividend

7. Rising
operational
costs

* Reduced profits
* Strain on cash flows

* Shortages in skilled
labour

@

s On-going market volatility and
uncertaintics from COVID-19

* Geo-political tactors and international
confiicls

* Pressure on investors to divest / avoid
fossil fucl companies . projects

+ | ower long-terrn prices tighten the
margin of error for investiments

Forecasting volatility swings are morc
complex as it is challenging to gauge
what that means for the industry as
market dynamics are influenced by the
speed of recovery from COVID-19 and
growing ESG pressures

Negalive cash flows & earnings
degradation

* Market speculation and trading in oil
futures

* Resurgence of new COVID-19 variants

Global inflation

Turimol in the energy markets causing
sharp price hikes

Sudden unplanned rate increases for ol
and gas services

* il commodity Hedging
- Comply with RBL requirements

- Maintan robust processes around treasury,
governance, forecasting, credit and risk

s Closc imonitoring of business activities,
financial posttion cash flows

* Control over procurernent costs / enective
rmanagement of supply chains derived from
third parties - suppliers, joint venture partners,
investors, and contractors

Stress test scenarios and sensitivities via
principal compound risk analysis to ensure
a level of rebustness to dewnside price
scenarios

-

Capital discipine with focus on contraling and
nanaging costs

* Discretionary spend actively managed

* Maintain and cullivate good relationships with
lenders

» Regular updates te yearly budgets and
forecasts

¢ Focus in discretionary spend

+ Secure long-term contracts where appropriate
without lock-ins

» Explorc applying new technological advances,
focus on prevention and carly detection

* Headcount re-structure at all levels
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RISKS - CONTINUED

Change in

Principal risks likelihood

Causes

Risk Mitigation

OPERATIONAL

8. Reserves Risk

@ .

* Future cash flows
and value depend
on producing our
reserves L4

Inaccurate reserves estimates

Subcontracting certain reserves
estimation work to independent reserve
enginears outside the direct control of
the Group

Earlier impairment triggers due 1o low
commodity price:

Capital constraints jeopardise planned
exploration / development initiatives

Inherent uncertainties in the evaluation
technigues to estimate the 2P reserves

Increased DD&A costs

Lower than expected well
perdormances and driling results

Slower driling progranimes

*

Monitor and maintain standards of

reserves reporting by adhering to three key
considerations: of consistency. transparency
and utility, including disclosure of movements
in reserves on a country-by-country basis,
disclosure of inaterial projects and moderation
of subjective judgements

*

On-gaing evaluabon of projects in existing and
patential new areas of intergst and pursue
development opportunities

+ Regular reviews of reserves estimates by
independent consultants (Lloyds Registered)

Ensure continuing adherence to industry best
praclice regarding technical estimales and
judgements

Ensunng peer and mdependent verification of
future production profiles and reserve recovery

RBL facility comphance - Vietnarm Reserves
are audited independently by reserves
consultants approved by lenders

9. Partner
Alignment Risk

VIETNAM

« Misalignrnent at v/
JOC level can delay
investment

* Adverse impact on
Production and Cash
flow

EGYPT

e Technical
Misalignment of JV
Company

= Adverse impact on
Production and Cash
Hlow

Co-venturers divergent vicws on Drilling
and Upgrade programine 2021,22

FPSO Tie-in Agreement from other
Operator

Dclay in the Field Development Plans

Technical disagreement caused by
gquality of JV staff, work ethic, low
productivity, competency 1ssues

Geolegical Modeling differences
resulting in sub-optimal well locations

Incoming partner {IPR} and current
partner (EGPC) divergent views on
investments, and difference in value-
drivers.

+ Aclive Participation in JOC manageient

Direct secondment

+ Build Senior Management level relationship
with focal Partners

+ Continue good relationship wath other Foreign
Partner

+ 2022 TGT Work Programine agreed in
principle and preliminary preparation of hbid
packages

* Close collaboration with incoming and current
partner

« Support JV training initiatives

+ Engage with new JV Exploration Manager.

Achieve technical buy-m to ERCE model

« Waterflood analogue success education
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Principal risks

Change in
likelihood

Causes

Risk Mitigation

10. Cyber risk « Sophistication and frequency of cyber- = Update Service level agresment with IT

attacks increasing providers

o Maior cvber " * Heavy reliance on and dsruption 1o » Oftsite Installation of hack-up system and
brejach iﬁay ff;jt” ¥ critical business systems Business Recovery / continuity Plan in place
in loss of key s Infiltration of spaim emails corrupting * Enhance our Cloud back-up data and
confidential data our systems solutions

¢ Unavailability of key * Critical reliance on remote working * Preverition & detection of cyber threats via a
systems in light of COVID-19 pandemic and programme of effeciive continuous monitoring

expectation of longer term hybrid ) . -
wcijrking practiccsg k * Plan for staged integration (hew acquisition)
‘ and upgrade of 1T systens
11. Human 0 s Failure to recrut and retain high calibre * Reormuneration Committes retans independent
. | to deliver on and implement advisors to test the competitiveness of
re personne
Resource Risk growth strategy compensation packages for key employees
) s Challenges in the recruitment & * On-going succession planning

¢ Good skilled people integration of additional techrical . (i o
are essential to ensure expertise for any naw acquisition * Maintain a competiive r¢|11ur1erat10|1 i re
SUCCESS bonus. long-ten incentive and share option

* Negatve view of the oil and plans
gas industry amongst younger ) . _
professionals, particularly in light of + Build anct use people networks 11 each
climate c-hané;e impacts country and advertise vacancies in these

’ o networks

* High costs of recruiting experienced N
warkiorce * Maintain a programme for statf wellbeing

 Weakened corporate cullure and * Facilitate and encowrage workforce
collagrte responsitility due t remote cormmunication via employee surveys and
working i i shared feedback

» Restructuring workforce

s Board re-composition and retireimeants

12, Sub-optima| @ * Scarcity of capital for investiment e Carry out robust economic analyses based on
: roects opportunities high-grading to support capital
‘ ‘ allocation
allocation * A volatile macrocconomic environment
resulting in significant differences to key * Key KPIs such as NPV, IRR and payback used
9 g Y
assumplions underpinning investment te compare across many project scenarios
i decisions . .

* .fﬂ\dverserreré:[cn?n s Rig count investment scenanos are stress-
rTOT (r:\u'ide / future * Pressure to nvest and produce tested against a range of Brent ol price
stareholders growth and returns in the short term to » Seeking to maximise infl ce 10 promote

. . 2Kl H INnfluence rOr
isi mamntan dvidend payments Lo
¢ gwees(tjmin: d?ctlgofns hay best practice in non-operated ventures -
asea on realistic \ » Shareholder focus on ncreasing ‘ o
achievable economic retuns in conflict with wider strategic = Scek the views of stakeholders through direct
assumptions considerations . ¥ and indirect engagernent
o Tnability to "switch-off” drilling ¢ * Maintain a balanced investrment portfolio
investment COleJHiU‘I]PmS if economic which allows a degree of resilience in adjusting
assumptions change fapidly short-tenm investment comribments
» Prepare business case or back pay study to

Lack of partnersstakeholder alignment
on decarbonisation initiatives

support decarbonisation inliatives
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RISKS - CONTINUED

Change in

Principal risks likelihood

Causes

Risk Mitigation

13. Political and
Regional risk

1

* Energy sector
exposed to a wide
range of political
devefoprments which -
may impact adversely
on operating costs,
compliance and
taxation

-

14. Business
Conduct and

Bribery
-
* Reputational damage .
and exposure to
criminal charges
L]

Operations nit challenging regulatory
and political environments

Charnges to fiscal regimes without
okl stabilisation protections

Protracted approval processes causing
delays

Govermnment reform, political instability
and/or civil unrest

Impact of economic and trading
sanctions on ndustry counterparties
fin particular, Russian state-controlect
entities as a result of the conflict n
Ukraing)

Present in countries with below average
score on the Transparency International
Corruption Index

Lack of transparent procureément and
investment policics

Non-compliance with Criminal Grime
Cfienres (CCO} and/ar UK Bribery Act

Caorruption and buman nghts ssues

.

ks

Carvass suppor! in risk managemeant by Lsing
hoth international and in-country professional
auvisors

Engage directly with the relevant authorities on
a regular basis

Asgsess courtry risk profiles, rend analyses
and on-the-grourid reports by journalists /
academics

Thoroughly evaluate the nsks of operating
in specific areas and ASSESS CommMercia
acceptability

Maintain political risk Insurance at appropviate
levels of cover

Al operations are located outside of the EU
and USD 15 the main currency of our business

Working group estalslished for monitoring
sanctions ansing from confict i Ukraine and
mitgation planniing underway in relation to a
small number of counterparties

Ensure adeqguate due dilgence prior to
on-boarding with a risk hased approach,
includiog independent "Red Hags” cliecks

Annual fraining, testmg and compliance
cerifications by all associated persons

Ihcrease awareness of the Group's Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and refated
policies tor all employess and associatad
nErsons

Mandatory Gifts and Hospitality declaration
and register

Group Whistleblowing Policy and confidential
ethics 24 hour hotling supported by
EthicsPomt with numbers cisplayed i all
offices

CCO nsk #gsessment and ori-gamng
implementation of adeguale procedures to
prevent facilitation of tax evasion across all
operations

Comply with the principles of the Extractive
Industnes Transparency Initiative
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Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance code, the Board has
assessed the prospects of the company
over a period longer than the twelve
months raquired to support the Going
Concern Statement on page 42 of

the CFO's statement. The Audit & Risk
Committee reapproved in December 2021
that the appropriate length which the
Viability Statement ("VS”} should cover is
3 years. A significant facter in the Group's
forward cash position 1s the oll price
assumption, and as most of the source
data relates to a 3 year period this is
cunsidered the appropriate lookout penod
for the VS,

In undertaking this asseasment, the
Board has carried out a robust review of
the principal and emerging risks facing
the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity, giving
particular attention to the principal and
emerging risks.

Our strategy and associated principal and
emerging risks underpin both the Group's
three year base forecast and scenario
testing, plus our longer term prospects
and position.

Group’s current position

» Preduction assets in Vietnam and Eqypt
with low operating cost base

* Carry In Egypt Concessions following
completion of farm down to 1PR

¢ Flexibility in the capital expenditure
programme

+ Operating cash flows in line with oil
prices and supported by hedging
programrme

s Focus on capitzl disciplineg
= Excellent HSES standards

¢ Repayment of current RBL loan in the 3
year period of the VS

Strategy & business model

Key Assumptions

* Business modsl drawing on
geoscience, engineering, financial and
commercial talent

* Responsible and Flexible stewards of
capital

¢ Focus on stakehclders

The principal and emerging risks, which

are relevant to the assessment of the

Group's prospects, are the same as those

used to stress test our viability over the
three-year period.

How we assess our viability

Our forecast is built on an asset by asset
basis using a bottom up model and is
stress tested by compounding downward
scenarics.

The three year period selected for testing
covers the Group's medium term capital
plans and projections, in particular oil
price projections, a fundamental driver of
the groups operating cash flows, where
matket consensus data becomes less
reliable for periods further ahead than
three years.

Although individual assets are often
modelled for periods longer than three
years, 1o reflect the return oninvestments
being considered over the life of field,

the three year period has been selected
by the Board as most appropriate

for the group as a whole. It provides
management and the Board with sufficient
and realistic visibility of the future industry
environment whilst capturing the Group’s
future expenditure commitments on its
licences, its near term drilling programimes
and Full Field Development Plans (FFDPs).

In assessing the Group's viability over
the next three years, it is recognised that
all future assessments are subjectto a
level of uncertainty which increases with
time and that future cutcomes cannot be
guaranteed.

During the three year pericd the working
assumption is that Group will be
dependent on its two cash generating
assets in Vietnam and the El Fayum
concession in Egypt with the Farm down
of 55% working interast in Egypt’s assels.

The underlying oll and gas reserves in
both Vietnam and Egypt have been
certified by Reserves Auditors, RISC (for
Vietnam) and McDaniel {for Egypt). In

our medel, we have used management's
best estimate of future commodity
prices, resulting in a base ail price prior
to scenana testing of $73.9/bbl in 2022,
$70.2/bbl in 2023 and $67.8/bbl in 2024.
The base model also includes the Group’s
latest life of field production models and
expenditure forecasts.

The company has a Reserves Based
Lending (RBL) facility of $125 million aver
its Vietnarm producing assets taken out in
September 2018. In July 2021, the Group
completed the refinancing of its RBL that
now matures in July 2025. The current
borrowing levels and the repayment
schedules in the model is based on the
RBL's economic and technical assumption
as of the December 2021 redetermination.
In the current VS penod, the majority of
the BBL loan is forecast to be repaid.
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RISKS - CONTINUED

Stress testing linked to Principal Risks

As well as the base model, the Group also considers other scenarios and has stress tested the forecast for a combination of a number of
severe but plausible events flinked to the majority of the Group's principal risks] that could impact its ability to fund planned activities and/’
or comply with the covenants and undertakings within its reserves based lending (RBL) facility agreement. These events include:

» A material reduction in the ail price putting pressure on the Group's capital avalable for investment

e A material reduction in production

= An unfavourable event resulting in lost production and cil price shock

The oll price sensitivity reflects a level of price reductons broadly similar to 202C as a result of the global outbreak of the COVID-18 virus,
to reflect the similar risk of the ol price crash during the 3 year VS pericd.

Base Forecast flexed for
combinations of the

Link to Principal Risks

following scenarios and Uncertainties { evel of Severity Tested Conclusion
Base Forecast flexed for Link 1o Princinzl Ricks
combinations of the following o Level of Severity Tested Conclugion

scenarnos

Sustained and sharp drop in oil
Drice

Reduction in production

Unfavourable event leading to

last production and price shack 12,13

and Uncertainties

1,2,5.6

2348912137

1,234.5,6,78911,

Sharp drap in the of price, down by
a third to $49/bbl rising graclually
aver a year il in line with base

price

period of festing

Combination of tests above

5% drop in production over the

Company remains viable with
mitigating actions

Company remains viable with
mitigating actions

Company remains viable with
mitigating actions

Climate Change

We have also taken info consideration
the risk that cimate change pressures
could reduce ol prices during the 3

year VS window. In doing so, we have
considered the price curve as an output
of a Net Zero Emissicns by 2050 (NZE)
based on IEA's World Outlook 2021
report, which is consistent with achieving
1.5 °C stabilisation in global average
tamperatures and a net zera CO, emission
by 2050. The nominal Brent prices used
in this scenarios similar to our base case
oil price assumptions over the 3 year V8
period. Nevertheless, we have congluded
that the stress testing outlined above
adeguately takes into consideration the
risk of any downside adjustments to our
revenue base over the 3 year VS period
due to climate change pressures.

To date there is no official carbon tax
determined in both junsdictions where our
operations are 1.e. Vietnam and Egypt.
Furthermore, the imposition of carbon
taxes would likely to uplift the Brent prices
as some of the burden will be passed to
the sonsumer.

As a sensitivity test, we bave run the effect
of carbon tax trom 2024 on Base case
without assurning any increment in Brent
price and the Group remains viahle over
the 3 year VS pericd.
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it should be noted that majority of the
existing RBL facility is within the 3-year
viabihty statemnent window, we currently
have some protection from the risk that
Clirmate Change concerns begin to restrict
the availability of capital.

In all combinations tested, the Group had
access to mitigating actions, including
hedging and deferring non-committed
capital expenditure beyond the 3-year
window of the VS,

Directors have reviewed the realistic
mitigating actions that could be taken

o reduce the impact of the underlying
nsk. The forecast cash flows are regularly
monitored and reviewed 1o provide

early warnngs of any issues and to gve
sufficient time to tlake any necessary
mitigating actions.

The potential impact of each of the other
principal nsks on the viability of the group
during the assessment period has also
been conaidered. Such risks ncluds the
inability to altract and retain appropriately
skilled people, Cyber risk and Business
Conduct and Bribery nsk. The Board has
considered the risk mitigation stratagy
for each of these nsks and believes that
the mitigation strategies are sufficient to
reguce the impact of sach risk to make 1t
unlikely to jgopardise the Group's viability
during the three-year period.

Based on aff of these assessments,
Including the availabilty of actions

which could be taken in the event of
plausible negative scenarios cccurming,

the Directors confirm that they have a
reascnable expectation that the Group will
continue 16 operate and meet iIts labilities
as they fall due for the three year period to
31 December 2024.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Responsibility

framework

N\

Business
100%

El Fayum oil

100%

TGT/CNV Qil

Qil sold domestically in Egypt and Vietnam in 2021, contributing
to host country development goals and access to energy

Ethics
$198.2m

Taxes and royalties to host
governments, includes
$146.7m host governments
share of production
entitlements in 2021

100%

Percentage of staff
receiving anti-bribery and
corruption training by 31
December 2021

People
O LTls

Zero Lost Time Injury
eventy across Group
operations in 2021

60%

Female employees at
corporate level in London
in 2021

>’ Environment
316 3
m Tonnes CO,e per 1,000 Oil/chemical spills
tonnes of hydrocarbon {guantities greater than
produced in 2021 100 litres) in Egypt in 2021
Society
13X $500,000 $ 265,000

Combined total training
levies in Vietnam and Egypt
for investment in industry
capacity building in 2021

Community and charitable
investments supporting 12
social projects in Vietnam
through the HLHVJOC
Charitable Donation
Programme in 2021

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Qur aim is to add value in
everything we do through
responsible, efficient and safe
energy production.

We take our role in society very
sericusly. We are committed 1o open,
transparent communication, and taking
a rigorous, conscientious approach to
the environment, cur role in society, our
business practices and sethics, and how
we relate to people.

That includes all our stakeholders: the
pecple who work with us directly and
indirectly, those who live where we
operate, and the host governments and
authorities that regulate our activities.

Corporate Responsibility
governance & management

A long-term goal of the Group is to be a
positive presence in regions in which it
operates by providing responsible and
sustainable development. The objective
of sustainability will apply equally to the
Company’s traditional reputation for
financial discipline and return of value
to shareholders as it will to the Group's
objective of striving towards the goa

of establishing and maintaining the
highest operating standards across
Environmental, Social and Governance
{"ESG" matters. To refiect the Group’s
ongeoing commitment to operating a
sustainable business, the Board has
established an ESG Committee. The
ESG Commitiee has itself established a
separate ESG working group comprising
representatives from head offices Egypt
and Vietnam, to discuss, implement and
share ideas on ESG matters.

&0

1)



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Climate change risks

In January 2022, Pharos further advanced its aignment with the four TCFD pillars and disclosures on Governance, Strategy, Risk
Management and Metrics and Targets. A detailed analysis was commissioned with the help of an external climate expert consultancy
which produced in-depth assessments of the transition and physical climate risks followed by a hi-grading nsk exercise based on the
Group internal risk matrix. These assessments were then discussed with the Senior Management Team and submitted to the ESG

committee of the Board.

Structure of the Group's
Cormporate Responsibility and

HSES Management System Stakeholder group

How we engage with them and
understand any concerns

Stakeholder groups and corporate responsibility topics

Key areas of concern
for stakeholder groups

1. Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics

N

2. Key CR/HSES policies
supporting the Code

F_hirﬂl Flights_ﬂ)_l@t

I—Ealth, Safety and Eﬁvirohm—;w;gb?@k )

_§ecur'rty Paolicy —

Local communities

National and host
governments

Saciat Responsibility Pbﬁcy
Biodiversity and Conservati‘orﬁolﬂ
Tax Strategy Staterent

Preventioniof Modern Slavery
and Human Trafficking Poiicy

Climate Change Policy

N

3. Standards, procedures and
guidance support the policies

Emplovees and
comractors

See hitps:/fwww.pharos.energy/
responsibility/policy-statements/ for the
full text of the current versions of each of
these policies.

Shareholders

International
community

Environrmental and social impact
agsessments and grievance
mechanisms at project lavel

Regular dialogue

Promaote adherence to WHO
COVID-19 guidelines and
respective governments’ guidefines

Regular diglogue and grievance
mechanisms

Completed 2021 Employee Survey

Empioyee Focus Groups

Regular dialogue

Responding to inguines
and media scanning

Community investment

Effluents and waste
management

Biodiversity

Transparency

Payments to
governments

Local capabihty building

Enmvranmental
management

Health and safety

Keep workfotce safe
during

GCOVID-19 pandermic
Local capacity building
Contractor management

Stalf wellbeing

Climate nsk/energy
transition and other ESG
risks

HSES Health and Safety

HSES Management
Systern

Praventing corruption

Clmate risk/energy
transition

GHG emissions
Praventing corruption

Human rights

SISl Pharos Energy Arnual Report and Accaunts 2021
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The Constitution and Terms of Reference
of the ESG Committes sets the framewark
1o

* Assist the Board in defining the Pharos
Group’s strategy relating tc ESG
matters;

+ Assess the effectiveness of the
Pharos Group’s policies, programmes,
practices and systems for identifying,
managing and mitigating or eliminating
ESG risks in connection with the
Pharos Group’s operations and
corporate activity;

* Provide oversight of the Pharos Group's
management of ESG matters and
compliance with legal and regulatory
reguirements, including applicable rules
and principles of corporate governance,
and applicable industry standards;

* Report on these matters to the
Board and, where appropriate, make
recommendations to the Board: and

= Report as required to shareholders of
the Company on the activities and remit
of the Committee,

The Board is also fully committed to
effective compliance with the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code, applicable
to the current financial year of the
Company ending 31 December 2021.
The Board's objective 15 to be recognised
for maticulous governance, with a
considerate and pragmatic agproach to
its business.

In terms cof corporate responsibility and
community engagerment, the Board is
committed to treating all stakeholders in
avery area of operations with honesty,
fairness, openness, engagement and
respect, and to conducting all business
ethically and safely. The Group will only
work with parties that share these values.

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
{"our Code") sets out our expectations

for how we do business, clarifying our
commitments to ethical, social and
environmental performance. Our Group
CR and HSES policies described above
support our Code.

Our corporate standards, procedures and
guidelines support the policies. Project-
specific operational plans, programmes
and procedures set out the specific
appreach to CR and HSES issues and
risks within each project,

The Pharos Health, Safety, Environmental
and Sccial Responsibility Managsment
System (“HSES MS™) describes the
Group's internal processes to manage
risks and is consistent with the
requirements of internationally recognised
standards (IS0 14001, I1ISO 45001) and
aligned with the World Bank's International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”) Environmental
and Social Performance Standards.

The Chief Executive Officer is accountable
to the Board for implementation of CR
policies and HSES performance. The
Board and the Audit and Risk Committee
oversee the adequacy and effectiveness
of our pelicies. standards and
management system for HSES. The ESG
Committee has responsibility, intar alia,
for defining the Group's strategy related
to ESG matters, reviewing the Group's
ESG pohcies, programmes and initiatives
and, more generally, has oversight of the
Group's management of ESG matters.

CR objectives are defined annually
and reviewed quarterly in relation to:
our business, our athics, our people,
environment and society.

Stakeholder engagement

In determining our CR strategy, we
consider issues that are important to
the successtul delivery of our corporate
objectives and the matters that are
important 1o our stakeholders. We

have developed communication and
stakeholder guidance setting out the
controls and arrangements for effective,
timely and transparent processes. We
receive feedback from stakehaolders
through a range of formal and informal
processes. This takes place at a project
and at a corporate level.

ESG materiality screening

Following an earlier screening of material
ESG factors relevant to the oil and

gas sector, in 2021 Pharos has been
referring to the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (SASB) matenality
map for Qil & Gas - Exploration and
Production, to ensure that the material
issues of importance to its activities are
appropriately managed and reported.

The Board will further reinforce the
integraticn of climate consideraticns
into its governance frameworks by
mplementing the principles stated in
our Climate Change Pclicy. Further
TCFD alignment started in 04 2021 and
culminated in early in January 2022 with
a detalled climate change physical and
transition risks analyses - the results

of this work have been discussed
internally and used to develop an-going
programmes, recognise best practice
and provide clear direction on cur ESG
strategy during 2022, For further details
on our TCFD work, please refer to the
Risk Management report cn pages 45
to 48.

Our approach on environmental and social
reporting in 2021 has taken into account
the Voluntary Sustainability Reporting
guidance (4th edition, published March
2020)" issued by IPIECA, the global not-
for-profit oif and gas industry association
for environmental and social issues, in
partnership with the Amearican Petroleum
Institute and the International Association
of Ol and Gas Producers. In 2022, Pharos
will continue to review best practice to
further guide our ESG reporting. We report
on jointly operated companias in Egypt
and Vietnam.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Business

0l

Climate risks and global energy transition

Climate change is considered a principal
risk to the Group and its business over
the medium and long term. and this

15 discussed in more detail in the Risk
Management and risk report on pages
43 1o 57.

Both transition and physical climate

risks may further impact many of the
Group's principal risks including those
associated with commaodity price, access
10 capital, reserves, operations, political,
stakeholders' and reputational risks.

We recognise that the global energy
transition to a lower carben intensity world
in response to climate change could
result in reduced demand for fossil fusls,
lower oil prices and increased operating
cost, increased capital cost, further
regulation and carbon taxation which
may significantly increase our operating
casts and reduce our revenuea. Qur overall
rsk management framework integrates
climate change and carben related risks
by stress-testing key a number of our
principal risks on key variables for the
Going Concern and Viability Testing.
Established management processes
include any physical risks associated with
climate change and our energy insurance
programmes cover to a large extent our
asset portfolio aganst the risks of extreme
weather events.

Pharos is cognisant of the potential
diminished role of fossil fuels in the

global energy mix as depicted in the IEA
Sustainable Recovery Plan. However,

at the same time, we also recognise

that energy demand for oil and gas will
continue to be an important component of
the global energy mix for many decades
to come.
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In 2021, Vietham remained one of tha
most dynamic emerging countries in
East Asia region. Vietnam has become
a net energy and oil and gas importer
and most of the ol and gas produced

in Vietnam is consumed domaestically,
with the HLHVJOCs continuing to
contribute to this economic success
story. Pharos will continue to develop

its oil and gas resources responsibly fo
aid global economic development and
deliver value for all our stakeholders. We
believe that countries such as Egypt and
Vietnam can continue to have economic
and social benefits from the responsible
development of their natural rescurces
and we are committed to using our
influence within JOCs to ensure this is
undertaken in a sustainable way. We

will also continue to support our host
governments as they seek to use oll
revenues to promote sustainable and
inclusive economic development, and we
will support the actions that they take to
manage climate change. Egypt will host
COP27 in November 2022 and Pharos will
work clesely with our partnsrs to ensure
climate change nisks are evaluated in our
processes and a decarbonisation plan is
implemented for the medium and leng
term,

We report transparently and have
participated in the CDP (formerly Climate
Disclosure Project) Climate Change
Questionnarre aver the past four years.
In 2021, we maintained our score of {C).
originally awarded in 2019, 2021 also
marks the first year that the Company
submitted their response to the CDP
Water Secunity Questionnare. This
Quiestionnaire completed at a basic level
in 2021 and we plan to improve our level
of transparency on water usage and
protection by completing the full version
in 2022. Our greenhouse gas emissions
(*GHG") are reported in the Environment
section on page 69 to 75 and on

page 78 of the Corporate Responsibility
report.

Our objective is to provide responsible and sustainable development
throughout our operations.

On-going commitment to align with
TCFD

Pharos s committed to implementing the
TCFD's recommendations and a working
group consisting of personnel from the
London head office and the business units
in Egypt and Vietnam is now set up to
achieve this with the support of an cutside
consultant. The project is cn-going and
consists of two phases. Phase 1, which s
now completed, consisted of a thorough
peer benchmarking, internal document
review and gap analysis and culminated

in the development and approval by the
Board of the Group Climate Change Policy
in December 2020. As part of the Group’s
continued alignment with the TCFD
recommendations, Phase 2 started in 2H
2021 - an external climate consuitancy
expert worked with our internal team to
draw up a long-list of climate-related risks
facing the business. The risk identification
process was undertaken in 2021 Q4 and
considered both the company's asset
locations and primary markets, as well as
macro-scale socio-economic, palitical and
environmental trends. Specific cperational
risks were out of scope for this study but
are still assessed, managed and reported
taking into consideration climate related
impact an our operations as part of the
Group's Risk Management Framework.
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PHASE 1 (2020):

ESTABLISHING GAPS AND LAYING THE GROUNDWORK PHASE 2 (2021): CLOSING GAPS
Task Descrption Task Description
1.1 Climate Policy s Benchmark junsdiction willy Verisk 2.1 Rigk * Literature review to identify sector-specific actual
Horizon Scan: identify Maglecroft’s Carbon Policy Index. identification and potential nsks far pharos with respect to clinate
current and future ) : and high change
climate change palicy Idephfy gurrelwt and aImerging national {and grading ‘
trends 1N 4 countries of regional if relevant) legislation and regulation « Define climate change nsks pertinent to revenues,
operation (UK. Vietnam. pertinent to oil and gas industry. expencliiures, assets. labiitics and capital .
Eqgypt. lsrael), +  Qualtative analysis of key regulatory nisk assassments framoworks (e.g. enterprse risk register)
drivers and imadium-tenn Syr) political *  Provide recommendations to inform fulure risk
autlook. mitigation actions
.2 Internal review: ‘ 5 clime . - -
i‘ : nternal review * Review existing Pharos clinate change 2.2 Scenario Transition Risk
assess existing documentation {policies, risk register, COP analysis: assess
documertation subnission. ete.) physical and «  Qualitalive assessmcnt of how high-graded policy,
fpolicies, risk register, . et ol - e - e
gDP Submisswﬁu Conduct a gap analysis against TCFD transition "S"’T" teuhmolygy‘ market arjd reputational neks may vary
' recommendations. and opportunities under different scenanos

e1c.) against TCFD ) )
recommendations +  Highlght key improvement areas and provide Physical risk

recommiendations on how to cose gaps. ¢ Screening of interests in Vietnam, Egyit and Israel

using Verisk Maplecroft physical risk datasets

1.3 Peer ¢ Benchmark current TCFD approaches/best
benchmarking: practices among 4-5 peers. = Cwantity changes in key climate vanables (e.qg.
compare ¢limate risk drought, rainfall, warse height} under 3 emissions

disclosure approachies ASEeSs3 poeers aganst consistent framework.

AMONg peers

scenarios at imig-century

. »  Provide gualitative analysis regarding implications for

1.4 Climate Change  «  Develop the content of Pharos Energy’'s DRErations

Policy development Clirnate Change Policy {this will be agreed . o
wath Pharos based on ther posiion, 2.3 Board o Reow output from Steps 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3
portfolio size, growth strategy, performance presentation
managenient etc.) and discussion * Discuss and agree management actions next steps

The risk ratings were assigned to each idantified climate risk to represent an initial risk assessment {i.e. pre-mitigation) and were based
on the risk matrix detailed in the Group's Risk Management policy. Risk ratings are assigned bassd on 5-year and 10-year tmeframes
to help capture the evolution of risks In these penods to enable mitigation planning. While these tme-horizons may be longer than a
‘typical’ business strategy, they are designed to highlight the importance of sustainatility and climate-related issues in the longer-term.
Alsc, many climate-refated risks are likely to manifest in the medium- and long-term, so longer time-horizons ensure these risks are not
excluded from consideration.

Assessment Approach under TCFD recommeandations:

+ Along-list of climate-related risks facing Pharos fas of 2021 Q4, post COP286), based on existing assessments from Pharos, peer
review, industry bets practice, grey Hterature and imernal knowledge and expertise of the external climate consultancy

* The assessment considers Pharos' asset locations and primary markets, as well as macre-scale socio-economic, political and
environmental trends. (Specific operational risks are out of scope of thig study - for more details refer to the Risk Management Report)

Climate nsks consigered:
« Transition: regulatory, technolegy, financial, market, legal, reputation
* Physical: chronic, acute

GLOBAL TEMPERATURE (RELATIVE TO PRE-INDUSTRIAL} IN °C
6

- e ansmammmsraRmu R A REEEEE
pmmsgnavesd ammmerEnn®
-

2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050 2060 2070 2080 2080

SpDS -+ STEPS -~ RCP2.6 -— RCP4.5 RCP8.5

Source: PCC 2021, IEA 2021
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Climate related Physical Risk
assessment:

A data-driven approach was used to
identify and analyse the most material
physical climate risks facing Pharos
Energy's activities in Egypt, Israel and
Vietnam under three emissions scenarios
- see chart above re RCPs. The analysis
assesses acute and chronic risks (for
e.g. current climate extremes, such as
flooding, heat stress and storms, as well
as how long-term shifts such as sea level
rsej:

Regional profiles detail current risk
exposure across a range of dimensions,
including flooding, water stress and
heat stress

Climate modet projections are used to
assess how future climate may evolve
under different scenarios out to 2050

Assessing the impacts under different
emissions scenarios, helps Pharos to
identify weaknesses, vulnerabilities
and opportunities and informs capital
allocation and resilience building.

Outputs:

Provide inherent risk profiles of current
locations of interest

|dentify potential current and future
cperaticnal risks, existing and potential
weaknesses, vulnerabilities and
opportunites

Inforrm capital allocation and supports
strategic decisicn-making around
resilience building

G3
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Climate related Transition Risk assessment:

Transition risks were assessed under the International Energy Agency's (IEA) Sustainable
Development Scenario (SDS) and Stated Policies Scenario (STEPS):

« SDS assumes a rapid implementation of clean energy policies that set the planst on
course to meet the objectives of the Paris Climate Agreement. The SDS assumes that
all current net zerc pledges are achieved, following significant efforts to realise near-
term reductions.

* STEPS is a more conservative view of the future, in which only current and planned
policies are enacted, and cil and gas play a greater role in the energy system for longer.
It considers specific policy inttiatives that have already been put in place but also of
those that are under development. It assumes that policy proposals are implemented
in the near term, even if specific measures required for implementation have yet to be
specified.

The severity and likelihood associated with each transition risk identified is assessed
under baseline conditions, STEPS and SDS based on Pharos' Risk Matrix.

The transition risk assessment focusad on assessing the potential impacts of different
future scenarios on the key transition risks facing the company. and the ol and gas
industry more broadly, over the next 5-1Q years. By undertaking this assessment, Pharos
can demonstrate how it tests portfolio resilience amid the uncertainty of the speed

and extent of the enargy transition (in kne with the recommendations of the TCFD).
Furthermore, a desktop assessment of the current political context in Egypt, Vietnam and
Israel was used 1o compliment the broader global trends depicted by the 1EA in the SBS
and STEPS. Where appropriate, assumptions are made as 1o the future policy trajectery
In these countries under the two scenarios.

Pharos is fully committed to the TCFD's recommendations and will continue its journey
of continuous mprovement with transparent disclosures and reporting on how climate
related risks can impact on its operations and how cur strategies and mitigating plans
gvolve to ensure we mantain a sustainable business in line with our stakeholders'
expectations.

CLIMATE DISCLOSURE

15 JOURNEY OF
CONTINUOQUS
IMPROVMENT
STAKEHCOLDER
ENGAGEMENT GAP
ANALYSIS

REPORTING &
DISCLOSURE
INTERNAL

ALIGNMENT

Approach

e Build a roadmap
¢« Adopt an integrated approach
* Approach as cyclical process

Benefits

* Demonstrates awarness of growing importance of climate-relations issues to
key stakeholders

s Staying ahead of mandatory disclosure requirements
s Creates efficiences and relieves reporting burden
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Business partners and influence

Relationships with business partners, host governments and local communities where we operate are critical for our business. Cur Code
sets out our commitment to doing business honestly and ethically and to complying with all applicable laws and regulations. It sets out
our expectations to take steps to only do business with others who share our values.

Our ability to influence our business partners and JOCs depends on our degree of ownership and operatorship, Where we are the

designated operator, we fully apply the Pharos HSES MS. Where we are a joint operating partner or part of a JOC, we seek to influence
and ensure alignment with cur systems. Where we have a minority interest, we seek to make our views heard and ensure that minimum
standards are met in accordance with our commitment to the IFC Performance Standards.

VIETNAM INTERESTS AND CPERATIONS

Degree of Pharos Pharos 2021 Target HSES
influence Blocks Country ownership role field activity outcoms
Complction of 30 soisinic
Blocks 125 & ' acquisition progratniine Full apphication of the
V 1, - k=
g 126 etham - 70% Operator on Block 125, Seismic Phaeos HSES MS
Processing underway
" ]
Joint eperating partner ((;fOTﬂ(;Drlegon cliI_Flhase : n Influence to bring
Moderate Block 15-1 Vielnam 30.5% " {in Hoang Long Joint wel INerventio alignrment to the
Operating Company) and development driling Pharos HSES MS
campaign -
‘ ‘ Production of oil and gas
Joint operating partner (in Rout i
Maoderate Block 9-2 ietnamnm 25% Hoan Vu Joint Operating OUHNE we

Caompany)

maintenance and acid
stimulation for two wells

Phares has a 30.5% working interast in Block 16-1 which contang 97%- of the o Giac Irang {1G 1} field and 15 operaled by the Hoang Long Joint Operating
Company. The Group’s unitised interest in the TGT fisld is 29. 7%,

EGYPT INTERESTS AND OPERATIONS

Degree of Pharos Pharos 2021 Target HSES
influence Blocks Country ownership role field activity outcome
Commencement of the
El Fayuwmn Phase 1B
waterflood programme,
three-weli development - o b
. ‘ ‘ A nfluence 1o bring
) El Fayuin ’ ) Jotit operating parther drilling programme. and |
Moderate COncession Egwt 42 6% {in Petrostaly Batran-1X committient ‘;ll'g"’T]e:tSIg;ES
wall ol discovery 1aros
Commencement of
El Fayum Phase 1B
waterfiood programime
interpretation of pra-
. existing 30 seismic Influence to bhring
Moderate Narih Beni Suef Egypt 100% doint operating pariner survey. Several low ahignment o the

Concession

{In Petrosilah)

risk drillable prospects
identified.

Pharos HSES MS

In Septomber 2021, Pharos announced the farm-out and sale of a 55% working mterest and operatorship m each of the LI T ayum and North Bern Suef Concessions
1o IPR Lake Qarurt Petroleum Co. a wholly owned subsidiary of IPR Energy AG. Pharos and EGPC have finalised all necassary documents 1o be presented to the
Minister of Patroleurn andd Natural Resources to approve the transaction with IPR and this approval is expected shortly.

ISRAEL INTERESTS

Degree of Pharcs Pharos 2021 Target HSES
influence Blocks Country ownership role field activity cutcome
No field activity
Evaluation of all
Licences reprocassed seismic
39,40,47,48 data has been finalised Ensure minirmum
Low {Zone Ay and Israc 33.33% Non-operator with an assessiment standards during
45 46 .52 53 of prospectivity being ownership
{Zone G) undertaken ahead of a

Joint Venture drill or drop
decision on the licences
in Q3 2022,
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HSES Management System

We undertake a range of activities to continuously improve our
HSES MS to ensure that the Company's policy commitments

are applied. We may work in countries that have different
standards and we review any potential gaps to ensure adherence
to our policies in dialogue with our business partners. Routine
monitoring is undertaken to assess and improve performance and
pencdic audits are conducted.

HSE trainings and exercises

In Vietnam, the HLHVJOCs continued H3E induction 1o new staff,
maintained its HSE Training Matrix such as travel safely by boat.
firefighting and rescue, working at height and also conducted
training for offshore production team such as Personal Protective
Equipment iraining, refresh safety induction for contractors,
behavioural safety and tank inspection procedurs.

In Egypt, HSES training focused on Iifesaving rules, permit to
work, hot work hazards and safety requirements in confined
space entry and working at heights. All five staft HSE engineers
obtained Nebosh general certificates.

Overall objective
To provide responsible and sustainable development

2021 Cbjectives 2021 Qutcomes

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KP| Target 2021 2020 2019

HSES regulatory

) Zero 0 0 o
non-compliances

1. Although three regulatory non-compliances were reported in our
Egyptian assets in 2019, these ocourred 1n January. prior to the
cormpletion of our acguisition,

Contractor management

Contractors are used throughout all aspects of our business.
Our Contractor Management Procedure sets out requirements
through all stages from selection through to management and
service delivery.

In HSES critical activities, bridging documents are put in place to
ensure Pharos and contractor alignment with cur requirements.

Hours worked in Vietnam Percentage
and Egypt assets of total
Company staff: 779.216 25%
Contractors: 2,391,204 5%

2022 Objectives

I Egypt. tralting is currently suspended

Each asset to further enhance their own
HSES training programme.

on account of the COVID-19 pandemic.
In Vietnam offshore staff complete regular
HSE training; onshore staft training currently

Further abgnment with Pharos HSES Management
system

limited due 1o working from home.

Confirm that vutstanding recommendations
from gap analysis of Merlon HSES MS against
PHAROS Corporate HSES MS requirements
have been closed

Implament recommendations from gap
analysis of Jont Operated Company (JOC)

Findings are 88 pereent closed

Work closely with new partner HSES department
to ensure a sirnilar HSES approach 1s shared

Management systern in Vietnarn aganst
Pharos HSES M3 requiraments.

Further enhance in-country respective
Emecrgency Response Teams interface with
Head Office Criss Management Response
Team

Compieted

Pharos new Crisis Management Plan rolled
out Pharos new Cnsis Management Plan
rodled out

Carporate Cnsis Response team tramng
conducted

Virtual Crnisis Room setun

Update Pharos HSES Management System

Pharos Energy to consider creating a single
easily accessible online repository for accessing
amergency response and relevant project
documentation to ensure this can be readily
sourced following an emergenay.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Ethics

100%

Employees and relevant
contractors have undertaken
anti-bribery and corruption
training by 31 December 2021

Preventing cormruption

Pharos currently operates in Vietnam,
which is allocated a low score on
Transparency International’s most recently
published Corruption Perception Index
("CPI", and is ranked number 87 (104

in 2020) out of 180 countries in the

2021 CPl. Egyptis ranked at 117 on

the same CHI. Israel is ranked at 36

on the CPI, indicating a lower risk of
cortuption, We recognise that, with both
areas of operation having a reputation

for a lack of transparency and relatively
high risk of corruption, it is vital that the
Group's policies, procedures and working
practices are fit for purpose. Pharos
miaintains internal control systems to
guide and ensure that our ethical business
standards for relationships with others are
achigved. The Audit and Risk Committee
and the Board have carried out a review

Overall objective

of the effectivenass the Group's risk

management and internal controf systems,

see the Audit and Risk report pages 97
to 101, Bribery is prohibited throughout
the organisation, both by cur employees
and by those performing work on our
behalf. The Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics supports all businesses that
are conducted in an honest and ethical
manner across the organisation. Our
Anti-Bribery and Corruption (“ABC"}
programme is designed to prevent
corruption and ensure systems are in
place to detect, remediate and lsarn from
any potential violations, This includes due
diligence on new vendaors, annual training
for all personnel, requisite compliance
declarations from all associated persons,
Gifts and Hospitality declaration and
comprehensive ‘whistleblowing’
arrangaments.

Our Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure
ensures that employees are protected
from possible reprisals when raising
conecerns in good faith. In addition to
internal reporting channels, we have a
confidential ethics hotlines supported by
EthicsPoint with numbers displayed in
local offices available 24 hours a day all
year roung, Zero calls were made to the
EthicsPoint hotlines in 2021.

To conduct our businass in an honest and ethical manner

2021 Objectives

2021 Outcomes

Our objective is to conduct our business in an honest
and ethical manncr.

Payments to host governments

Wealth generated by natural rescurces
plays an important part in the growth
and development of countries in which
we operate. Revenues to governments
become payable by the Group due

to oll production entitlements, taxes,
rovalties, icence fees and infrastructure
Impravemesants.

During 2021, the total payments to
governments for the Group amounted

to $198.2m (2020: $150.9m}, of which
$151.9m or 77% (2020: $104.9m or 70%)
was related to the Vietnam producing
hcence arsas, of which $102.6m (2020:
$72.5m) was for indirect taxes based on
production entitlement. Egypt was paid a
total of $44.7m (2020: $42.2m} of which
$44.1m (2020: $41.3m) relates to indirect
taxes based on production entitlement.
The breakdown of other contributions,
including payroll taxes and other taxes ig
contained within the additional information
on pages 167 to 168, Our Code

prohibits contributions to political parties,
candidates or other political organisations.

2022 Objectives

All persennel to complete the annual ABC
programme including training. testing and
self-declaration stalemant.

Continue to raview ABC programme and
update as required.

Update and republish the Modern Slavery
annugal statement.

Completed

No updates required

The annual statement on Modearn Slavery has
hean published on the Pharos website.

All personnel to complete the annual ABC
programme including training, testing and
seli-declaration statemeint

Continue to review ABC programime and
update as required

Undate and republish the Modern Slavery
annual staterment ang all other corporate
policy statements
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CORFPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

People

Our objective is to ensure the health, safety, security and welfare of
our employees and those with whom we work and to ensure that
we have a workforce that is performing at its best.

Qur Health, Safety and Environment
Policy and Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics commit us to protecting

the health and safety of cur workforce,
to providing a workplace free of
discrimination where diversity is valued
and to ensure that we consult and
engage with our employees.

We value the contribution made by all
employees and strive to ensure that
we have traning and develcpment
opportunities for everyone.

During 2021, the Group maintained its
priority of keeping our workforce safe
during the global pandemic.

On-going monitoring and
precautionary / preventive
measures under COVID-19

The Group adhered to the requisite
precauvtionary procedures and restrctions,
In line with the government directives in
Egypt, Vietnam and the UK. At Petrosilah
and Pharos Ei Fayum, a vaccination
campaign for all employees in the main
offices and fields started in Q2 2021

and cuiminated 10 97% (2 doses) of the
workforce being vaccinated at the end of
December 2021. In Vietnam, the HLHV
JOC strict 5-7 days quarantine regulations
are being applied for the workfarce going
offshore, in additon to rapid and PCR
tests one day prior to offshore mobilisation

- 100% of the workforce are vaccinated
with 2 doses at the end of December
2021, For the office workforce at all
locations Pharos has continucusly applied
a hybrid-working mode and will A 56 until
further nctice.

Occupational health and safety

Safety is the highest priority in our
business and we are committed to
operating safely and responsibly at

all times and to providing a safe and
healthy working environment for staff and
contractors, Following from our Health,
Safety and Environment Paolicy and

Cede of Business Conduct and Ethics,
our HSES MS provides the framewark
for our approach and is implemented

at each stage of a project supported by
Occupational Health and Safety Guidance
and Standard Operating Procedures,
While Pharos had no field activity in

2021 in which we wers the cperator, we
continued to work with our partnérs in
Vietnam whers the HLHVJOCs continued
to maintain a high level of safety. We
have worked to bulld and centribute

to 1mprovements in the safety culture

in Vietnam and we are proud of that
record of achievement. HSES training,
drills, workshops and ingspections are
conducted on an annual basis to ensure
that the zero target 1s maintained.

We are able to share our practices and
lessons learned with others in the industry
and are contributing to further capacity
building.

In Egypt, we are pleased to report no
recordable health and safety incident in
2021.

Sataty of our workfarce remains our
number ong priority and Pharos has
reinforced the use of stop cards and
safety training across all of the Group's
aperations.

Critical Incident Risk Management

Pharos has emergency response plans

In place for all projects and assets.

The plans are communicated to the
workforce and responge personnel receive
training to ensure they are competent

to carry out their emergency roles. This

is supplemeanted by pericdic refresher
training. Drills and training exercises are
carried out. We ensure asset integrity and
control opsrations in order to effectively !
manage all significant risks during all

stages of the operaticns.

During 2021, there were no Process

Safety Events classified Tier 1 or Tier

2 to be reported. All incidents were

investigated and lessons learned as ,
appropriate and actions to prevent

recurrence were impiemented.

SAFETY RECORD
2021 2020 2019
KPI Target rates Pharos 10GP* Pharos OGP Pharos 10GP
Fatal Acordent Frequernicy Rate Zerc ] 34 0.55 0 0.82
Lost Time Injury L") Frequency Rate Zero [+ 0.34 0,22 0 0.24
Total Recorda?ﬂe Injury Rate: i <7E].34 0 ) 0.34 0.70 0.;1_2 0.92
Mill\OI-w:;an hours worked 7 3.1. 7 ) 2.9-7; 2.544 2.35 3.038

1 Fatal accident frequency rate: Number of fatal accidents per hundred milon man-haurs for both employees and contractors
2 Lost time wyary frequency rate: Number of lost time imjdries per milion man-hours for both employees and contractors

N

4 International Associaton of il and Gas Producers (10GP™) - Statistics not yet avalable for 2021
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3 Total Recordable Imjury rate, Number of recordabie injunes per milion man-hours for both ermployees and contractars



Strategic Report

Safety indicators (for both Pharos
employees and contractors)

Indicator 2021
Lost Time Injury frequency rate ("LTIY) 8]
%al;ﬂ Accidents - - O
Medical Treatiment Céseér - 0
First A Casés - 0
Nurmber (;f Mc_)to;_\/ehicle Crashes 1
Raoll-cver - 1
HSES Near Miss 9
HéES Inspections - 79?
HSES Auddits 102z
HSES Tookox Taks 6,131
'HSES Meelings 1,104
Safety indicators

Indicator 2021
Emergency Response Drills 102

Process Safety Events (Tier 1 ar Tior 2 0
Other minor events 49

Diversity and Inclusion

Greater diversity and inclusivity brings
greater understanding of people. Through
our Guiding Principles of 'Openness

and Integrity' and ‘Empowerment and
Capability’, we have demonstrated our
commitment to maintaining and building
a culture of diversity and inclusion in
meaningful ways,

We believe in a workforce with a diversity
of experience, nationalities, cultural
backgrounds and gender, to support our
business strategy of long-term sustainabia
growth. It is crucial to the success of

our business that we retain and develop
the diversity of our workforce and have
diversity and inclusion at the heart of our
recruitment, development and promotion
Processes.

Our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, associated Policies and the Pharos
CGuiding Principles cormmit us to providing
a workplace free of discrimination where
all employees can fulfil their potential
based on merit and ability. They also
commit us to providing a fully inclusive
workplace, while providing the right
development oppartunities to ensure
existing staff have rewarding careers.

The spirit of diversity, inclusion and trust
lies behind everything we do. In 2021,
four out of nine Board members were
women, and this will become four of gix
Board members following complstion of
the farm-out transactions with IPR and
the 2022 AGM. We are also proud that
women accounted for nearly 80% of
employees at our London head office.

Our offices across the organisation
recruit talents from diverse backgrounds,
ethnicity and axperience. Most notably,
our London head cffice has 17 pecple
frorm 10 different nationalities, which
ensures that we cultivate a culture that
recognises and promotes diversity in all
forms and where every voice is heard.

2021 CORPORATE EMPLOYEES”

B Female

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directers

Senior Management

Other Employees

Figures correct as at 31 December 2021

Overall objective

Local capability building

We are committed to providing meaningful
opportunities for technical cooperation,
training and capacity building in host
countries. We have maintained a gender-
neutral recruitment process and, wherever
possible, are ensuring that we first look

te fill any vacancy internally with a iocal
candidate in London, Vietnam and Egypt.

In Egypt, under the El Fayum and North
Bani Suef Concessior Agresments, the
Contractor party cammits to a total of
$200.000 split equally between the two
Cengessions for training and development
of employees. Additionally, in cooperation
with the Ministry of Higher Education and
Scientific Research. Petrosilah holds an
annual summer training programme for alt
students applying from public and private
Egyptian universities for training in the
administrative office and the cormpany’s
fields, from which they can obtain a
training certificate after completing the
programme.

In Vietnam, as part of the HLHVJOCs, we
contribute to local capability building. A
training levy of $150,000 for each JOC
goes into a fund which is ring-fenced to
support the development of future talent
in Vietnam in the industry, The HLHVJOCs
also invest in staff development and
training.

To ensure the health, safety, security and welfare of our employees and those
with whom we work; to sustain and grow a global cuttural of diversity and
inclusion such that diversity is at the core of who we are and where inclusion

drives innovation and solutions

2021
Objectives

2021
QOutcomes

2022
Objectives

Build an action plan based
on the areas that employees
identified as reguiring
improvement in the employee
engagement survey.

Further enhance
understanding of different
cultures and sharing of ideas
through training sessions and
focus groups made up of cross
country groups

Survey completed and
feedback reviewed and
discussed with senior
management

Close gaps and

initial improvements
identified in employee
sUrveys

Maintain and implement
procedures to ensure a COVID-
safe workplace and practices

Maintained
precautionary measures

Focus on mantaiming
safe working
crvironment

WFH where applicable

Coordinated a
successful vaccination
programme

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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CORPCORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Environment

We recognise the potential impacts of our business on the

environment. Our Health, Safety and Environment Policy sets out
our commitment to conduct all business activities in a responsible
manner. In setting the Group’s corporate responsibility pricrities, our
objective is to protect the environment and conserve biodiversity.

Greenhouse gas emissions
(HGHG”)

GHGs assocliated with energy use and
with natural gas flaring and venting are a
key issue for the Group.

In 20271, we continued to monitor

our emissions and disclose therm in
accordance with industry reguirements
and standards, participated in the

Carbon Disclosure Project (“CDP"), with
further work completed in Q1 2022 on
implementing the TCFD recommendations
and alignment.

TCFD alignment

The physical risk assessment focused
on screening our Interests In Vietnam,
Egypt and lsrast using the consultant’s
physical risks datasets and an attempt to
quantify changes in key climate variables
{e.g. drought, rainfall, wave heightj over a
5 and 10-year timeframe under the three
emisgons scenarios - Representative
Concentration Pathways (RCPs). The
transition analysis focused on the potential
impacts of different future scenarios on
the key transition risks facing the Group
and the oil and gas sector more broadly
over the next 5-10 years. By undertaking
this assessment, Pharos demonstrated
how it evaluated its portfolio resilience
amid the uncertainty of the gpeed and
extent of the energy transtion. Transition
risks were assessed by Pharos” TCFD
consultant under the International Agency
flIEA) Sustainable Development Scenaric
(SDS} and Stated Folicies Scenario
{STEPS). Additionally, Pharos has
considered the risk that climate change
pressures could reduce ol prices dunng
the 3 year Viability Statement window
(Please refer to the Viability Staterment
from pages $8-57 under the
recommended IEAs Net Zero Ermissions
SCenaro.
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Pharos Energy plc has complied

with the requirements of LR 9.8.6R

by including chmate-related financial
disclosures consistent with the TCFD
recommendations and recommended
disclosures Pharos is compliant with 9
out of 11 of the TCFD recommended
disclosure. The two exceptions are
Strategy (b) and Metrics and Targets (c),
details of which are noted below,

Strategy (b) Describe the impact of
climate-related risks and opportunities
on the organisation’s strategy and
financial planning

To date Pharos has not yet formulated

its decarbonisation plan as part of cur
corporate strategy as the physical and
transition scenario risk analyses were
completad in February 2022 and further
assessments/discussions will take place
during 2022 to consider adaptation
strategies to mitigate the identified climate
rigks. Pharos has a comprehensive
portfolio of climate related nsks under
multiple scenarios which will be regularly
tracked, re-assessed and re-calbrated
regularly 1o reflect the evolving cimate
landscape. Risk mitigation 1s already being
considered in financial planning as part

of our going concern and viability testing
an ol future price curve based on the
recommended IEAs NZE scenario, Also,
some stress testing has been carmed

out on a carbon tax impact on our future
hase cash balance and the impact was
deemed not material. The risks and
opportunities were assessed over a &
and 10 yaar imeframe. A comprehensive
decarbomsation/ climate mitigation

plan will be formulated by our Senior
Management by Q1 2023 to embed the
mitigation ptan into our medium and fong-
term corporate strategy.

Metrics and Targets {c} Describe the
targets used by the organization to
manage climate-related risks and
opporunities and performance against
targets

The baselnes for GHG emissions for
2021 are disclosed in the Corporate
Responsitidity section under Environment
{please refer to pages 69 10 75

and page 78 but no carbon reduction
target has been set yet. During the
course of 2022, Pharos will progress
furthar teasibility studies on CO, reduction
technologies, improve our management
of flaring and venting, explore where
operational processes can be altered
and evaluate the use of greener energy
sources to replace the use of our own
produced gas as fuel for our operations.
By the end of 2022, Pharos will be In a
better position o set a specific carbon
footprint reduction targets against the
2021 GHG baselines.



Strategic Report

The Group’s status - TCFD pillars and disclosures

Recommended Disclosures

Pharos status

GOVERNANCE

a} Describe the hoard's oversight of
climate-related risks and opportunities

{b) Describe management’s role in
assussing and managing climate-related
risks and opportunities

Our ESG Comniittee oversees climate-related risks and opportunities and reports 10 the Board.
The Charr of the Board, John Martin, is alsc the Chair of the ESG Committec.

For mare information on Board oversight and composition of the ESG Committee. please soc
page 82 and pages 86 to 91 of the Carporate Governance Report. For more information

on the ESG Committee meetings. please see the ESG Committee report on pages 82 to 94
of the Governance: Report

ESG issues and reporting remain a key element of Pharos,

For more information on how ESG issues are considered at Board and manageiment level, please
see page 92 to 94 for the ESG Committee report of the Governance Report.

STRATEGY

(&) Describe the climate-related risks
and opportunities the organization has
icdentified over the short, medium and
long-term

{b) Describe the imipact of climate-
related risks and opportuiities on the
argansabion's strategy and financial
planning

(c} Describe the resilience of the
organisation’s strategy, taking nte
consideration different climate-related
scenarios, including a 2 degree or {ower
scenario

High grading of key transition and physical risks over multiple time-horizons and scenarios
For more information, please see pages 45 1o 48 in the Risk Management report, and

pages 61 to 63 for the 'On-going commitment to align with TCFD' section in the Corporate
Responsibility Report in the Strategic Beport.

Transition nisks will impact on o price volatility, demand for ol & gas and availability and cost of
capital causing earlier impainment / risk of stranded assets and rising operating costs

Physical nisks will potentially cause damage to our assets, increase insurance costs and force
unexpected shutdowns of cur operations.

For more information on Transition and Physical risk. please refer to the On-going comrmitment to
align with TCFD section on pages 671 to 63 in the Strategic Report.

A decarbonisation plan will assist the company to gamn the confidence of the investors and also
have better access to sources of capital,

In Q4 2021, Pharos uixlertook a review of our Vietnamese operations and agsets with the
assistance of an independent energy consultant focusing on the potential application CO
reduction technologies, For mare information on our consideration, please refer to page 47 in the
Risk Management Beport.

Risk registers are 1nantained across ali functions and locations
Internal quarterly risk assessiments with all risk owners
Principal and emerging risks, including climate-related risks are reported to the ESG Committoc.

For more infonnation, please refer 1o pages 49 to 57 of the Risk Report and pages 61 tc 63 in the
Strategic Report.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Recommended Disclosures Pharos status

RISK MANAGEMENT

(8) Describe the organisation's processes  Climate-related risks were assessed over multiple time-horizons, external data-sets and

tor identifymg and assessing chrnate- recommeanded scenanos and the nsks categarised / calibrated and hi-graded using Pharos Risk
related risks Matrix

For more information. please see pages 45 to 48. 51, 57 and pages 61 to 63 of the Strategic
Repaort,

{b} Describe the organisation’s processes  Continuous menitonng / reporting of key performance indications including CO, emissions levels
for managing climate-related risks and intensity in our quanerly HSES reports

Yearly GHG reporting and certiication
ESG targets. including GHG reduction targets as part of the Directors’ remuneration policy.

For more information on our ESG targets and performance. please see the 2022 KPIin the
Directors’ Remuneration report on page 112,

Stress-testing oif price volatility in various clinate-related scenanos
Assess the impact of carbon pricing on our going concarn and viability tests

For more information for going concern and viability testing, please see the Viability Statement on
pages 56 10 57 in the Strategic Report.

For maore idonmation on the Group's process for managing chimala-refated nsk, please see page
51 0 the Strateqic Report,

(c) Describe how the processes Tor Risk registers are mantaned across all functions and locations

identifying, assessing and managing

climate-related risks are integrated

into the organisation’'s averall risk

managernent For more iformation, please refer 1o pages 49 to 57 of the Risk Repont and 61 10 63 my the
Strategic Report.

Internal quarterly risk assessiments with ali risk owsers
Principal and emerging risks, including climale-related nsks are reported 1o the ESG Committes.

METRICS AND TARGETS

a) Disclose the metrics used by the Measure and report aur CO enussions across all operations
organization to assess climate-related y
risks and opportunities in line vath risk
management nrocess

Calculate and report our carbon intensity
GHG metrics and climate change are now included as part of our remuncration poficy.
For more information, please see pages B9 to 75 and page 78 of the Strategic Report.

() Disclose Scepe 1, Scepe 2 and if Both Scepe 1 and Scope 2 are measured and reported, For more information on Scope 1 and 2,
appropriate, Scope 3 GHG emissions, please refer to page 78 in the Non-Financial Disclosures in the Corporate Responsibility report.

and the related risks Scope 2 emissions are currently not being reported but Pharos is planning 10 review in 2022 the

various categones of its scope 3 emissions. The company is cogmsant that TCFD advocates and
decide on the reporting of scope 3 and the Group will endeavour to follow this route. in line with
TCFD recommendations going forward.

For more information. please see pages 69 to 75 and 78 1 the Strategic Report.

¢ Describe the targets used by the Please sec the Metrcs and Targets (¢} paragraph on page 69 for more information.
organization to manage climate-related

nsks and opportunities and performance

agamst targets

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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GHG reported

Pharos reports carbon dioxide (CO ),
methane (CH,), and nitrous oxide (N, O)
combined into carbon dicxide equivalent
(CO, ) based on the gases’ 100-year
Global Warming Potential {GWP). These
three gases are produced through
combustion, although N, O quantities
produced via combustion is relatively
small.

In addition 1o emissions resulting frem
combustion, in 2021, Pharos has started
to report 1ts direct methane emissions
from routine venting.

The other greenhouse gases, HFCs, PFCs
and SF6, are not clossly associated with
the petroleumn industry, Their respective
emitting activilies are not core parts of
Pharos operations. The total emission of
these gases is therefore expected to be
small and has not been calculated.

Emissions scope

Reperted Scope 1 direct emissions
comprise direct GHG emissions resulting
from equiprent or other sources owned
{partly or wholly) and/or operated by

the Company (for example. gas flaring
cperations and fuel gas/diesel use to
generate power or for vehicle use, as well
as venting). Reported Scope 2 indirect
emissions comprise those arising from
purchased ensrgy already transformed
into electricity, heat or steam generation,
For Pharos activities, Scope 2 emissions
comprise electricity supplied by the
national grid in our Cairo office (Egypt)
and in Ho Chi Minh City (Vietnam). No
Scope 3 emissicons {indirect emissions
created in the value chain) are reported.
Scope 3 emissions are currently not being
reported but Pharos is planning to review
in 2022 the various categories of its scope
3 emisgsions. The company is cognisant
that TCFD advocates and decide on the
reporting of scope 3 and the Group will
endeavour to follow this route, i line with
TCFD recommendations going forward.

Reporting boundary

Pharos has elected to report its emissions
of GHGs from Egypt and Vietnam
operations on the basis of equity share.

Under equity share reporting, Pharos
reports a pro-rata share of the emissions
from partnerships or assets over which
the Group has operational control (i.e.,
Vietnam Blocks 125 &126} and a pro-rata
share of the emissions from partnerships
or assets It does not contral {i.e., Vietnam
Blocks §-2 and 16-1 and Egypt, all

of which are operated through JOCs)
according to its ownership interest. Note
that although Pharos has interest in lsrael,
{o date, no operations have taken place
in country. In addition, in December 2020,

the lease for the Pharos Londen Office

at 48 Duver Streel was assigned 1© a
new tenant and the associated emissions
have therefore not been reported in 2021.
Since the middle of July 2021, Pharos
has rented flexible office space consisting
of six desks at WeWork based in Scho,
London. The electricity consumption from
this office is not included in the figures
discussed thereafter.

Pharos Energy commits to making all
efforts to minimise all GHG Emissions
during its ongoing exploration activities
in Blocks 125 & 126, where it has
operational control. Where we are a joint
cperating partner, we seek to influence
and ensure alignment with our systems
to promote best practice. Where we have
a minornty interest, we seek ta make our
views heard and ensure that minimum
standards are met in accordance with
our commitment to the IFC Performance
Standards and TCFD recemmendations.

Methodology

Pharos applies the expectations set by
the ISO 14064-1 standards in terms of
Relevance, Completeness, Consistency,
Transparency and Accuracy which are
endorsed by IPIECA, the Greenhouse
Gas Protocal Initiative and Part 7 of The
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013.
Emission factors for GHG calculations
were taken from UK Government GHG
Conversicn Factors for Company
Reporting {BEIS, 2021} and EEMS, 2008,
Atmospheric Emissions Calculations;

for the calculation of associated gas
consumed as fuel and flared in Vietnam,
the emission factors were calculated
based on the carbon content of gas
analysed of a blend of TGT and Hai Su
Trang Den (HSTD} export gas for the TGT
field, and of the CNV Field by the Vietham
Petroleumn Institute in 2021, and for the
calculation of gas congumed, vented and
flared in Egypt, the emissions factors were
calculated based on the carbon content
of gas analysed at the North Silah Deep,
North East Tersa, South Siiah and Silah
Base Separators (EPRI Central Analytical
Labs, 2018},

In 2021 we have again reported our GHG
emissions intensity in tonnes of GHG

per 1,000 tonnes of oil produced by
equity share to align with the International
Assoctation of Oil and Gas Producers
("IOGP"} benchrmarks.

Key sources of our emissions are from
flaring and use of associated gas as
fuel to generate power on our offshare
production sites in Vietnam and likewise
for our onshore production in Egyget. In
2021, in addition to our emissions from
combustion which have been the focus
of Pharos reporting until now, we have
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started to report our direct methane
emissions resulting from venting. In 2021,
gas fuel and gas flaring in TGT remain the
largest single contributor to Pharos total
emissions. Venting represented 9 percent
of our gross emissions.

The Group's total CO.e emissions for
202115 372,151 tonnes of CO, equivalent
(120,628 tonnes of CO, equivalent based
on equity share}. This corresponds o

a decrease of 5 percent compared to
2020 (3 percent based on equity sharg).
Pharos overall reported emissions have
decreased due to a lower tevel of drilling
activities, which counterbalanced potential
causes for increase. namely inclusion of
routing venting emissions and compressor
issues resulting in increased flaring in
Block 16-1 in Vietnam,

Activity data pertaining to GHG emissicns
by the HLHVJOCs and Egypt is reported
t¢c Pharos. Telos NRG assisted with data
collation and GHG emissions calculations.
Verification was undertaken by RPS
Planning and Environment.

Approaches to reducing emissions

The restaging of two gas compressors
on the TGT FPSC was finally completed
in 1H 2021 and this has contributed

to better gas flaring management.
Unfortunately, in November 2021 one of
the two gas compressaors overheated and
had to be shut down and returned to the
rmanufacturer in the US for diagnostics
and repairs. This incident resulted in an
increase in flaring levels.

During 2021, Pharos carried out a high-
level review of the Vietnamese assets with
the assistance of an external consultant
to investigate the main CO, emission
contributors, to understand what solutions
have been implemented or discounted
by the JOC and fogusing on possible
CO, emissions reduction options. A
number of CO, reduction technologies
such as ejector technolcgy, gas o liquid,
hydrogen storage unit may have potential
to reduce our Scope 1 emissions, but
further study work and cost benefit
analysis comparisons including a CO,
reduction benefit versus CAPEX payback
analysis will be required to pursue any

of these solutions. Additionally putting
costs of these technologies aside, there
are signficant logistical constraints — for
example, the current FPSO infrastructure
configuration has to be examined in
details and partners’ backing has to be
obtained.



CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Annual Environmental Measurements - in accordance with the requirements of the Egyptian Environmental Law 4 for year 1994, the
Company carried out annual environmental measurements, and all environmental measurements resulted in fess than the threshold limit
in the law.

Environmental permit non-compliances - the company achieved zero Legal Environmental Violation during 2021 and did not obtain
any violations from the Environment Authority in Egypt in 2021, The Cormpany obtained 6 Ervircnmental Approvals from the Ministry of
Environment during 2021.

G missions al ivi
HG emissions and activity data CARBON INTENSITY OF PRODUCTION (TCO,e PER 1,000

GHG DATA - TONNES OF CO, EQUIVALENT FOR 2019 TO 2021 TONNES OF OIL EQUIVALENT PRODUCED)
UL

458,129
A0S0
P 290,044

s

aEnnnG 334,705
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hnnnG

20000

147,173

80 Ghe
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7019 2020 2021 2021 2019 2020 2021 ~07t

(year round; {Venting excluded}  fwith Venting} [y2ar round; (Verting excluded) {with Venting)
- Gross GHG Emiss ens (CO e (1) . Nel GHG Emiswions (CO e (1) . AIGHIT . Fgypt Dwrtall

Scope One and Two emissions from the Group's operated and joint-operated projects on an equity share basis calculated pro-rata to its
ownership interest.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS CONTRIBUTIONS GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS GONTRIBUTIONS

(TOTAL GO,e (T}) FOR 2021 - VIETNAM (BASED ON (TOTAL CO.e (T)) FOR 2021 - EGYPT {(BASED ON TOTAL

TOTAL FIELD EMISSIONS) FIELD EMISSIONS, INCLUDING VENTING)
VIETNAM EGYPT

@ casruel 149,361 (50.4%) @ venting 33,445 (44,2%)
@ GasFlared 115,962 (33.1%) @ casFusl 17,989 (23.8%)
. Marine Gasocil 25,384 (8.6%) . Gas Flared 10,599 (14%)
Diesel 5,585 (1.9%) Diesel 13,063 (17.2%)
Peirol {0.4%)
@ Dicsel (vehicls) 0.2%)

Electricity from Grid ~ {0.2%)

In 2021, 43 tonnes of gas were flared for every 1,000 tonnes of total hydrocarbon production from Group assets on a gross basis (not
equity share adjusted). This is a slight increase from 38 tonnes in 2020.

Venting

Routine venting emissions have been included for the first time in GHG report in 2021, Boutine venting only ocours in Egypt. Althocugh
there is no routine ventng in Vietnam, accidental leaks can occur. In addition, some activities do occasionally require depressurisation of
differing process systems. In these instances. the systemi(s) will be isclated, and depressurised to as low as possible, and then drained
to a closed drain tank. A minor amount of gas commingled with liquid will evacuate out through cold vent ine to a safe area. Associated
ermissions are expected to be negligible and are not included in the 2021 reper, but Pharos is committed to Include them within the
report from 2022,

Although venting in Egypt was not recorded before 2020, quantties invalved are likely to have been lower, as the oil production decrease
in 2021 meant the amount of gas produced has become insufficient to operate flare or power gas generators and has been vented
instead.

The Group's energy use from gnd electricity was 311,692 kwh in 2021 for overseas offices in Egypt and Vietnam, In 2020, the Group's
enargy use was 309,942 kWh; 24,559 KWhs for London and 285,383 KWh for oversea. Pharos assigned the leasehald interest in the

former London head office at 48 Dover Street in December 2020. Since the middle of Juty 2021, Pharos has rented a flexible six-desk

office space in London, the electricity consumption of which is not included in the report,
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Effluents and waste

S fo

During 2021, Pharos maintained its record of no spills into the environment in Vietnam. In Egypt, there were three envircnmental spills as

follows:

Date Location Descripticn Estimated Quantity (bbls)
High salinity water drained on the ground by ol tanker

Jan 2021 Egypt - Aboud-1x A full cleaning up of the contaminated soil and disposal 3
by Petrotrade cormpany

Jan 2021 Eqyol — Saad-2x Minor ¢ spill around the shipping pump due to tailurs of 5

Eqyit - Bl Fayurn fields to Suez ol

its mechanical seal

Crude ol shipping truck overtumed on regional road

August 2021 processing company. about 2 km away

causiiy & leak in tank—noinu
from Suez city 1 17y

Water is extracted along with hydrocarbon reservoir fluids as part of normal production operations. In 2021 we generated 6.1 million
cubic metres of produced water, In Vietnam, the produced water 1s cleaned by separating the hydrocarbon phase befare discharging to
the sea in line with national standards.

In Egypt, our produced water is all disposed of in disposal wells, The company has three Produced Water Treat Facilities. PWTF, two
of them are In-service at SILAH GS & N. Silah Deep GS and the third is yet to be used at N. E Tersa-1. The produced water is being
collected in both PWTF (SILAH & NSD} and then disposed inte A/R “E” formation in (+/- 5,000 bbl water disposed into SILAH-15 & +/-
6,000 - 6,500 bbl water disposed into NSD-1-1) disposal wells respectively.

In Vistnam, waste is generated from both our production operations as well as from our offshore drilling activities. Drilling waste inciudes
cuttings, used oil and other materials. We work 1o recycle as much non-hazardous waste as possible, We have a third-party contract for
the disposal of hazardous waste, with a reporting system into the specific Vietnamese authorities for checking, audit, and approval.

In Egypt, waste generated is segregated into hazardous and non-hazardous waste and disposed of in a licensed facility. Freshwater is
used to support our operations,

In 2021, freshwater consumption for both Vietnam and Egypt amounted to 58,525 cubic metres. Our use of freshwater has been
almost halved compared to 2020, dus 1o the limited number of driling activity carried cut through the year, as the business continued to
respond to the low oil price and impact of COVID-18.

TONNES (T) OF CO,E EQUIVALENT FOR 2021 OPERATIONS
CO e (1) per 1000 tornes of ail

COeit) procuced by equity share
Reported Operational i Based on equity S Par
Country operations phase Overall’ share * Per field country
UK Rented flexible office space  Administration {office — electricity usage) - - - -
- not reported
Israel T -NU actwity i ) S
Egypt Office T A?imiﬁislralion support 10f exiploirati;:n - 409 _1.7-5 h - S
_EI F_ayl_im -Ccncesswon 7Pf;d[;ﬁ()7ﬁ o T ;34_58 31,293 - 528 3&8
ﬁél(fdeiﬂelopmenl T ‘1_8?4 1,874 - o
Vlémém CUL_J Lc_mg_ ) _Ofﬁce_ T f\dmir;irsiriatioin (eile(;}ric]ty usags) ’ 1_ 1 s
Basin (offshore) Erlliociks ;257& 1726 Sois-r-mc_ex;glor;tio_n o 2"75@, - 1,829 T .
Block 9-2 - Ca Ngw Vang  Production oo T 16,640 IVRT") 59 LY
{CNV) ield Figld development ST T G S 70 7 T
Block 16-1 - Te Giac T;’an_g ’ F%;:i;ch-c-m 7 ) 2766}321 79.220- S 359
{TGT) field J_:ieEi d_evelﬂp;nem o 170‘580 3,053 S
Total 372,151 120,628 316 -

1. Figures include rounding to the nearest whole number.
2. Under equity share, Pharos reporls a share ot the emissions fromn the partnerships pro-rata its ownership interest.

3. GHG ernission ntensity 1s calculated, per field, and at country level, based on equity share, and gross/net boepd produced in 2021 in the CNV and TGT
fields as well as in & Fayumn Concession.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

Biodiversity

The Group's Biodiversity and
Conservation Policy commits us to meet
the objectives of the Convention an
Biological Diversity (1992). We dentify
whether a project is [ocated in modified.,
natural or critical habitats, or a legally
protected or internationally recognised 4
area; and whether the project may
potentially impact on, or be dependent
on, ecosystems services over which
Pharos has direct management control
or significant influence. In Egypt, the El
Fayum Concession borders the multiple-
use management area and the natural
protectorate area of Lake Qarun which
includes important birc habitats. Ii is *
adjacent to the Wadi El Bayan protected
area, which includes the Wadi Al-Hitan
World Heritage Site. In Vietnam, Blocks
125 & 126 are approximately S0km
offshore 1o the Nha Trang Bay Protected
Area and the Thuy Trieu Marine Protected
Area. Consistent with the Bigdiversity and .
Conservation Policy, Pharos does rot

operate in any UNESCO designated World
Hentage Site and ensures that activities

in buffer zones around these sites do

not jecpardise the Outstanding Universal

Value (as defined by UNESCQ) of these

sites.

In Vietnam, safe practices were adhsered
to ensure the surrounding environment is
protected at afi times:

The ol in water content of praduced
watar were continuously menitored

Hazardous wastes have been stnctly
managad, with hazardous wastes
manifests completed and submitted o
the relevant authorities

All waste waters and sewage generated
on the drilling rigs, supply vessels

and FPSO have been treated before
discharge

All solid wastes were coflected,
segregated and transported to shore
and sent to the appoiried contractors
who provided waste treatment system

In Egypt, similar safe practices were in
place:

For normal waste, handling and
disposal was undertaken in compliance
with applicable environmental law

and regulatory reguirements, invalving
contracting with local units.

+ Handling, transportation and disposal
of hazardous waste was undertaken as
follows:

- solid hazardous wagte Lo approved
landfili

- liquid and solid hydrocarbon wasle to
appreved landfill

- waste water o ULTRA EXTRACT
treatment factory

- water-based mud cutting waste to the
Fayum Governorate landfill.

An annual environmental monitoring was
conducted over Petrositah work locations
by IMS Company to assess compliance
with applicable environmental law and
regulation.

We are committed to developing site-
specific biodiversity action plans in the
event that cperational sites are within
sensitive areas, incorporating country-
specific strategies and action plans and
working in assoclation with external
advisers to ensure that best practice
conservation priorities are achieved.

NON-FINANCIAL KPIS (HSES) Target - 2022 2021 2020 2019
Spills to the environment 0 3 4 2
‘Number of spills reported.

Target 2021 2020 2018
Saokd nor-hazardous waste produced tonnes) Set per project 111 94 104
Per(;emtarge of non- hazardou;; wasts rcuéed or re(;x}ded Set per project 24 257 15
;\SOHG' hazar;ous wash:a {tortiies} " - _ Set p; pmfect" 48 a1 3, H 2
PE-rc;r%tage of ?‘;éardOLlS;;/ane reuS;,'d or recy;Jéd N 7 ée! (e p@‘ed 7 <1 ) “ 4 <1

OVERALL OBJECTIVE

To protect the environment and conserve Biodiversity

2021 Objectives

2021 Outcomes

2022 Objectives

Cormmission all necessary ElAs befors start
of activities or projects

Complete gap analvsis and fully imiplement
Pharos standards

Implementation of the new country entry
procedure prior 1o any acguisition.

Flaring in Vietnam s better managed with
ré-staged Compressors

Look to resume at the appropriate time
Comtinue Phase 2 TCFD implementation
Project GOO - Greening our Operations

2021

All erwironmental permits obtaned prior to
starting operational activities

Work in progress

There has been no new country ntry In

Partly achieved — cne GTC was shut down
in mid-Nov 21 this caused an increase in
daily flanng levels

Phase 2 of TCFD implementation
completed

Project GOO has been placed on hold due
to lack of funding

Chtain all necessary environmental pennits for all
driling programmes / seisniic studes

[miprove methane emissions management and
reporting

To be applied if there is a new country entry
Carry out further feasibility studies / cost benefit
analysis on a few CO_reduction technologies

Continue with TCFD allgnment - disclosure & reporting
Map out Pharos decarbonisation plan
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Society
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and human rights.

Human rights

The Group Human Rights Pclicy commits
Pharos to conducting its business

in accordance with the fundamental
principles of human rights set out in the
Universal Declaration of Hurman Rights
and reflects the terms of both the OECD
Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises
and the United Nations Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights. Together
with our Social Responsibility Policy, it
sets cut our commitments to align with
the Voluntary Principles on Security and
Human Rights. We respect indigenous
rights and cultures of the communities
where we operate.

Our human rights due diligence inciudes
processes {0 address, monitor and
communicate actual or potential impacts.

For Egypet, all Group corporate policies
including the Human Rights Palicy and
the Social Responsibility Policy, have been
translaled into Arabic for dissemination
locally.

In accordance with the UK Modern
Slavery Act, Pharos reports annually on
the steps 1t has taken to mitigate the rigk
of modern slavery ccourring in any part
of its business. The Group's Statement
on Modern Siavery is available on the
Company's website at https://www.
pharos.energy/modern-slavery-act/.

Community and social investment

Pharos remains committed to creating
value for host countries and tocal
communities as well as for staff and
shareholders. We understand that our
success is reliant upon building strong
relationships and being welcomed as a
responsible partner in our host countries
and communities. In recent years, we
have structured our social investment
programme to align more with the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(LN SDGs).

In Vietnam, in 2021, we worked closely
with the JOCs in order 1o make sure
that our social initiatives in the region

continue to have positive impacts on the
region. In addition to the training levy of
$300,000 per year in a ring-fenced fund
to support developing future Vietnamese
expertise in the industry, a further
$265,000 was invested In 12 community
projects. The JOCs actively inguired and
listened to locals to identify which areas
of the country would need the greatest
assistance in arder to ensure that we
were investing in local projects that
would bring the most sustainable positive
impact to the community, For instance.
in Q1 2021, the Group previded financial
support for autistic children at Anh Dao
Speciafised Educational Centre in Ha
Tinh province, with additional donations
towards providing therapy for children with
disabilities at An Tue Social Assistance
Centre, Thua Thien Hue province (UN
SEG 3: Good health & wellbeing and UN
SDG 4: Quality education). In Q2 2021,
the Donation Programme helped fund
the construction of a community culture
house in Hop Hung commune, Yu Ban
district, Nam Dinh province which, once
finishes, will act as a communal education
house for children in the area for years
to come (UN SDG 4 Quality education
and UN SDG @ Industry, innovation and
infrastructure).

As at 2021, Pharos has invested ¢.$1.2
bilion in the exploration, appraisal and
development of ol and gas projects
located offshore Vietnam since inception,
of which $8.2 milion was for training levy
and charity donation projects, making
Pharos one of the largest British investors
in the country.

In Egypt, under the E) Fayum and North
Beni Suef Concession Agreements, the
Company contributes a total of $200,000
split equally between the two Concessions
to support long-term training and
development of talents within the industry
{UN SDG 9: Industry, innovation and
infrastructure). Additionally, in cooperation
with the Ministry of Higher Education and
Scientific Ressarch, Petrosilah holds an
annual summer training programme for all
students applying from public and private

Our Social Responsibility and Human Rights Policies set our
requirements for social responsibility, community engagement

Egyptian universities for training in the
administrative office and the company’s
fields, of which they can obtain a training
certificate from the company (UN SDG 4:
Quality education.

Social projects like these have been part
of Pharos since inception, and we have
always sought to Invest sustainably so
that the initiatives that we helped set up,
stay in place, and have lasting impacts for
marny generations.

Local capacity

We support local capacity building during
the exploration or development phases of
a project to ensure a positive imprint and
legacy. All our licence agreements include
a high degree of local content, which
commits us to hire locally where possible
and provide training to develop new
skills. Cur policy commits us to provide
meaningful opportunities for technical co-
operation, training and capacity building
within any host country in which we
operate,

Community projects in Vietnam
2021 via the HLHVJOC Donation
Programme

While the yearly contributions from
HLHVJOC Foreign Partners for community
and social projects are set at $200,000,
histoncally, HLHVJGC charitable
donations have been in excess of this. The
additional contributions were raised by
staff through fundraising event and from
various donations by expat members,
anytime during the year when there are
unforeseen typhoons or national disasters
that cause widespread devastation, such
as flooding and landslides destroying
infrastructure, houses, livestock, and
crops. Additionally, staff donations are
matched by HLHVJOC and then added to
the total budget.

We ook to replicate this in the future with
our community and sacial investment
programmes in Egypt and London.
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY - CONTINUED

UN SDG 1 - NO POVERTY

End poverty in all its farms everywhers

* Financial support for low-income households in Tran Hung Dao commune.
Ha Nam province and Son Binh commung, Ha Tinh province in 2021 Lunar
New Year

* Financial support for low-income households in Doan Ket commune, Bu
Dang district, Binh Phuoc province on 2021 Lunar New Year

= Financial support the House of Grace Orphanage (Héng An House) in Thu
Dugc city, Ho Chi Minh city, Viet Nam

* Financial support to green summer volunteers to build roads for the low-
incorme community in Dong Thap provinge

» Financial support towards children in areas hit hardest by the COVID-19
pandemic

» Financial support to Agent Orange victims in the central provinces in Quang
Tri and Thai Binh province

GODOHEALTH

e e UN SDG 3 - GOOD HEALTH & WELL-BEING
e

* Financial support for Tran Hai Nam, our Vietnamese employee, and his
mother for cancer treatment

+ Financial support the COVID-19 epidemic prevention fund through the
HLHY JOCs Labor Unicn

* Funding to support the Government'’s COVID-18 Vaccine Fund through
PVEP

Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for all
at alt ages

UN SDG 4 - QUALITY EDUCATION

Ensure inclusive and equitable guality education and
promote lifelong learning cpportunities for all

+ Financial support to Autistic Children at Anh Dac Specialised Educational
Center — Ha Tinh Province

» Financial support to therapy for children with disatilities at An Tue Social
Assistance Center — Thua Thien Hue province.

* Financial support construction funding community egucation culture house
in Hop Hung commune, Vu Ban district, Nam Dinh province

$265,000 Tta

Overall objective
To consult with and contribute INto our host communities

2021 Objectives 2021 Outcomes

SOCIETY CASE STUDY

Engaging with host
communities

| VIETNAM

$30,400

Charitable donaticon from the HLHVJOCs
to autistic children at Anh Dao
Specialised Educational Centre in Ha
Tinh province, with additional $30,400
donaticns towards providing therapy

for children with disabilities at An Tue
Social Assistance Centre, Thua Thien
Hue province.

$100,000

Charitable donation to fund the
construction of a community culture
house in Hop Hung commune, Vu Ban
district, Nam Dinh province which,
cnce finishes, will act as a communal
education house for children in the area
for years to come.

$25,400

In financial support for the COVID-19
pandemic prevention fund through

the HLHVJOCs' Labour Union and the
Government's COVID-18 Vaccine Fund
through PVER

| EGYPT

In cocperation with the Ministry of Higher
Education and Scientific Research,
Petrosilah holds an annual summer
training programme for alt students
applying from public and private
Egyptian universities for training in the
administrative office and the company's
fields, of which they can obtain a training
certificate from the company.

2022 Objectives

Country managers to mplement recommendations from

. ‘ ‘ On target
human right due dihgence exercise prior to any operation K

Honour social obligations under production shianng

agreements On target

Review and implement recommendation from human rights
due dilgence report for lsrael

Continuation of the social investiment programme In
Vigtnam, with further algnment to UN SDGs

Improvernent in social investment programmes 1n
Egypt and London
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Corporate Responsibility
Non-Financial Indicators

2021 2020 2018
Hours worked JmJJhon) 3.1 2.97 2.35
Lost Time ijgnj F requency Rate (number of lost tire wjuries pe_r l;ﬂ\ﬂ\f;ﬂ_n{all fours} - o 0.34 o
Fatal Accident Frequency Rate (number of fatal ac Cldénis per hundred million man- hmqu} 7 - 0 ) (;4_ o O
Fatal Accidents T o 1 0
-TE_)T;| hgc_or_da;bfe InjLiry Rate (numbér ;)f7FECOIdab|P inj une% per mllllon hours worked) . - 0 O 34 o 0.42
Total GHG enissions (100, €) by equity' - 120,628 1242187 147478
SCODL 1 total C‘Hé-er_ngss_}orﬂ_(t_C(_) &) by equty T o 120,561 124 1&1 M{ﬁ){‘
Scope 2 total GHG emissions (tCO ) by equny o - o 67 - 67‘ o _72‘
Scope 3 total W—(G ;er;n;s;oﬁbr({co 8) by equuty - o Notimieasured -
GHG mren_sut_y ID)/ produc,norr {tonnes i CO e per 1.000 tonnes of o predmed by equity share) 3161 o760 287+
Total hydroc_dfbone, flared (Tonnes of hydrocdrboms flared for ever;f %EJOio tonnes of production on 7 ;3 39 o 38;
a gross bac‘,ls)
Emergy use (grld EICCTFI{ ny kW T o 311,69_2- - 209,942 o 535873
I?Eiv\?l:?rgy consurnption {from fuel rombus‘[mn olher ope_*rz;t\;)rw_s and purchased e\ecrrlmty) - .2-85_,942 256.5;1;3 266,884
Non- ha.zarddu% \;Ja_StEE produced ftonnes) 7 7 ) . 111 Qd 104
Havzardous waste produced ftlonnes) - - - ) 7 48 41 3‘112;
Percentagc 1O ha/ardous waste recy(led T S o -24 25 15.65
Percentage hazardous \;wi_'%t_e_re-cycled - o N <1 . 4 7 5‘12
Spills to the enwronmén} 7(;1607I|tres.) - o 7 3 o 4 2
Qilin produced water content (v {Vietnarm B|OC|r<‘% 16 1/9-2) - - Zé - 29 - 28
Freshwater use (cubic metres) - . " 58,5é5 102,820 202,4'55
HSES I’e(Jl_ﬂR_tC:W non-compliance o - o - 0 . 7C7) 7 ”O:
Comm{ualt;r ;n\;e;,tmem spend (3} T T o ) -265,000 25‘;1_91 24'373}@
CrlomimiLn;it; {IIQE$TiT1eI1t spend ($i T ST S o _245,191 - _255?3"79 209.408

Note 1. Pharos nonmalised emissions in 2021 include emissions frorm venting in Egypt, whilst they were not included i 2019 and 2020.

Note ?: Pharos egurty in Vietnam TGT field changed from 30.04 % in 2619 to 29.7 % in 2020. The equity variation 1s not signiicant compared to Pharos
fotal emissions, and therefore data of 2019 and 2020 provide a meanngfui comparison.

Note 3: In line witly the UK government's Streamiined Enetgy and Carbon Reparting (STCR) policy, energy consumpstion rom fuet cormbustion

Note 4: During 2019, n Egypt, many open dran pits were cleaned and backfiled, resulting m the disposal of a significant volume of hydrocarbon
contaminated soil,

Note 5: Although three regulatory non-compliances were reported in our Egyptian assels n 2014, these occurred in January, pror to the completion of our
acquisition,

Note 6: Linder Section 385(2) of the Comparies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations. 2013 and in line with the requirements

of the Clirmate Change Act (2008), carbon reporting for UK-isled companies in directors’ annual reports is imandatory for reports published after 30th
September 2013, The regulations cover the six Kyoto Protocel GHG cited in Section 92 of the Climate Change Act: carbon dioxide {CO ). methane (CH ).
nitreus oxide (NG, hydrofluerocarbons {HFC), perfiucrocarbons IPFC) and sulphur hexafluoride (SFG), The Comipanies Act 2006 regulation does not state
which methodology a company has to use but requires that this methodoelogy is clearly disclosed.

Approval of the Strategic Report

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2022 and is signed on its behalf by
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Managing Director
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CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Focus on delivering
full potential

JOHN MARTIN
Non-Exgcutive Chalr

s

Pharos Energy Annual Repornt and Accounts 2021

Dear shareholders

2021 was a translormative year for
Pharos Energy. In the first half of 2021
we completed the equity placing,
subscription and retail offer to raise
finance for the Ef Fayum waterfiood
orogramme, followed i1 the second

half of the year by the restructuring of
the organisation due to the industry
downturn. This was a necessary action
1o reposition the business on a path to
growth with careful cost reduction and
capital allecation in the best interests of
all stakeholders. The restructuring realised
significant efficiencies and reductions 1n
overheads, allowing the Group 1o meet
future challenges with a leansr structure.

There has been significant progress this
year in bath Egypt and Vietnam: Pharos
has successiully managed the impacts of
the giobal COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant oil price crash and is creating the
right opportunities to thrive n the future.

In particular, 2021 saw the successiul
conclusion of the process 10 seek

a pariner for our Egyptian assets.

In December 2021, the Company
announced that shareholders had
approved the farm-out of 55% of the
Group's opsrated intgrest n each of our
Egyptian Concessions, E! Fayum and
North Beni Suef, to IPR, an integrated
energy services group with extensive
experience in Egypt. Following compistion
of the farm-out and the transfer of
operatorship, IPR is set to embark on

a multi-year invesiment waterflood and
drilling campaign on Bl Fayum. As part
of the transaction, IPR will fund Pharos's
retained 45% share of the costs of the
future work programme on the Egyphan
assets to a maxmum of $33.425m {to be
adjusted for working capital and interim
penod adjustments from the efiective
sconomic date aof 1 July 2020}, This is

in addition to the deposit at signng of
the farm-out agreements of US$2 million
and receipt of a further US$3 million in
cash on completion, Thig investment
programme should result in an ncrease
in production on El Fayum and wiff

also fulfil work commitments under the
CONCESSIoNS,

In March 2021, the Cornpany announced
that we had reached agreement with
EGPC, the industry regulator and

state oil company in Egypt, to various
amendments to the El Fayum Concession
tknown collectively as “The Third
Arnendment”y the most important effect
of which was an improvement in the fiscal
terms backdated to Novermber 2020.

The improved terms were subjecied 1o
parliamentary and presidential approval,
which were obtaned in January 2022,

As a result of this Third Amendment,
Contractor share of revenues increased
by 20%, from ¢.42% to ¢b0% whilst in full
cost recovery mode.

In Vigtnam, we were pleased to announce
inJuly 2021 the compietion of the 30
seismic programme an the western part
of Block 125 in the Phu Khanh Basin,
and in Septernber 2021 the Government
approval for a 2-year extension to the
initial exploration period of the Black

125 & 126 P3C. There s a commitment
to drill one well on thess Blocks within
this period and we will look to bring in

a partnar pre-drill following processing
and interpretation of the newly acguires
seismic data. The gathered 30D data will
be critical to attracting an investment
partner for any subsequent dnilling phase,
and exposure to acreage with such
matetial potential will offer significant
growth opportunity for the future. On
TGT, the TGT four-well well intervention
and development drilling programme
commenced in July 2021. Phase 1 of the
campaign was successfully completed in
November 2021, ahead of schedule and
¢.$20 miillion below the JV gross budget.
Two further TGT wetls are planned to be
arilled in 2022, plus one well on CNV.
The JOC s now progressing work on
submitting licence extension requests for
both TGT & CNV, with a Revised Full Field
Development Plan for both fields to be
submitted by G4 2022,
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The Beard approved a restructure of

the head office organisation, realising
significant efficiencies and reductions In
the overhead costs of the company and
allowing the Company to meet future
challenges with a leaner structure. In July
2021 we also completed the refinancing
of the Group's RBL facility secured by the
producing assets in Vietnam, providing
access to a committed $100m facility
with a further $50m is available on an
uncommitted accordion basis. The
refinancing also extended the tenor of
the facility by 22 months, providing useful
funding flexibility.

Pharos continues to manage its
operations carefully in light of the
COVID-19 pandemic and associated legal
and regulatory restrictions and public
heatth guidance. The Group is adhering
closely to applicable procedures, rules
and requirements within all host countries,

Throughout the year, the Board devoted
considerable time 1o supporting and
challenging the executive team In
assessing farm-down opportunities,
portfolio management and capital
allocation. The Board received regular
detaded updates from the executive team
and other key members of staff and time
was allocated 1o strategic, operational,
E£SG and corporate matters. In pursuit

of the best interests of shareholders,

the Non-Executive Directors (*“NEDs™)
brought constructive challenge to the
execuitves’ proposals and direction,
affering direction and support. Key areas
of focus for the NED's discussions in 2021
were overseeing the reorganisation of the
head office, farm out of Egypt, succession
planning, ESG, effective implemantation
of Group strategy and oversight of
operational, financial performance and
KPls.

Safety has remained a top priority for the
Group. In 2021, we delivered an excelient
performance from a health and safsty
perspective. There were zero Lost Time
Injuries (LTIs} across all Group operations
throughout the year.

The ESG Committee continues to focus
on its stakeholders’ health and safety
during the COVID-19 pandemic. The
development of ESG KPls including
climate change and health and safety
metrics demonstrate that the Group
takes its responsibilities in this area very
seriously. Further focus has been around
approval and oversight of the work on
Phase of 2 of TCFD, ongoing social
project investments in Vietnam and a
review and discussion on ESG practices
across industry peers and CO, reduction
options for Pharos.

During 2021 the Nominations Committee
{see the report on pages 95 to 96)
focused on reviewing our Board
composition, succession planning for key
roles at Exacutive level, a review of annual
Board evaluation. and annual Director
re-appointments. The Board ensured full
compliance with the 2018 Corporate
Governance Code.

| arm delighted that we were able to fill the
position of Chief Financiatl Cfficer (*CFO™)
with an internal candidate - Sue Rivett,
who took on the role from 1 July 2021
and joined the Board at that time. Further
changes to the Board were discussed
towards the end of 2021, and these were
finalised and announced on 13 January
2022 to take effect when the farm-out
transaction with IPR is completed. On
completion of that transaction, Jann
Brown will agssume the role of Chief
Executive Officer ("CED") as one of two
Executive Dirsctors alongside CFO Sue
Rivett, Jann has been a member of the
Board since 2017 and was formerly
Managing Director and CFO. Also on
completion, Ed Story will step down

from the Board as CEOQ, after leading

the Company for over 20 years since

its admigsion to the main market of the
London Stock Exchange in 1997, Ed

will rermnain as President of the Vietnam
business, which provides both cash flow
and growth potential 1o the Group. In
addition, as part of the post transaction
restructuring, Dr Mike Watts will step
down from the Board on completion.
Mike has been actively invelved with the
Company for over 25 years, since its pre-
IPO inception, and has been instrumental
in building its international portfolio during
this period including its current projects
in Vietnam and Egypt. | thank Mike for his
strong contribution.

Finally, in support of the succession policy
to slim down the Board and having served
as Non-Executive Director, Senior Non-
Executive Director and Deputy Chairman
in his nearly 8 years on the Board, Rob
Gray has indicated that he will not be
putting his name forward for re-election
as a Director at the AGM in May 2022.
We thank Rob for all his commitment and
support over the years.

Looking zhead to 2022 the result of these
changes will be to reduce the size of the
Board from nine Directors (four Executives
and five NEDs) to six {two Executives

and four NEDs), which will be more
appropriate 1o the size and shape of the
Company.

The Executive Directors at the start of
the year continued 1o take a reduction of
35% of their salaries for the first quarter
and then further reduced this by another
15% (to a total reduction of 50%) from

1 Apnl 2021 for the Executive Diractors

in office at that date. These reductions
were in place for the remainder of the
year, The Chairman, who had reduced
his fee by 25% on assuming the rcle in
March 2020, also took an additional 25%
reduction along with the other Mon-
Executive Directors as from 1 May 2020.
which reductions continued throughout
the full year 2021. The Executive Directors
volunteered to reduce significantly their
LTIP award for 2021, the second year of
areduced award. The policy limit is 200%
of salary but existing Executive Directors
received an award in 2021 equivalent to
29% of contractual entitlement. whilsi
Sue Rivett, as the new CFO, received an
award of 35% of contractual entitlement.
Additionally, the bonus award for 2021
was voluntarily reduced by 20% from
72.5% 10 58% for the Executive Directors.
As set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report from pages 102 1o 116, an
updated Remuneration structure has been
put in place effective upon completion

of the transaction with IPR to reflect the
scale of the business.

Finally, I lock forward tc continuing to
work closely with the Beard and senior
management as we focus on delivering
the full potential of the Company's
cpportunities and a return to growth built
on alf of the work that has been done to
refresh the Company, its governance and
its Board. A pricrity for 2022 will be to
ensure a smooth transition of operatorship
in Egypt to IPR. Locking ahead, we
intend to focus on the Company's
existing asset portfolio, and to continue
to carefully rnanage the cost base and
capital structure to balance the need for
efficiency in the short term with the need
for investment in the long term. t am
excited about the prospects for Pharos
Energy and look forward to the year
ahead.

JOHN MARTIN
Nen-Executive Chair
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CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANGE - CONTINUED

Board Members

John Martin*

Dr Mike Watts

Lisa Mitchell *

Non-Executive Chair and Chair of
Nominations Committee and ESG
Committee

Ed Story

Managing Director and ESG Committee
member (retiring from Board upon
completion of the IPR transaction)

Rob Gray*

Non-Executive Direcior, Chair of Audit and
Risk Cammittee, Nominations Committee
member and ESG Committee member

Marianne Daryabegui*

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Nominations Committee member
and ESG Committee member (retiring
from Board upon completion of IPR
transaction)

Jann Brown

Managing Director {also CFC until 3¢
June 2021} and ESG Committee member
{Appointed as CEO upon completion of
the IPR transaction)

Deputy Chair, Non-Executive Director and
Senior Independent Director, Audit and
Risk Committee member, Remuneration
Committee member, Nominations
Committee member and ESG Committee
member (retinng from Beard at the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM)

Geoffrey Green”

Non-Executive Director, Chair of
Remuneration Committes, Nominations
Committee member, Audit and Risk
Committee member and ESG Committes

Non-Executive Director, Audit and Risk
Committee member, Remuneration
Committee member, Nominations
Committee member and ESG Committes
rmember

mernber

* Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Diversity of skills, backgrounds and experience

The Board places importance on the diversity of approach, experience, knowledge, skills, and professional, educational and cultural
backgrounds. This diversity has brought an international and global outlook which has been particularly beneficial to the Board's
discussions about the strategic positioning of its current and new business ventures.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a Board of nine Directors.

Meeting attendance
During each Direcior’s respective term of office during 2020

Frwironmental.

Board meeting Audit and Risk Remunerahon Norminatians Social and

{scheduleg Board meating Cammittec Comntlee Committee Governance

Director guarterly) {addiional) meeling meeling mgeting Cammittee meeting
John Martin +es ++++ b s +4+ v
Ed Story 444 PO et * * S
Jann Brown +444 +#+.;. - * . it
Dr Mike Watts +++4 +#++ i * . 44
Sue Avett Goposies '
Rob Gray +++4 +#++ 4 +++ +++ A
Geoffrey Green +4++4 TS ettt i 44 e+ +++
Lisa Mitchell 44 _+-;++ 4+ * ++ PN
Marianne Daryabegui +++4 +H#++ 4+t +++ 7 +++ 444

+ Attended as member
* Attended as invitee
# Not attended

In addition to the four scheduled quarterly meetings, the Board met In 2021 on an additional four occasions ¢ deal with specific

business matters which required Board approval. One of the additional mestings included a Board strategy meeting in October 2021,
which was fully attended.

Notes:
{1) Sue Rivett was invited to attend two Board meetings prior Lo her appomtment on 1 July 2021,

Following the Government guidance and the Company's health and safety considerations in response to the COVID-12 pandemic, it was
not possible for Directors to attend the 2021 AGM in person — this meeting was attended by the Chair and another Pharos designated
shareholder representative present in order to meet the meeting quorum reguirements.
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Management

+ Disclosure
* Treasury
* Bid Defence

y 4
~

Gaovernance Repont

{

fotllowing key committees:

Board of Directors

{

Management Committees Executive leadership team

Further support the Board and comprise the

Responsible for day-to-day management of our
business and operations and for meonitoring detailed
performance of alf aspects of our business.

I

|
d

l

Audit and Risk Committee

L Mitchell (Chair)
R Gray*

M Daryabegui

Geoffrey Green

Responsible for the
integrity of the Financial
Statements and narrative
reporting, including annual
and half year reports.

Principal Committees of the Board

Remuneration Committee

G Green (Chair}
M Daryabegui
R Gray”

Responsible for the
design, development and
implementation of the
Company's remuneration
policy.

Nominations Committee

J Martin {Chair}
E Story™

R Gray”

M Daryabegui

L Mitchell

G Green

Responsible for ensuring
the leadership needs

of the Company are
sufficiently appropriate to
ensure continued ability to
compete effectively in the
marketplace.

' Retiring from Board and all Board committees with effect from the conclusion of the 2022 AGM

** Retiring from Board and all Board committees upon completion of IPR transaction.

Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee

J Martin (Chair)
R Gray*

E Story*™

M Watts™*

J Brown

M Daryabegui
L Mitchell

G Green

S Rivett

Responsible for defining
the Group's strategy
related to ESG matters,
review of the Group's ESG
policies, programmes

and initiatives and, more
generally, oversight of the
Group’s management of
ESG matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Experienced leaders
guiding our future
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1: John Martin

Non-Executive Chair
Appointed: QOctober 2019

John has more than 30 years' experience in international banking in the ol and gas industry and was a Senicr Managing Director in the
Oil and Gas team at Standard Chartered Bank. Prior 16 joining Standard Chartered in 2007, John worked for ABN Amro for 26 vears,
specialising in the energy sector. John has served as the Senior Vice President of the World Petroleun Council, and as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Rockhopper Exploration plo, He was previously Chairman of Falkland Gil and Gas Limited, an Independent
Non-Exacutive Director on the board of Bowleven plc and, an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committes of
Total E&P UK Limited.

2: Ed Story

President and Chief Executive Officer
Appointed: April 1997 {retiring as Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board upon completion of IPR transaction)

Ed was a faunding Director of the Group. Under his leadership. the Groug acquited its principal assets in Vietnam and progressed the
assets from initial exploration through to being one of the largest producing fields in Vietram.

Ed has over 50 years' experience in the ol and gas industry, beginning with various roles at Exxon Corporation, including seven years
resident in the Far East. He was formerly the Vice President and CFQO of The Superior Gil Company, a co-founder and Vice Chairman

of Conguest Exploration Company and a co-founder and President of Snyder Gil Corporation’s international subsidiary, which merged
its Australian-cantrolled entity, Command Petroleurn, into Cairn Energy. Ed was a Non-Executive Director of Cairn Energy plc unhl 2008
and Cairn India Limited until 2017. Ed s currently a Non-Executive Director of Vedanta Resources plc and a founder and member of the
Cleveland Clinic international Leadership Board.

3: Jann Brown

Managing Director
Appointed: November 2017 {(Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer November 2017 — July 2021, Managing Director from July
2021 — present; and Chief Executive Officer upon completion of IPR transaction)

Jann served as co-head of the Company’s Business Development group between February 2017 and November 2017 before her
appeintment to the Board. Jann currently serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committee of Troy
Income and Growth Trust plc and of the Scottish Ballet. She is also an Independent Non-Executive Direstor of BHI Magnesita N.V. Jann
previously served as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committee of John Wood Group P.L.C, and was
formerly the Managing Director, Chief Financial Cfficer and Executive Director of Cairn Energy PLC (now Capricorn Energy PLC} where
she had responsibility for project managing Cairn India Limited's inftial public offering. Jann also previously served as the Joint Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer at Magna Energy Limited, of which she was also co-founder and is a past president of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.

4: Dr Mike Watts

Managing Director
Appointed: November 2017 {retinng as member of Board post completion of IPR transaction)

Mike servad as co-head of the Company's Business Development group between February 2017 and November 2017, and as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Board batween August 2009 and January 2017. He was formerly the Deputy Chief Executive
of Cairn Energy PLC {now Capricorn Energy PLC) and the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of the Amsterdam listed
Holland Sea Search Holding NV. Mike joined Royal Dutch Shell in 1980 and has nearly 40 years of ail industry experience. He has been
associated with over 50 oil and gas discoveries. Mike was also the architect of the South Asia strategy at Holland Sea Search and

Cairn, which led to the creation of a >200,000 boepd business. Mike has held senior technical and managemant roles with Premier Oll,
Burmah and Shell.

5: Sue Rivett

Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: July 2021

Sue Rivett, formerly Group Head of Finance and UK General Manager, has been with the Company for over six years. Prior to joining
Pharos, Sue held senior finarce roles with Conoco, ARCO British (subsidiary of Atlantic Richfield Company), JKX Oil & Gas plc and
Seven Energy. Sue's various roles have included heading up full FTSE finance functicns including finance, taxation, treasury, IT, corporate
planning and Company Secretary. She was Head of ARCO British trading arm'’s back office and mid office and has considerable joint
venture experience and numeraus years M&A experience. Sue is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
("FCMA") with international experience and over 38 years in the energy business.
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6: Rob Gray

Deputy Chair, Non-Executive Director and Senior Independent Director
Appointed: December 2013 {retiring May 2022 on conclusion of the 2022 AGM}

Rob has been an adviser 1o the natural resources sector for more than 30 vears. Rob qualified as a solicitor in 1981 at Allen & Cvery
and then went on to help establish James Capel & Co. Petroleum Services, a successful advisory and Mergers & Acquisitions practice.
Rob’s experience includes 13 years at Deutsche Bank where he was latterly a Senior Advisor having been Chairman of UK Investment
Barking for five years and formerly Giobal Head of Natural Resources. Rob was previously a Director and Head of the Natural Resource
Group at Robert Fleming & Co. Ltd. for four years, a group which he established. Between 2000 and 2010, Rob was an Advisory Board
Member for Heerema Marine Contractors. Rob was a co-founder of RegEnersys, a natural resources investrment entity and is currently
the principal of ReVysion LLP In 2018 Rob was appointed an adviser to the T2 Energy Transition Fund of Tikehau Capital.

7: Marianne Daryabegui

Non-Executive Director
Appointed: March 2019

Marianne is currently the Chief Financial Officer of Lithium de France, a renewable company focused on geothermal energy and

Ithium extraction. She was Head of Natural Resources at BNP Paribas and then Managing Director at Natixis in the Erergy sector.

She has extensive experience in corporate transactions and capital markets and has advised majors, independent E&Ps and national

oll companies. Prior to leading the Qi and Gas Corporate Finance Tearr in 2006 at BNP Paribas, Marnanne headed the Commodity
Structure Finance team for the Middle East and Africa. Befora jcining the banking sector Marianne spent eight years at TOTAL, Marianne
has a Master's degree in Finance and Capital Markets from Sciences Po University, Parls and a Masters in Tax and Corporate Law.

8: Lisa Mitchell

Non-Executive Director
Appointed: April 2020

Lisa is currently the Chicf Financial Officer of Orca Energy Group Inc. a TSX-V listed company, and also serves as a Non-Executive
Director of Wiluna Mining Carporation Limited, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (*ASX"). Lisa is an experienced
CFO with over 25 years’ intérnational experience, across the oil and gas, mining and the pharmaceutical industries, She was most
recently CFO of San Leon Energy plc and was previously CFO and Executive Directer of Lekoll Limited, the Atncan-focused ol and gas
exploration and production company with interests in Nigeria, Prior 1o this, Lisa was CFO and Executive Director at Ophir Energy plc,
formerly a FTSE 250 company where she was responsible for contributing to the overall business strategy of Ophir; leading the finance
function including all financial, taxation, treasury and funding requirements and investor relations. Lisa’s previous roles include CSL
Limited, and Mobil Qil Australia. Lisa i1s a Certified Practicing Accountant (FCPA Australia) and holds a Bachelor of Economics {(major

in Accounting] from La Trobe University, Melbourne and a Graduate Diploma in Applied Corporate Governance from the Governance
Institute of Australia.

9: Geoffrey Green

Non-Executive Director
Appointed: May 2020

Geoffrey has many years of legal and commercial experience in advising UK listed companies on corporate governance, mergers and
acquisitions and corporate finance. He retired as a partner of Ashurst LLP, & major international law firm, in 2013 after 30 years as a
partner including 10 years of service as the firm’s elected senior partner and chair of its managament board. He then served as head
of Ashurst's Asia practice from 200@ to 2013, based in Bong Kong, and was responsible for leading the firm's strategy and business
development throughout the Asia region. Until 31 December 2020 Geoffrey was the Non-Executive chair of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel, one of the main subsidiary bodies of the Financial Reporting Council, and is currently a mernber of the FRC's Conduct
Committee. He is also a Non- Executive director of a Hong Kong based private equity fund and was until recently a Non-Executive
director of Vedanta Resources plc, formerly a FTSE 250 natural resources company, where he was also chair of the Remuneration
Committes. He has a degree in Law from Cambridge University and qualified as a solicitor at Ashurst LLF.and investor relations.
Lisa's previous roles include CSL Limited, and Mobil Qit Australia. Lisa is a Certified Practicing Accountant (FCPA Australia) and holds
a Bachelor of Economics {major in Accounting) from La Trobe University, Melbourne and a Graduate Diploma in Applied Corporate
Governance from the Governance Institute of Australia.

SS9 Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021



S e Governance Report [ AN LS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance

report

2021 statement of compliance with
the 2018 Code

We are committed to the highest
standards ot corporate governance and
to compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 which sets out
the principles that emphasise the value of
goad corporate governance to long-term
sustainabie success, The Company was
in full compliance with the provisions of
the 2018 Code throughout the year.

The section below demonstrates our
application of the Principles of the 2018
Code.

Board Leadership and Company
Purpose

Purpose and Culture

It has been important to the Board

to preserve and enhance a corporate
culture of heonesty, fairness, transparency,
engagement and respect. The Board
schedule format has been adjusted to
give space for increased engagement
amongst the NEDs, including the
Senior Independent Director and the
Chalr, without the presence of the
Executive Directors, and 10 provide
further cppertunity to raise and discuss
concerns. Our purpose is ta continue
to provide energy for communities
around the world and fuel their lives and
businesses.

Stakeholder engagement

+ Colleague engagement

The Board understand that the strategy
and long-term success of the Group

is dependent on a strong culture and
sst of valuss that is clear and guide
everything we do. Our approach

is driven by the strength, skills and
imagtation of our people, and our
shared purpose to make a positive
impact in everything we do. The way
we work and do business is based on
five guiding principles which we ¢all
the Pharos Way: Safety & Care, Energy
& Challenge, Openness & Integrity,
Empowerment & Accountability,

and Pragmatism & Focus. They are
reinforced by our Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics. The Board

has responsibility for assessing and

monitoring the culture of the Group and
ansuring that the Group's policies and
practices are aligned with this. There
are a number of ways in which the
Board monitor and assess the culture,
which is detailed in cur colleague
engagements below.

The Board placed great importance
on the level of engagement with senicr
management and other collaaguss,
The Board remains passionate about
workforce engagement and fostering
a genuine dialogue between the
Company and staff. Throughout

the year, we ran a dedicated

Monday weekly meeting to ensure

all colleagues were continuously
informed about important busingss
developrnents in the Company and
have channels through which they
can ask guestions and provide input.
Additionally, there was increased use
of video camera during virtual calls to
maintain visibilly and connection. The
recent reorganisation of the Group
has instituted a flatter organisational
structure, allowing for shorter lines

of management and more direct,
accessible channels of communication
with leadership. During the year, the
designed Non-Executive Director
responsible for workforce engagement
carried out town hall meetings with
staff in the UK, Egypt and Vietnam
offices, during which everyone could
share therr feedback and views about
the Company. Outcomes of these
meetings were then communicated
back to the Board.

The Executive Directors received
regular updates on colleague
engagement to understand any
complaints or troubles from the
changing work envircnment. Faollowing
feedback from various anonymous
staff surveys, the Executive Directors
organised an off-site away day for the
London team to better understand
employees’ warking preferences and
to explore any concerns arising from
working from home in the past year. Ed
Story, who was CEO at the time, could
not travel to the UK due to COVID-18
travel restrictions, but joined the off-site
meeting virually via Microsoft Teams

in order to participate in the session
with the rest of the team. Ed also used
the opportunity to communicate the

Company’s long-term strategy going
forward, which was an addtional area
of feedback from the anonymous
surveys,

In another survay, colleagues gave
views on future working patterns,
Regardless of location, there was

a clear preference for permanently
blending office with home working

in the future. This has informed the
development of our balanced working
programime and led to our rental of a
small serviced office space in central
London, which seeks to address UK
employees’ working needs and provide
greater flexitility in how and from where
those employess want to work after
removal or relaxation of travel and
public gathering restrictions introduced
in response to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Additionally, there has been other forms
of engagaement including extending
participation in the Company's share
schemes and other feedback channels,
including through the Group's
Whistleblowing Pailicy and access to a
dedicated, ancnymous and confidential
ethics hotline.

Shareholder engagement

The Board as a whole has responsibility
for ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue
with sharehclders takes place. The
Executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring that effective communication
is maintained with key stakeholders
and partners, including an appropriate
level of contact with major shareholders
and ensuring that their views are
communicated to the Board. The Chief
Financial Officer has managament
responsibility for investor relations.

To maintain a clear understanding of
the views of shareholders, all Directors
receive a quarterly investor relations
report, which ncludes market updates,
brokerage and communications
reports, share register and share
performance analysis and comments
and notes from research analysts and
proxy agencies.

Pharcs had an open and active
dialogue with Its instituticnal, private
and retail shareholders throughout
the year. The Company uses its online
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presence to post and disseminate
key information promptly to a wide
audience. The Company's website 1S
regularty used by shareholders and
stakehaolders for email communication
with management. The official Twitter
and Linkedin accounts of Pharos
continue to be used actively. The
Company uses a PR agency to provide
assistance in the dissemination of
information to shareholders and the
general public and alse to solicit active
feedback as to the effectiveness of
such efforts, Additionally, in 2021,

for the first time ever, the Company
embedded an analyst research feed
on 1o its corporate website at https://
www.pharos.energy/investors/
analyst-research/. This was to allow
a wider audience of private and retail
shareholder free access to analyst
research notes about the Company.
Also in 2021, the Company engaged
with an online platform Investor Meet
Company to host an online meeting
with a Q8A session in April to allow
the wider public a free platform

to raise quastions directly o the
Executive Diractors. During the year,
the Executive Directors and investor
relations colleagues met and engaged
with 29 different institutions and family
offices in over 40 meetings.

The NEDs are each responsible for
taking sufficient steps to understand
shareholder views, including any
Issues or concerns. This includes
being available to major institutional
shareholders and responding to
requests for additional communication
with the Charr, Senior Independent
Director or other NEDs. The delegated
role of the Senior Independent Director
includes being avarlable (o sharehclders
if they have concerng which cannot be
fully or appropriately addressed by the
Chair or the Executive Directors.

Additionally, both before and after
the formal proceedings of each
AGM, and subject to travel or public
gathermg restnctions in response to
the COVID-12 pandemic, all Directors
and senuar management, including
the Chairs of the Audit and Risk,
Remunsration and Nominatons
Committees, make themselves
avallable to answer sharehalder
questions and respond to any specific
queries,

* | ocal communities, governments
and employees

Our goal is to have a responsible and
positive presence in the regions in
which we operate, resulting in value
for host countries, focal communitias,
employees, cantractors, suppliers and
shareholders, and we engage with
thern on a regular basis. Additionally,
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the requirements in the Modern Slavery
Act are dealt with through our due
dihgence and on boarding processes
with suppliers,

In Vietnarn, commitment to local
sourcing, employment, traming

and industry capacity building has
continued with a training levy of
$300,000 per year in a ring-fenced
fund to support developing future
Vietnamese expertise in the industry. In
Egvpt, under the El Fayum and North
Beni Suef Concession Agreements,
the Contractor contributes a total

of $200,000 per year split equally
between the two Concessions to
support iraining and development in
industry.

In recent years, we have structured

our social nvestment programme o
align more with the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN
SDGs). In Vietnam, in 2021, in addition
to the training levy mentioned above,

a further $265,000 was invested in

12 community projects. The JOCs
actively iInquired and fistered to locals
to find out which areas of the country
would need the greatest assistance in
order 1o ensure that we were Investing
in local projects that would bring the
most sustainable positive impact to the
cemmunity. For instance, in Q1 2021,
the Group provided financial support for
autistic children at Anh Dao Specalised
Educational Centre in Ha Tinh province,
with additional donations towards
providing therapy for children with
disabilities at An Tue Sccial Assistance
Centre, Thua Thien Hue province (UN
SDG 3: Good health & wellbeing and
UN SDG 4: Quality education}. in Q2
2021, the Donation Programme helped
fund the construction of & community
culture house in Hop Hung commune,
VU Ban distnict, Nam Dinh province
which, once finishes, will act as a
communal education house for children
" the area for years to come (UN SDG
4 Quality education and UN SDG 8:
Industry, mnavaton and infrastructure).

For full details of all the projects the
JOCs have invested in 2021, please
see our Corporate Responsibility report
on pages 58 to 78.

Conflicts of interests & Ethics hotline

Our Whistleblowing Policy and
associated proceduras ensurs that
employees are protected from possible
reprisals when raising concerns in good
faith. In addition to internal reporting
channels, we have a dedicated,
anonymous and conhdential ethics
hotline suppoerted by EthicsPoint with
numbers displayed in local offices
avatlable 24 hours a day all year roung.
Zero calls were made to the EthicsPoint
hotling in 2021,

Division of Roles & Responsibilities
Responsibilities of the Board

The statutory duty of the Directors is (o
act in what they consider to be in the
best interests of the Company and, as

a unitary Board, they are responsible for
the long-term success of the Company.
The Board determines and develops the
strategy for the business and provides

it with the necessary entrepreneurial
leadership. It ensures the Company is
adeqguately resourced to meet its strategic
objectives and can meset its obhgations

to its stakeholders, The Board sets the
values, standards and controls necessary
for risk to be effectivaly assessead and
managed. Some of its responsibilities
have been delegated to committees

of the Board, including the Audit and
Risk, Remuneration and Nominations
Committess.

The roles of the Chair and Chief
Executive Officer are separated and theit
responsibilities are clearly established, set
out in writing and agreed by the Board.
Both are collectively responsible for the
leadsrship of the Company. The Chalr
chairs the Board meetings, leads the
NEDs in the constructive challenge of

the Executive Directors’ strategy and 1s
accountable for the Board's effectiveness.
This includes encouraging an open and
frank boardroom culture, setting the
Board's agenda, facilitating the NEDs’
contribution and ensuring sufficiant time
and information to premote effective and
challenging discussions. The Chair has
been in his current role since March 2020.

The CEO is responsible for the everyday
management of the Company. The

CEO leads the Executive Directors and
management team in the implernentation
of the Board's strategy and management’s
performance in running the business.

The NEDs have a supervisory role that
contributes to the development of

the strategy through supportive and
challenging inquiry. They scrutinise the
Executive Directors’ performance in
meeting their agreed goals and objectives,
aind play & key role in their appointment or
rermaoval.

The Company Secretary s appointed

by the Board. He faciitates the
communications and processes of the
Board, the indugtion programme for new
Directors and provides advice through the
Chair as may be required in the ongoing
discharge of the Directors' duties. This
includes ensuring that the Company
provides the necessary resources for
access to independent acdvice and

any Individual professional training and
development needs agreed with sach
Direcior.
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The Board operates within a framewaork
that distinguiches the types of decisions
to be taken by the Board, including
determination of strategy, setting the
principal cperating policies and standards
of conduct, approval of overall financial
budgets and financing agreerments,
approval for establishing key corporate
relationships and approval of any actions
or matters requiring the approval of
shareholders.

Board composition

As at December 2021, the Board
comprised of nine Directors including the
Chair, made up of four Executive Directors
and five Non-Executive Direciors.

Tony Hunter was Company Secretary
throughout the year and his appointment
was approved by the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities & Composition of the
Committees

There are four principal committees of the
Board:

¢ The Audit and Risk Committes —
responsible for the integrity of the
Fnancial Statements and narrative
reporting, including annual and half vear
reports

* The Environmental, Sccial and
Governance (ESG) Committee -
responsible for defining the Group's
strategy related to ESG matters.

s The Nominations Committee —
responsible for ensuring the leadership
needs of the Company are sufficiently
appropriate to ensure continued
ability to compete effectively in the
marketplace

* The Remuneration Committee
—responsible for the design,
development and implementation of the
Company’s remuneration policy

Each principal Board committee has a
formal Terms of Reference (“TOR"), which
sets out the Committee’s delegated role
and authority and is approved by the
Board, The TOR as well as the Committee
members are available on the Company’s
website at hitps://www.pharos.energy/
about-us/governance/commitiees/.

Time commitment

The Board has four scheduled meatings
a year although additional meetings are
scheduled as required.

In 2021, in addition to the four scheduled
guarterly meetings, the Board also met on
an additional four occasions to deal with
specific business matters which required
Board approval. One of the additional
meetings included a Board sirategy
meeting in October 2021, which wag fully
attended.

Onty Committee members are entitled
to attend their respective meetings.
Cther Directors were invited to attend,
as determined appropriate or beneficial,
and cormmittes chairs provide an update
at the full Board meeting. There was full
attendance of committee members at
the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and
Nominations and ESG Committees in
2021,

Compaosition, succession and
evaluation

Board composition and succession

The Nominations Committee ensures the
leadership needs of the Company are met
and maintained appropriately to allow it
to compete effectively in the marketplace.
Board appoiniments are made through

a formal process led by the Nominations
Committee, In relation to the recruitment
and appointment of Non-Executive
Directors, the Committee recognises the
emphasis claced by the 2018 Code on
the engagement of an exiernal search
consultancy or the open advertising of
vacancies.

The Directors' roles are established in
writing and approved by the Board.
Biocgraphical details are provided on page
84 to 85.

Diversity and Inclusion

We believe In a workfarce with a diversity
of experience, nationalities, cultural
backgrounds and gender, 1o support our
business strategy of long-term sustanable
growth. Our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics, associated policies ana

the Pharos Guiding Principles commit

us 1o providing a workplace free of
diserimination where all emgloyees can
fulfil their potential based on merit and
ability. They also commit us to providing a
fully inclusive workplace, while providing
the right development oppartunities to
ensure existing staff have rewarding
coreers.

For more information on the gender
balance of our corporate employees and
senior management, please see page
68 of the Corporate Responsibility
report,

Annual re-election of Directors

All Directors annually retire and seek re-
election by shareholders at the Company’s
AGM. The Nominations Committee makes
its recommendation to the Board on

aach re-glection resolution. Pending the
Chair confirming his satisfaction that each
Director continues to perform effectively
and with the appropriate commitment to
the role, the full Board then determines its
own recommendation to sharehelders in
relation to those resolutions.

The Committee formed ils
recommendations regarding the re-
election resclutions at the 2022 AGM
following assessments of Board balance,
composition and independence.

Board effectiveness and evaluation

The Nominations Gommitiee assesses
the Board's balance of skills, experience,
independence, diversity, tenure and
knowledge of the Company and

the industry on an annual basis.

The assessment in 2021 included
consideration of the Company’s loadership
needs within the context of growth,
portiolio diversification and long-term
strategy. The discussions determined that
the current balance remains appropriate
and sufficient 1o effectively promote the
long-term success of the Company and
would be further enhanced through the
process already underway to increase the
number of Independent NEDs.

Remuneration

Remuneration principles

The Remuneration Comimittee is
responsible for the design, development
and implementation of the Company’s
Remuneration Policy.

In determining the remuneration packages
awarded to management, the Board

and the Remuneration Committee have
continued to aim at providing incentive
schemes that reflect the charactenstics of
attractive rewards, fairness and restraint.
Appropriate advice on best practice 1s
taken from an independent advisor.

Remuneration Policy

Our overarching aim is to operate a
Remuneration Policy which rewards seniot
management at an appropriate level for
delivering against the Company’s annual
and longer-term strategic objectives.

The policy is intendead to create strong
alignment between Executive Directors
and shareholders.

In line with the requirements of applicable
law, requinng us to review our Directors’
remuneration policy every 3 years, the
pclicy was reviewed and proposed at

the 2020 AGM and will nexi be put to
shareholders for approval at the 2023
AGM. Few changes were proposed to the
policy, principally relating 1o developments
in best practice guidelines including the
introduction of post-cessation shareholder
quidelings. The new policy was approved
by 92.6% of our shareholders at the 2020
AGM.
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Pension and benefits

All eligible employees have the same
access o the same pension contribution
rate {15% of salary) and access to a
similar tevel of benefits,

Directors’ shareholdings and share
interests

The Board has a policy requiring Executive
Directors to build a minimum shareholding
of 200% of their annual salary.
Additionally, LTIP awards requirg a two-
y&ar holding period following vesting. This
is Intended to emphasise a commitment
o the alignment of Executive Directors
with shareholders and a focus on long
term stewardship,

Audit, Risk and Internal Control

Significant reporting and accounting
matters

Ouring the first half of 2021, the Group's
accounting policies, in accordance

with best practice, were reviewed by
management and the Audit and Risk
Committee to ensure that they remained
appropriate for the Group's activities.
Following this review, the Group's
accounting policies were judged to be fully
up-~to-date and no significant changes
were recommended to the Board by the
Audit and Risk Committee,

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Audit and Risk Committee acvised
the Board whether the annual report
and accounts taken as a whole are fair,
balanced and understandable and provide
the range of information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business model and
strategy. The Directors have confirmed
this in ther Responsibility Staterment
set out on page 121 of the Directors’
Report.

Viability statement and Going concern

Management completed their Going
Concern assessment which was
challenged and reviewed by the Audit
and Risk Committee. The assessment
included a "Base Case" for the Greup,
including cash flow estimates for

both Egypt and Vietnam, as well as a
“Heasonable Worst Case” scenario, giving
particutar regard to the commaodity price
volatility,

Under these scenarias, management
has assassed, on a conservative basis,
the risks around commaodity pricing,
operational risk and political and regional
risks... The assessments also took

into account the impact of potential
discretionary reductions in capital
expenditures, as weli as the hedging of
production volumes to mitigate against
cocmmoadity price fluctuations.
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Based on this detailed analysis,
management has concluded that the
Group will continue as a Geoing Congern
for 12 months from the date of signing of
the 2021 Financial Staterments.

Following its review of management’s
paper to the Audit and Risk Commities
and in-depth walk through of
assumptions, the Committee is satisfied
that it is appropriate 1o prepare the
Financial Statements on a2 Going Concern
hasis.

For more information, please see the
Viability Statement in the Strategic Report
on pages 56 1o 57.

Internal controls and risk management
systems

The Group's internal control framewaork
and rigk management processes are
designed to ensure that risk identification.
assessment and mitigation 1s properly
embedded throughout the crganisation.
The risk management approach i1s
designed to provide the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Board with reasonabile
assurance that financial irregularities and
control weaknesses will be identified to
mibgate risks that could potentially have

a material adverse impact on the Group's
operations, earnings, liquicity and financial
prospects.

The Board is pnmarily responsible for

the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control systems which are monitored and
improved on an ongoing basis. The Audit
and Risk Committee has been delegated
the regponsibility to monitor and assess
the effectiveness of the control systems
operated by management. The external
auditor, Delcitte, also provides feedback
and recommendations on controls which
are brought to the attention of the Audit
angd Risk Commitiee,

Internal controls and risk management
issues are discussed in detall and
reviewed for effectiveness at each Audit
and Risk Committee meeting, with a
report being provided to the Board for
approval.

Internal audit

In previous years, based on the size and
scale of the Group's activibes, an Internal
Audit function could not be Justifieqa,
However, following the acquisition of the
Egyptian assets and the Group's stated
growth strategy in 2020. the Audit and
Risk Commitiee had recommended and
the Board approved the appointmant

of KPMG to carry out vanous internal
audits, The Commitiee discussed and
subsequently resalved that, following

the curtailment of the Group's growth
plans in 2020 and 2021 as a result of the
COVID-18 pandemic, the detailed internal
audit plan should be rescheduled for 2022
start date. This internal audit plan will be

complementary but separate to the audit
work undertaken by the Group's external
auditor, Deloitte.

In 2021, internal assurance has been
handled by the Group management. The
lack of an Internal Audit function in 2021
had no impact on the work of the external
auditor.

The Board is responsible for maintaining
a sound system of internal controls to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the assets of the Company. There is an
effective internal control function within
the Company which gives reasonable
assurance against any material
misstatement or loss. The Board and
management will continue to review the
effectiveness and the adequacy of the
Company's internal control systems and
update such as may be necessary,

External auditor

Deloitte was appointed as exiernal
auditor in 2002 and no tender has
been conducted since that date. in
accordance with the Cade’s guidance
concerning external audit tendering and
rotation, a competitive tender process
is required at least once every 10 years
typically. However, taking into account
the hansitional provisions of Statutory
Auditors and Third Country Auditors
Regulation 2016 the Group plans to
conduct a competitive tender process
during 2022.

The Committee assesses the
performance of the auditor based on

their experience, the quality of their
written and oral communication and input
from management, pnor to making any
recommendation as to the re-appointment
of the auditor at the AGM. The Commitiee
also assesses the independence of the
external auditor once a year and the lead
partner 1s required ta be rotated avery five
vears. On completion of David Paterson’s
term Anthony Matthews succeeded

him and is compliant with the rotation
requirements. Other senior audit staff are
also rotated svery five to seven years.

Principal and emetrging risks

On page 43, we sat out our

assessment of the principal risks

facing the business. The Group Risk
Management framework reguires that all
business units within the Group conduct
on-going risk management and reporting
(o the Audt and Risk Committee and
the Board. The Group Risk Managerment
Pdlicy defimes the specifics of the risk
management process, descripes the risk
tools (for example, the preparation and
maintenance of a Group risk matrix and
risk register) and outhnes the reporting
process and responsibilities in order

to meet the Group's risk governance
framework.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ('ESG’) COMMITTEE REPORT

Environmental, Social & Governance

(‘ESG’) committee report

JOHN MARTIN
ESG Committee Chair

MEETING ATTENDANCE

Committee member alletwdiiz;
John Martin {Chair} +
Reb Gray (Deputy Chair} B ' .
Ed Story (President &.CEO)_ - “++++
J-;mn B_rown ' )
{Managing Director & CFOy ot
Mike Watts (Managing Director) et
Rﬂ_éria;e D&;)-tabe;;ui * 4+
Lisa Mitchell * T e
Gégf}resl'iG}eeﬁ B - o
SuenFli\n.:ztt““-2 7 77'++

+ Attended.
* Independent NED.
1 Appointed as a Dwector 1 July 2021

2 Sue Rivett attended two additional meetings
during the year as a non-coimmittee meimber

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Membership and responsibilities

During 2021, the Environmental, Social
and Governance {{ESG') Committee
was comprised of myself ag Chair, Rob
Gray, Ed Story, Jann Brown, Mike Watts,
Marianne Daryabegui, Lisa Mitchell

and Geoffrey Green. | was dslighted to
welcome Sue Rivett to the Committee
from her appcintment to the Board

on 1 duly 2021, Reb, Marianne, Lisa,
and Geoffrey are all Independent Non-
Executive Directors each having recent
and relevant financial and legal experience
in the energy sector.

As Chair of the Committee, | convene
meetngs on a regular basis and report to
the Board throughout the year.

The ESG Committee has a formal
document outlining its responsibilities,
which is reviewed and updated as
appropriate by the Board on an annual
basis.

The ESG Committee Terms of Reference
are available on our website, https://www.
pharos.energy/about-us/governance/
committees/ .

Key responsibilities
The Committee is constituted by the
Board to:

* Assist the Beard in defining and
implementing the Pharos Group's
strategy relating to ESG matters;

+ Review the policies, programmes,
practices and initiatives of the Pharos
Group relating to ESG matters ensuring
they remain effective and up to date;

» Oversee the Pharos Group's
management of ESG matters and
compliance with legal and regulatory
reguirements, including applicable
rules and principles of corporate
gavernance, and applicable industry
standards;

+ Reaport on these matters 1o the
Board and, where appropriate, make
recommendations to the Board; and

* Report as required to shareholders of
the Company on the activities and remit
of the Cormmittee, and in achieving
ESG targets.

ESG Committee meetings in 2021

The Committee met four times during
2021, These meetings were regularly
scheduled Committee meetings held in
March, May, September and December.
The Committes examines and discusses
at each meeting:

» Review of inventory of current ESG
social projects in Vietnam, and
proposed carbon-reduction investment
projects in Egypt and Vietnarm

* Review of HSES policles and
procedures, CDP climate change
reporting, annual Corporate
Responsibility (*CR") Beport, Annual
Health, Safety, and Envircnmental and
Social ("HSES™} Plan

* Review of the development of ESG
KPls including climate change and
health and safety metrics

* Review of ESG practices across the
Group's industry peers

* Review of the work on Phase 2 of
TCFD alignment

In addition to members of the Committee,
additional non-committee members, such
as Risk Manager, Reservoir Engineer and
Investor Relations Analyst were invited

to attend Committee meetings. Internal
ESG working group meetings were also
held separately from ESG Committee
meetings. There was noted {c be buy-in
on ESG matters across the Group.
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During 2021, the following additional
areas wete discussed at meetings of the
Committee:

March
Review and discussion on;

s Progress tfor the ESG KPIs, noting
these could not be finalised for Egypt
untl the farm-out terms had been
agreed

» Ongoing work on the reduction of GHG
emissions, noting these were likely to
increase ag the capital development
work proceeded

s Draft ESG Committee report to be
included in the Annual Report

* Ongoing work on TCFD

s Group's GHG smissions reporting
compared to peer groups

* Group's Health, Safety, Environmant
and Social {(HSES) matters performance
to date, noting 2020’s sub-contractor
fatality and four spills in Egypt and
actions taken 1o prevent a recurrence.
Major disruptions to operations from
COVID-18 have been avoided, noting
the precautions taken.

* Inventory of social projects to date

May
Review and discussion on:

* The new format of Annual Repart.
noting it had worked well and that
ESG matters had been appropriately
incorporated in this

* Ongoing work on TCFD
* Group's HSES matters and
performance, noting no H&S incidents

to report in the period and one minor
spill

* Peer and industry ESG reporting

»  Subrnission of CODP Climate Change
and Water Security questionnaires,
noting 1ts previous rating of ‘G’ and
ways to improve this rating

Pharos Energy Annual Repart and Acsounts 2021

September
Review and discussion on:

* Group's HSES matters and
perfoermance. GHG emissions were
rnoted to be at par with last year despite
reduced activities and ways in which
emissions could be reduced were
commented upon. Spills in Egypt were
reviewed and discussed mcluding
whether another service company
or better training could be used 1o
improve matters, albeit this was dealt
with at a JV level

* Update on sooial projects in Vietnam in
H1 2021

* The alignment towards TCFD
recommendations. The proposal
from Verisk Maplecroft, an external
TCFD consultant company, to review
and develop a roadmap to carbon
reductions, was approved

s Improvements in flarng both in Vietnam
and in Egypt

¢ Future meeting on potential actions that
could be taken in relation to climate
change, taking account of input from
consultants and examples in other
companies

December
Review and discussion cn:

* The development of corporate ESG
targets for management incentives,
to be reported to the Remuneration
Committee

* Group's HSES matters, noting the
reparation of the faulty compressar
in Vietnam, flaring would agan be
reduced, which would determine
whether there would be an
improverment on prior year performance

« KPIs for both safety and environmental
matters

+ O, reduction ophons, noting that cost
benefit analysis of this would be looked
at

» ESG practices across Pharos industry
peers, noting more research to look into
what Vietnam and Egypt had signed up
to at COP26

During the year the Committee
focused on the following matters:

The Committee and its working group
focused on its stakeholders’ health and
safety during the COVID-19 pandemic:;
the development of ESG KPIs including
climate change and health and safety
metncs, approval and oversight of the
work on Phase of 2 of TCFD: oversight
and approval of the Group's COP
Climate Change and Water Secunty
Questionnaires; ongoing sccial project

investments in Vietnam; review and
discussion on ESG practices across
industry peers and CO_ reduction options
for Pharos.

COVID-~19 precautionary measures

The health, safety and welfare of our

staff, contraciors and host communities

across our business remains the highest

pnarity on the Board agenda, especially

during this global pandemic. The Group

adhered 1o the requisite precautionary

procedures and restrictions, in ine with

the government directives in Egypt,

Vietnam and the UK. At Petrosilah and

Pharos Ef Fayumn, a vaccination campaign

for all employees in the main offices and

fields started in Q2 2021 and culminated

to 97% of the workforce being double

vaccinated at the end of December 2021,

In Vietnam, the HLHVJOC strict 5-7

days quarantine regulations are being

applied for the workforce going offshore,

in addition to rapid and PCR tests one

day prior to offshere mobilisation, 100% .
of our workforce in Vietnam are double '
vaccinated at the end of December 2021,

For office staff at all locations, Pharos

has implemented ongoing facilitabon of 1
Working From Home {WFH) measures

where possible until further notice.

Health & Safety '

In 2021, the Company has delivered

an excellent performance from a health :
and safety perspective. There were '
zero Lost Time Injuries (LTIs) across all

our operations through-out the year. In }
Vietnam, the JOCs continue to deliver

an exceptional record of safety, reporting

zero LTls since cperational inception,

representing ten production years on

TGT and 13 preduction years on CNV.

In Egypt, we continually reinforce and

implement safe working procedures

such as inspecton of all instruments

and equipment, obtaining the reguisite

permit to work applications, providing

training and awareness sessions and

above all implementing checks to ensure

nsks are reduced to acceptable levels

and encourage the immediate use

of stop-cards. [n Vietnam, the JOCs

conducted over 200 and 100 HSE traning

sessions and emergency response dnlls

respectively during 2021 to ensure safety

and preparedness reman a top priority,

HSES performance of the Group was
reviewed and discussed at every

ESG Commuittee meetings in 2021,

All spillage incidents during the year
were investigated and lessons learned
as appropriate and actions to prevent
recurrence were implementad.



ESG KPlIs

The Committee reviewed and discussed
the progress of ESG KPIs. However, after
careful consideration, the Committee
agreed that these could not be finalised
for Egypt until the farm-out terms had
been agreed. ESG KPIs for Vietnam

are noted in the 2022 KRl in the
Remuneration Report on page 112.

TCFD

The Company commenced Phase 2 of
the project to bringing our disclosures in
line with the requirements of the Task
Forge on Climate-Refated Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD"), These efforts had
been nterrupted by the impact of the
pandsmic 1in 2020 but Phase 2 of the
project was approved in Q3 2021 and
commenced in Q4 2021, after careful
considerations and review from the ESG
Committee and ESG working group.
Results of the completion of Phase 2 can
be found in the Corporate Respaonsibility
Repaort on page 60 to 83.

CDP

Qver the past four years, the Company
have participated in the CDP Climate
Change Questionnaire. In 2021, we have
maintained our score of {C), originally
awarded in 2019 and which is also the
industry average. Most notably, 2021
marks the first year that the Company
submitted their response to the Water
Security Questionnaire, in addition te and
at the same time as the Climate Change
Questionnaire. The Water Security
Questionnaire was completed at a basic
level in 2021, and we plan to improve our
{evel of transparency on water usage and
protection by completing the full version
in 2022,

Both Questicnnaires were completed
through collaborative efforts across
multiple disciplines and functions within
the Group and after thorough discussions
within the ESG working group, with
oversight and approval from the ESG
Committee before submission
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ESG peer benchmarking and CO,
reduction options

During the year, the Commitiee reviewed
various CO, reduction options, such

as ejector technology and gas to liquid
technology. There were inputs from HSE
Country Managers, Reservoir Engineers
and Risk Managers during the process.
The Committee have taken this into
consideration, noting that further cost
benefit analysis would be looked at in
further depth.

ESG best practices and reporting
stanclards across the Group's industry
peers were also discusssd in 2021, The
Committee noted that more research
waould be done to understand what the
Company could do, and to look into the
commitments made by Vietnam and
Egypt at COPZ286.

Social

In recent years, we have structured our
social investment programme tc align
more with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals {UN SDGs).

In Vietnam, in 2021, we worked closely
with the JOCs in arder to make sure that
our social intiatives in the region continue
to bring more positive impacts to the
region. In additicn to the training levy of
$300,00C per vear in a ring-fenced fund
tc support developing future Vietnamese
expertise in the industry, a further
$265,000 was invested in 12 community
projects. The JOCs actively inquired and
listened to locals to find out which areas
of the country would need the greatest
assistance in order 1o ensure that we
were investing in local projects that
would bring the most sustainable positive
impact 1o the community. For instance,

in Q1 2021, the Group provided financial
support for autistic children at Anh Dao
Specialised Educaticnal Centre in Ha
Tinh province, with additional donations
towards providing therapy for children with
disabilities at An Tue Social Assistance
Centre, Thua Thien Hue province (UN
SDG 3: Good health & wellbeing and UN
SDG 4: Quality education). In Q2 2021,
the Donation Programme helped fund
the construction of a community culture
house in Hop Hung commune, Vu Ban
district, Nam Dinh province which, once
finishes, will act as a communal education
house for children in the area for years

to come {UN SDG 4 Quality education
and UN SDG 9: Industry, inncvation and
infrastructure}.

In Egypt, under the Ei Fayum and North
Beni Suef Concession Agreements, the
Contractor contributes a total of $200,000
split equally between the two Concessions
to support long-term training and
development of talents within the industry
{UN SDG 8: Industry, innovaticn and
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infrastructure). Additionally, in cooperation
with the Ministry of Higher Education and
Scientific Research, Petrositah holds an
annual summer training programme for all
students applying from public and private
Egyptian universities for training in the
administrative office and the company's
fields, of which they can obtain a traning
certificate from the company (UN SDG 4:
Quality education).

For full details of all the projects the JOCs
have invested in 2021, please see our
Corporate Responsibility report on pages
76to 77.

Focus for 2022

« Continue to work with JOC's for
continued improvements and trainings
with respect to GHG's emissions
reductions, intiative's 10 reduced
emissions and spillages

e Maintain current work programme
through the JOC’s social project
investment and review outcomes of
local Indicative’s that benefit local
communities and host countries

* Proposal and review of ESG metiics in
Remuneration and KPI

* Continue engagement and dialogue
with the ESG working group as it
progresses during 2022

JOHN MARTIN
Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Committee Chair
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

Nominations committee report

———

JOHN MARTIN
Nominations Committee Chair

MEETING ATTENDANCE

Committee member atlendigi;
John Martin * (Chair) ++4
Ed Story (President and CEO) Ty
Rob Gray * (Deputy Chair and o

Senior Independent Director) e
Maragne Daryabegui/’rir it
L|sa_M:ltchell * o o +++
G‘eoiﬂrey Green” o - +++

+ Attended.
* Independent NED.

Jann Brown and Mike Watts attended as
non-committee members for the first meeting
of the year.

Role of the Committee

Ensuring the composition of the
Company’s leadership remains effective
and competitive

Leading the process for Board and
committee appointments and making
recommendations to the Board

Annually reviewing the Board balance,
structure, composition, diversity and
succession planning

Establishing an ongoing process for
evaluating the Board's performance and
effectivenass

The Commitiee has continued to ensure
that Board independence was evident
during 2021 and will continue into 2022
taking into account the Board composition
requirements of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code.
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Membership

During the year, the Committee comprised Jehn Martin as Chair, the Chief Executive
Officer Ed Story and the four Independent Non-Executive Directors ('NEDs'), Rob Gray,
Marianne Daryabegui, Lisa Mitchell and Geoffrey Green.

The qualifications of each of the Chair and members are set out on pages 84 to 85.

Meetings

The Committee conducted its duties through three meetings held during 2021. During the
year the following areas were discussed at the Committee meetings:

Meoting Matter
Finalisation of Sue Rivett as a Director and CFO
Review and approval of Nominations Committee report for incluston in
m the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts
Annual review of conflicts of interest register
Annual Director reappointment
Qz No Meeting
Q3 ‘Ongeing succession planning B B
G4 Succession planning continued

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised four Executive Directors and five NEDs,
including the Charr. All of those NEDs were considered independent for the purposes
of the 2018 Code. John Martin remains Chalr of the ESG Committee, and Chair of the

Nominations Committee.

Board refreshment and succession
planning

Board refreshment and succession
planning continue as ongoing processes.
In 2021, the priority was to maintain the
Inclependent component of the Board and
to fully comply wath the 2018 Code.

In March 2021 we announced the
appontment of Sue Rivett 1o the Board
as Chief Financial Officer ("CFQO")
effective 1 July 2021. Jann Brown, who
was Managing Director ("MD") and
CFO, remained as MD following Sue's
appointment, focused on delivering the
next phase of the Group's strategic plan.

Appointments process

Bunng 2021, the Committee assessed the
suitability of Sue Rivett for appointment

to the Board, taking into account her
previous sector experience and work
history, and concluded that her expertise
and track record in oil and gas, would
complement and enhance the skills and
experience of the current Board.

independence

Al NEDs are independent in full
compliance with the provisions of the
2018 Code.

Board balance

The Committee agsesses the

Board's balance of skills, experience,
Independence, diversity, tenure and
knowledge of the Company ana

the industry on an annual basis.

The assessment in 2021 included
consideration of the Company's leadership
needs within the conlext of growth,
oortfolio diversification and long-term
strategy. The discussions determined
that following the recent changes in
the business the current balancs 1s
appropriate and sufficient to effectively
promote the long-term success of the
Company.

The Board's current balance and
composition are shown on page 82,



Diversity

Qur approach to diversity and
inclusiveness is embedded within the
Group's Human Rights Palicy available on
the Company’s website at htips://www.
pharos.energy/responsibility/policy-
statements/. A key aim of the Policy is a
workplace that is inclusive and free from
discrimination,

In applying the Human Rights Policy

to Board composition. the Committes
pursues diversity of approach, experience,
knowledge, skills, and professional,
educational and cultural backgrounds.
I'he international and global perspactive
achieved has enhanced the Board’s
discussions on business development,
M&A and operational and financial
integration.

In its annual review of diversity, the
Committee noted diversity of gender,
age, demographics, skills, professional
backgrounds, experience and education
amongst the Board and senior
management.

Board evaluation

In early 2022, having delayed the process
to ensure that this incorporated all the
events of 2021, the Board carried out its
annual evaluation of its own performance
and effectiveness and that of its principal
Committees, the Chair and the individual
Directors. In doing so, the cutcomes of
last year's review and recently agreed
actions in connection with succession
planning and Board changes were also
considered. The Committee Chair led

the process which was facilitated by the
Company Secretary and followad a similar
format to that of prior years. Directors
completed confidential guestionnaires
covering the key areas as set out below.
The questicns were structured to
enceurage full, in-depth responses on
each area of focus.

s Strategy and risk, including fow
the Board has handled risk andg
opportunities

¢ Sharsholder and Stakeholder Relations
» The performance of the Chair
s Board effectiveness and operation

» The cperation of the principal Board
committees

* Board training and development needs

e Any other general matters Diractors
wished to raise

The results were reported on an
unattributed basis and discussed by the
Committee, led by the Committee Chair,
then shared with the whele Board. The
results of the Chair's performange review
were discussed with the other NEDs,

led by the Deputy Chair and Senior
Independent Director, and communicated
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to the Chair. Following the evaluation
process, a number of areas were identified
for ongoing focus in 2022 including:

* Continued focus on strategy
*  Maintaining review of key risks

*  Ongoing communications to
sharehclders and other stakeholders

* Evolution of reporting in ling with
development of the Group

+ Continued focus on Climate Change
and ESG Agenda

Re-election

All Directors annually retire and seek
re-alection by sharehciders at the
Company's AGM. The Committee makes
its recommendation to the Beard on

each re-election resolution. Pending the
Chair confirming his satisfaction that each
Director continues to perform effectively
and with the appropriate commitment to
the role, the full Board then determines its
own recommendation to shareholders in
relation to those resolutions.

The full Board retired and offered itself

for re-election by shareholders at the
Company’s AGM in June 2021. All
Directors were duly re-elected at the 2021
AGM, each receiving more than 97% of
the proxy votes submitted in advance of
the meeting.

Ed Story and Dr Mike Watts will retire as
Directors upon completion of the farm-out
transaction with IPR. in addition. Rob
Gray will not seek re-election as a Director
at the 2022 AGM and will accordingly
retire with effect from the close of that
meeting. The remaining six Directors will
retire and will offer themselves for re-
elaction at the 2022 AGM.

The Committee is satisfied that each
individual Director’s performance
continues to be effective and
democnstrates commitment to the role
and, accordingly, has recormmended

to the Board that each such Director
remains in office subject to re-election by
shareholders at the AGM.

The Committee formed its
recommendations regarding re-election
following assessments of Board balance,
composition and independence.

Workforce engagement

In November 2021, the Chair joined

head office staff for the afternoon during
an offsite staff meeting, at which staff
mernbers were able to discuss matters

of interest. This engagement has proved
an effective communication route for the
employees and demonstrates the values
of openness and integrity to which we are
committed.

Board development, information
and support

Throughout 2021, all Directors received
ongeing access to resources for the
update of their skills and knowledge; both
on an individual and a full Board basis.
Comments are solicited in the annual
Beard svaluation and discussed with the
Chair.

Conflicts of interest

The Board has the power, subject to
certain conditions, to authorise, where
appropriate, a situation where a Diractor
has, or can have, a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts, or possibly may
conflict, with the Company's interasts.
Such authonty is in accordance with
section 175 of the Companies Act 2006
and the Company’s articles of association.
Procedures are in place for ensuring that
the Board’s powers 1o authorise conflicts
are used sffectively and appropriately.
Directors are required to notify the
Company of any conflicts of interest or
potential conflicts of interest that may
arise, before they arise, either In relation to
the Director concerned or their connected
persons. The decision to authorise each
situation is considered separataly on its
particular facts.

Only Directors who have no interest in
the matter are able to take the relevant
deaision to authorise a conflict and
must act in a way they consider, in good
faith, will be most likely to promote the
Company's success. The Directors

will impose such limits or conditions

as they deem apprapriate when giving
authorisation or when an actuat conflict
arises, Thase may include provisions
relating to confidential information,
attencance at Board meetings and
availability of Board papers, along

with other measures as determinad
appropriate.

Each Director has notified the Board of
either the pctential for or the absence
of conflicts. The Board assesses every
notification of a conflict on its own
merits, including the implementation of
appropriate limits and conditions, prior
to giving authorisation for any specific
conflict or potential conflict to exist.

The Board assesses its conflict
authonisations on an ongoing basis
throughout the year and additionally
performs a scheduled review in
December.

JOHN MARTIN
Nominations Committee Chair
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit and risk committee report

LISA MITCHELL
Audit and Risk Committee Chair

MEETING ATTENDANGCE

2021

Committee member
attendance

Lisa Mitchell * .
Rob Gray* o PN
Marianne Da;y;t;églxi' +++++
Geoffrey GreenT_ ForIr.

+ Attended.
T Independent NED.

Ed Story, Jann Brown, Mike Watts, Sue Rivett and
John Martin also attended most of the meetings as
nan-comimitiee imenibers. guests
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Membership and responsibilities

During 2021, the Audit and Risk
Committee comprised myself as Chair,
Robt> Gray, Marianne Daryabegui and
Geoffrey Green. Marianne, Rob, Geoffrey
and | are all Independent Non-Executive
Directors each having recent and relevant
financial experience in the energy sector.

As Chair of the Committee, | convene
meetings on a regular basis and report to
the Board throughout the year.

The Audit and Risk Committee has

a formal document outlining its
responsibilities, which is reviewed and
updated as appropriate by the Beard on
an annuai basis.

The Audit and Risk Committee Terms of
Reference are available on our website,
https://www.pharos.energy/about-us/
governance/committees/.

Key responsibilities

Reviewing key financial, operational and
corporate respensibility sk management
processes with strong focus on
Ernvironmental, Social and Governance
{"ESG"} issues

Reviewing and testing the integrity of the
Group's financial statements to ensure
full compliance with international financial
reporting standards and requirements

Overseeing the planning and execution
of the ongoing external audit programme
ircluding a detailed review of audit qualty
and resulis

Reviewing the effectiveness of internal
control processes and systemns, including
IT control platforms

Audit and Risk Committee
meetings in 2021

The Committee met five times during
2021, These meetings were the regularly
scheduled Committee meetings held in
March, May, September and December,
with the March meeting split into 2, firstly
to review the internal Committee papers
and the second to review the final 2020
year-end release and the auditor's paper.
The Committee examines and discusses
at each meeting:

Detalled review of internal controls and
implementation of upgrades

Review of risk register and risk
management reports

In addition to members of the Committee,
all members of the Board, the finance
management team, operational
management and the Group's external
auditor, Deloitte, attended each of the
Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

Dunng 2021, the following additional
areas were discussed at meetings of the
Committee:

March {2 meetings)

Update and review of Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking Statement. HSE Polioy,
Sacial Responsibility Policy, Biodiversity
and Conservation Policy, Human Rights
Policy and Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics

Finance update including the Internal
Controls Report, Reserves Update.
Inmpairment Analysis, review of the IFRS
16 Lease paper, Royalty paper and
Treasury review

Review and approval of 2020 financial
statements, including reviews that they
were fair, balanced and understandable,
reviews of Going Concern and Viability
Statements

Review of 2020 external audit status,
including analyses of findings of the
external audit and key judgemental areas

Review and update of the Audit and Risk
Committee governance matters, with
attention to internal controls processes
and systems, and a detailed review of
Risk management issues and mitigation

May
Review and update of Internal Controls
Report including Financial review

Status update on Treasury actities
including the RBL and hedging status

Review and assessment of Risks and
mitigations



September

Finance update including the Internal
Controls Report, Reserves Update,
impairment Analysis, review equity placing
paper and insurance review

Review and Approval of 2021 Interim
Accounts, including presentation by
external auditor, Deloitte, and Audit and
Risk Committee comments

Review and approval of the Going
GConcern Paper, including stress testing
and mitigations

An update on financing, covenant
compliance montonng and commaodity
hedging

December

Review and update on Internal Gontrols
and Risk Report including: Finance review
and Treasury update

Review of the Group Budget and capital
allocation

Annual Review and Approval of Terrms
of Reference of the Audit and Risk
Committee

Review of 2021 year-snd planning

Review and discussion of Significant
Risks particularly arcund the impact of
COVID-19 and Climate Change and the
impact on Going Concern and Impairment
of assets

Review and discussion on Section 172 of
the Companies Act 2008

Review of external audit scope, review of
audit guality and 2021 audit plan

Reaview of recent developments in

relation to FRC requirements, proposed
develcpments in relation to external
auditors' respensibilities, and other related
regulatory and compliance matters

Financial reporting and significant
accounting issues

During the first half of 2021, the Group's
accounting policies, in accordance

with best practice, were reviewed by
management and the Committee to
ensure that they remained appropriate

for the Group's activities. Following this
review. the Group’s accounting policies
were judged to be fully up-to-date and no
significant changes were recommended to
the Board by the Committee.
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Significant issues related to the
2021 Financial Statements

The Committee met twice in March to

go through the significant issues that
should be taken into consideration in
relation to the Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021,
being key issues which may be subject to
heightened risk of material misstatement.
These key issues are set out below.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Commitiee advised the Board
whather the annual report and accounts
taken as a whole are far, balanced and
understandable and provide the range of
information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's performance,
business model and strategy. The
Directors have confirmed this in their
Responsibility Statement set out on page
121 of the Directors’ Report.

Going Concern

Management completed their Going
Concern assessment which was
challenged and reviewed by the
Committee. The assessment included

a “Base Case” for the Group, including
cash flow estimates for both Egypt and
Vietnam, as well as a “Reasonable Worst
Case” scenano, giving particular regard to
the continuing impact of commaodity price
volatility. A further assessment was alsc
undertaken to show the impact of a farm
down of the Egyptian concessions.

Under these scenarios, management
has assessed, on a conservative basis,
the risks arocund commaodity pricing,
operational risk and political and
regional risks, particularly in Egypt. The
assessments alse took inte account
the impact of potential discretionary
reductions in capital expenditures, as well
as the hedging of production volumes
to mitigate aganst commodity price
fluctuations.

Based on this detailed analysis,
managerment has concluded that the
Group will continue as a Going Concern
for 12 months from the date of signing of
the 2021 Financial Statements.

Following its review of management's
Committee paper and in-depth walk
through of agsumptions, the Commitiee
are satisfied that it is appropriate to
orepare the 2021 Financiat Statements on
a Going Concern basis.
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Qil and gas reserves

The Group's estimates of cil and gas
reserves have a crucial impact on the
Financial Statements, especially in relation
to DD&A and impairment of PP&E assets.
Cil and gas reserves, as discussed in the
Viakility Statement on pages 56 tc 57 are
calculated using best practice and
industry evaluation technigues which have
uncertainties in their application.

The Committee reviswed, in conjunction
with management the results of
independent third party assessments
conducted by ERCe during 2021 for
Vietnam assets TGT and CNY, and
subsequently audited by the Group's
reserves auditor, RISC Advisory Pty Ltd
{*RISC") which are described in the review
of operations on pages 32 1o 34,

(n addition, the Commitiee reviewed,

in conunclion with management and
Deloitte, the reserves assessment
conducted by McDaniel for the El Fayumn
Concession in Egypt.

The various reserves estimates have
been scrutinised by management,

taking into account the status of each
field’s development, 1o be satisfied that
reserves estimates are appropriate, that
DD&A calculations are correct and that
rigorous impairment testing has been
carnied out. Management also reviewed
its estimates of future costs {including
decommissioning costs) associated with
producing reserves. Reserve estimates are
inherently uncertain, and are revised over
the producing lives of il and gas fields as
new reserves astimates become available
and economic conditions evolve.

Internal controls and risk
management systems

The Group's internal control framework
and risk management processes are
designed to ensure that risk identification,
assessment and mitigation is properly
embedded throughout the organisation.
The risk management approach is
designed to provide the Committee and
the Board with reascnable assurance
that financial irregularities and control
weaknesses wili be identified to mitigate
risks that could potentially have a
material adverse impact on the Group's
operations, earmings, liguidity and financial
prospects.

Buring 2021, the Group continued to
carry out comprehensive reviews of the
overall effsctiveness of its internal controls
framework and continued to work on
improvements,

The Board is primarily responsible for
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems which are monitored
and improved on an ongoing basis.
The Committee has been delegated



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT - CONTINUED

the responsibility to monitor and assess
ihe effectiveness of the control systems
operated by management. The external
auditor, Deloitte, also provides feedback
and recommendations on controls
which are brought to the attention of the
Committee.

Internal controls and risk management
izsues are discussed in detail and
reviewed for effectivenass at each
Committee meeting, with a report being
provided to the Board for approval.

Reserve Based Lending Fagcility
(RBL)

During 2021, the Group completed the
refinancing of its RBL facility providing
access to a committed $100m facility
based solely on the Vietnam assets, of
which $78.1m was drawn at December
2021, A further $50m is available on

an uncommitted accordion basis, The
refinanced facility has a four-year term
that matures in July 2025. The refinancing
extended the tenor of the facility by 22
months, allowing for a rephasing of the

repayment schedule and provision of
additional funds available for gensral
corporate purposes.

Under the revised RBL facllity agreement,
the Group is required to be compliant with
certain debt covenants for each half year

ending 30 June and 31 December, as set
out on page 163,

The Committee has reviewed
managerment's assessments of debt
covenant calculations and 1s satisfied that
the Group is fully compliant.

Commaodity hedging — treasury
management

During the year, the Group actively
managed its exposure to commedity
price risk by entening into an ongeing
programime of hedging. The objectives

of the hedging programme have been

to protect the Group's Reasonable

Warst case and the Working Capital Test
raquired for the farm down of its Egyptian
concessions to any downward conmodity
price movements and to provide certainty

KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

Key judgements and estimates n
financial reporting

Audit and Risk
Committee review

for cash flows, ensure compliance with
the terms of the RBL Facllity Agreement,
and to help mitigate the redetermination
risk implicit with any RBL.

A Treasury Committee, comprnising the
Chief Financial Officer as Chair and senior
mambers of the Group's finance ieam,
convene on a regular basis 10 review the
Group's strategy and the open hedge
posttions to ensure that these are still

fit for purpose in light of current market
conditions. Over the course of 2021,

the hedged positions were out of the
money by $29.7m, the hedge pasition
having besn taken out to satisfy the 35%
minimum Vietnam production hedge
required under the RBL and hedges to
mitigate the impact on Reasonable Worst
Case for Going Concern and the Working
Capital Test for the Egypt farm down.

In 2022, the Group seeks to extend this
covarage further to protect budgetary
cash flow and snsure compliance with
and help mitigate redetermination risk on
the RBL.

Cutcomes

Asset carrying values and
impainment testing — ncluding
judgements on future ol pricing.
discount rates, production profiles,
reserves and cost estimates

Reviewed the Group's oil price assurmptions

Upstreamn impainnent charges were reviewed twice
dunng the year

The Group's short and long-term price
asstimptions were ihcreased in line with the
improveméant in commaodity prices

Imparment reversal of assets

Reviewed DDA&A estimates, based on reserves reports,

Significant risks that could potentially
impact on financial statements —
nciuding DD&A estimales, override
management controls

units of production and future developnient costs

Reviewed override of management controls

Management's assessments of DD&A
judged to be reasonable based on prudent
assumptions

Under ISA 240 management override of
controls is presumed significant risk. No
breaches were found

Reviewed the Grot's guidelines and palicy for
compliance with ol reserves disclosure reguiations;

Gil reserves accounting — including
management’s assumptions for
future oil prices which have a

direct impact on the estimate of

the recoverability of asset values
reported in the Financial Statements

including governance and control

Reviewed exploratinn charges

Reviewed at each Cornmittee meeting an update on the
status of all updated estimates

Costs held in Vietnam pending future work
programme and costs 1 israel impaired due to
no substantive future work programme

Updated third party estimates and independent
audit completed, with results disclosed in the
2021 Financial Siaterments

Exploration and evaluation assets and impainment review

The Cormmittee reviewed the Group's
intangible exploration and evaluation
assets individually in Egypt, lsrael and
Vietnam for any indications of impairment,
including the various indicators specified
in paragraphs 18 to 20 as set out in IFRS
6 — “Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources”, Please refer to Note
4 b} to the Financial Statements for more
information on climate change and energy
transition.
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At both the half year and year end 2021,
the Comimittee considered whether
various indicators of impairment existed,

and alsoc whether there werg issues ansing

from the results of impairment reviews by
management. Such reviews are carried
cut in relation to both exploration and
evaluation assets, with the role of the
Committee being focused on challenging
management’s underlying assumptions
and estimates and to judge whether

they are realistic and justified, Following
the impairment testing, the Committee
recommended to the Board that following
3D seismic acquisition on Block 125 in
Vietnam and the forward programme

of work that no impairment had been
triggered. The minor commitment
programme of wark in Israel will be
completed in 1H 2022, but there being
no major work budgeted or planned the
Group have impaired the assets.



Producing assets, property, plant
and equipment (“PP&E") and
impairment review

The Committes reviewed individually the
Group’s ofl and gas preducing assets
classified as PP&E on the balance sheet
for impairment with reference to IAS 36
= "Impairmant of Assets”. During 2021,
the Group's PP&E oil and gas assets
camprised its two Vietnam producing
licences, TGT and CNV, as well as its B
Fayurmn Concession in Egypt. These are
described in the operations review an
pages 32 to 34.

This review focused on an updated
assessment of the recoverable amount
of each asset compared to their carrying
value in the accounts. If the recoverable
amount dropped below the carrying
value, there would have been an
impairment charge to reduce the carrying
value. The Committee considered the
vancus assumptions underpinning the
assessment of the recoverable amount,
including underlying reserves, commodity
prices, production rales and discount
rates. Based on the Group’s approved
economic assumptions, the Committeg
recommended to the Beard that
impalrment reversals were made on the
2two Vietnam fields, and small impairment
charge on the El Fayumn Concession in
Egypt.

On our CNY field in Vietnam, a pre-tax
imparment reversal of $3.8m has been
refiected in the Income Statement with an
associated deferred tax charge of $1.4m.
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of the CNV off and gas producing
property is $84.2m.

On our TGT field in Vietnam, a pre-tax
impairment reversal of $49.1m has been
reflected in the Income Statement with an

associated deferred tax chargs of $17.1m.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of the TGT oil and gas producing
property is $266.0m.

For ocur Bl Fayum concession in Egypt,
an impairment reversal of $1.7m, no tax
applicable, is reflected in the Income
Staterment. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of the El Fayum oil
producing property is $109.3m, pre-
reclassification to Assets held for sals.
After the reclassification to assets held
for sale, the Egypt oil and gas producing
property amounts to $49.2m.

Asset Held for Sale (AHFS)

In December 2021, it was announced that
shareholders had approved the farm-out
of 55% of the Group’s operated interest

in each of cur Egyptian Concessicns, El
Fayum and North Beni Suef, to IPR, a
group that has extensive experience in
Egypt.
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As parl of the transaction, IPR will fund
Pharos's share of the costs to a maximum
of $33.425m (to be adjusted for working
capital and interim period adjustments
from the effective economic date of 1 July
2020). This is in addition to the deposit
at signing of the farm-out agreements of
US$2 million and a further US$3 milkion
payable cn completion. This investment
programme should result in an Increase
in production and also fulfil commitments
under the concessions. n addition,

the Group will be entitled to contingent
consideration depending on the average
Brent Price each year from 2022 1o the
end ol 2025, capped at a maximum

total payment of US$20 milion. We have
calculated the contingent consideration
using our Brent oll price curve as at 31
December 2021 {not recognised the full
$20m).

$$53.5m net assets were reclassified as
held for sale. Details on the calculation of
the AHFS net assets are set out in Note
37 to the Financial Statements.

Concession Agreement
Amendment El Fayum area

On 19 January 2022, the Third
Amendment to the El Fayum Concession
Agreement was signed by His Excellency
Fng, Tarek El Molla {Minister of Petroleum
& Mineral Resources of the Arab Republic
of Egypt), EGPC and the Company.

Signature of the Third Amendment

wasg a key Condition Precedent for the
transfer of a 55% participating interest
{and operatorship) in the El Fayum and
North Beni Suef Concessions o IPR Lake
Qarun.

Under the terms, the cost recovery
percentage will be increased from 30%

to 40% allowing Pharos a significantly
faster recovery of all its past and future
investments. In return, Pharos has agreed
to waive iis rights to recover a portion

of the past costs pool {($115 million) and
reduce its share of Excess Cost Recovery
Petroleum from 15% to 7.5%. While in full
cost recovery made, Contractor’s share of
revenue increases from 42.6% to 50.8%
as from November 2020 (corresponding
to additienal net revenues to Contractor of
%7.0m to the date of signature).

The relevant final approvals from the
Egyptian Governmeant had not been
cbtained at 31 December 2021 and
so this has been accounted as a non-
adjusting balance sheet event, as per
Note 38 to the Financtal Statements.

Assuming conditions at 31 December
2021, the discounted cash flows from the
remaining 45% share held and calculated
for impairment purposes would ncrease
from $49.2m to $77.4m.
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Internal controls focus for 2021

In previous years, based on the size and
scale of the Group's activities, an Internal
Audit function could not be justified.
However, following the acquisition of the
Egyptian asset and the Group's stated
growth strategy in 2020, the Committee
had recommended and the Board
approved the appointment of KPMG

to cany out various internal audits. The
Committee discussed and subsequently
approved that following the curtailment

of the Group’s growth plans in 2020

and 2021 as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic hul (he detaled internal audit
plan should be rescheduled for 2022, Thig
internal audit plan will be complementary
but separate to the audit work undertaken
by the Group's external auditor, Deloitte.

In 2021, internal assurance has been
handled by the Group management. The
lack of an Internal Audit function in 2021
had no impact on the work of the external
auditor.

The Treasury Committee will continue

ta meet regularly to review the RBL
covenants compliance and to review the
Group's liquidity, hedging requirernents
and investment strategy.

The Committee reviewed and approved
the related compliance statements set
out in the Risk Management Report.
The Committee has also reviewed and
approved the statemeants regarding
compiiance with the 2018 Code, in

the Corporate Governance Report on
page 86. The Commitiee reviewed

and discussed with management and
the external auditor the Company’s
relevant financial information prior to
recommendation for Board approval.
This included the Financial Statements
and other material information presented
in the annual and half year reports. The
Committes considered the significant
financial reporting issues, accounting
policies and judgements impacting the
Financial Statements, and the clarity of
disclosures, The Committee conducted
a review of its Terms of Reference for
best practice, which were approved by
the Board in early 2021, These will be
reviewed again during 2022,

The Audit and Risk Commitiee and

the Board have carried out a review of

the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

Overall, the control environment was
considered to be operating effectively.
We recognise the cif and gas industry
faces many challenges ahead, including
the technical, financial, environmental
and political challenges of acceassing an
increasingly scarce resource base and at
the same time coping with the cpposing
dual challenges of production growth
but managing transition ¢ a low carbon
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future. The pressure to move 1o & low
carbon future have been prought (o the
forefront dunng the pandemic.

Cur Strategic Framework takes into
consideration the range of potential

risks and the nature of thelr impact on
the business. The strategic ambitions of
the Group, achieving our financial and
ESG objectives. maintaining operational
effecliveness, ensuring our reputation to
markets, pariners, and stakehclders are
afl assessed in the context of our appetite
for risk.

The Board is responsible for maintaining
a sound system of internai cantrols to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the assets of the Company. There is an
effective internal control function within
the Company which gives reasonable
assurance against any material
misstatement or loss. The Board and
management will continue to review the
effectiveness and the adeguacy of the
Company's internal control systems and
update such as may be necessary.

Risk assessment

The Committee carried out a detailed
risk assassment in which it reviewed
existing risks and dentified new risks

as appropriate, The hkelihood and
significance of each risk was evaluated
along with proposed mitigating factors
and was reported to the Board. All

naw risks or changes to existing risks
were monitored throughout the year
and discussed at each Committes
meeting. The Committee mantains a
comprehensive kribery risk assessmant
and mitigation procedure 1o ensure that
the Group has procedures in place 1o
elimnate bribery, and that all employees,
agents, coniractors, and other associated
persons are made fully aware of the
Group's robust policies and procedures
on a requiar basis.

We recognise the sad situation ongoing in
Ukraine. We have no direct business in the
region but are takig steps and carrying
out due diligence checks to assess if there
are any parts of the businass likely to be
directly affected and will devise mitigating
achons if needed.

b}

=
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External auditor

Deloitte was appointed as external
auditor in 2002 and no tender has been
conducted since that date. In accordance
with the 2018 Code's guidance
concerning external audit tendering and
ratation, a competitive tender process
1s required at least once every 10 years
typically. However, taking into account
the transitional provisions of Statutory
Auditors and Third Country Auditors
Regulation 2616 the Group plans to
conduct a competitive tender process
during 2022,

The Committee assess the performance
of the auditor based on their

experience, the gqualty of their writien
and oral communication and input

frorm management, prior to making

any recommendatiens as to the re-
appontment of the AGM. The committes
also assesses the independence of the
external auditor once a year and the lead
partner is required to be rotated every five
years, On completion of David Paterson’s
term Anthony Matthews succeeded

him and is compliant with the rotation
requirerments, Other senior audit staff are
also rotated every five 1o seven years.,

External auditor — non-audit
services

The external auditor is appointed primarily
to cary out the statutory audit and ther
continued indspendence and objectivity
18 crucal. in view of ther knowledge of
the business, there may be occasions
when the external auditor is best placed
to undertake other services on behalf of
the Group. The Committee has a policy
which seis out those non-audit services
which the external auditor may provide
and those which are prohiblied. Within
that policy, any non-audit service must be
approved by the Committes.

Before approving a non-audit service,
consideration g given to whether the
nature of the service, matenality of

the feas, or the level of reliance to

be placed on it by the Group would
create, or appear to create, a threat to
independence. 1f it is determined that such
a threat might anse, approval will not be
granted uniess the Committee s satisfied
that appropiate safeguards are applied to
ensure independence and that objectwvity
is not impaired. The auditor is prohibited
from providing any services which might
result in certain crcumstances that have
teen deemed to present such a threat,
including auditing their own work, taking
management decisions for the Group or
creating either a mutuality or confict of
interest. The Company has taken steps
ta develop resources and relationships in
order to establish availability of alternate
advisers for financial and other matters,

External audit fees

Total audit and non-audit fees in 2021
were $0.5m and $0.3m respectivaly.

The Committee approved all non-

audit services provided by the external
auditor in 2021.The pringcipal non-audit
fees during 2021 were $0.1m for the
interim review and $0.1m for reporting
accountant services associaied with the
Class 1 Gircular relating to the farm down
of its Egyptian concessions,

The Committee reviews its non-audit
services policy on an annual basis and
current policy requires all non-auditt
services 1o be pre-approved by the
Committee. It is noted that the Group's
policy sets out the permitted services and
those that are prohibited.

Review of the effectiveness of the Audit
and Risk Committee

During the year, the Committee has
undergone a comprehensive review of its
effectivenass and results were reported
to the Board. The Committes was
considered by the Board to be operating
efiectively and in compliance with the
2018 Code and associated guidance.

et hell

LISA MITCHELL
Audit and Risk Cornmitteg Chair
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Directors’

remuneration report

GEOFFREY GREEN
Remuneration Committee Chair

TABLE A: REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
MEETING ATTENDANCE DURING 2021

Comimittee mermber atler\diﬁi;
Rob Gray .
Marianne Daryabeguir . P,
Gecffrey Green (Ch-air) ------ .

+ Attended,

Ed Staory, Jann Brown. Mike Watts, JJohn Marin,
Lisa Mitchell and Sue Rivelt attended some of the
mestings as non-conimittes members

Role of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for setting the remuneration
of the Chair and the Executive Directors
and has oversight of pay more generally.
and is responsible for appainting any
consultants it may engage in carrying out
its duty.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board, we are pleased to present the Directors' Remuneration Report
for the financial year ended 31 Decembher 2021, This report has been prepared in
accordance with section 421 of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as

amended),

Highlights of Committee actions in
2021

2021 represented a year of considerable
challenge, with much progress made

in both our operational and strategic
objectives, In terms of remuneration,

we wish to draw your attention to the
following matters:

1. Reduction in Salary — the Executive
Directors at the start of the year
continued to take a reduction of 35%
of their salaries for the first quarter and
then further reduced this by another
15% {to a tatal reduction of 50%) from
1 April 2021 for the Executive Directors
in office at that date. These reductions
have remained in place for the
remainder of the year, The Chairman,
who had reduced his fee by 25% on
assuming the role in March 2020, also
took an additional 25% reduction along
with the other Non-Executive Directors
as from 1 May 2020 which reductions
continued throughout the full year
2021,

2. 2021 LTIP awards — The Executive
Directors volunteered o reduce thair
LTIP awards significantly in 2021,
the second year of a reduced award.
The policy limit is 200% of salary but
existing Executive Directors received
an award in 2021 equivalent to 25%
of contractual entitlerment, whilst Sus
Rivett, as the new Chief Financial
Officer, received an award of 35% of
contractual entitlerment.

3. Board changes - Sue Rivett joined
the Board on 1 July 2021 as Chief
Financial Officer. As anncunced on 13
January 2022, following the expecied
completion of the transaction with
IPR, Ed Story and Mike Watts will step
down from the Board and Jann Brown
will assume the role of Chief Executive
Officer. In support of the policy to slim
down the Board and having served
as Non-Executive Director, Senior
Non-Executive Director and Deputy
Chairman for nearly @ vears on the

Board, Rob Gray wilt not put his name
forward for re-election as a Director
at the 2022 AGM. The result of these
changes will be to reduce the size of
the Board from nine Directors {four
Executive Directors and five NEDs) to
six ftwo Executive Directors and four
NEDs}

How performance was reflected in
the pay of our Executive Directors

As reported throughout the Strategic
Report, 2021 has been a year of
significant change for the business,

not least dealing with the continued
impact of the COVID-19 virus and the
volatilty in ¢il prices. Continued strong
leadership of the Company by the
Executive Directors and other senior
management has meant that once again
we have not had to furlough any staff,
nor have we borrowed any Government
money under the loan schemes.

Strategic

The Company successiully completed an
equity placing and retail offering in January
2021 which raised gross proceeds of
approximately $11.7m.

The farm-out of the Egypt concessions
received overwhelming shareholder
support at a General Meeting in
December 2021. Pharos and EGPC have
finalised all necessary documents to be
presented to the Minister of Petroleum
and Natural Besources to approve the
transaction with PR and this approval is
expected shortly.

These strategic milestones have
strengtheaned the medium-term outlock for
the Company in terms of a return to free
cash flow and uitimately to distributions to
shargholders in due course.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Operational

On an opegrational basis, the Company
performed well across a broad range of
matrics. Production levels in Vietnam were
in line with guidance, witlst mantamning
strong safety and environment outcomes
and retaining focused cost discipline
across the business.

The strong performance despite
challenging market conditions were
reflected in the KPI assessment and pay
out-turn for 2021, with no bonuses having
baen paid the previous year. Following a
robust assessment of the performance
criteria the Committee determined the
formulaic outturn for bonuses at 72.5% of
the maximum potential. However, given
the wider stakeholder experience, the
Commitiee decided it was approptiate

to reduce the outcome by 209 to 58%

of maximum, Banus outcomes for the
wider workfarce also reflect corpotats
KPls achieved as well as personal
performance but were not subject to the
discretionary reduction applied to the
Executive Directors and therefore pald in
full, The average bonus outturn across the
workforce was 78.7% of maximum. The
2019 LTIP awards due to vest in March
2022 are expected to lapse through a
failure to meet the required relative TSR
performance conditions.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Outlook for 2022

Upon completion of 1he farm-down

of our Egypt concessions to IPR, the
Executive Directors will be Jann Brown,
Chief Executive Officer and Sue Rivett,
Chief Finanaial Cfficer. Jann’s base salary
will be £420,000, which represents a
¢.21% reduction on her previous salary

as Managing Director and is intended to
represent the new size of the business
and her expanded role, Jann has also
voluntanly proposed to invest a third of her
after tax salary in Pharos shares, subject
to share dealing restrictionsa, Sue's base
safary will be £280,000, a 7.7% increase,
reflecting her responsibilities in the
changed structure of the business since
she jcined the Board. Sue has volunteered
to invest an amount equal to her after tax
salary increase in Pharos shares, subject
to the same share dealing restrictions.

It is intended that Non-Executive Director
fees, having been reduced by 25%

from 1 May 2020, will also return to

thair previously agreed level following
completion of the Egypt farm-down to
IPR.

Annual bonus potential and LTIP award
levels permitted under the remuneration
pohcy rernaint unchanged. The main
elements of the 2021 bonus plan will

be unchanged as regards structure,
measures Tor performance (safety and
environment, operational, financial,
governance and licence to operate -
albeit with a reduction the weighting

for operational managemsnt and &
corresponding increase in safety and
environment weighting) and deferral
requirements. The Committes intends
to develop and update certain specific
objective criteria during the course of the
year, given the changing structure of the
business.

The LTIP performance metrics will be a
mixed weighting of TSR (40%] relative
and [15%) absolute and 15% weighting
to sach of cash flow from operations,
return to capital employed, and ermission
reduction targets. These changes reflect
feedback from mayor shareholders in
recent years that the LTIP should be
subject 10 a balanced scorecard of
performance measures.

Conclusion

The continued disruption of the COVID-19
pandemic has made the last financial year
extremely difficult to navigate, but our
progress is down to the exceptional efforts
of all cur employees. The Remuneration
Committee feels that the remuneration
outcomes for 2021 are a fair reflection of
the context in which decisions had 10 be
made.

We look forward to receiving your suppott
at the upcoming AGM and to working
with you face to face when circumstances
allow.

(e

GEOFFREY GREEN
Remuneration Cormmittee Chair
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Annual Report on Remuneration {(Audited section)

Single total figure of remuneration
The table below sets out the total remuneration in respect of qualifying services for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors for the

financial year 2021, It also provides comparative figures for 2020

Fees/salary Benefits Bonus LTIP Pension Total Fixed Vanahle
2021 $000'%s $000s $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's
Executive Directors
EStory 377 60 T - 57 1105 434 67
JBrown: 304 54 638 - sy 1,345 453 692
M Watts® 04 73 e - 50 1,164 453 711
S Rivett 73 5 155 . 27 260 200 160
Non-Executive Directors?
RGray Wy . : A - 137 137 .
J Martin 173 - . A . 173 473 .
M Daryabequi - -62- - - - 62 ) 62 -
LMitchel 85 . - . . 85 85 -
G Green & - - - 85 85 -
Total 1,880 192 2,042 ] 202 4,316 2,082 2,234

The henefits receivable by Executive Directors include private miedical insurance, permanent health insurance. bte assurance cover, criical iliness cover,
trave! and car benefits. £ Stary also receives expatriate benehls including tax protection or equahsation tor any travel to the UK. The benefits coluimn
for Nor-Executive Directors includes taxable travel and accommodation expenses 1o attend Board functions in the year, and the tax payable thereon, in

accordance wilh HMRC guidance.

1. The near-tenn average exchange rate at the end of the perfonmeance penod of 1.3707 has been used 1o convert share price frorm GB pounds to US

dallars.

2. txecutive Direclors’ fees and the salanes of Jam Brown, Dr Mike Walts and Sue Rivett are sel in GI3 pounds and are reported i US dollars at the

annual average exchange tate.

3. Ed Story, Jann Brown and Dr Mike Watts agrecd to a reduction of 35% of ther salary from 1 August 2020 and a further 15%, reduction from 1 Aprit 2021
for the remainder of the year. Non-[ xecutive Directors agreed to a 25% reduction of their fee throughout 2021, The figures above reflect the reductions

in salary and fees.

4. Sue Rivett was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2021,

5. The total Directors” honuses mchide the fallowing: a1 Cash bonus paid n Decermber 2021 of $886k: b) Deferred honus of $493k Lo be grantad under the
Deferred Share Benus Schema; ) Deferred bonus until cormpletion of the Faypt farm-out ($375k of winch will be paid in cash and $188k of which will be

intha DBSP).

Fees and/or salaries paid to the Direclors are m propartion with their dates of sorvice.

Fees/salary Benefits - Bonus LTIP Pension Total Fixed Varanle
2020 $000's $000's $0O00's $000's $000's $000's S000's $000's
Executive Directors®
Estoy 556 188 - - 83 827 629 188
J Brown' 44 a8 - - & 64 626 48
i\A7V\/Tat{S: S 544 -5_4 i - - - 8727 680 o 626 B 34
_No-n-E)-(ecutive Directors? - 7 S - -
ﬁdéé&iga: 7777777 59 o 1_ o - - - (s10] o 59 7 17
E_C_C)I;Til;f"_ I 29 o - - L 29 7 29 o
R Gray 145 1 - - - 146 145 1
JMartin 161 - - - - 161 161 -
MDaryabegui 64 - - - - 64 64 -
L Mitchell 64 - - - - 81 64 -
G Greei' o "476 - - - - 216 a6 -
Total 2,212 292 - - 247 3,430 2,458 292

The benefits recevable by Executive Directors include private medical insurance, permanent health insurance, Ife assurance cover, cntical iliness cover, travel and car
henefits. E Story also receives expatnate benefits mcluding tax protection or equalisation for any travet to the UK . The benefits colurnn for Non-Executive Directors
includes taxable travel and accommaodation expenses to attend Board functions in the year, and the tax payable thereon, in accordance with HMBC guidance.

1. The near-term average exchange rale at the cnd of the performance perod of 1.28 has been used to cotvert share price frum GB pounds to US dollars.

2. Lxocutive Directars” fees and the salanes of Jann Brown and D Mike Watts are set in (3B pounds and are reperted in US dollars at the annua! average exchange

rate.

3. Fxecutive Directors agreed 10 a reduction of 259- of their salary from 1 May 2020 and a further 10% from 1 August 2020. Non-Lxcculive Directors agreed 1o a 25%
raduction af tharr fec from 1 May 2020. The figures above reflect the reductions in salary and fees

Fees paid 1o the Fxecutive and Non-Executive Directars are in proportion with ther dates of sorvice,

The aggregate emoluments of all Directors during the year was $4.3m.
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Notes to the single figure table

Annual bonus

Setting measures

The Coimpany seeks ta set challenging, yet achievable. performance measures designed 1o link pay to performance against its core
strategic objectives.

The performance measures were chasen te ensure that Execttive Directars are focused on the near-term ohjectives that build the long-
term delvery of value to shareholders, which results in a combination of measures being used covering strategic, operational, financial,
business development and CR goals. While we monitor the Group's performance with a broader mix of financial and non-financial KPls,
the measures impacting the annual bonus emphasise those deemed most relevant 10 management performance and take into account
the annual budget and the prevaiing economic environment. The performance measures and targets for 2021 were set prior to the full
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic becoming evident. No subsequent adjustments have been made to the targets.

2021 annual bonus measures and out-turns

Metric Weight Perfaimance Bonus awarded
SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 15% 9%
Zero LTis 6% 6%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome
e Safety of our people » Zero LTls e Zeoro LTls « Achieved
e Sound o field

praciices
TRIR Target of 0.8 3% 3%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome
* Safety of our people + 0.8 « 7oro TRIR recorded to dale o Achioved
= Sound oll field

practices
Zero environmental spills 3% 0%
Link to strategy Target Performance Qutcarmne

* Sound ofl field « Zero emwrorimental spils ¢ 3 anvironimental spills recorded i * Not Actievad

practices Egypt.
* Management of our

carbon footprint

wherever we work
Carbon footprint improvements 3% 0%
Link to strategy Target Performance Cutcome

* Management of our
carbon footprint
wherever we work

* Maritan or reduce GHG
emissions against 2020
baseline,

Implement second stage of
waork towards compliance with
the G20 Financial Stability
Board's Task Force on Clirmate
-Related Financial Disciosures
{TCFD)
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s HG envssions dropped by 14.4% i
2021 or 3% if venting includecd

o GHG infensity was at par with
2020 at 36kg of CO e per BOE
of hydrocarbon produced {excl.
Ventingj.or 41kg of CO & per BOE
venting included.

Phase 2 TCFD algrmeant

Transition risks were assessed
over a 5-10 year perod under IEAS
recommended SDS and STERPS
scenarias Physical risks were
assessed against physical risk
datasets under the three emissions
scenanos over a 5 and 10 year
timeframe,

Continued conynitment o disclose
and report in line vath TCFD
recommendations.

* Actteved

* Panially Achieved
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Metne Weight Performance Bonus awarded
OPERATIONAL/PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 40% 30.5%
Reserves replacement of production 2.5% 2.5%
Link to strategy Target Performance QOutcome
* Replace produced » Reserves audit Q1 2021 ¢ Q1 2021 Reserves audit confinmed o Achioved
reserves and add to to confirm replacement of addition over and above production
reserve base produced reserves
Production 12.5% 3%
Link to strategy Target Performance Qutcome

* Prudent
Management in
alow ol price
environment

* Viethan production volumes
5,200 - 6.200 boepd

+ Eoypt production volumes
4,700 - 4.700 boepd

o Viginam production outturm was

5,560 hoepd

o Part Achieved for Vielnaim

+ Not Achieved for Egypt

s Fgypt production outium yoar was

3,318 boepd.

Secure extension on Blocks 125/126 5% 5%
Link to strategy Target Performance Qutcome
* Continued * Secure extension on Phase 1 o Two-year extension secured in * Achicved
development of September 2021
Viethaim assels
Farm Qut 20% 20%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome

* Effective portfolio
management

¢ Completion of farm down of
Egypt

* Approvals announced in December
2021 with comipletion expected in

* Expected to achieve in Q1 2022
and payment of this element to be

Q12022 paid on completion
FINANCIAL 30% 25%
Opex per bbl for each producing asset 5% 0%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome

» Control expenditure * Vietnam cash opex bbl

<$13.80
+ Egypt cash opex bbl <$12.90

¢ Vietnam cash opex bl $15.28

¢ Egypt cash opex bbl $17.34

» Not Achieved for Vietnam

* Not Achieved for Egypt

Overall reduction in cost base

Link to strategy Target

« Control expendrture + Maintamn cost base reductions

. achieved in 2020.
+ Maintain strong

batance sheet

10%

Performance

* Full year administrative expenses

lower by 10%, inclusive of

10%

Qutcome

s Achieved

employee bonuses which were not

paid in 2020.

+ Cash at bank has increased

from $24.6m to $27.1m and net

assets have risen from $293
$304.4m.,

Fmio
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Metric Weight Performance Bonus awarded
Net debt 15% 15%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome
* Access aflordable * Net debt/EDITDAX of ~2 s Net debt/EDITDAX of 1.00 * Achieved
sources of funding
* All Bank Covenants mel » #All bank covenants have been met
* Return to F ) . 29 R N i
shareholders . un;d:ng plan in place for all s InJuly 202‘1. BL secured against
activites covered by cash/ the Group's producing assets i
avallable debt plus headroom Vietnam with a four-year term that
of $10m matures in July 2025,
GOVERNANCE/LICENCE TO OPERATE 16% 8%
Skills gap analysis 5% 5%
Link to strategy Target Petformance Outcome
* Develop talent « Skills gap anialysis to map and ¢ Hoad Gffice restructure and Board * Achieved
throughout our deliver forward strategy refreshment
busingss
Compliance review 5% 0%
Link to strategy Target Performance Outcome
s Strong goverance » Complele independent review * Programime delayed by COVID-19. * Not Achieved
and persanal codes of key policy cormpliance bt we look to resurmne the review
of conduct across the Group in 2022.
Social investment 5% 3%
Link to strategy Target Perforrmance Outcome
« Strong governance * Social investment nlan * 0 Vietnam, commitment to focal * Achieved in part
and personal codes approved and implementad sourcing. eniployment, ramning
ol conduct and industry capacity building

has continued with a training levy
of $300.000 per year in a ring-
fenced fund to support developing
future Vietnamese expertise in the
industry. In addition to the traning
tevy mentioned above, a further
$265.000 was invested in 12
commenity projects.

in Egypt, under the & Fayum

and North Beni Suel Concession
Agreernents, the Contractor party
contributes a tolal of $200,000

per year split equally between

the two Concessions 1o support
traning and development within the
industry. Additionally. in cooperation
with the Ministry of Higher
Education and Scientfic Research,
Petrosilah holds an armual summer
training programme for all studenits
applying from public and private
Egyptian universities for traning n
the administrative office and the
company’s fields, from which they
can ofxtain a training certificate after
compieting the programrme.

Total assessment 72.5%

Overall Discretionary adjustment (14.5%}
Final cutturn 58%
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As notad in the Chair's statement, notwithstanding that the Cxecutive Direclurs deliversd a number of the KPIs in challenging
circumstances, the Cornmittee felt that the overall performance and the experience of stakeholders in 2021 should be reflected in

the overall bonus outcome. Therefore, discretion was used to reduce the bonus from 72.5% of maximum to 58% of maximum. The
Committee also noted that the Executive Directors who had served on the Board throughout the year had waived ¢.46% of their salary
aver the year and the CFQ's salary had been set at a much lower level.

Executive Directors receive a third of any banus as awards under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan. This ensures their interests remain
closely aligned with shareholders. For 2021, the total Directors’ bonuses include the following: &) Cash bonus paid in December 2021 of
$986k; b) Deferred bonus of $493k to be granted under the Deferred Share Bonus Scheme; ¢ Deferred bonus until completion of the
Egypt farm-out $563k ($375k of which will be paid in cash and $188k of which will be in the DBSP).

Date of grant No. of shares Face value of award Award as % of salary
E Story 6 October 2021 1,550,855 £310.171 58%
M Watts © &October202i 1,550,856 O £31017Y - 58%
JBrown & Ocober 2001 1.550,855 S eat0171 58%
SRivett  §0ctober2021  909.317 gtz 70%

Based on contractual salaries at tme the award was made
Face value based on share price at the time of awards were determined on 4 October 2021 (being £0.20)

Awards are subject to relative TSR performance over a three-vear period from date of grant. The awards vest at 25% for a median
ranking rising on a straight-line basis to full vesting for an upper guartile ranking.

Directors’ interests as at 31 December 2021

The Board has a policy requiring Executive Directors 1o build a minimum shareholding of 200% of their annual satary. Additgnaliy, LTIP
awards require a two—year holding period following vesting. This is intended to emphasise a commitment to the alignment of Executive
Directors with shargholders and a focus on long term stewardship.

The table below sets out the Directors’ interests as at 31 December 2021 and any subsegquent changes to their bensficially owned
shares are shown as at the date of this report:

Shargholding requirenmiant Awards subyect
[ to Option
Beneticially Awards subject Price 120 Awards subject to
Beaneficially owned owned shares 1o perfonmance pence as at service conditions
Achieved shates as al 31 as at the date of conditions as at 31 31 December as at 31 December
i%r of salary) Yes/Noy December 2021 this report December 2021 2021 2021
Executive
E Story {step down
f the Board . - . . e .
rom e BOsE thon 200% Yos 16,087,407 16271642 5.316.028 - 317,971

completion of the IPR
transacton)

J Brown® O z00% " No 7166812 1.536,692 4519507 . 438,171

M Watts' (slepL;ed
down from the Board

upon completion of the 200% No 851,633 1.083,348 4,519.507 - 438171
IPR transaction)

S Rivett {eppoiited ) T - B o o
to the Board on 1 July 200% No 1775 1,775 1,405,546 90,000 267779
2021)

N-on-Exec:utive - o o 7 : ) )

J Martin - - 130,000 130,000 - - -
M Daryabegu - . 36757 36757 R - ' - -
RGay - S . - - -
G Green o . I 95,000 R - -
L Mitehch . o - 51984 i - o
1. Figures nclude accrued dividend equivalents.

2. LTIP awards potentially vesting in March 2022 in respect of awards made in 2019 lapsed and are excluded from the abave tabile.

3. Of these sharas, 14,596,612 shares are held through IThe Story Family Trust, a clasely associated person to [d Story.

4. These shares are held by Alexander Barblett husband of Lisa Mitchell), and a closely associaled person 1o Lisa Mitchell.

_U‘\

At the date of this report. J Brown, M Watts and S Rivett are yet to reach the 200% shareholding requirement.

While the Executive Directors. as potential beneficiaries, are technically desmed to have an interest in all ordinary shares hsld by the
Cornpany's ERBT, the table above only includes those ordinary shares held by the EBT which are potentially transferable to the Directors
pursuant to Options granted to them under the Company’s incentive schemes. Detalls of the EBT and its holdings are set out in Note 28
to the Financigl Statements,

There have been nc changes to the Directors' interests subsequent to 31 Decermber 2021 other than ag set out above and as described
in the notes to the table above.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT - CONTINUED

Share awards outstanding at 31 December 2021

Date
Type of Ag at Granted/ As at patentially
award 1 Jan 2021 awarded’ Addjusted- Lapsed® Reieased 31 Dec 2021 vested ¢ Expiry date
E Story* TP 1,564,809 } C 1564850 ; . - -
n P 2214318 o . I . 2zass 07.08.22 -
- UIP 1550855 o S T 550885 10.0523 ;
) LIIP o 1,650,855 T T gssnsss 069004 o
i DSBP 383,792 o T - amare - oametr
77777 Dgép ) - 3%;’.971 - - - - - B 317571 ) $8.61.22 7
JBrown*  LUe tomess - T s - - - T
o LTIP ] 1,417,797 i i - - - 1,417,797 07;:03.22 07 .03.29
TP 1580855 ) ; - S 1550885 120523 12.06.30
) ) R C 1 sE08ms - ~ 1,550,855 64024 06.10.31
7 Dser 535,469 . ; - - 235465 03.01.21 03.01.29
DSER 902,707 R 7 - C o0e 702 090102 L
M Watts®® LTIF 1,078.649 - - 1.078.649 - - -
LTIP 7”14]?]9? - | - 1.417‘;9/ 07.63.?2 V 7(}?,03,29
ITIP 1.850.855 : - - 1550886 12.06.23 12.05.30
LTIP ; 1,560,855 - 1,580,855 06.10.24 06.30.31
DSBP 235,400 - - 235,409 030121 03.01.29
DSEP 202,702 ; - (9.01.52 09.01.22
- o o . sc270r 08.01.22 ; '
S Rivett
(és;‘c’j‘rgf‘: tﬁ:e LTIP 496.229 - . ; ; 496,229 07.03.02 07,0325
2021y
LI 267.776 . - - - 267779 100523 12.05.30
- TP ) 509317 - . 00817 06.10.24 06.10.31
B psOP 25000 B . - . 25,000 a1.05.19 a1.05.06
psop 65,000 3 85000 31.05.10 51.05.26

1. The face value of awards:
- granted to E Story, J Brown and M Watts in the: year was ©.58% of salary, or ¢.29% of contractual entitleiment.
- granted to S Rivett was ¢.70% of salary, or ¢.035% of contractual entitlement.

2. Outstanding awards under the Company's share schemes were adjusted for dividend sguivalents in accordance with plan rules tsee Note 31 to the Financial

Statenents).

3. LTIP awards vest subject to Pharos’s relative TSR performance aganst a group of comparator companics and subject 1o a further holding requiremaent. DSEBP
awards vesl subject 1o continued service over a two-year vesting period. S Rivett's 2020 | TIP award prior to being appeinted 16 the board s not subject 1o
TS porformance, but s nstead based on confinuous empioyiment and effective performance ratings for the vesting period.

4. 1 TIP awards with a potential vest date of 7 March 2022 did not achieve the performance threshold and lapsed.

5. DSBP Awards granted in 2020 to £ Stary, M Watts and J Browt were structured as conditional awards.

6. LIIP Awards to E Story were structured as conditional awards. Awards 1o WM Watts, J Brown and S DReett were structured as nil cost options,

7. LTI awards vest at 26% when the threshold 1s met.

8. USOP awards have an exercise price of 120 pence and do not have any performance conctions.

Payments for loss of office and payments to former Directors
There have been no payments for loss of office during the year nor any payments to former Directors.

As announced on 13 January 2022, Ed Story and Dr Mike Watts will step down from the Board on comipletion of the farm-out of the
Egyptian assets to IPR. Ed Story will rermain employed as President of the Vietnam business and remuneration arrangéments have been
adjusted to reflect this role. Dr Mike Watts will continue tc be paid base salary {on a pre-waiver level), benrefits and pension provision for his
notice period and continue to be elgible for a bonus In relation to 2022 for the period actively worked. He will not be eligible for any further
LTIP awards and he will be treated as a good leaver for the purposes of his cutstanding LTIP awards, which shall remain subject to the
cnginal performance conditions and time pro-rating.

The full terms of the leaver arrangaments will be detailed in next years Directors’ Remuneration Report,
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Unaudited Section

Historical TSR performance and CEQO outcomes

TSR performance

The chart below illustrates Pharos' ten-year TSR performance against the FTSE All Share OQil & Gas Index, being a broad market index
which is sector specific. In addition, we have shown a comparison against the current TSR comparator group used for the LTIP award.

Note that this does not represent either the comparator group or time period against which performance 1s assessed unger the LTIP
which was assessed in relation to the performance period ending in March 2022

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR} (£}

250

— Pharos Energy FTSE Ali Share Oil & Gas

--- TSR Comparator Group

150

100

50

2011 2012 2013 2014

CEO outcomes

2021

The table below shows the total remuneration paid to the CEO over the same ten-year pericd. In addition, the annual bonus and LTIP

awards vesting are set out 1n respect of each year as a percentage of the maximum:

2021

2011
GEQ single figure of rerungrabon (S000s) 2.362
.;\ﬂnua\ bonus_p;jfc-;ut {Pa of maximunrﬁ}iw 1()()%7
EIP vesting (o of maarmumy o 53%

208 2122 1,105

58%

0%

1. The current year annual average exchange rate has been applied to converl GB pounds to US dollars for ali periods to ensure consistency between

penods.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT - CONTINUED

Percentage change in remuneration of the Directors

The table below illustrates the percentage change in salary, benefits and annual bonus for each Director and all other employees.

% change % change % change in % change In % changs in 9% change in

in salary i salary henefits benefits annual bonus annual bornus

{2021/2020) (2020/2019) (2021/20200° (2020/2019)¢ {2021/2020) (2020/2019)°

E Story -32.1% -39.9% -57.8% 4,4%, 100.0% -100.0%
M Watts YRR £.9% 26.4% 4.5% T100.0% 00.0%
JBown -32.1% 5.9% 5.5% azs  100.0% 00.0%
S Rwvett * N/A NeA NA A NeA NiA
J Martin - MAA N“Aﬁ ) S N; NAA N/A N_A
M Daryalyegui -10.0% 52% Y 0.0% - Tl
R Gray 129 BT -100.0% 311% -
L Mitchell ¢ I V7N A N NAA A A
érér;—};h;” B NAA NA NA ) Iﬁn_ h NAA NYA
Al other employeas 7.0% -4.4% —%5_80_9___ 10.0% 100% 100.0%

1. The decrease 1 benefits for CFO s due to a decrease in UK taxable beneits,

2. Bonusos are normally awarded in respect of the calendar yoar. No honuses were awarded in relation 1o 2020,

3. 1he figures detaled above reflect the satary reductions that have been taken by the Directors. The Executive Directors at the start of the year continued
to take a reduction of 35 of thei salares for the first quarter of 2021 and then further reduced s by another 15% (1o a total reduction of 50%) from
15t April 2021 for the Executive Drirectors in office at that date, These reductions stayed in place lor the remander of the year. The Charman. who had
recluced his fee by 25% on assuming the role n March 2020, also took an additional 25% along with the other Non-Executive Directors froni 1st May

2020 which continued through the full year 2021,

4. S Rivett was apponted to the Board on 1 July 2021,

. J Martin was appointed as Char in March 2020 on a lesser remuneration of £150.000 per annum.

. | Mitchell was appointed to the Board on 1 Apn| 2020,

7. O Green was appointed 1o the Board an 20 May 2020,

Chief Executive Officer's pay ratio

The Company currertly has 21 UK employees and therefore has no statutory requirement to publish @ CEO pay ratio. Given the relatively
few employees, the Committee is aware of pay levels and does not feel the need to produce a ratic. The Committea will continue to
review the appropriateness of publishing pay ratios in the future,

Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below illustrates the ysar on year change in total remuneration as per Note 11 to the Financiat Statements compared to the
change in shareholder returns, which would include capital returns, dividends and share buybacks.

$m
Shareholder distributiors

2021: 0
2020: 0

Wages and salaries

N, 14.3
R, 1.9

0 2 4
H>021 M 2020

* In 2020 no bonuses were awarded.

External appointments

8

10 12 14 16

With prior approval of the Board, Executive Directors are allowed to accept non-executive appointments on other poards and to retain

the associated directors’ fees. Under this Policy:

s FEd Story serves on the boards of Vedanta Resources PLC and Essar Exploration and Production Limited Mauritius, for which he

retaned associated fees for 2021 in the amounts of $35,932 (2020: $79.895) and $23,757 (2020: $nil) respectively; and

¢ Jann Brown serves on the boards of Troy Income and Growth Trust and RHE Magnesita. for which she retained associated fees for
2021 in the amounts of £28,625 (2020: £28,297) and €52,566 (2020: £nil} respectively.

* Implementation for 2022
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Base salary
The fallowing table shows the Executive Director pre-waiver base contractual salary levels.

2022 Base salary 000s 2021 Base salary Q00s” Increase from 2021 %
E Story 8702 $roz —%
JBrown - £535 /8420 o535 o
ME’at@ - - ~ g535 © gs35 I —‘z
SRvett - © £280 o0 7.7%

Ihe figures given ahove do not include the temporary reduction in salary that the Excoutive Directors volunteered o take in 2020 and which remain in
place.

As noted in the Chair's Statement, on completion of the farm down, Jann Brown's salary as Chief Executive Officer will be reset to
£420,000 and the waivers will cease. Jann voluntarily proposes to invest a third of her after tax salary into buying shares in the Company,
subject to share dealing restrictions. Furthermore, Sue Rivett voluntarily proposes to invest an after tax salary equivalent to £20,000
gross pay into buying sharcs, subject to the same share deuling restrictions.

Benefits

For 2022, benefits avaitable to Executive Directors will be consistent with those set cut in the Directors” Remuneration Policy approved at
the 2020 AGM and as summarised further below.

Pension

For 2022, a pension benefit at 15% of salary will be provided to each Executive Director through contributions to the Company's money
purchase plan up to plan limits or a cash supplement. Our Pension Policy for Executive Directors is already consistent with that for all
employees (as & percentage of salary).

Annual bonus

It is intended that annual bonus awards will be considered for Executive Directors in December 2022, The maximum total bonus
opportunity for an Executive Director in each year is 150% of salary, including cash and deferred companents in accordance with the
approved Policy. The table below sets out the weighted performance measures which will be applied in determining annual bonus
awards for 2022, and identifies the Ink from each of these measures to our core strategy of:

2022 KPI'S

Metric Weight  Paerformance criteria which will be considered

Safety & environment

Strategic objectives; to proserve the safety of all * Zero LTls
our pecple, staff and contractors and preserve tho « TRIR target - 0.5
environment through sound ol field practices and N
management of Gur own carbon footprint wherever we
work. * Carbon foolprint mprovements

* GHG emissions lower than baseline 2020

» TCFD Phase 2

* Zero environment spills

Operational/ portfolio management

Strategic chjectives: to replace produced reserves and
add to the reserve base in a way which value and/or
cashflow accretive.

Production volumes for all producing assets

Complete farm down of Egypt and execule initial development drilling
programme

s Seek farm in partner for 125/126 commitment well
» Secure extension on NBS
¢ Complete 2 well Development driling campaign on TGT and 1 well on CNV

Financial

Strategic objectives: to control expenditure and access s Opex per bbi for each producing asset
affordable sowrces of funding in order to maintain a
strong balance sheet with sufficient liguid resource Lo
fund planned activities,

Maintain cost base reductions achieved in 2020/2021
Net debt to EBITDAX
All bank covenants met

Funding plan in place to cover commitments

Governance/ licence to operate

Strategic obiectives: to instl a way of working that is * Streamline Board structure
strong on governance and personal codes of conduct,
to develop talent throughout our business to support
overall performance and succassion planning.

* Soclal investment plan approved and implemented
« Complete independent review of key palicy compliance across the Group
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT - CONTINUED

Details of how the Commities assessed performance against these weighted measures will be set out in next year s report. The
Committee retains discretion over the amount of bonus paid out to ensure that appropriate consideration is given to the relative
importance of the achlevements in the year and the actual contribution of these towards furthernng the Group's strategy, as well as the
prevailling €conomic environment.

LTIP

The LTIP grant level for 2020 and 2021 was reduced substantially and the Committee will take this and al! other relevant circumstances
into account in considering the appropriate grant level for 2022.

The performance conditions for the 2022 awards are expected to be a mixed weighting as follows: of TSR (40%) relative and (15%}
absolute and 15% weighting to each of cash flow from operations, return on capital employed, and emission reduction targets.

Metnc Waight Targets

TSR - Relative )
40% Same criteria

As above,

TSR - Absolute

Achieve 20% growth over the 3 year period awards 3.75% 15% 20% 10 30%
sliding scale to 30% for the full 15%

ESG medium term measures (base 2021)

Achieve 10% reduction over a 3 year period awards 3.75% 15% 10% fo 15% reduction I emissions.
shding scale 10 15% for the full 15%.

Cash flow from operations

Achieve $150m cash flow from operations over the 3 year peniod 15% $150m to $200m
awards 5% slicding scale 1o $200im for the full 15%

Return on Capital Employed

Achieve over 6% average per year for the 3 year penod 1o 15% B% t0 10%
achieve 3.75% sliding scale to 10% for the full 15%

Shareholder dilution

Pharos moenitors the number of shares issued under employee share plans and ther impact on dilution limits. These will not exceed the
Irmits set by The Investment Association Principles of Rernuneration currently in force, in respect of all share plans {10% in any roling
ten-year period).

Malus and clawback provisions

All variable pay arrangements for Executive Directors are subject to provisions which énable the Commitiee to reduce vesting, or recover
value delivered if centain circumstances occur. These circurnstances include serious misconduct, an error N calculation, misstatement

of the Company's financial results, fraud, insolvensy of the Company or serious reputational damage to the Company. In each case the
occurrence of those circumstances and the effect on vanable pay arrangements will be determined by the Committee.

Non-Executive Director remuneration

Non-Executive Director fees, which have been set within the aggregate limits set out in the Company's articles of association and
approved by shareheolders, are set out in the table below,

Fee from 1 January 2022 Fee from 1 January 2021
Charr of the Company £150,000 £15G,000
Bepu'(y Chairr&iéemor Imdepe;;iem Director - a - B £1 26300 N __51 20,000
Nome;(;(;utive Dlre(:lc;r_ o N - o a £60,000 o : EBG;{)O
Agc;}lior1al fee: C@F of Audit and?%isk Cor‘nmitte; o B - £1 5,06_0. ) E-SDOO
Additional fe; Char of Reninéraﬂon Conu‘ninee o o N £1g:\;)00 - - £15.000
Adr,jim;)ialr fee: Workforicis;Engage’ ne:m;ﬂnsninated Djr;(;lor o 77£5,000 - B ES.OEJ

" Includes feeas for any Committes role
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The Chair fess were reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committes. The Non-Executive Director fees were reviewed and
approved by the Board, excluding the Non-Exacutive Directors. The fees of all Non-Executive Director are expecied to return to May
2020 pre-waiver levels upon completion of the farm-down of the Egypt concessions.

For 2022, benefits available to Non-Executive Directors will be consistent with those set out in the Policy approved at the 2020 AGM.
Non-Exscutive Directors are not eligible for participation in the Company's incentive or pension schemes.

Service Contract (reference Table A: Directors Contract on page 118.

Consideration by Committee of matters relating to Executive Directors’ remuneration

The Directors who were mermbers of the Remuneration Committee when matters relating to Directors’ remuneration for the year were
being considered were Rob Gray, Marianne Daryabegui and Geoffrey Green.

The Committee receivad assistance from Ed Story, Jann Brown and Sue Rivett subsequently, except when matters relating to their
own remuneration were being discussed, The Committee additionally received assistance from other Non-Executives Directors when
required.

The Committes has appointed FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP ('FIT") as its remuneration advisers, and fees of £19,913 were paid in
2021 for their advisory services. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and complies with their professional code of
conduct. FIT do not provide any other services to the Group which, along with FIT's credentials and proven performance, contributes to
the Committee’s view that the advice received has been appropnate, objective and independent.

The Committes reviews all aspects of remuneration on an annual basis and with respect to individual and corporate performance during
the year. The review is aided by comparison to published data on executive pay in the sector and in similar sized companies. More
detailed benchmarking may be conducted, such as upon an indication of a change in market ranges, with results being monitored for
indications of potential unwarranted upward ratcheting. The Committee receives regular updates on evolving regulatory and market
practice including market trends, key developments, and a broad range of published principles and guidelines. The Committee takes
Into account pay conditions elsewhere in the Company, and considered matters related to Group remuneration.

Shareholder voting

The binding resolution on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was passed at 2020 AGM. The advisory vote on the Directors’
Remuneration Report was approved at last years’ AGM. The table below shows votes from shareholders on the relevant resolutions:

Directors’ Remuneration Report (2021 AGM)

Directors” Remuneration Policy (2020 AGM)

Votes Yo Votes Yo
Votes in favour 210,985,269 96.56% 217.778.159 92.62%
Votes _ag;un;t - - T,526:f£;8 7 R 3_.44;% o 1_?,354‘025 . %.Sé%
Total votes - o 218,512,007 7 " 1 60.{_)0":’0 235:1 52 184 . 1()0‘00"7‘0
Vo-teé withheld o o 4,136 - 7 5‘77?3' 7 -
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT - CONTINUED

Policy Report (Unaudited)

This Directors' Remuneration Policy became effective from the date of the 2020 AGM. This section provides a summary of the Palicy
approved. The full Policy can be viewed in the 2020 Annual Repaort on our website at: https://www.pharos.energy/investors/results-

reports-and-presentations/.
Operation

¢ Contractual fixed cash amount paid imonthly

* Particular care is given in fixing the appropriate salary
level consiclering that incentive pay is generaily sct at
a fraction or multiple of base salary

* The Committee takas into account a number of

factors when setling salaries. including (but not
limited o).

*  Size and scope of individual’s responsibibties

+  Skills and experience of the individual

*  Performance of the Company and the individual
*  Appropriate market data,

*  Pay and conditions elsewhere n Pharos

* Base salaries are normally reviewed annually

+  Results of benchmarking excroises are monitored
for indications of petential unwarranted upward
ratcheting

Operation

¢ Excoutive Directors recenve benefits which may
meiude bt are not imited to) medical care and
insurance, permanent health insurance, lifc assurance
cover, critical iliness cover. travel benefits, expatriate
benefits, car bencfits and relocation expenses

* Reasonable business related expenses will be
renmbursad ncluding any tax payable thereaont

+  Pension benefits are delivered through contnibutions
1o the Company’s money purchase plan up to
relevant plan limits and/or a cash supplement

Operation

*  Payments are based on perornmance in the relevant
financial year.

= At the beginning of the year, the Comniittee sets
ohjectives which it considers are cntical to the delivery
of the husiness strategy.

« Parformance aganst these key stratege objectives is
assessed by the Comunittee at the end of the year.

= The Comrnittee retaing the discretion to amend the
bonus pay-out inegatively or positively) to ensure it
reflecls the performance of either the individual or the
Company.

«  One-third of any bonus pay-out 1s subject to deferral
into Pharos shares under the Deferred Share Bonus
Plan.

IREY Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Maximum

Any salary adiustments will normally be in line
wath those of the wider waorkforce

The Comimittee retains discration to award
higher increases in certain circurnstances
such as increased scope and responsibility
of the role, or in the case of new Executive
Dnectors who are positioned on a lower
salary initially, as they gain experience over
time. In these circumstances a base salary
increase will not excecd the CEO's previous
satary of $§24.000

Maximum

Benefits are positioned at an appropriate
maried level for the nature and location of the
role. Whilst the actual value of benehits imay
vary from year to year based on third party
costs. it is intended that the maximum annual
value will not exceed $250,000 or £200.000,
per Directors’ basa currency

In addition to the above cap, the Company
may contribute to relocation expeanseas up (o
100% of salary

*  15% of base salary per annum
Maximurm
s 150% of base salary per annum. including

cash and deferred components at the
dscretion of the Committers.

Performance critena

s N/A

Performance criteria

e N/A

* N/A

Performance criteria

¢ The annual bonus is based
on individual and corporate
perarmance durng the year,

+  Corporate goals are set annually
and rmay include monitored
measures for particular projects:
vortfolio obiectives; corporate
sirateqic goals; safety, social
and environmental measures;
financial measures; and other
measures as may be destnad
appropnate and relevant 1o
the period for delwery of the
business strategy.

s If the Conumittee determines

that a mirimum level of
performance has not been
achieved. no bonus will be
payable. Thereafter the bonus
will begin paying out. up to the
rmaxwnum of 150% of salary.

o  The Commitiee determines the
appropriate weighting of the
melncs each year.
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Operation Maxirsiurm Performance criteria

* Typically a conditional award of shares or a nil price *  Usually 200% of base salary per annum *  Awards vest based on
option is made annually, normally in December, in the performance against financial,
course ol the annual review cycle operational and/or share
price measures, as sot by the

* |ncircumstances which the Committee
determines te be exceptional, annual awards

» Vasling of the awards is dependent on the of up 10 400% of bhase salary per annum may . .
i . i Cominittee, which are aligned
achievement of performance targets, which are he made . ;
i = . with the jong-tenm strategic
typically imeasured over a three-year perfonmance A
period objeclives of Pharos

*»  Noless than 50% of the award
will be based on share price
measures. The remainder
will be basedt on financial,
operalional measures

s Awards (post of tax) will also be subject ta a two-year
post-vesting holding pericd during which they cannct
he sold {except in exceptional circumstances and
with the Committee's prior approval)

¢ For 'threshold' levels of
perfonnance, 25% of the award
vests. 100% of the award will
vest for meaxamun periormance.
Pro-rating applies between
these points and between
ranking positions

*  The Committee may reduce
LTIP vesting outcomes
fincluding to zero), based
on the result of testing the
perfonnance condition, if it
considers the potential outcome
to be nconsistent with the
pertormance of the Company,
business or individual during
the performance period. Any
use of such discretion would be
detailed in the Annual Report on
Remuneration

Operaticn Maximum Performance criteria

*  The Board has a policy of requiring Executive
Directars to builct a minimum shareholding i Pharos
shares equivalenit 1o 200% of salary

¢ A post cessation shareholding guideline will opcrate
from the approval of this Policy. Executive Directors
will e expected to retain the lower of aclual shares
heild and shares equal to 200% of salary for one * N/A » N/A
year post-cessation and 100% of salary for up to
two years post-cessation (unless the Committee
exceptionally determines that it is appropriale 10
release this reguirement), Pharos shares which vest
from future deferred bonus and LTIP awards will be
retained until 2 sufficient holding has been built up

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:
[ Gl

GEOFFREY GREEN
Remuneration Committee Chair

156 March 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors’ report

Annual Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report, along with the audited Financial Statements of the Group for the year snded 31 December

2021,

The following sections of this report are incorporated herein by reference and form part of this Directors’ report.

Strategic report

Board of Di;eCtOrS

Corporate Governance report
ESG Commities report
Nominati;)ns Comm-ittee report
Audit and Risk Comm{ttee report
Directors' Rélﬂtlﬂ@!'&]tioﬂ report
F|r-wanC,LaI Statements

Additional Information

pages 2 1078
page 83 to 85
pa-c;;es 86 to _91
pages 92 to 94
bages 9510 26
pages 97 to 101
pages 102 to 116
pages 123 to 162
pages 16310 171

Developments following the 2021
reporting period

Arindication of the likely future
developments in the business of the
Group is included in the Strategic Report
on pages 2-78.

On 18 January 2022, the Company
announced Directorate Changes as
mentioned in Charman's Introduction to
Governance on page 20,

On 19 January 2022, the Third
Amendment to the El Fayum Concession
Agreement was signed by His Excellency
Eng. Tarek Bl Molla {(Minister of Petroleum
& Mineral Resources of the Arab Republc
of Egypt), EGPC and the Company.
Signature of the Third Amendment

was a key Condition Precedent for the
transfer of a 55% participating interest
{and operatorship} in the Ei Fayum and
North Bern Suef Concessions to I1PR
Lake Qarun. The net assets of El Fayum
and North Ben Suef associated with the
55% participating interest have been
reclassified as assets held for sale at 31
December 2021.

AR Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Under the terms, the cost recovery
percentage will be increased from 30%

to 40% allowing Pharos a significanty
faster recovery of all its past and future
investments. In retun, Pharcs has agreed
to waive its rights to recover a portion

of the past costs poo! ($115 milion) and
reduce its share of Excess Cost Recovery
Petroleum from 15% to 7.5%. While in fuli
cost recovery mode, Contractor's share of
revenue increases from 42.6% to 50.8%
as from Navermber 2020 {corresponding
to additional net revenues to Contractor of
$7.0m to the date of signature).

Assuming conditions at 31 December
2021, the discounted cash flows from the
remaining 45% share held and calculated
for impairment purposes would increase
from $42.2m to $77.4m

Pharos and EGPC have finalised all
necessary documents to be presented
to the Minister of Petroleum and Natural
Resources to approve the transaction
with PR and this approval is expected
shottly, The transaction is expected to
strengthen the Group’s balance sheet
and enable a more comprehensive and
quicker development of the £l Fayum
Concession, as well as testing of the low
rsk North Beni Suef Concession at low
cost to Pharos through a sustained drilling
programme.

Results and dividends

The audlited Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 Dacember 2021 are set
out on pages 12310 162, In 2021, the
Board had to make a difficult decision to
continue to suspend dividend payments
for the second year, given the continued
uncertainty in the macro environment
driven by COVID-19 and the pressure on
oft price agamst this backdrop.

The Board will continue to use the well-
documented capital allocation crteria to
assess whare and how to apportion any
free cash flow generated. The key goals
are 1o preserve balance sheet strength, o
invest in growth opportunities in excess

of the cost of capital and to generate
sustainable returns 1o sharsholders, as we
have done since 2008.



Governance Report

Directors

The business of the Company is managed
by the Directors who may exercise all
powers of the Company subject to the
articles of association of the Company
(“Articles”) and applicable law. The
Directors who held office during the

year, and up to the date of signing this
Annual Report, and the dates of their
curnent service contracts or letters of
appointment, which are available for
inspection, are listed in Table A of this
report. All Directors held office throughout
the year except as noted in the table. The
NEDs’ appointments are terminable at

the will of the parties. Fxecntive Nirectors’
contracts are terminable by either party an
giving one year’s natice.

In accordance with the provisions of

the UK Corporate Governance Code,

all Directors will retire at the 2022 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappeintment. As announced on 13
January 2022, Rob Gray confirmed his
intention not to stand for reappointment at
the 2022 AGM. Sue Rivett was appointed
to as a Director on 1 July 2021 Relevant
details of the Directors, which include their
Committee memberships, are set out in
the section headed ‘Board of Directors’
on pages 83 1o 85.

Pharos provides liability insurance for its
Directors and Officers. The annual cost of
thes vuver is nol material to the Group. the
Articles allow it to provide an indemmnity

for the benefit of ita Directors, which is

a qualifying indemnity provision for the
purpose of section 233 of the Companies
Act 2006 {("2006 Act”). The Company has
made such provisions for the benefit of its
Directors in relation to certain lcsses and
liabilities that they may incur In the course
of acting as Directors of the Company, its
subsidiaries or associates, which remain
in force at the date of this report.

No member of the Board had a material
interest in any contract of significance with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries at
any time during the year. except for their
interests in shares and in share awards
and undet their service agreements

and letters of appointment disclosed

in the Directors' Remuneration report
commencing on page 102,

TABLE A: DIRECTORS HOLDING OFFICE DURING 2021 AND UP TO THE DATE OF SIGNING OF THIS REFORT

Director

Date of contract

John Martin - Chair®

Edward Story - President and Chief Exccutive Ofticer (10 step down from the Board upon

completion of the fransaction with IPR)

Jann Brown - Managing Director (from 1 July 2021} and Chief Executive Ofticer (upon

completion of the transaction with IPR)

Mike Watts {to step down upon completion of transaction with PR

Managing Director

Rob Gray' Deputy Chair and Senior Independent Director

Sue Rivetl. Chief Financial Officer tappointed 1 July 2021)

Mariarne Daryabegui

Geoffrey Green’

23 August 2021
14 May 1997

6 December 2017
& December é01‘;'
76 Décen*wber 2071 7
S;Deéel-n_ber 203
21 Séplé;nber 2021
7 WgMércfw 2019

16 April 2020

Lisa Milchell”

10 March 2020

Denctes those determined by the Board to be Independent Non-Executive Directors as descriped in the Corporate Governance report

on page 81.

Contributions

The Group's policies prohibit political
donations.

AGM

An explanation of the resolutions to be
proposed at the 2022 AGM, and the
recomrnendation of Directors in relation
to these, is included n the circular to
shareholders which is available on the
Company's website jwww.pharos.energy),
Resolutions regarding the authority to
1Issue shares are commented upon in this
report under share capital.

A separate communication will be
sent to shareholders and published on
the Company’s website regarding the
Company's AGM.

Share capital

Details of changes to share capital in

the period are set out in Note 27 {o the
Financial Statements. The Company
currently has one class of shares in issue,
ordinary shares of £0.05 each, all of which
are fully paid. Each ordinary share in issue
carries equal rights including one vote
per share on a poll at general mestings
of the Company, subject to the terms

of the Articles and law. Shares held in
treasury carry no such rights for sa long
as they are held in treasury. Votes may

be exercised by shareholders attending
or otherwise duly represented at general
mestings. Deadlines for the exercise

ot voting rights by proxy on a pall at a
general meeting are detailed in the notice
of meeting and proxy cards 1ssued in
connection with the relevant meeting.
Voting rights relating tc the ordinary
shares held by the EBT are not exercised.
The Articles may only be amended by a
special resolution of the shareholders.

No shareholder, unless the Board decides
otherwise, is entitled tc attend or to vole
gither personally or by proxy at a general
rmeeting or to exercise any other right
conferred by being a shareholder if he

or she or any person with an interest in
ordinary shares has been sent a notice
under section 793 of the 2006 Act (which
confers upon public companies the power
to require information with respect to
interests in their voting shares) and he

or she or any interested person failed to
supply the Company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of
that notice,

The Board may also decide that no
dividend is payable in respect of those
default shares and that no transfer of
any default shares shall be registered.
These restrictions end seven days after
receipt by the Company of a notice of
an approved transfer of the shares or all
the information required by the relevant
section 793 notice, whichever is earlier.
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The Directors may refuse to register

any transfer of any share which is not a
fully-paid share, although such discretion
may hot be exercised in a way which the
Financial Conduct Authority regards as
preventing dealings in shares of that class
from taking place on an Gpsn or propér
basis, The Directors may likewise refuse
any transfer of a share in favour of more
than four persons jointly.

The Company is not aware of any other
restrictions on the transfer of ordinary
shares in the Company ¢ther than certain
restrictions that may from time to time

be impesed by laws and regulations

(for example, insider trading laws); and
pursuant to the Listing Rules whereby
certain employees of the Company require
approval of the Comparny to deal in the
Company's shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreernents betweaen shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer

of securities or vating rights. Resolutions
will be proposed at the 2022 AGM, as

is customary, to authorise the Directors

to exercise all powers to allot shares

and approve a lmited disapplication of
pre-emption rights. This authority will be
sought in ling with institutional shareholder
guidance, and in particular with the
Pre-Emption Group's Staterment of
Principles {the “Pre-Emption Principlas™),
the authorty sought for disapplication

of pre-emption rights will be 10% on the
basis that 5% of this is only intended to be
used in accordance with the Pre-Emption
Principles. Further information regarding
these resolutions, which are based on
template resolutions published by the Pre-
Emption Group, 1s set out in the circufar

to sharehalders. A resolution will also be
proposed af the 2022 AGM, as Js also
customary, 1o renew the Directors’ existing
authority to make market purchases of the
Company’s Ordinary Share capital, and

to limit such authority to purchases of up
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to approximately 10% of the Company's
issusd Ordinary Share capital. Shares
purchased under this authority may either
be cancelled or held as treasury shares.

Audlitor

A resolution to reappeint Deloitte LLP as
the Company’s auditor will be proposed
by the Dirsctors at the 2022 AGM.
Delcitie also provide non-audit services

to the Group, and details of the non-
audit services provided in the year to 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 10

to the Financial Statements. All non-

audit services are approved by the Audit
and Risk Committee. The Directors are
currently satisfied, and will continue to
ensure, that this range of services is
delivered in compliance with the relevant
ethical guidance of the accountancy
profession and does not impair the
judgement or Independence of the auditor.
Further details of the Group policy on non-
audit setvices are set out in the Audit and
Risk Committee Report on pages 97
101071,

The Directors at the date of approval of
this report confirm that, so far as they

are each aware, there is no relevant audd
information, being information needed by
the auditor in connection with preparing its
report, of which the auditor are unaware.
Each Director has taken all steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director, having
made such enquines of fellow Directors
and the auditor and taken such other
steps as are required under their duties

as a Director, to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor 1s aware of that
information. This confirmation is given and
should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the 2006
Act.

Greenhouse gas emissions
reporting

Reporting on emission sources, as
required under the Cornpanies Act
2006 (Strategic and Directors’ Reports)
Regulations 2013 and the Energy and
Carbon Report Regulations 2018, 1s
included in the Corporate Responsibility
report on pages 6910 75 and 78.

Tax governance

The Company 1s committed to high
standaras of tax governance and
strives to meet its tax obligations. Tax
confributions benefit the communities
in which we cperate by providing a
framework within which the Company can
grow. Pharos’ Tax Sirategy Staterment,
which the Board has approved, defines
the key tax objectives of the Group and
is available on the Company’s website”
(www.pharos.energy).

Risk management

The Directors carried out a robust review

of the principal and emerging risks |
facing the Group that could threaten

the Compary's business madel, future

performance, sclvency and hguidity.

The Risk Management and Risk report

on pages 43 to 57 detalls how we

manage and mitigate these risks.

Substantial shareholdings

Az al the date of this report, the Company
had been notified, in accordance

with Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, of the voting rights as
a shareholder of the Company shown in
Tabile B of this report.
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TABLE B: SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHCOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

No of Ordinary Shares held as % of votng rights’ Nature of holding
Lormbard Odier Asset Mal ragement (Europe) Limited” 44,557,978 10.070 Direct
E{tore COHtIHI - 1%2,613:_57;,; o ? 369 o D\rect al 1d \ndlrcu
Blue Albacore Busmess Ltd T S 31 ,61 7359_ - ? 144 DII’G(A
Globe De,d\s Ltd - - ) 57.2/&4582 ) G 201 o Direct
Aberorth Partrers LLP T | 25,883,843 5849 - Direct
Chemsa Ltg - © 7 24426925 - &sw9 Direct
Yorktown Energy Padl?erb Vi, LP - - ?2982‘393 - 5,103 S Direc:t
Ed Story ST . 16,087,407 4635  Direol and indirect

1. As at 15 March 2022, the iotal volng nghts allachsd to the ssucd shars capital of the Gompany compnsed 442,562 601 ordnary shares each of £0.00
nominal value, being 151 684,860 ardinary shares inissue less 3, 122 268 ordinary sharos currently held in freasuny.

2. The Comipany has been motified that, of these shares 28.780.000 shares are held through Liquid Business L td. a closely associated person 1o Eitore
Caentini,

Lo

Of these shares, 1.675,000 Shares are held through The Story Family Trust. a closely associated person to Ed Slory, and the balance are hetd by Mr
Story personally.

4. As at 31 December 2021, | ornbard Odier Asset Management (Furope) Lirnited heldd 22,117,521 Shares represcniing 4.998% of lhe voting tights in the
Comparny at lhat time.

During the period between 31 December 2021 and 15 March 2022, the Company did not receive any notifications under chapter 5 of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules indicating a different whole percentage holding at 31 Decernber 2021 other than as shown in the
footnotes to the substantial shareholder table above. For further information on Directors’ interests, please see page 108.

Requirements of the UK Listing Rules
Table C of this report provides references to where the information required by Listing Rule 8.8.4R is disclosed within this Annual Report:

TABLE C: LISTING RULES REQUIREMENTS

Listing Rule requircment

Directors'
Detals of any long term incentive scheimes as required by Listing Rule 8.4.3 R, Retmuneration Report
pages 102-116

Details of any arrangements under which a director of the company bas waived or agreed to waive any emoluments from the
company or any subsidiary undertaking. Where a director has agreed to waive future emoluments, details of such waver logether No such walbvers
with those relatng to emohimemr which were waved durlng the penod under raview.

Details regured n the case of any allobment for cash 01 eqmty securities made during the penod under review otherwme than
to the holders of the company’s equity shares In proportion to their holdings of such equity shares and which has not been
specifically authorised by the mmpanys shareholders

No such share
allotments

Details of any contract of significance subsisting during the perlod undler review: (a) 1o which the lsted company, or one of its
stibsidiary undertakings, is a party and in which a director of the listed company is or was materially interested, and (b} between Note 35 page 160
the listed cormpany, or one of its subsidiary undenakings, and & contmlhng shareholder.

Letails ot any arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or aqreed to waive any dividends, where a shareholder has
agreed to waive future dividends, details of such waiver together with thase relating to dividends which are payable during the Note 28 page 156
period under review.

Whistleblowing procedure Business Relationships

The Board has reviewed, and is satisfied In order to foster relationships with suppliers and customers, Pharos ensures a robust
with, the Group’s Whistieblowing Policy engagement process before contracts are awarded. Every vendor is required to complste
and associated procedures, enabling due diligence so that the Company may ensure all corporate and banking details are
employees 1o raise issugs in confidence recorded and checked before inveices are issued; this allows for prompt and accurate
concerning improprigties which would payment. Where possible, payment terms are 30 days from date of receipt of a validly

be addressed with appropriate follow-up submitted invoice. A comprehensive contracts register is maintained to ensure that post
action. The Group has in place an Ethics award contract management is addressed to consider delivery of appropriate notices of

Hotline using a dedicated, confidential and renewal of termination.
anonymaous telechone service avallable to
staff to report a suspected breach of the
Group's Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics.

We strive to work constructively with all our suppliers, customers and other business
partners to build and maintain productive relationships.
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Going concern

It should be recognised that any
consideration of the foreseeable future
involves making a Judgsment, at a
particular point in time, about future
events which are inherently uncertain.
Nevertheless, at the time of preparation
of these accounts and after making
enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adeguate
resources to continue operating for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, and
taking into consideration the additiona!
factors in the Strategic Report on pages
2 to 78 including the Geing

Congern section of the CFQO's statement
on pages 38 to 42, they continue

to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.

Phares Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Directors’ responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the annual report and the
Financial Statements in accordance with
international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008 and International
Financial Reporting Standards adopied
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The Financial Statements have
alsc besn prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the IASB. The
Ditectors are required to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year that
give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and of the
Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group for that
period. In prepanng those accounts the
Directors are required to select suitable
accounting policies and then apply them
consistently; present information and
accounting policies in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable and comparable
information; and state that the Campany
and the Group have complied with
applicable accounting standards, subject
to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financiai position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to énsure that the
accounts comply with relevant legislation.
They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group
and hence for taking reascnable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on
the Company's website. Information
published on the internet 1 accessible
In many countries with different legal
requirements. Legislation 1n the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of Financial Statements
may differ from legislation in other
Junsdictions,

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors confirm that, to the best of
each person's knowledge:

a) the Financial Statements set out on
pages 123 to 162, which have
been prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in
confarmity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and International
Financial Reporting Standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1806/2002 as it apples in the
European Union and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the IASB,
give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and loss of
the Company and the Group taken as
a whole;

)

this Directors’ Report along with the
Strategic Report. including each of the
management reports forming part of
these reports, includes a far review of
the development and performance of
the business and the position of the
Company and the Group taken as a
whole, together with a descnption of
the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face and how these are being
managed and mitigated as set out in
the Risk Management and Risk Report
on pages 43 to 57, and

o

the annual report and the Fmancial
Statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for
the shareholders to assess the Group's
position, performance. business model
and strategy.

Approved by the Board and signed on its
behalf.

SUE RIVETT
Chief Financial Officer
15 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PHAROS ENERGY PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinior:

» the financial staternents of Pharos Energy plc {the ‘parent company'} and its subsidiaries (the 'group’} give a true and fair view of
the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the group’s Joss for the year then
ended;

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international accounting
standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(1ASBY;

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted internaticnal
accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

* the consclidated income statement;

» {he consolidated staterent of comprehensive income;

» the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

« the consolidated and parent company statemenis of changes in equity;
+ the consolidated cash flow statement; and

* the related notes 1 to 38.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UKj (1SAs (UK)} and appiicatile taw. Gur responsdilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the 'FRC's) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled cur ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services
provided 1o the group and parent company for the year are disciosed in note 10 10 the financial statements. We confirm that we have not
provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the group or the parent company.

We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
* Impairment of producing oil & gas assets

Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

@ Newly identified
@ Increased level of risk
@ Similar level of risk

@ Decreased level of risk

The materiaiity that we used for the group financial statements was $3.2 million which was determined
on the basis of the 3-year average of earnings from continuing activities tefore interest, tax, DD&A,

Materiality impairment of PP&E and intangibles, exploration cther/expenditure and Other/restructuring expense
"EBITDAX". Management's calculation of EBITDAX is provided on page 164 to the financial statements.
We focused primarily on the group’s key business units, being Vietnam and Egypt, as well as the parent
company which is based in London. Thase locations were all subject to full scepe audit and account for

Scoping 98% of the group's total assets, 83% of the group’s revenue and 100% of the group’s loss before tax

from loss making entities, Specified audit procedures were then performed on the remaining 2% of the
group’s total assets, 17% of the group's revenue and 100% of the group’s profit before tax from profit
making entities.

The Going concemn basis of accounting was included as a key audit matter in the prior year. As the
business parformance working capital and commaodity prices have improved. this is not considered a
key audit matter in the current vear.

Significant c:anges n We have changed the materiglity benchmark from Net assets and EBITDAX in 2020 tc a 3-year average
our approac of EBITDAX in 2021, See section 6.1 below for detalils.

No other changes were noted to the key audit matters or our overall audit approach as compared to the
prior year.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting includsd:

* assessed that the forecasts incorporated in the base case model are consistent with the budget

* approved by the Board;

« comparad the key assumptions in the base case forecast to those used in the impairment models for
* oil & gas producing assets and undarstocd the basis for any differences;

* assessed the historical accuracy of budgets prepared by Management;

= compared the oil prices in the aggregated downside scenario with both the spot oil price and publicly available forward curves as of the
date of approval of the financial statements;

* assessed and recalculated the impact of the aggregated downside scenario on the financial covenants included in the reserve based
lending {RBL) during the going concern period;

* assessed the ability of management to execute the mitigating actions in its aggregated downside scenario, including the extent to
which the adjustments made to capital sxpenditure are uncommitted as of the date of this report;

¢ assessed the results of the oil price reverse stress test, by comparing to currently prevailing prices;
¢ tested the going concern modet for mechanical accuracy; and

¢ assessed whether the disclosures relating to going concern are appropriate,
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Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern for a pericd of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue.

In relation to the reporting on how the group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material 10 add or draw
attention to in refation to the directors' statement in the financial staterments about whether the directors considered It appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the respensibilities of the directars with reéspect 1o going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report,

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due 1o fraud} that we
ientified. These matters Included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall aucit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the &fforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in ferming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.

5.1. Impairment of producing oil & gas assets @
Key audit matter The value of property, plant and equipment refating to the group’s producing oif and gas assets as at
description 31 December 2021 was $299.7 million (2020: $434.6 million). Impairment of producing cil & gas assets

15 considered a key audit matter due to the significant judgements and estimates involved in assessing
whether any impairment charges or reversais have arisen at year-end, and in quantiying any such
impairment charges or reversals. In addition, we considered that there was a risk of impairment due to
the potential impact of climate change on long term cil prices. Given the importance of producing oil &
gas assets 1o the group and the judgemental nature of the inputs used in determining the recoverable
amounts, we alsa considered there to be a potential for fraud in this area. We have assessed an
increased risk In 2021 as compared to 2020 as a result of the increasing risk of reserves estimates
coupled with the significant change in oil prices in 2022.

Management reviewed its two producing assets in Vietnam, being Te Glac Trang (TGT') and Ca Ngu
Vang {{CNVY), and its one producing asset in Egypt, being El Fayum, for indicators of impairment. As

a result of the steady growth of the ol prices in 2021 compared to the volatility in 2021, Management
revised ther ol price assumptions upwards during 2021 compared to the prior year assumptions, as set
cut in note 16 of the financial statements. Given the significance of the revision, together with changes
1o estimates of oil & gas reserves, Management concluded that there was an indicator of impairment
reversals for all thres of those fields. Management have estimated the recoverable amount of each field,
being its Valug-in-Use "VIU", and compared this to its balance sheet carrying amount.

Management recorded pre-tax imparment reversal of $3.8 million on CNY (2020: pre-tax impairment
charges of $23.3 million), pre-tax impairment reversal of $48.1 million on TGT (2020 pre-tax impairment
charges of $81.8 million) and pre-tax impairment reversal of $1.2 million on El Fayum (2020 pre-tax
impairment charges of $105.4 million).

Management's recoverable amount estimates wers based on key assumptions which mcluded:

* 0l price forecasts, being $73.9/obl in 2022, $70.2/obl in 2023, $67.8/bbl in 2024, $68/bbl in 2025
plus inflation of 2% thereatter;

* reserves estimates and production profiles; and,
* pre-tax nominal discount rates of 11.4% for TGT and CNV, and 14% for El Fayum

In relation to reserves estimatas and production profiles, Management have engaged third party
reservoir engineering experts to provide an independent report on the group's reserves estimates using
standard indusity reserve estimation methods and definitions for each of the CNV, TGT and H Fayum
fields. Management have explained the scope of work of the third party experts and their findings in the
operations review. as well as highlighting oll and gas reserves as a key scurce of estimation uncertainty
in note 4{} to the financial statements.

As referenced in note 4{b) of the financial statements, the impairment of producing oil & gas assets is
considered by managemsant as a key souwrce of estmation uncenainty.

Further details of the key assumptions used by managernent in therr impairment evaluation are provided
in note 16 of the financial statements and in the Report of the Audit & Risk Commitiee on pages
g7-101. The disclosures in noté 16 inciude the sensitivity of the impairment reversals to changes I

key assumptions, including the impact of adopting an cil pnce from a third party forecaster described
as being comphant with achieving the Paris agreement goal to mit tempesraturs nses to well below 2°C
("Paris 2°C Goal™.
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Huw the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

For the TGT, GV and El Fayurn impairment assessments, we obtained an understanding of the
management’s relevant key controls related to the valuation of each producing oil & gas asset. We
evaluated management’s assessment of whether or not impairment reversals or charges indicators
were present in respect of each producing oil & gas asset, and thus the completeness of management's
impairment tests. Where indicators were identified, we assessed the methods and models used for
congistency with the requirements of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”™. We evaluated the key assumptions
made by management in the msasurement of recoverable amounts by performing the following
substantive procedures:

Qil prices:

We assessed group's forecast ol price assumptions by:

* Independently developing & reasonable range of forecasts based on a varisty of reputable external
forecasts, peer Information and market data, against which we compared the group's future oil price
assumptions in ordoer to challenge whether they are reasonable;

* In developing our range we also considered a certain scenario that was described as meeting the Paiis
goals which aligns with the goals to limit temperature rises to well below 2°C. We also considered the
impact of COVID on energy supply and demand and whether that had been appropriately taken into
accaolnt,

= We assessed management’s current ‘best estimate’ of future ol prices including censideration of third
party forecasts under scenarios that we interpreted to be consistent with this measurement objective,

Reserves estimates and production profiles:

Through working with our internal oil and gas reserve specialists, we:

* Understood the process used by management to dernve their reserves estimates and associated
production profiles and how they provide information to, and interact with, the external third party
reserve experts;

* Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the company’s internal and external third party
reserve experts, through obtaining their relevant professicnal qualifications and experience:;

e Reviewed the external third party experts’ reports on Pharos’ reserves estimates as summarised in
the operations review and evaluated whether these estimates were used consistently throughout the
accounting calculations reflected in the financial statements;

+ Commuricated directly with the external third party reserves experts to discuss their scope of work
and assess their methodclogies used and outputs;

* Compared the production forecasts uzed in the impairment tests with management’s approved
reserves and resources estimates;

e Assessed the cash flow forecasts to determine the significant assumptions to which the impairment
outcome was most sensitive;

= Substantively tested the hydrocarbon production and cost forecasts used in the impairment tests,
including chalienging the significant assumptions;

» Compared the production and cost forecasts with similar forecasts from the prior vear and challenged
significant changes;

+ Assessed the reasonableness of the production and cost forecasts relative to each other;

= Parformed a retrospsctive review to check for indications of estimation bias over time; and

* ‘Where relevant, assessed the company's historical forecasting accuracy and whether the estimates
had been determined and applied on a consistent basis.

Discount rates:

* We assessed the Group’s discount rates by working with our Internal valuation specialists to develop
independent estimates using independent third party information for TGT, CNV and E-Fayum and
comparing those assumptions to management's assumplions.

Other procedures:

* We assessed management's other assumptions by reference to third party informaticn, our knowledge
of the group and industry and alse budgeted and forecast performance,

*  We assessed whether the Group’s impairrment rmethodology was acceptable under IFRS and tested
the integrity and mechanical accuracy of the impairment models.

* We assessed whether managernent’s presentation and disclosures relating to impairment and
asscciated estimation uncertainty were adequate.
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Key observations Oil prices:

For the purpose of Impairment of producing oil & gas assets, management is required under 1AS 36 to
apply s current “best estimate” of future oil prices.

We observed that in the short-term, the Group’s oil price assumptions sit comfortably within our range,
albeit towards the lower end. For the long-term, the Group’s ol price assumptions sit comfortably within
our range albeit towards the higher end. Accordingly, we found the Group's ol price assumptions to be
within our range, and therefore we determined that the Group's “best estimate” oil price assumptions are
reascnable.

We also observe that the forecast cil price assumptions aligned with the Paris goals to be generally lower
than the Group's cil price assumptions. The disclosures in note 16 to the financial statements includes
the impact of adopting an oil price described as being compliant with achieving the Paris agreerment goal
ta mit termperature rises to well below 2°C ("Paris 2°C Goal™).

Discount rates:

The Group’s discount rate used for imparrment testing, was within our independent range and therefore
considered reasonable.

Reserves estimates and production profiles:

We found that the reserves estimates and production profiles used in the Imparment tests to have been
appropriately prepared, and found the underlying assumptions we tested to be reasonable.

Other procedures:

We concluded that the impairment reversals recorded by management are appropriate. We are also
satisfied that appropriate gdisclosures relating to Management's impairment sssessment and sensivities
have been provided in note 16.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statements that makes 1t probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or nfluenced. We use materiality both 1n planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality $3.2 millicn (2020: $3.0 million) $2.3 million (2020: $2.7 million)
Basis for 4% of the 3-year average of EBITDAX (2020: 1% of ]
determining net assets and 4.4% of EBITDAX) Parent company materiality equates to 1.5% of net

teriali ) assets, which is capped at 90% of group materiality.

materiality Management's calculation of EBITDAX 13 provided (2020 0.8% of net assets)

on page 164 to the finangial statements,
Rationale for In the pricr year, materality was based on net Consistent with prior year, as the pnmary nature
the benchmark assets and EBITDAX. However, in the current year of thig holding company is to hold investments in
applied we concluded that a 3-year average of EBITDAX subsidiaries, we have concluded that net assets

is the most relevant benchmark given the vclatility represents the most appropriate benchmark.

in oil prices, the majority of the group’s aff & gas
assets are now at the producing stage and the
group is in its second full year of operations in
Egypt. This reflects the group's performance.
noting that EBITDAX is also an input to one of
the covenants under the group’s RBL facility. The
net assets metric is still considered relevant as

it 15 reflective of the long term value of the group
through its portfolio of producing and exploration
assets {in the current year, our determined
materiality represents 1% of net assets).
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3-year average
EBITDAX $78m  *

6.2. Performance materiality

I Financial Statements

Group materiality $3m

— Component materiality
$78m ‘q - range $1mto $2m
Y <

Audit Committee reporting
threshold $0.16m

We set performance materiaiity at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected
misstatements excesd the matenality for the financial statements as a whole,

Group financial statements

Parent company financial statements

Performance
materiality

70% (2020: 70%;) of group matenality

T0% {2020: 70%]) of parent company materiality

In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

Basis and

rationale for complex;

a} the controls enviranment within which the group operates, including that related to IT. is not considered to be

determining
performance
materiality

b) the responsibility for all key accounting judgements and critical sources of estimation uncertainty is centralised
and conducted in the head office in London;

¢} the Imited number of changes to the business during the year; and

d) the history of 2 low number of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified in previous periods,

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committes that we would report to the Committes all audit differences in excess of $0.16 million (2020:
$0.15 million), as well as differences below that threshold that, in cur view, warranted reporting on gualitative grounds, We also report to
the Audit & Risk Committes on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identitication and scoping of
components

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining
an understanding of the group and

its environment, including group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement at the group level.
Based on that assessment, we scoped in
the group's key business units, Vietnam
and Egypt, which are accounted for partly
in the local country of operation and
partly in London, together with the parent
company which is also accounted for in
London. The Viethamese component,

the Egyptian compeonent and the parent
company, which are all subject to fuli
scope audits, accounted for 98% (2020:

989%) of the group’s total assets, 88%
(2020: 83%) of the group's revenue and
100% {2020: 100%) of the group's loss
before tax from loss making entities.
Specified audit procedures were then
performed on the remaining 2% (2020;
2%, of the group's total assets, 12%
{2020: 17%) of the group's revenue and
100% (2020: 100%) of the group's profit
before tax from profit making entities.

The Vietnamese component materiality
was $2.016 milion {2020: $1.575 miilion)
and the Egyptian component maternality

was 31,120 millien (2020 $1.155 million).

We also audited the consolidation of the
group's businass units.

In both the current and the prior year, all of
the key audit matters that had the greatest
effect on our audit strategy, as described
above, were audited directly by the group
audit team in London.

At the group level, we also tested the
consolidation process, impairment

of producing oil & gas assets, going
concern, accounting for leases,
borrowings and intercompany. We alsc
carried out anafytical procedures to
support our conclusion that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement
of the aggregated financial information of
the remaining components not subject
to audit or audit of specified account
balances,
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7.2. Our consideration of climate-
related risks

Climate change is considered a principal
risk to the Group and its business over
the medium and long term. Further details
aie disclosed in the Strategic report of the
2021 Annual Report pages Z to 78,

Through working with cur internal cimate
specialists, we:

* Obtained an understanding of
management's process for considering
the impact of climate-related risks and
relevant controls through enquinies
performed with the Audit & Risk
committee, enquiries and observations
of relevant documentation with the ESG
commitiee as well as regular meetings
with management;

* Tp ensure the completeness and
consistency of climate related risks
identified by management with our
understanding of the entity and risk
assessment, we obtained and reviewed
management’s assessment of chmate
related risks, read the minutes of
meeting of the ESG committes and
specifically inguired management of
any climate-related litigations or claims
involving the group.

As disclosed in note 4(b) to the financial
statements, Management identified

that the group’s producing oil & gas
properties are short-term in nature and
none are being depleted over a period
that extends beyond 2036. Therefore,
due to the relatively short-time frame,
Management concluded that the impact
of climate change on the group’s oil &
gas properiies depletion, economic useful
lives and decommissioning not to be
material. Management further identified
that the 1mpact of climate change on the
group’s Exploration & Evaluation assets is
similar to the group’s progucing oll & gas
properties, but the potential longevity of
those assets has not yet been determined
tor further consideration. Accordingly,
the related principal risks that we have
identified for our audit is the forecast

cil agsumptions used in the fair value
estimates of group's producing oil & gas
properties may not appropriately reflect
changes in supply and demand due to
climate change and the energy transition
{see the key audit matter In section ‘5.1
Impairment of producing ol & gas assets’
above).
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In order to address the risk identified,
we performed the following procedures
through working with our climate
specialist:

*  We read the climate change related
disclosures presented in the Strategic
Report to consider whether they are
materially consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge
obtained in the audit;

* We challenged management’s forecast
oil price assumptions to assess
whether they are reasonable and
present management’s current ‘best
estimate’ In accordance with IAS 36
{see the key audit matter in section
5,1 impairment of producing oll & gas
assets’ above); and

* We evaluated the accuracy and
appropriatenass of the disclosures
addrsssing the impact of cimate
and energy transition on the financial
staterments in note 4(b) and the key
assumptions and calculated sensitivities
showing the impact on impairment of
producing oil & gas assets included in
note 16 of the financial statements.

7.3. Working with other auditors

The group audit team assesses each
year how best to be appropriately
involved in the audit work undertaken in
Vietnam and Egypt. In the currant year,
as a result of travel restrictions due to the
Covid-19 pandemic, this was achieved
by regular interaction and review through
correspondence, telephone and other
electronic media as well as performing a
remate review of the underlying work of
the component auditors in selected key
areas by a senior member of the audit
team.

In addition to our direct interactions,
we senl detailed instructions to our
component audit tearns, and reviewed
their audit working papers.

8. Other information

The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon, The directors
are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual repart.

Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other infarmation and,
except 10 the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing €0, consider
whether the other information 1s matenaly
irnconsistent with the financial statements
or our kneowledge obtained in the course
of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material Inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in
the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’
responsibililes statemant, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of

the financial staternents and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the
directors determing is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group’s and the parent company’s ability
io continue as a geing concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related {0 going
concern and using the geing concern
basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the
parent company or 1o cease operations.
or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO

10. Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterment, whether dua 1o
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our ocpinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level

of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statemeanis.,

A turther description of our respensibilities
for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC's website at: www.
fre.org.uk/auditorsrespaonsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's
report.



11. Extent to which the audit
was considered capable
of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances
of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line
with our respensibilities, outlined above, to
detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing
potential risks related to
irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of
material misstatement in regpect of
irregularities, including fraud and non-
compliance with laws and regulations, we
considered the following:

» the nature of the industty and sector,
control environment and business
performance including the design ot
the group's remuneration policies, key
drivers far directors’ remuneration,
bonus levels and performance targets;

+ results of our enguiries of management
and the audit committee about their
own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities;

« any matters we identified having
obtaired and reviswad the group’s
documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to:

- identifyng, evalualing and complying
with laws and regulations and whether
they were aware of any instances of
non-compliance;

- detecling and responding to the
risks of fraud and whether they have
knowledge of any actual. suspected or
alleged fraud

- the internal controls established
to mitigate risks of fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations

+ the matters discussed among the
audit engagement team including
significant component audit teams and
relevant internal specialiets, including
tax, valuations and reserves specialists
regarding how and wherg fraud might
oceuwr in the financial statements and
any potential indicators of fraud.

As o result of these procedures, we
considered the opportunities and
incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and identified

the greatest potential for fraud in
management's assessment of the
impairment of producing oil & gas asssts,
In common with all audits under ISAs
{UK), we are also required to perform
specific procedures to respond to the risk
of managerment override.

We also obtained an understanding of the
legal and regulatory framewaorks that the
group operates in, focusing on provisions
of lhuse Taws and regulations that had

a direct effact on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The key laws and
regulations we considered in this context
included the UK Companies Act, the
Listing Rules, tax legislation in the UK,
Vietnam and Egypt.

In addition, we considerad provisions

of other laws and regulations that do

not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but cormpliance with which
may be fundamental to the group's ability
to operate or to avoid a matenal penalty.
These included the group’s operating
licences and environmental regulations,

11.2. Audit response to risks
identified

As aresult of performing the above,

we identified impairment of producing

oil & gas assets as a key audit matter

refated to the potential risk of fraud. The

key audit matter section of our report

(5.1 Impairment of producing cil & gas

assets’ above) explains the matter in more

detail and also describes the specific

procedures we performed in response (o

that key audit matter.

In addition to the above, our procedures
to respond to risks identfied included the
following:

« reviewing the financial statement
disclosures and testing to supporting
documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant laws and
regulations described as having a direct
sffect on the financial staterments;

* enquinng of management, the audit
& risk committes and in-house and
external legal counsel concerning actual
and potential litigation and claims;

« performing analytical procedures to
identify any unusual or unexpected
relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud;

* reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governancs; and

* in addressing the risk of fraud through
managament override of controls.
testing the appropriateness of journal
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entries and other adjustments;
assessing whether the judgements
made in making accounting estimates
are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of

any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

We also communicated rslevant identified
laws and regulations and potential

fraud risks to all engagement team
members including internal specialists
and significant component audit teams,
and remained alert to any indications of
fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations throughout the audt.

Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other
matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the directors’
retmuneration report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2008.

In cur opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the
strategic report and the directors’
report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

« the strategic report and the
directors’ report have been
prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and
the parent company and their
environmeant obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatements in the
strategic report or the directors’
report.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - CONTINUED

13. Corporate Governance
Statement

The Listing Rules require us tc review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, fonger-term viability and that part
of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the group’s compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review.,

Based on the work undertaken as
part of our audit, we have conciuded
that each of the following elements
of the Carporate Governance
Staternent is materially consistent
with the financial statements and our
knowledge obtained during the audit:

¢ the directors’ statement with
regards to the appropriateness of
adopting the going concern basis
of accounting and any material
uncertainties identified (as set out
on page 89);

* the diractors’ explanation as to
its assessment of the group's
prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the
period is appropriate {as set out an
page 89);

s the directors’ statement on fair,
balanced and understandabie (set
out on page 121);

* the board’s confirmation that it has
carried out a robust assessment
of the emerging and principal risks
(set out on page 89,

* the section of the annual report
that describes the review of
effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems (set
out on page 89); and

» the section describing the work
of the audit committee (set out on
page 89).
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14, Matters on which we
are required to report by
exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations
received and accounting
records

Under the Companies Act 2008 we are
required to report to you I, in our opinion:

* we have not receved all the information
and explanations we require for our
audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not
heen kept by the parent company, or
returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

* the parent company financial
statements are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns,

We have nothing o report in respect
of these matters.

14.2, Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we

are also reguired to report if in our
cpinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not heen made or the
part of the directors’ remuneration report
1o be audited is not in agreemeant with the
accounting records and returns.

We have nathing to repart in respect
of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are
required to address

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the
audit committee, we were appainted

by the directors on 1 August 2002 to
audit the financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2002 and
subsequent financial pericds, The penod
of total uninterrupted engagement
ncluding previous renewals and
reappointments of the firm is 20 years,
covering the years ending 31 December
2002 to 31 December 2021.

15.2. Consistency of the audit
report with the additional
report to the audit committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the

additional report 1o the audit commitiee

we are required to provide in accordance
with 1SAs (UK.

) L

16. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the
company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company's members those
matters we are required 10 state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company's members as
a baody, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule (DTR) 4.1.14R, these
financial statements form part of the
European Single Electronic Format (ESEF)
prepared Annual Financial Report filed on
the National Storage Mechanism of the
UK FCA in accordance with the ESEF
Regulatory Technical Standard (('ESEF
RTS". This auditor’s report provides

no assurance over whether the annual
financial report has been prepared using
the single electronic format specified In
the ESEF RTS.

ANTHONY MATTHEWS, FCA
(SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

For and on behalf of Deloiite LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

16 Margh 2022



e T Financial Staterments

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Income Statement for the year to 31 December 2021

Gooslirall e

2021 2020

Notes $ millien $ million
Continuing cperations
Revenue 5.6 1341 142.0
Cost of sales - - - o 7 (114.6) (123.8)
Gross p;ofiiti_ _ o - o o o 19.5 V o “18.2
Adnmistrati\;e_ex_po-ns;—;-s - - o ) o (13.2) 7 7(15.7}
I_m;Jai_rmem charge — In;ar;giiblé assets o ) - 615 (_2.;!) {24:3)
Impair-mént_ F(;\;L;rsalf((:l"large) - };’rc;pt,:rtj plant and e&lu;pl;m;m o - 6, 167 54-1.6 (210.5)
Impairment Cl\éréeilisf;alé classiﬂed_a;h_elgi for sale - - - 6. 37 o (10.4) -
b;;eréxt{ng profit/{loss) - - - o o 4;855 (25’;1.73)
Other/resitr[;crtiurr;r']gi exXpense - o - 8- ) (3.3; 7 (5.87)
In;:esrmem revér;;é- - - - . - 5 o - 01
F-inanr:e costs - o - - o g ) (6.4} {4.25
P;of_itl_(Lc;ss) before taxr o 7 i 7 - 3] _ -38.6 -(241.2)
Incorﬁeita; (;h;rge)/credit o ) 6,_12_ - (4:;...’;) 7 7257.6
Loss for thé ;ve_ar;rc;m- continuing c;p;rrétions 7 o ) - o (4.7{ (2157).67)
Discontinued operations
Loss post-tax for the year from discontinued operations G - {0.2)
Lc;;ss; lérght; year o - 7 o o S-O i4.7) 7(271 5.8)
Loss per share _from-con-tinuing operétiéns {cents) o o 14
Basc - o N o R (54.6)
Diluted 7 ) - 7 7 -(1.1) _ _(54.6)
Loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations (cents)
Basic {1.1) (54.6)
D_iIL;e(; o 7 ) 7 ) (1.1} (54.65
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year to 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Notes % million & millicor
Loss for the year 30 (4.7} 215.8)
Itc:.m_s t-hat May be sul%ééqdeﬁtly reclass-i_ﬂe:j t70 profit or Ios;s:_ o - o o
Fair valrtiei(lo;s)i/gamransing an héd;)ing inslrume-nté d_uri_ng the year o o ) 25 (27.7;) 7 é0.0
I:es:s:_LOSS/(gam) airisiing;c;] }71edgmg Inétrarﬁéms reclassif\e;i t_o p_rom of loss - o 25 i 29.7 (23.75
Total comprehensive loss for the year 2.7) (219.5)

The above consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2021

Group Company
i 201 2020 Co20m 2020
Notes $ million $ imithon $ millien & million
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 15 124 1.5 -
J;ropedy._p}an? an_L:i equipn_went ) ) B h 16 i 7 399.8--7 -7435.? - - - -
Right-of Use assets N ) B - 16 33 o o1 o T
Invesh\nems . . 7 - - B 71 7 - - B = - 2%8.7 R 2(’:8.1
l;)an to s&)srciiane; ) ) ) B B ) 7 - - - - ) 27.; ) 21 17
Otlgr assel:;_ - i ) i ) 18 ;8.1 . ;5‘9 ) - -
460.3 483.2 306.1 289.2
Current assets
Inventories 19 10.7 17.7 - -
Trackes and other receivables 7 - - o281 2290 14 16
Ta;eceivabias N - B N a ) _1 5 7 ﬁO‘G - - 0.4 - B 0.6
Cashkamd cas.; equival_émts 7 B - B _21 2{1 7 25.76 ) - 5.3 ) 35
Assets r-;lassifie(; as he(d_f-or sale i B 3; 7 62.5 - ) - -
128.4 65.8 7.1 5.7
Total assets 589.7 548.0 3.2 294.9
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 {30.6} 135.6} {4.3) i2.7)
Bcnowiﬂgs - - 24 (33.3) (12.7) 7 - _
_L-ease ha'r;i-hﬂes ’ ’ 33 - - {0.4) - —
Tax payable 7 B 7 (5.4) i©.7) 0o 0.4)
Liabm{iies dlre(:ﬂy associ?ated with assets (:\Vassmcd és held 1(7)% sale (;7 (B.g) - . .
) ) i " ) i (77.8) (55.41 (5.3) (3.1)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax habilities 23 91.2) (85.9) - -
Borr(:ans - . 7 - N _24 (4732) (41:6) . . -
Long t(:rm provi;ions N B - ) B B 26 - (69.1)7 N (7ii.4)w B ‘- ) -
- - B B - . S (207.5) a50.9) - -
Total liabilities (285.3) {255.3) (5.3) 3.1)
Net assets 304.4 293.7 307.9 291.8
Equity
Share capital 27 34.9 31.9 34.9 31.9
Share pr_enwm ) B ) N - ) B 27\ 7 58.07 ) 55.4 ) 58.6 55.45
Other reserves i B ) - N T 28 2605 2430 2024 197.6
Retained (deficty/earnings ) ) ) N T %0 T 8.0)  (366) C es 69
Total equity 304.4 293.7 307.9 291.8

The above consolidated balance sheats should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

The profit for the inancial year n the accounts of the Company (Co number 3300821) was $1.9m incluswe of dividencds from subsidiary
undertakings (2020: $264.5 loss). As provided by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no ncome statement or statement of comprehensive

ncornie 15 presented in respect of the Company,

The financial staterments wete approved by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2022 and s\gned on 11§ behalf by:

JOHN MARTIN Chair SUE RIVETT Chief Financial Officer
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Statements of Changes in Equity for the year to 31 December 2021

Group

7 Called up - Share 7 o ) I;?etalned -

share capital premium Other reserves earnings/deficit)

{see Note 27)  (see Note 27)  (see Note 28) {see Note 30) Total
Notes $ million $ milion $ million % million $ miflion
As at 1 January 2020 31.9 55.4 246.6 176.2 510.1
Loss f()r_the_-ye;ar o 30 - . _ (7215;18) ) (2-1_5.8-)
Other comprehensive loss o - 28 o N (3.7} - o (3.7)
Curren(:-y exchange tranélaﬁon alﬁéren(;es B 28 R . VO.‘o' o - - UES
Share-based pa;z-n'we;ts_ - - 28 S R 2.3 o - 2.3
Transle;r r-;lat;wg t_o sl_w-arc-based payr_{\en_ls 28, 30_ B - - (ST()) : 7 3.6 .
As at 1 January 2021 31.9 55.4 243.0 (36.6) 293.7
Loss for the year - @ - - - @n @D
Other comprehensiv;a in;on;e - 28 - - 20 - . 20
Shares issued - o é?. 28 3.0 26 53 - 10.9
Share-based payments - o8 - - 25 - 25
Transfer_relating to shz;re—ina_r;ad payments - 2_8. Sb . - {2.3) - 2.3 “ -
As at 31 December 2021 34.9 58.0 250.5 (39.0) 304.4
Company

i)alléd up -She;re o Reta-inea o

share capital premium  Other reserves earnings/{deficit)

tsee Note 27)  {see Note 27} (see Note 28) [see Note 303 Total
Notes % million $ million $ mithon $ million % rmullion
As at 1 January 2020 31.9 55.4 199.3 268.4 555.0
Lz)st-‘s_fiarﬂthe year 7 7 12%‘ 30 o o - i (264.5_1) - (264,5)
Curremc;; e;h;\ge— translation ;;i-ir‘fetren_ces - 2_8 - - - "0.8 o - 0.8
Share—t;aséd péyn'w_ent_s- o 28 o - o - 7 2.5 o - : 2.3
:Fra_nsfer relating to shée-&ased payments o 28,30 - - . (4.8_) ) iO - W (1 8)
As at 1 January 2021 31.9 55.4 197.6 6.9 291.8
Profit for the year 13,30 - R - 19 19
Shares issued - o708 30 26 53 - 10.9
Currency ex;:_ha;\ge_tre;slation différza_r\c;e; b 28, 3(5_ - - R &1 o '1 5 ) 1.6
&ar;hbésed payments_ - - 28 - - 2.5 i o ) 25
Transfer- relating to sha;re-gased payments o 28‘ 30 - o (3:1) - _Z.é 7 7{0.%3)
As at 31 December 2021 34.9 58.0 202.4 12.6 307.9

The above consolidated statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notas.
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Cash Flow Statements for the year to 31 December 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 7 2021 - 2020
Notes $ million $ milion $ million $ million
Net cash from [used in) operating activities 32 10.8 56.4 {7.1) {16.9
Investing activities
Purchagg of intanigible a;;sets N ‘ - 1 5:‘2) 7(3.5) - - -
Pu?chase of propé;y. Hant and Vci,;(iqruipn-rem - W {24.4) : {35.5) 7 . o
Payment tr; e;t::andor'wmem I;'nd - " 7 18 (2.2) (2.C;) R - B -
Ad;al1:':e consideraitii(ﬁm on farm OL:I of Egyptiar;:;ssets 7 2.0 - - _- ) -
Other anestr-r-\;nt in Subsidia; \mdenakil;;&‘; - - 7 - - 8.4) - 5.4
Divider:;is received froam subsidiary Jndertakmgs - _ . o W 6.1 7 217.8
Net cash (used inj from investing activities {39.8} (41.3} {2.3) 16.4
Financing activities
Repaywﬁént of bnrrowir;gs; 7 7 24-- 1 2.;’)) (42.8) -
F;roceeds fram borrownigs 7 24 . 38.9 - .
Interest paid on borrowm“g-s ) B 24 (6.;3-) (4.-6) - -
Lease payments . ;’33 7 0.4) (1.1} " ) (0.5}
Nel proceeds from issue Vol share capital 7 27 109 - 109 -
Net cash from (uséd in) financing activities 7 314 {48.5) 10.9 10.5)
Net increa;se (decrease) ;n cash and cash equivalents 2.1 (33.45 - i.5 - (1.4
Cagh and cash et;;ivalents at beginning of ye;ar 724.6 58.5 3.5 4.5
Effect of fo-reign exchang;rrate change-s“ 0.4 0.5 0.3 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 271 24.6 5.3 3.5

The above consalidated cash flow statements shoukd be read in comunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

Pharos Energy plo is a company limited by
shares and incorporated in England and
Walss under the Companies Act. The
address of the registered office is given on
the inside back cover, The nature of the
Group’s operations and its principal
activities are set out in Note 8, in the
Cperations Review and CFO's statement
on pages 26 to 37 and 38 to 42,
respeciively. Pharos Energy plc is the
uitimate parent company of the Group and
except where otherwise indicated the
following accounting policies apply to both
the Group and the Company.

2. Significant accounting
policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial staterments have been
prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with
the reguirements of the Companies Act
2006 and International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB).

The Financial Statements have also been
prepared on a going concern basis of
accounting for the reasons set out in the
Directors’ Report on page 121 and in the
CFO's statement on page 42.

The Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis,
except for the valuation of hydrocarbon
inventeries and the revaluation of certain
financial instruments, The Financial
Staterments are presented in US dollars as
it is the funclionat currency of each of the
Company’s subsidiary undertakings and is
generally accepted practice in the oil and
gas sector.

The principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below.

b) New and amended standards
adopted by the Group

A number of new or amended standards
became applicable for the current
reporting period. The group did not have
to change its accounting poficies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of
adopting these standards.

= COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions —
amendments to IFRS 16, and

« Interest Rate Benchmark Retorm -
Phase 2 — amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.

¢} New standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 December 2021
year end and have not been early adepted
by the Group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting
penods nor on foresesable futlure
transactions.

d) Basis of congolidation

The Group Financial Statements
consolidate the accounts of Pharos
Energy plc and entities controlled by the
Company {its subsidiary undertakings)
drawn up to the balance sheet date.
Control is achieved where the investor is
exposed or has rights to variable returns
fromi its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

The Company reassesses whether or
not 1 controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes ta one or more of the elements
of control. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or sold are consolidated for
the periods from or ta the date on which
control passed.

Where necessary, adjustments are made
at the Group level to align the accounting
policies of the subsidiaries to the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between the members of

the Group are eliminated on consolidation

e) Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as
held-for-gale if it is highly probable that
they will be recovered primarily through
sale rather than through continuing use.
This condition 15 regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the
asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and custormary for sales

of such assets. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be
expected 1o qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the
date of classification as held for sale, and
actions required to complete the plan of
sale should indicate that it is unlikely that
significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Such assets are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Impairment losses

on initial classification ag held for sale
and subssquent gains or losses on re-
measutement are recognised in profit and
loss.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible
assels and property, plant and eguipment
are no longer amortised or depreciated.

f)  Investments

Non-current investments in subsidianes
of the Company are shown at cost less
provision for impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asget’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount ig the higher of an
azsel’s far value less costs ot disposal
and value in use, Liguid investments
comprise short-term liguid investments of
between three to six months maturity.

@) Interests in joint arrangements

A joint arrangement 15 an arrangement
where two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of

the parties sharing control. Joint
arrangements where the Group has

the rights to assets and obligations for
habilities of the arrangement are classified
as joint operations and are accounted
for by recognising the Group's share of
assets, liakilities, income and expenses.

Joint arrangements where the Group
has the rights to the net assets of the
arrangement are classified as joint
ventures and are accounted for using the
eqguity method of accounting.

h} Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of

the Group's share of oil and gas sold
during the year on a liftings basis and is
recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring
oil and gas to a customer. In accordance
with the Group's sales agreements for oil
and gas, the title to oil and gas typically
transfers to a customer at the same

time as the customer takes physical
possession of the oil or gas. Typically,

at this point in time, the performance
obligations of the Group are fully satisfied.

Investment revenug is accrued on a
time basis. by reference to the principal
cutstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.
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i} Other/restructuring items

Other/restructuring items represent
income and expenses that arise from
events or transactions that are clearly
distinct from the ordinary activities of the
Group and, therefore, are not expecied to
recur frequently or regularly. Refer to Note
8 for further details.

i} Intangible and tangibie non-~
current assets

Oil and gas exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure

The Group adopts the successful efforts
method of accounting for exploration
and evaluation costs. Pre-licence costs
are expensad in the period in which
they are incurred. All licence acquisition,
exploration and evaluation costs and
direct administration ¢osts are initially
capitalised as intangible ncn-current
assels in cost centres by well (most
typicaily), field or exploration area,

as appropriate. Interest payable is
capitalised insofar as 1t relates 1o specific
development activities.

These costs are then written off as
exploration costs in the income statement
unless cormmercial reserves have been
established or the determination process
has riot been completed and there are no
indicators of iImpairment,

All field development costs are capitalised
as property, plant and eguipment.
Property, plant and equipment related

to production activities is amortised in
accordance with the Group's depreciation,
depletion and amortisation accounting
policy.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depletion 1s provided on cil and gas
assets in production using the unit of
production method, based on proven and
probable reserves, applied to the sum of
the total capitalised exploration, gevaluation
and development costs. together with
estimated future development costs

at current prices. Oil and gas assets
which have a similar economic Ite are
aggregated for depreciation purposes,

Impairment of value

Where there has been a change in
SCONOMIC canditions o in the expected
use of a tangible non-current asset

that indicates a possible impairment

of an asset, management tests the
recoverabilty of the net book value of the
asset by comparison with the estimated
discounted future net cash flows based
on management’s expectations of future
ol prices and future costs, Any identified
impairment is charged/credited to the
income staterment in the period in which it

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021

is identfied.

Intangible non-current assets are
considered for impairment at least
annually by reference to the indicators
specified in paragraphs 18 to 20 of IFRS
6. The mpairment indicators in IFRS 6 for
each exploration asset are:

« The period for which the entity has the
right to explare in the specific area has
expired during the pencd or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected
to be renewed;

¢ Substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

* Exploration for and evaluation of
mineral resources in the specific
area have not led to the discovery
of commarcially viable quantities of
mineral resources and the entity has
decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; and

s Sufficient data exist to indicate
that, atthough a developiment in the
specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the explotation
and evaluation asset is unlikely to
be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

Other tangible non-current assets

Other tangible non-current assets are
stated at historical cost less accurmulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on
a straight-line basis at rates calculated

to write off the cost of those assets, less
residual value. over thelr expected useful
lives of three to seven years.

Decommissioning

The decommissioning provision is
calculated as the et present value of the
Group’s share of the expernditure which is
expected to be incurred at the end of the
producing life of each field in the removal
and decommissioning of the production,
storage and trangportation facilities
currently in place. The cost of recognising
the decommissioning provision is
inciuded as pant of the cost of the relevant
property. plant and eguipment and is thus
charged to the income statement on a
unit of production basis In accordance
with the Group's policy for depletion

and depreciation of tangible non-current
assets. Period charges for changes in the
net present value of the decommissioning
provigion arising frorm discounting are
included i finance costs.

k} Changes in estimates

The effects of changes in estimates on
the unit of production calculations are
accounted for prospectively, from the
date of adoption of the revised estimates.
over tha estimated remaining proven and
probable reserves.

I} Inveniories

Inventories, except for inventories of
hydrocarbons, are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost s
determined on a weighted average cost
basis and comprises direct purchase
costs. Net realisable value is determined
by reference 1o prices existing at the
balance sheet date.

Physical inventories of hydrocarbons

are valued at net realisable value in line
with well-established industry practice.
Underlifts and overlifts are valued at
market value and are included in acerued
income and prepayments, and accruals
and deferred income, respectively.
Changes in hydrocarbon inventories,
underlifts and overlifts are adjusted
through cost of sales.

m) Leases

On inceplion of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. The contract is, or
contains, a lease if it conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of tme in exchange for
consideration. To determine whather
the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whethet the contract involves
the use of an identified asset, the Group
has the nght to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use, and
the Group has the right to direct the use
of the asset.

For short-term feases (iease term less
than 12 months) and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value assets,
the Group has opted to recognise a lease
expense on a straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets are measured at the
amount of the corresponding lease liability
on the date of initial adaption (adjusted for
any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

Lease liabllities are measured at the
present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease (if available), or
the incremental borrowing rate at start of
the lease.



n} Share-based payments

Equity-settled awards under share-

based incentive plans are measured at
fair value at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments

is expensed on a straight- line basis

over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will eventually vest. At
each reporting date, the Group revises

its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected 1o vest as a result
of the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or less such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment o reserves.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a
liability is recognised measured initially at
fair value. At each balance shest date until
the lability 15 settled, and at the date of
settlement, the fair value of the liability is
measured, with any changes in fair vaiue
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

o) Taxation

The tax expense represants the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit
differs from net profit as reported in profit
or loss because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or
deductible In other years and it further
excludes tems that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enactad or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised G the extent

that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to recaver the
asset. Deferred tax s not recognised
where an asset or liability is acquired in
a transaction which is not a business
combination for an amount which differs
fromi its tax value.

Defarred tax is calcuiated at the tax

rates that are expecled o be applied in
the pericd when the liabifity is settled or
the asset is realised based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except when it relates
to iterns charged or credited directly to
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equity, in which case the deferred tax s
also dealt with in equity.

p) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are
recognised on the Group's balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

There are no material financial assets and
liabilities for which differences between
carrying amounts and fair values are
required to be disclosed. The classification
of financial instruments as required by
IFRS 7 1s disclosed in Notes 20, 21, 22,
24,33 and 36.

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Where a financial instrument Js classified
as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or losg it is nitially recognised at
fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is reviewed and any gain or
loss arising Is recognised in the income
statement. Changes in the net present
value of the financial asset arising from
discounting are included in other income
and expense. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020 no financial assets were
classified at fair value through profit or
loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at fair valug and subseguently measured
at amortised cost, less expected credit
losses provision, when required.

Trade payables

Trade payables are generally stated at
amartised cost using the effective interest
rate.

Derivative and hedging instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at

fair value on the date that a derivative
contract is entered into, and they are
subsequently re-measured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting penod.
The accounting for subsequent changes
in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and, if so. the nature of the
itemn being hedged.

At inception of the hedge relationship,
the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, including whether
changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected (o offset
changes in the cash flows of hedged
iterns. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for
undertaking its hedge transactions.
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Pharos entored into different commaodity
{swap) hedges to protect the Brent
component of forecast oil sales and

to ensure future compliance with its
obligations under the RBL. Pharos has
designated the swaps as cash flow
hedges. For cash flow hedges, the
portion of the gains and losses on the
hedging instrument that is determined
to be an effective hedge is taken to
other comprehensive income and the
ineffective portion is recognised in the
income statement. The gains and losses
taken to other comprehensive income are
subsequenily fransferred o the income
statement during the period in which the
hedged transaction affects the income
statement.

Borrowings

interest-bearing bank loans are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. Finance charges, including
any direct issue costs, are accounted
for on an accrual basis in the income
statement using the effective intsrest
method and are added to the carrying
amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settled in the year in
which they arise.

The efiective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial Hability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future

cash payments {including all fees and
transaction costs} through the expected
{ife of the financial liability to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between ths
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss,

When the Group exchanges with the
existing lender one debt instrument into
ancther one with substantially different
terms, such exchange is accounted

for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. Similarly, the Group
accounts for substantial modification

of terms of an existing hability or part of
it as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a
new liability, It is assurned that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate
is at least 10 per cent different from

the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original
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financial liability. If the modification is not
substantial. the difference between: (1)
the carrying amount of the liability before
the modification; and {2} the present

value of the cash flows after modification
is recognised in profit or loss as the
modification gain or loss within other gains
and losses.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recotded at the proceeds
received, net of direct 1ssue costs. Fguity
instruments repurchased are deducted
from equity at cost.

q) Provisions

A contingent lability 15 disclosed unless
the possibility of an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote
or the amount of the liability cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities may develop in a way
not initially expected. Therefore, they are
assessed continually to determine whether
an autflow of rescurces embodying
aeconomic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outfiow

of future economic benefits will be
required for an item previously deall with
as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the financial statements

of the period in which the change in
probability occurs,

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation {legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
15 probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of
the obfigation.

The amount recognised as a provision

is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation

al the reperting date, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount
15 the present value of those cash flows
(when the effect of the time value of
money is material),

When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision
are expected 1o be recovered from a
third party. a receivable 1s recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certan that
reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the recevable can be
measured rehably.
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Decommissioning provisions:

Provisions for the costs to decommission
ol & gas properties are recognised when
the Group has an obligation required

by the terms and conditions of the
agresments and when a reliable estimate
can be made. The provision for the costs
of decommissioning oil & gas properties
at the end of their economic lives is
estimated using existing technology, at
future prices, depending on the expected
timing of the activity, and discounted
using the nominal discount rate. Estimates
are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

1} Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
Group company are stated in the currency
of the primary economic environment

in which it operates {its functicnal
currency). Transactions in currencies
other than the entity's functional currency
{foreign currency) are recorded at the

rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilives
denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing at that date,
or if appropriate, at the forward contract
rate. Any resulting gains and losses are
included in net profit or loss for the penod.

For the purpose of presenting
congolidated financial statements

the results of entities denominated in
currencies other than US doliars are
translated at the dally rate of exchange
and their balance sheets at the rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Any
resulting gains or losses are taken to other
comprehensive income.

s) Pension costs

The contributicns payable in the year

in respect of pension costs for defined
contribution schemes and other post-
retirement benefits are charged to the
inceme staterment. Differences between
cantributions payable in the year and
contributions actually paid are shown
either as accruals or prepayments in the
balance shest.

3. Financial risk management

The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing financial risks that may affect
the Group. In certain cases the Board
delegates responsipility for such reviews
and policy setting to the Audit and Risk
Committee. The principal financial risks
affecting the Group are discussed in the
Risk Management and Risk Report on
pages 43 to 57.

4. Critical judgements and
accounting estimates

a) Critical judgements in applying i
the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's

accounting policies described in Note

2, management has made judgements

that may have a significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial

statements. These are discussed below:

Qil and gas assets

Note 2{) describes the Judgements
necessary to implement the Group's
policy with respect to the carrying value
of intangible exploration and evaluation
assets.

Management considers these assets

for immpairment at least annually with
reference to indicators in IFRS 6. Note 15
discloses the carrying value of intangible
exploration and evaluation assets along
with details of impairment charges that
arose during the year. Further, Note 2())
describes the Group's policy regarding
reclassification of intangible assets {o
tangible assets. Management considers
the appropriateness of asset classfication
at least annually.

Going concern

The Financial Statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis of
accounting. A number of judgements
were taken in concluding that this basis
of preparation was appropriate and that
there were no material uncertainties in
this regard. These included applying
appropriate estimates of future production
and ol price together with ensuring that
the forecasts ncluded all expenditure
that was either committed or expected
to be incurred in relation to estimated
production volumes. Consideration
was alsc given to the potential ongoing
impact of the COVID-1& pandemic.
During 2020, the pandemic did not
cause any Interruptions to the group's
producing assets in Vietnam and Egypt
and accordingly the pnmary impact to
the group's cash generabing ability due
to the pandemic In the next 12 months
is considered to be the nsk of further ol
price reductions due to global supply



and demand dislocations. This risk has
been taken into consideration through
downside oil price sensitivities, including
the application of a reverse stress test.
Further detalls in this srea are provided in
the Directors’ Report on page 121 and
in the CFO's Statement on pages 38 to
42,

Asset held for sale

There are certain criteria that should be
actively considered in assessing wheather
that for the farm-down and sale of a

55% working interest and operatorship i
the Egyptian conressions to IPR should
pe treated as an Asset hald for sale. In
particular that it should te highly probable
and available for sale n its present
condition subject to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such assets.

The safe was considered highly probable
given the commitment to sell in place from
the Board of Directors and that a buyer
and price had been agreed with IPR,
Shareholder approval had been obtained
and the process of negotiation in obtaining
regulatory approvals for the disposal were
well advanced. Accordingly the key critena
were considered met in December 2021
and the relsvant assets and liabilities were
treated as held for sale.

Treatment of the Third Amendment to
the El Fayum Concession Agreement

At 31 December 2021 it was not certain
that the Third Amendment to the El Fayum
Concession Agreement would be agreed.
Whilst some preliminary approvals
occurred in December 2020 the final
approvals had not been received. Until
these had arisen it was not considered
appropriate to recognise these revised
terms until these final approvals had been
obtained reflecting the risks of political
change or potential for subseguent
change and renegotiation.

The agresment post year end of the Third
Amendment to the El Fayum Concassion
Agreement, with retroactive application of
the improved fiscal terms from Novermber
2023 and a thres and a half year
extension to the exploration period, was
accordingly treated as a non-adjusting
post balance sheet event. An impairment
reversal of $28.2m utiksing the changed
circumstances of 31 December 2021

as the basis has been calculated on the
remaining 45% share held and will be
factored into the impairment reviews going
forward.
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b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, other than those mentioned
above, that may have a significant risk

of causing a material agjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the nexi financial year are discussed
below:

Qil and gas reserves and DD&A

Note 2()) sets out the Groups accounting
policy on DD&A. Proven and probable
reserves are estimated using standard
recognised evaluation techniques and are
disclosed on page 1686. The estimate

is reviewed at least twice a year and is
audited by third party reservoir engineers
at year end. Future develocpment costs
are estimated taking into account the
level of development required to produce
the reserves by reference to operators,
where applicable, and internal engineers.
As discussed in the Operations Review
on pages 32 to 34, the Vietnam

fields, TGT and CNV proved and probable
reserves estimates have been revised
based on ongoing work of ERCE and
audited by our Reserves Auditors, RISC
Advisory Pty Ltd. Egypt proved and
probable reserves estimates have been
revised based on ongoing work of ERCE
and audited by McDaniels. Reserves
estimates are inharently uncertain,
especially in the early stages of a field’s
Iife, and are routinely revised over the
producing fives of oil and gas fields as
new information becomes availabie and
as economic conditions evolve. Such
revisions may impact the Group's future
financial position and results, in particular,
in relation to DD&A and impairment
testing of oil and gas property, plant and
equipment.

Impairment of producing cil and gas
assets

If impairment indicators are identified in
relation to a producing oil and gas field,
management is required to compare

the net carrying value of the assets

and liabilities which represent the field
cash generating unit (CGU) with the
estimated recoverable amount of the

field. Management generally determines
the recoverable amount of the field

by estimating its value in use, using a
discounted cash flow method. Calculating
the net present value of the discounted
cash flows involves key assumptions
which include commadity prices, 2P
reserves estimates and discount rates.
OGther assumptions include production
profiles, future operating and capital
expenditures and the relevant fiscal terms.

Further information relating to the specific

assumptions and uncertainties relevant 1o

impairment tests performed in the year are
discussed in Note 17.

Climate change and the energy transition

Clirnate change and the transition to a
low carbon economy were considered

in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. In particular, the energy
transition is fikely to impact future oil

and gas prices which in turn may affect
the recoverable armount of the group’s
property, plant and eguipment (PR&E.
Management's best estimate of future oil
prices was revised down significantly in
2020 but upwards in 2021, in part due to
expectations of the impact of the energy
transition. In developing these price
assumptions, consideration was given to
a range of third party forecasts, including
a number that were described as baing
congistent with achieving the goal to
reach net zero by 2050 and align with
COP28 {the "Net Zero price scenario”}.
Management's best estimate of cil prices,
although higher, was within $5/bbt of the
average of the Net Zero price scenaric.
Further details of the key assumptions

in this area have been provided in Note
16, including sensitivity analysis outlining
the impact on the impairment charges of
using the average of the Paris compliant
scenanos. In addition to impairment.
climate change pressures could curtall
the expected useful lives of the group’s
oll and gas PP&E, thereby accelerating
depreciation charges. However, the
group's producing fields are kkely to be
fully depreciated within 15 years, during
which timeframe 1t is expected that
global demand for all will remain robust.
Accordingly, the impact of climate change
on expected useiul lives is not considered
to be a significant judgement or estimate.

In addition to PP&E, climate change
could: {1) adversely impact the future
development or viability of exploration
and evaluation {(E&E)} prospects. However,
the impact of the climate change will

be taken into consideration when the
field is transferred from exploration to
development stage; {2} bring forward the
date of decommissioning of the group's
producing cil and gas assets 0 Vietnam,
thereby increasing the net present value
of the associated provision. However,
decormmissioning is cutrently forecast to
oceur within the next 10-11 years and,
due to the relatively shorf timeframe, it

1S not considered that any reasonably
possible acceleration in the timing of
decommissioning will have a material
impact on the provision, assuming

the underlying cost estimates remain
unchanged.
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5. Total revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue 1s as follows:

2021 20204596

$ million $ milkon

Cil and gas sales {see Note 6) 163.8 118.3
R;ansed_(losses),«‘z;a‘rns or: rcomm;;dnty heages {s-e;e Note 76 and N_de 25) i ) B ) i {29. ;) ‘ : 23.7
IHVEST-I-HEHT revénue B 7 - - 7 ) . ) ) - ) O.;
134.1 1421

6. Segment information

The Group has one principal business activity being oil and gas exploration and production. The Group's continuing operations are
located in South East Asia and Egypt {the Group's operating segments). Africa has been classified as a giscontinued opsraticn for all
years shown, as the Group disposed of all of its interests in that geographical area in previous years. There are no inter-segment sales.
Scuth East Asia and Egypt form the basis on which the Group reports its segment information.

20
SEAsa  Egut  Afica  Undocated  Group
£ millicn & million $ milion $ million § milion
Oil and gas sales (see Note 5) 131.0 32.8 - - 163.8
Realis;d loss ;n com;nodityiﬁedges' (see Note 5 and Note 25) - - 7 - (29.7) {29.7)
;Fotal rE\;enue 7 7 7 7 " 7 131 0 32.8 7 - t29.7) ‘i34.1
(E;zgrﬁc;:a;|?r;ntie5ljttéo1n6)and amortisation - Qil and gas 142.0) 8.0 _ _ 151.0)
Depr;aciation: deple!trion andramorﬁsaﬁon —VOther (see Note 16) 7 - {0.4) - - 0.4
Impairrr]ent cha_rge - Ir;tangibiés {see Note 15) - - - (2.2) 2.2
lmp;irment :eversa\-ln— PP&_E {see lx-lbte 16)“ 752.9 1.7 - - 54.6
lmpaér;'rent chz;rge - A;sets éiassiﬁéd as held for sale (see N'ote 37} _— {10.4} - - (10.4)
P;c;fiU(lossi before- tax fro;n continuing operations 7 98.8 (10.1) - (50.1) 3_8.6
Loss (post-tax} from aisconiiﬁued operatioﬁs a - — - — -
'l:ax char;e on obération; {see riote 12)‘ 7 (24.8{ - - - (24.8)
Tax ;harge o_n impair:nent re-versal (;ee Nott; 12) (i 5.5) ’ - - - l 8.53
2020
i SE A;ia - Egypl“ _Afn(:a: Unai-l_(-)cated - Group
$ mition $ miliion % milliony $ millon $ milion
Qil and gas sales (see Note 5) 87.7 30.8 - - 118.3
Reahse; gam or; comm;diry r'ret;ges (see No!e:5 and N;;te 25 : : : 7 — 28.7 R 772:3.7
Tota; revenue" B ) B R k é?.? - 306 ) - 23,-7 i 142.5
beprec:ia;fm. depietion ar;j atnor;isat\ont Ol and yas (see Note 7rand Nolre 16} (47.87)7 7(15.5) - - (G;?.S)
Depreiciation, u;pletionﬁaﬂd al;uomsati;n . Oth;,r (see I\]U[e 16)” R - - 7 (ﬂ.g) 7 - (0,7)7 7 (1.2}
ngéirmemawarge —mlntang-rbles (Se_e Note 1_5)’ ) ) h - 119.0) i (:_5‘3) ‘ - 7 - i (24 é)
l;npalrm;ﬁ Charg;f - PPE:E (see l;Jote 16); ‘ a 7 I8l 05.17) 51 05,4) 7 7 - - (2;0/5)
(Loss}?proﬂt be?nre rax_from C;mrnumg_Operaf-l-orws _ ) ) (12;8) 7 (124.&) R ; <) é (24 1.2
LO;; (post-t;ﬂx} T(Om_disoon;r‘wued c:pera'uor; B . R ) i - i - -~ ((_).2) ) _— W (D.E)
fax (:har{;e on ope:ratlons\(rsee Nate 12} 7 B 7 {1 1.1)7 -~ 7 - - (171:1}
Tax credit on imparment charge {(see Note 12) 387 ~ - - 36.7

1} Unallocated amounts included in prafit/loss) betors tax comprise corporate costs not altributable to an opsrating segrman, nveskmernt revenua, other gaing and

losses and finance costs,

2} Africa operations in Gongo and Angola were disposed of on 24 June 2018 and 5 Cctober 2018 regpectively,

3) Includes $2.2m write-off of seismic costs relating to 1srael exploration Zones A and C.

4] [nciudes $1.1m write off of Block 1258126 tax receivable (other receivable - current) which was dependent on the E&E being developed.
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The arroninting nolicies of the reportainle segments are the same as the Group's accounting policios ac desoribod in Noto 2.
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Included in revenues arising from South East Asia and Egypt are revenues of $128.3m and $32.8m which arose from the Group's two
largest customers, who contributed more than 10% to the Group’s oil and gas revenue (2020: $61.3m and $30.6m in South East Asia
and Egypt from the Group's two largest customers).

Geographical information

The Group's oil and gas revenue and non-current assets (excluding othar receivables) by geographical location are separately detailed
below whetre they exceed 10% of tatal revenue or non-current assets, respectively:

Revenue

All of the Group's oil and gas revenue 15 derived from forgign countries. The Group’s cil and gas revenue by geographical location 1s

determined by reference to the final destination of cil or gas sold.

2021 2020
% million $ miflion
Vigtnam 131.0 64.4
Egypt B o 32.8 0.6
China o - - a4
Malaysia T o - - 9.2
Other ~ T - 47
163.8 118.3
Non-current assets
2021 2020
$ million & mithon
Vietnam 360.8 330.5
Egypt B B 51.4 1063
Isracl (sec Note 15)““ o - 71‘3
a12.2 437.3
Excludes other assets.
7. Cost of sales
2021 2020
$ million $ rouffion
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (see Note 16) 51.0 63.3
Production based 1axes - 7 - 101 7.0
Production opé;ating C(—)'Sg 7 I o 53.6 - 51.2
Iventories o R o) 233
114.6 123.8
8. Other/exceptional expense
2021 2020
$ million $ millon
Egypt acquisition cost - royalty ~- 4.9
Redu-naz:l;:-y -Io-s.s/(g;rw-J o B 7 307 1)
bremium - lease transfer (see Note dj) o - 0.3 i 1.(5
3.3 58
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

9. Finance costs

2021 2020

$ million % miillion

Unwinding of discount on provisions (see Note 26) 0.8 0.8
Interest expénsé-;_)-z;y_a_lt;n-lé ar;(-j .Similar fees (see Note 24) o 3.8 . ;.5
Interest on Ieaégﬁz:mméé (See Note 33) . N - 7 03
Amor;iisggwg of capitalised borrowing costs (see Note 24) 2.;1 {1.5)
Net foreign exchange (gainsy/losses - 7 7(0.6) 0.1
6.4 4.2

In 2021 $0.8m relates to the unwinding of discount on the provisions for decommissioning (2020: $0.8m). The provisions are based on
the net present value of the Group’s share of the expenditure which may be incurred at the end of the producing lite of TGT and CNV
{currently estimated to be 9-10 years} in the removal and decommissioning of the facilities currently in place {see Note 26).

Following the June and December 2021 redeterminations, together with refinancing completed in July 2021 in relation to the Group’s
reserve based lending facility, there was a change in estimated future cash flows, as a result a one off gain of $0.5rm and amortised cost

of $2.9m have been recognised in profit or loss.

10. Auditor’s remuneration
The analysis of the auditor’s remuneration is as follows:

2021 2020

$000s $000s

Feas payable 1o the Compary’s auditar and their associates for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 385 317
Fees payvable to the Company's auditor and their associates for other servces to the Group:

Audit of the Company’s subsidianes 101 107

Audit of the Company’s subsicdiaries relating té 2520 year end 63 -

Total audit fees 549 424

Alrldritr relaied assurance semvices — half yoar review 130 129

Other assurance Serv.ices 7 7 134 16

Total non-audit fees 264 1445

The other assurance services for 2021 are associated primarily with the reporting accountant work in relation to the farm-out of the
Egypt concessions {of which $27 400 are required by UK law or regulation) and the agreed upon procedurss relating 1o the Vietnam

region (2020: associated primarily with agreed upon procedures relating to the Vietnam region).

The nen-audit fees dunng 2021 included the half year review and other assurance services associated primarily with agreed upon

procedures relating te the Farm-out of the Egypt concession and Vietnam region (2020: associated pimanly with agreed upon

procedures relating to Vietnam region).

All non-audit fees were fully approved by the Audit and Risk Commitieg, having concluded such serices were compatible with auditor

independence and were consistent with relevant ethical guidance in place.

Details of the Company's policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services are set out in the Audit and Risk Committee Report on

pages 27 1o 1071,

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed separately because the

consolidated financial statements disciose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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11.Staff costs

The average mcnthly number of employees of the Group including Executive Directors was 74 (2020: 71), of which 69 (2020: 66) were
administrative personnel and 5 (2020: 5) were operations personnel. Their aggregate remunaration comprised.

Group

o 7 2021 2020

$ million $ million

Wages and salaries 9.1 6.9
éﬁ;cwal secuntyicc;st; o E)g - 0.6
éhare-base_c-j-@_l-ﬂe-m cxpens_e (;-:.ee Nole 313 o o é; 7 2.2
atr-mr pensio-n_cgsts under money purchase schenruiesir o 09 7 0.8
Other hencfits o - o o 0.7 0.2
142 10.8

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy $1.2m (2020: $1.3m) of the Group’s staff costs above have been caprtalised, of which
$1.0m (2020: $0.9m} relates to our Vietnam assets and $0.2m (2020: $0.4m) relates to our Egypt assets.

In 2021, total staff costs were $14.2m (2020: $10.8m) and includes the costs of head office and Phares' subsidiary employees.
Excluding the impact of IFRS 2 share-based payment expense and bonuses paid to staff, the underlying costs have remained consistent
year on year - $8,5m (2020: $8.3m).

Restructuring costs of $3.0m for both the head office In Londen and the Egypt office in Cairo are disclosed in other/restructuring
expense n the Income Statement.

12.Tax
2021 2020
$ million $ rnillion
Current tax charge 376 26.7
Deferréd ;é.x credit on operations {see Note 2é) 7 B {12.8) (15_6)
Deferred 1ax charge/({‘,redriiti)"(;EDairment (séo Note 16 and 23) - o 15_5 136.7)
Total tax charge/{credit) 43.3 {25.6)

The Group’s corporation tax is calculated at 50% (2020; 50%) of the estimated assessabie profit for the year in Vietnam. In Egypt, under
the terms of the concession. any local taxes arising are settled by EGPC. During 2021 and 2020 both current and deferred taxation have
ansen in overseas jurisdictions only.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit / (loss) per the income statement as follows:

2021 2020
$ million $ miflion
Profit / {Loss) before tax (including discontinued operations) 38.6 (241.4)
Profit / (Loss) before tax at 5():’/; -(2020; 50‘;{;3__- o ) 19757 {120.7)
éﬂects of: N o
Non-taxable income o ' - (8.0 -
Eon-deduc;@x-penses o - - - 4.5 24.8
E:V("Iosses no{ goénlsed - - o 28.7 o 57.7
Non-deductible éxploraliorl costs wfittie}l off _ - o 9.5
;_c-i-juslmenls- t;Tax charge in respact of previous pé}i&ds o o {1.2) o 3.1
Ta;( charge/(creﬁit) for the year o o 43.3 o {25.5}
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The prevailing tax rate in Vietnam, where the Group produces cil and gas, is 50%. The tax charge in future pericds may also be affected
by the factors in the reconciliation above.

The effect of non-geductible exploration costs written off of $9.5m in 2020 related to the impairment af exploration assets in Vietnam.

Non-taxable income principally relates to Vietnam impairment reversal of $18.0)m (2020: $nil). Non-deductible expenses primarily relate
to Vietnam DD&A charges for costs previously capitalised, which are nen-deductible for Vietnamese tax purposes of $1.8m (2020:
$6.1m) and Vietnam net impairment charge of $nil (2020: $15.9m). A further $2.7m (2020: $2.0m} relates to non-deductible corporate
costs including share scheme incentives,

The Egypt concessions are subject to corporate income tax at the standard rate of 40.55%, however rasponsibility for payment of
corporate income taxes falls upon EGPC on behalf of our local subsidiary Pharos El Fayumn (PEF). The Group records a tax charge,
with a corresponding increase in revenues, for the tax paid by EGPC on its behalf. However, this is only valid if PEF is in a profit making
position and no such tax has been recerded this year.

The effect from tax losses not recognised relates to costs, primarily of the Company. deductible for tax in the UK but not expected to be
utilised in the foreseeable future, It also includes losses arising in Egypt for which no future benefit can be obtained under the terms of
the concession agresment.

13. Profit/(loss) attributable to Pharos Energy Plc

The profit for the financial year in the accounts of the Company was $1.9m inclusive of dividends from subsidiary undertakings (2020:
loss of $264.5m}. As provided by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no incoms statement or statement of comprehensive income
is presented in respect of the Company.

14. Earnings per share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Group

2021 2()26

$ million $ rnillian

Loss from continuing and discontinued operations for the purposes of basic loss per share 4.7 1215.8)
Effect 7cr'fﬁdi\7uﬂi\rfe thijt;nitirailgr&lrwér;srhares - Casﬁ s&ti;drsr;%aré awérds and options - -
I_os.s ;rgixlrwrrgd;tﬂhu]n'g aind d\g(wolmtimled operations }0; the purposes of dikted loss per share (4.7} [216.8)
Group

2021 5&6

$ miillion $ rmillion

Loss from continuing operations for the purposes of basic loss per share (4.7) (215.6)
Fffect of dilitve potential orcinary shares - Cash setfled share awards and options - -
Loss from continuing operations lor the purposes of dluted loss proft per share @7 (215.6)

Number of shares (million)

2021 2020
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 437.8 3851
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares — Share awards and options - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted loss per share 452.(5 - 773975;

In accordance with IAS 33 “Earnings per Share”, the effects of $14.2m (2020: $1.3m) antidilutive potential shares have not been
included when calculating dilutive earnings per share for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021 and 2020, as the Group was loss making.
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15.Intangible assets

Group Company
- .‘50-21- 2020 - 2_0:‘21_ _____ 2520
$ miltion $ milhon $ miltion $ rmillion

Exploration and evaluation expenditure
A-Sa-HJanuarv S - 15 - -20_.4 - . OS
Additions - - N 7175.5 7 4.3 . — - -
Impairmenf—Irw;al;giif)lés;‘ . - 7(2;.2) 123.2) - -
Reclassified a;s 6_15;8;8 ?mld_f()_r saleisee Note 57 (2_.1i - - — - -
Transler to subsidlary - o - - ©.3)
Arsiali.Bri becember o ) o 12.4- - ;5 7 - ) -

1) 2020 excludes $1.1m write-off of Block 125&126 tax receivable (other receivable — current] which was dependent on the E&E being developed.

Intangible assels at 2021 year-end comprise the Group's exploration and evaluation projects which are pending determination. Included
in the additions is Blocks 125 & 126 in Vietnam $10.6m {2020: $2.0m). Egypt $3.9m [2020: $1.1m} of which $0.6m (2020: $0.3m)
relates to North Beni Suetf, and $0.7m (2020: $1.2m) for lsrael.

During 2021, $0.7m was spent in Israel on geoscience and geophysical studies (202C: $1.2m). Pharos continues to hold $2.7m (202C:
$2.7m) cash in relaticn to bank guarantees for the lsraeli offshore exploration licenses. At 31 December 2021, the Group has decided to
write off the $2.2m in Israel as no substantive expenditure has been identified as indicated in IFRS 6.

At June 2020 and December 2020 an impairment indicator of IFRS € was triggered following the Group's decision to defer all non-
essential investment in Vistnam and Egypt at this point. No substantive expenditure for its exploration areas in Vietnam and Egypt was
either budgeted or planned in the near future. Exploration costs including costs associated with Blocks 125 & 126 in Vietnam of $17.5m
and costs associated with Egypt projects in the amount of $5.3m were wntten off in the income statement in accordance with the
Group’'s accounting policy on oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditure. At 31 December 2021, interpretation of the seismic
data in relation to Blocks 125 & 126 in Vietnam is stil ongoing and the carrying value of the Egypt exploration and evaluation expenditure
will be reviewed following the completion of the farm out of the Egypt concessions., Whilst cngoing costs for exploration are forecast and
funds available for future exploration, there is not sufficient certainty of recovery to justify the reversal of the past impairment made. This
will be kapt under review as the exploration activity continues.
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16. Property, plant and equipment and right of use assets

Group Company
Ol and gas : - B
properties Otiher Total Other
$ million $ million % million $ muflion
Cost
As at 1 January 2020 1.169.2 10.7 1.179.9 9.5
Adttions ' S I or 335 -
Kievlsmn n dBC(_);WWT\iSSI(;W’Wg aséel 7 7 66 - 6.6 .
Disposal of other assets ' ' * ' - (2.5 (2.5 (2.5
De-recognition of right-of-use asset (see Nole 33) ~ (7.0 (7.0} (7.0)
As at1 January 2021 . ) ) ' 14,2086 19 1,2105 -
Additions ' ' 245 0.1 247 -
Révision in deco;'nmissit;ming asset 7 1.9) - {1.9) -
Dispbsal ofwother éssets ) B - - - -
De-rrécognitiionrof right-of-use assét (seerNote 33) - - - -
Recl;assiﬁed\as ass;ts helci for salé (see the 37) 7 {1 39.4) (1.1} {140.5) -
As at 31 December 2021 ' 1,091.9 0.9 1,092.8 -
Depreciation
As at 1 Jaruary 2020 500.1 2.9 503.0 2.6
Cﬁarge for the year 63.3 1.2 54.5 - 0.7
|1’x1{)éirr|1el1t charge 210.5 - 210.5 -
Dnsposé& of other assets - 12.0) 2.0} (2.0}
lje-rECC)gliniO|1 of r|ghl—0-f-use asset (see Note 33} - (1.3) {1.3) (1.9)
As at 1 January 2021 773.9 0.8 7747 -
Charge for the year 51.0 0.4 51.4 -
Imp:;i rment '(reversal) {54.6) - (54.8) -
Reclassified és assets held for sale (see Note 37) (};7,8) {0.7) (78.5) -
As at 31 December 2021 6925 05 693.0 -
Carrying amount 7
As at 31 December 2021 ' 399.4 0.4 399.8 -
As at 31 Decernber 2020 ) " 434.7 11 435.8 -
Property, piant and equipment 399.4 0.4 399.8 -
Rig_ht of us; a-:%sett;. (see Note 33} 7 \ - 7 - - - ) -
As at 31 December 2021 399.4 0.4 399.8 -
Property. nlant and equiprment 7 434.6 1.1 7 435.7 -
Right of use assets (see Note 33) ) ' o - 01 -
As at 31 December 20é£) - 7 ) ) . 434.7 14 5?55.8 -
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As a result of the oil price volatility and movements in 2P reserves, we have tested each of our oil and gas producing properties for
impairment. The resulis of these impairment tests are summarised below. For each producing property, the recoverable amount has
been determined using the value in use method which constitutes a level 3 valuation within the fair value hierarchy. The recoverable
amount is supported by the fair value derived from a discounted cash flow valuation of the 2P production profile.

Vietnam

The key assumptions to which the fair value measurement is most sensitive are oil price, discount rate and 2P reserves (2020: oil price,
discount rate, capital spend and 2P reserves). As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the assets are estimated based on a post-tax
nominal discount rate of 11.4% (2020 11%) and a Brent oil price of $73.9/bbl in 2022, $70.2/bbl in 2023, $67.8/bbl in 2024, $68.0/bhk
in 2025 plus inflation of 2.0% thereafter {2020: an ail price of $57.0/bbl in 2022, $59.0/bbl in 2023, $61.0/bbl in 2024 plus inflation of
2.0% thereafter).

For CNV, a pre-tax impairment reversal in the amount of $3.8m has been refiected in the income statemant with an associated deferred
tax charge of $1.4m. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the CNV oil and gas producing property, after additions ($0.9m
decrease in decommissioning asset offset by $0.3m in additions), DD&A ($10.2m} and impairment reversal ($3.8m), is $84.2m,

For TGT, a pre tax impairnient reversal in the amount ot $49.1m has been reflected in the income statement with an associated deferred
tax charge of $17 1m. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the TGT oil and gas producing property, after additions ($1.0m
decrease in decommissioning asset offset by $11.4m in additions), DD&A ($32.8m) and after impairment reversal $49.1m), is $266.0m.

Testing of sensitivity cases indicated that a $5/bbl reduction in long-term oil price used when determining the value in use methed would
result in post-tax impairments charge [compare to new NBV) of $23.8m on TGT and a $4.5m on CNV. A 1% increase in discount rate
would result in post-tax impairments of $4.5m on TGT and $1.5m on CNY,

We have also run sensitivities utilising the IEA {International Energy Agency) scenarios described as being consistent with achieving the
COP26 agreement goal to reach net zero by 2050 {the "Net Zero price scenario”). The nominal Brent prices used in this scenario were
as follows; $73.9/400 in 2022, $70.2/bbl in 2023, $87.8/bbl in 2024, $68.0/bhl in 2025, $64.0/bbl in 2028, $58.0/bbl in 2027, $54.0/
bht in 2028, $49.0/bbl in 2028 and $44.0/bbl in 2030, Using these prices and an 11.4% discount rate would result in additional post-tax
impairments of $16.9m on TGT and $5.6m on CNV.

The impairment tests for TGT and TNV assume that production ceases in 2029 and 2030 respechively.

Egypt

The key assumptions to which the fair value measurement is most sensitive are oil price, discount rate, capital spend and 2P reserves
(2020: oil price, discount rate, capital spend and 2P reserves). As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the assets are estimated based
on a post-tax nominal discount rate of 14% (2020: 14%;) and a Brent il price of $73.9/bbl in 2022, $70.2/bbl in 2023, $67.8/bbl in
2024, $68.0/bbl in 2025 plus inflation of 2.0% thereafter (2020: an oil price of $57.0/bbl in 2022, $59.0/bkl in 2023, $61.0/bbl in 2024
plus inflation of 2.0% thereafter).

An impairment reversai {pre and post-tax) of $1.7m arose on El Fayum as a resuit of the above impairment test. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of the Egypt ol and gas producing property, after additions ($12.9m offset by $1.4m reclossified 100% to
assets held for salej, DD&A ($8.0mj and the impairment reversal, is $109.3m, pre-reclassification to Assets held for sale.

After the reclassification to assets held for sale, the Egypt oil and gas producing property amounts to $48.2m. Testing of sensitivity cases
indicated that a $5/bbl reduction in long term oil price used would result in an impairment of $18.1m {compare to new NBV). A 1%
increase in discount rate would result in an impairment charge ot $3.1m. We have also run a sensitivity using a 14% discount rate and
the Net Zero price scenario which would result in an additional impairment of $24.1m,

Other considerations

It is not considered possible to provide meaningful sensitivities in relation to 2P reserves for any of the Group's oil and gas producing
properties, as the impact of any changes in 2P reserves on recoverable amount would depend on a varisty of factors, including the
timing of changes in production profile and the consequential effect on the expenditure reguired to both develop and extract the
reserves.

Other fixed assets comprise office fixtures and fittings and computer equipment.
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17. Fixed asset investments and joint arrangements
The Company and the Group had investments in the following subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2021,

Courtry Country Percentage Registered
of incorporation  of operahon Principal actvily holding  Footnotes  address
OPECO Vietnam Limitec Cook Islands Vietnam Ol and 985 development and 100 2.5 e
production
SOCO Vietnam Ltd Cayman lslands  Vietnam Ol and gas development and 100 2.4 d
production
Pharos Exploration Linwted Jersey - Investiient holding 100 1 a
Pharos SEA Limited Jersey - Investment helding 100 1
SOCO Exploration {Victnamy Limited Cayman Islands  victnam Oil and gas exploraticn 100 2.6
QPECO, Inc USA - Investment halding 100 2.5 <
Pharos Bl Fayum Cayman lslands  Egypt O\l‘and gas development and 100 1 d
production
SOCO Managerment Services, Inc. USA USA Manageiment services 100 2 C
Pharos Energy Israg! Limited UK Israel Extraction of crude petroleum 100 1 8]
Pharos Energy NBS Limited UK - Extraction of crude petroleum 100 1.3 b
Footnotes;

Group investments

1) Investments held directly by Pharos Energy Plc.
2) Investments held indirectty by Pharos Energy Plc.

3} Dormant

Joint operations

4) SOCC Vietnam Ltd holds a 28.5% working interest in Block 16-1, TGT Field. The Field operational base is development/production and is operated by
Hoang Long Joint Operating Gompany which is registered in Vietnam. SOCQ Vietnam Ltd holds & 25% working interest in Block 9-2, ONV Figld. The
Field operational base is development/production and is operated by Hoan Vu Jeint OQperating Company which is registered in Vietnam.

5) OPECO Vietnam Limited holds a 2% working interest in Block 16-1, TGT Field. The Field operational base is development/production and is operated
by Hoang Long Joint Operating Company which is registered in Vietnam.

6) SOCO Exploration (Vietnam) Limited helds a 70% working interest in Blocks 125 & 126 and is the Operator. The operating office is registered in
Vietnam. The main activity & exploration.

Registered addresses

a} 47 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersay, JE1 0BD, Channel lslands

b} Eastcastle House, 27/28 Eastcastle Strest, London W1W 8DH, United Kingdom

¢)  Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, DE 19801, USA

d) c/o The offices of Trident Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, One Capital Place, P.O. Box 847, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands

e) /o Portcullis (Cook Istands) Ltd, Porteullis Chambers, Tutakimoa Road, Avarua, Rarctonga, Cook Islands

Divestments:

The following subsidiary undertakings were dissolved during the year:
* Pharos Finance {Jersey) Limited

+ Pharos Gil and Gas Limited

= The Company's investments in subsidiary undertakings include contributions ta the Pharos Employee Benefit Trust (see Note 28) and
are otherwise held in the form of share capital.

* In 2021, the increase In investment value of $10.6m was due mainly to $2.1m funding of operating activities for Pharos Exploration
Limited group and funding flows and an imparment reversal in relation to Pharos SEA Limited of $13.1m, partially offset by $0.9im
exercise and disposal of shares in Pharos Employee Benefit Trust and ${5.2)m impairment of Pharcs Bl Fayum.

Aty Phares Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Audit exemptions for subsidiary company

T R : Financial Staterments [SEI EEE IS A  P

The Grouup has elscted to take advantage of the exemption from audit available under section 479A of the Companies Act 2008

in respect of its wholly owned subsidiary, Pharos Energy lsrael Limited (incorporated in England and Wales with company number
12645818), for the year ended 31 December 2021. The exemption is available for qualifying subsidiaries that fulfil & set of conditions.
As a result, statutory financial statements will not be audited for Pharos Energy Israel Limited. In accordance with section 479C of the
Companies Act 2008, the Company will guarantee the liabilities and commitments of Pharos Energy Israel Limited. As at 31 December

2021, the total sum of these liabilities and commitments is $0.8m (2020: $2.6m).

18. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets comprise the Group's share of contributions made into two albbandonment security funds which were
astablished to ensure that sufficient funds exist to meet future abandonment obligations on TGT and CNV fields. The funds are cperated
by PetroVieinam and the JOC partners retain the legal rights to the funds pending commencement of abandonment operations, The
Group doesn't expect to receive cash or another financial asset from PetroVietnam. During 2021, the Group has contributed $2.2m
(2020: $2.3m). As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total contribution to the funds was $48.1m (2020: $45.9m).

19. Inventories
Group Company
7 20é1 2020 - 2021 o 50720
$ million $ million $ million $ million
Crude ol and condensate 6.9 5.8 - -
Warehousre s%t&@séndnwaterials - - - ‘1;.17 12.1 o - -
ReCiaSSirfiédiaSiaiSE;e!s held for sale (see- Note 37 - o (633 oo - -
10.7 17.7 - -

Crude oil and condensate are valued at net realisable value in line with well-established industry practice with changes in hydrocarbon
inventories adjusted through cost of sales (see Note 7). The warehouse stock and materials inventory of $11.1m (2020: $12.1m) all

relates to Egypt.

20. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2021 - 2-02-0 72621 726)26)
$ million $ milion $ million $ millon
Amounts falling cue within one year

Trade recgeiiva;br\;esr - N - 23.8 - 148 - -
bt}lér ;ecewables ----- - - 1.0 1.6 - 0.9 -

I_:-’n-spay-mer'lts and acrcriue’.d }lwcorwwé i - 5.:37 7 8.5 ) 0.5 ) 1.
Reclassiﬂédiag e;s;ets held for sale (seé I;Jo_te-S?) - o ‘7(5.(73) I - -
28.1 229 1.4 1.6

There is no matetial difference betwesn the carrying amount of trade and other receivables and therr fair value.

Inchuded in trade and other receivables arising from South Easl Asia and Egypt at 31 December 2021 are trade receivables of $16.3m
and $7.1m respectively, which arose from the Group's two largest customers (2020: $5.9m and $6.5m from the Group's two largest

customers in South East Asia and Egypt respectively).

In Vietnam, there are no amounts overdue or allowances for doubtful debls in respect of trade or other recelvables (2020: nil), In Egypt,
the average credit period on sales is 78 days (2020: 126 days). No interest is charged on outstanding trade receivables.

Trade and other receivables are financial assets and measured at amortised cost. The Group applies the IFRS @ simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses (‘ECL') which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. As mentioned above,
98% (2020: 84%) of our trade receivables are concentrated with two largest customers, one of them being a subsidiary of a government
regulated entity and the other being a major glebal oil & gas company. As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, we have concluded that the

ECL related to our trade recevables 1s immaterial.

Included in prepayments is $0.9m (2020: $1.2m) held by Sheppard & Wedderburn LLP on a 'guasi escrow’ basis to be released to the
new London office tenant gver the next 12 months as the tenant makes payments to the landlord (see Note 33).
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21.Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents was $27.1m (2020: $24.6m). Of this balance, $0.7m (2020: $0.1m) were in Money
Market Funds that are valued at guoted prices of the funds in the active markets for the financial instruments. The Monay Market Funds
were recorded at fair value at the year end.

The cash and cash eguivalents in the Group and the Company include $2.7m (2020: $2.7m) of restricted cash, which is related to the
bank guarantees in place for the Israell offshore exploration licences.

22.Trade and other payables

Group Company

5021 2020 2021 2020

$ million $milon $ million $ tmltion

Trade payables 7.9 18.4 - -
Otfiier pay:ables 8.0 7 2.2 1.2 - 11
Dkerivauv_e ﬁnanélal instruméms tsee MNote 25) 6.5 Ei.é - .
Accruals and cielerred ncome 7 16.7; 82 341 1.6
Reclassitied aé Habilit]es afsséciéted with assets helﬁ for sale {sec Note 37} {8.5) - - -
30.6 35.6 4.3 27

There is no material difference between the carrying value of trade payables and their fair value. The above trade and other payables are
held at amortised cost and are not discounted as the impact would not be material.

Trade and other payables are financial jiabilities and are therefore measured at amortised cost.

In Vietham, the average credit period for settlement of trade payables 1s standard 30 days or later if this falls within the agreed terms. In
Egypt, the average credit period for settlement of trade payables as at 31 December 2021 is 218 days (2020: 222 days).

The Group does not utilise any supplier financing (reverse factoring) arrangements. The Group has financial risk management policigs in
place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms. Further infarmation refating to financial risks and how the
Group mitigate these risks are discussed in the Risk Management and Risk Report on pages 43 10 57.

Accruals and deferred ncome include $3.4m (2020: $nil) 1n respect of a royalty provision for Egypt and reflects the amount payable in
the next year. For further details, please rafer 1o Nate 26: Long-term provisions.

23. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
period:

Accelerated tax Other temporary

depreciation difterences Group

$ million $ mifion $ miflion

As at 1 January 2020 133.8 4.0 137.8
{Credity/charge to ncome (See Note 12) 51.2) (1.1} 52.3)
As at 1 January 2021 82.6 29 85.5
Charge to income {see Note 12) 5.7 - 5.7
As at 31 December 2021 88.3 2.9 91.2

The charge 1o Income includes a deferred tax charge of $18.5rm (2020: $36.7m credit) that ariges from the impairment of the TGT and
CNV preducing assets as discussed in Note 16.

There are no unrecognised deferred taxation balances at either balance sheet date except in relation to gross lesses that are not
expected 1o be utlised in the amourt of $129.0m (2020: $181.5m). The gross losses have no expiry date.

A UK entity in the Group has entered into commodity swaps designated as cash flow hedges. In accordance with |IAS 12, a deferred tax
asset has not been recognised in relation o the hedging losses of $29.7m recorded in the year as it is unlikely that the UK tax group will
generate sufficient taxable profit in the future, against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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Group
- 2021 202(_)
$ million £ million
Borrowings:

Uncommitted Revotvir-1g-;-;;‘t_t facility o o o 6.5 .
Reserve Based Lending} I;aicrlilty o o 781 57.2
Leis?trli;amomsed issle costs and débt arrangament feeé (4.1) (3.5)
Carrying value of total debt 80.5 53.7
Current o o 7 33.3 12‘77
f\I_o;-c_ur_r-em o 47.2 41.0
Carrying value of total debt 80.5 837
less than 1 yoar 1-2 years 2-5 years Group
$ million $ million $ millon $ million

Maturity - borrowings:
Urnrcommitted Revolving credit facilty N - - 6.5
Reserve Based Lending Faciity T %68 24,2 7.1 78.1

The matunty analysis for borrowings details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its borrowings with agreed repayment periods.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of borrowings based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required 1o pay. The reserve based lending facility is based on December 2021 redstermination.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2021 2021 2021 2020
$ million $ million $ million $ rillion

o Total o
Credit facility* RBL Borrowings Total Borrowings
Carrying value as of 1 January - 53.7 53.7 981
Proceeds froﬁw-Un-commitled Revolving credit facility 18.1 - 1841 -
Proceeds f_rr;r-n RBL - N - 271 8 21.8 -
Repayments of borrowings T 118 (0.9) (12.5) 42.8)
Amortisation of capitalised borrovrwingcijrosts (see Note §) - - 24 24 (1.5
Interest pz-;y_a_ble and S_nmlar fees (see Notéﬁg)—_- . - 0.3 E 3.8 - 4.5
Interest paid during the year - (0.3} (6.5) - (6.8} f4.é-)
Carrying vatue as of 31 December 6.5 74,0 80.5 53.7

*The Group crew down on a new facility with the National Bank of Egypt in April 2021,

See Note 33 for movements in lease liabilities which, together with borrowings, represent the Group’s financing related liabilities.
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Reserve Based Lending facility (RBL)

In September 2018, the Group signed a $125m Reserve Based Lending facility (RBL) secured against the Group's producing assets in
Vietnam. The RBL had a five-year term and was dua to mature in September 2023. In July 2021, the Group complated the refinancing of
its RBL. The new RBL provides access to up to a committed US$100m with a further US$50m available on an uncommitted “accordion”
basis, has a four-year term that matures in July 2025 and bears a per annum interest rate of 4,75% plus USD LIBOR until July 2023 and
then 5.25% plus LIBOR untit the final maturity date.

Extending the tenor of the facility by 22 months, allows for a re-phasing of the repayment schedule and the provision of additional funds
available for general corporate purposes. Immediately prior to the refinancing the cutstanding loan balance on the original RBL stood at
$56.3m, following the refinancing this was increased to $78.1m.

Ag the terms cf the refinanced RBL do not result in a substantially different discounted present value of cash flows from the original
faciity (less than 10%,), the refinancing of the BBL is considered as a medification rather than an extinguishment of the onginal facility.
Accordingly, the refinancing of the RBL is accounted for as a non-substantial modification and the fees paid to the lenders together with
legal fees, totalling $2.9m, related to the refinancing will be amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability along with the
remaining unamortised costs associated with the original facility.

The maximum borrowing base available under the RBL is revised every six months via a redetermination process by the relevant banks,
based on an estimate of the value of the Group's reserves from its producing interests in Vietnam, The significant decrease in the oil
price in H1 2020 led to a much reduced borrowing base amount in the 30 June 2020 redetermination, resulting in principal repayments
during the year totalling $42.8m. For the year 2021, the only principal repayment made was for $6.89m in January 2021.

The $26.8m, categerised as current, is based on the cutcame of the December 2021 RBL redetermination criteria and will likely change
following the June 2022 redetermination,

Discussions are ongoing with the RBL banking group to amend the reference benchmark interest rate of USD LIBOR to the Secured
Qvernight Financing Rate (SOFR). The Group anticipates finalising this amendrment in the first half of 2022.

The RBL is subject to a number of financial covenants, all of which have been complied with during the 2021 and 2020 reparting
periods,

Uncommitted revolving credit facility - National Bank of Egypt

in March 2021, Pharos El Fayum signed an uncommitted revolving credit facility for discounting (with recourse) of up to $20m with

the National Bank of Egypt {UK). This facility has been put in place to mitigate the risk of late payment of our debtors, Under this
arrangement, Pharcs is able tc access cash from the facility, of up to 60% of the value of each El Fayum oll sales inveoice, presenting

the inveices as evidence to support its ability to repay the facility, The ol sales invaices remain due to Pharos and it retains the credit
risk. The Group therefore continues to recognise the receivables in their entirety in s balance sheet. Loans are available for up to one
year from the date of utihisation and bear a per annum interest rate of USD LIBOR plus 3.00% for initial advances and 3.50% for any
extensions beyond 180 days from the date of the utilisation. The amount repayable under the facility at 31 December 2021 was $6.5m
and it 15 presented as borrowings under current liabilities. The amount repayable under the agreement at 31 Decemnber 2021 was $6.5m
and it 15 presented as borrowing under current liabilities. Performance under the facility agreement is subject to a parent company
guarantee from Pharos Energy plc.

25. Hedge transactions

During 2021, Pharos entered inte different commaodity {swap and zerc collar) hedges to protect the Brent component of forecast oil
sales and to ensure future compliance with its obligations under the RBL over the producing assets in Vietnam. The commodity hedges
run until December 2022 and are settled monthly. The hedging positions in place at the balance sheet date cover 23% of the Group's
forecast production until December 2022, securing a minimum price for this hedged volume of $68.2 per barrel {2020: cover was 42%
of the Group's forecast production until December 2021 securng an average price for this hedged volume of $44.7 per barrel).

Pharos has designated the swaps as cash flow hedges. This means that the effective portion of unrealised gans or losses on open
positions will be reflected in other comprehensive income. Every month, the realised gain or loss will be reflected in the revenue line of
the income statement. For the year end 31 December 2021 a loss of $29.7m was realised [(2020: gain of $23.7m). The outstanding
unrealised loss on open position as at 31 December 2021 amounts ta $4.3m (2020 loss of $6.3m).

The carrying amount of the swaps is based on the far value determined by a financial institution. As all material Inputs are observable.
they are categorised within Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. It is presented in “Trade and other receivables” or “Trade and other
payables” in the conselidated statement of financial position. The liability positon as of December 2021 was $6.5m (2020: hability
position $6.8m).

26. Long-term provisions

Group Company

2021 2020 20210 2020

$ miltion $ million $ million $ million

Decommissioning provision 66.9 68.0 - -
Royalty”prov'lswoni S 2.2 5.4 - -
69.1 73.4 - -
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Movement jn decommissioning

Group

_ 2021 o 2020

$ million $ million

As at 1 January 68.0 60.5
New provisions and cha;wgeiq w; estimates - - o (17.9)7 ) 6.7
Un;fvir{ding of discount (see_Nc;e é) o - - - O.B- - 0.8
As at 31 Decernber 66.9 &8.0

The provision for decommigsioning is based on the net pregent value of the Group's share of the expenditure which may be incurred at the end
of the producing life of the TGT and CNV figlds in Vietnam {currently estmated to be 9-10 years) in the removal and decommissioning of the
facilities currently in place. The provision is caloulaled using an inflation rate of 2.0% (2020: 2.0%) and a discount rate of 1.5% (2020: 0.9%).
The $1.9m decrease in provision in 2021 was driven by the increase in discount rate compared to prior year, partially offset by the increase

in abandonment costs relating to the TGT infill wells driling programme completed during the year, The $6.7m increase in provision in 2020
primarily résulted from the reduction in the discount rate in 2020 offset by the change in JOC parties’ interest from 88.8822% to 97.2127%. No
decommissioning obligations exist in Egypt under the terms of the concession agreement.

The rovalty provision relates to a historical arrangement granting a 3% rovalty on Pharos’s share of profit oil and excess cost recovery from El
Fayum in Egypt. At both the date of acquisition of the Eqypt assets (April 2019) and 31 December 2019 the risk of a material outflow in relation
to this arrangement was, bagsed on legal advice, considered remote and therefore no provision was recorded. As a result of additional legal
acvice obtained during 2020, it was considered probable that armounts are due under this arrangement and accordingly a provision of $5.4m
was recognised, which was anticipated to be settled in 1 to 3 years. During 2021, a further increase in the provision of $0.2m was recognised,
giving a tota! provision at the end of the year of $5.6m, $3.4m of which falls due for payment in 2022 and has been disclosed in current trade
and other payahles in Note 22.

27.S8hare capital and Share premium

Share capita!
Ordinary Shares of £0.05 each
Group and Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Shares Shares % million £ milhon

Issued and fully pa:x 406,637,952  406,637.952 319 31.9
Share premium Group and Company
- é021 o 2(520

% million $ milllion

As at 1 January 55.4 55.4
Prelﬁiiumiarii_sing o; \53@0 of equity Si\are}; T - - S 34 o -
Share Issue costs ST S ) o (0.8 -
As at 31 December 58.0 55.4

As at 31 December 2021 authorised share capital comprised 800 million (2020: 800 million} ordinary shares of £0.05 each with a total
nominal value of C30m {2020 £30m}.

In January 2021, the Company announced the successiul completion of an equity Placing, Subscription and Retail Offering {'Placing”) to
fund Phase 1B of the waterflood programme in Egypt.

Pursuant 16 the Placing, which was significantly oversubscribed, a total of 30,733,682 Placing Shares have been piaced with new
and existing investors at the Placing Price raising gross proceeds of approximately $8.1m (£5.9m). Concurrently with the Placing,
certain directors and existing shareholders have entered into subscription agreements with the Company to subscribe for 9,017,886
Subscription Shares at the Placing Price raising gross proceeds of approximately $2.3m (£1.7m). In addition, retall investors have
subscribed in the Retail Offer via PrimaryBid for 4,908,222 Retail Shares at the Placing Price raising gross proceeds of approximately
$1.3m {(£0.9m).

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received $11.7m, net of direct issue costs {$0.8m),

The Placing shares were issued for non-cash consideration by way of a ‘cash box’ structure involving a newly incorporated Jersey
subsidiary of the Company (Pharos Energy {Jersey) Limited - *JerseyCo’).
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This structure involved the issue of ordinary and preference shares by JerseyCo to one of the investment banks advising the Company
in respeact of the Placing. The Company subscribed for 88% of the ordinary shares and the Settlement Bank subscribed for 11% of the

ordinary shares in JerseyCo.

These preference and ordinary shares were subsaquently acquired by the Company and the preference shares were redeermed by JerseyCo,
The acquisition by the Company of the ordinary shares in JerseyCo held by the investment bank résulted in the Company securing over 90% of
the squity share capital of JerseyCo. The Company was thersfore able to rely on Section 612 of the Companies Act 2008, which provides relief
from the requirements under Section 610 of the Companies Act 2006 to create a share premium account. Therefors, no share premium was
recorded In relabion 1o the Placing shares. The premium over the nominal value of the Placing shares was credited 10 a merger reserve (35.3m).

Pharos Erergy (Jersey) Limited was dissolved on 5 February 2021,

28. Other reserves

Group
Capital
recdlemption Mergoer Hedging  Share-based
reserve reserve Own shares resenve payments Total
¢ million & million $ million $ milkon $ million $ imillion
As al 1 January 2020 100.3 188.7 471 {2.6) 7.3 246.6
Currency exchange translation ditfferences - - - - 0.8 0.8
Other comprehé_r-wsive loss - - - - 13.7) - (3.7
Share—based”payrrnel s - - - - 2.3 2.3
Tra-nswer rc_lat\'ng 1o sharé-based payments - - 1.4 - 4.8) (3.0)
As at 1 January 2021 100.3 188.7 (45.3) 6.3) 5.6 243.0
Other comprehensive income - - - 2.0 - 2.0
Shares issued - 5.3 - - - 53
Share-based payments - - - - 25 25
T;-ansfer reie;ting to share-based payments - - 1.0 - (3.3) (2.3}
As at 31 December 2021 100.3 194.0 (44.3) (4.3) 4.8 250.5
Company
Capiial
reclermption Merger Share-based
reserve reserve Own shares payments Total
$ milion $ milkon § million % mllicon % mullioon
As at 1 January 2020 100.3 131.8 140.3) 7.5 199.3
Currency excha-nzle translation differences - - - 0.8 08
7Sharé-basedr payrﬁents B - - - 2.3 2.3
Transter _relahnic;_to shar_e;-bas;(-ed payz;'wems - - -~ (4.8} {4.8)
As at 1 J;nuary 2021 N 106.3 131.8 (40.3) 5.8 197;6
Currency -exchange translation differences - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Srlr'larers issued ) - 5.3 - - 5.3
Share—bast;d payments - - - - 25 25
fransfrei;relaiting to :;»hare-based payments - - - (3.1) (3.1)
As at 31 December 2021 100.3 1371 (40.3) 5.3 202.4
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The Group's other reserves comprise reserves arising in respect of merger relisf, upon the purchase of the Company's own shares held in
treasury and held by the Trust. as well as hedging and share-based payments.

The number of treasury shares held by the Group and the number of shares held by the Trust at 31 December 2021 was 9,122,268
(2020 9,122,268) and 1,764,757 (2020: 2,151,655} raspectively. The market price of the shares at 31 December 2021 was £0.2600
(2020: £0.1800). The Trust, a discretionary trust, holds shares for the purpose of satisfying employee share schemes, details of which are
set out in Note 31 and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 102 to 116.

The trustees purchase shares in the open market which are recognised by the Company within investments and classified as other
reserves by the Group as described above. When award conditions are met, an unconditional transfer of shares is made out of the
Trust to Plan participants. The Group has an obligation to make regular contributions to the Trust to enable it to meet its financing costs.
Rights to dvidends on the shares held by the Trust have been waived by the trustees.

29. Distribution to shareholders

The Company is focused on preserving balance sheet strength and has therefore decided to withdraw dividend payments duning 2021
and 2020, given the continued uncertainty in the macro environment,

30. Retained (deficit} / earnings

Group

S -Retamed Unrealised currency
{loss)/profit translation differences Toral
$ million & million $ million
As at 1 January 2020 1711 5.1 176.2
[c;ssi fo: ;he year 7 (215.8) (égg)
Distributions (see Note 29) — - -
Transfer relating to share-based payments I 3.0 - 3.0
Asat1 Eu_a:yzofl o @1.7 51 (_56.6)
Loss for the year - {4.7) - (4.7)
Transfer relating to share-based payments é? 7777777777777 - 2.3
As at 31 December 2021 44.1) 5.1 {39.0)
Company
Retained Unrealised currency o
(loss)/profit translation differences Total
& million % million % million
As at 1 January 2020 492.0 [223.6) 268.4
Loss for the year S h (264.5) - (264.-5-)-
Transfer relating to share-based paymernts S 3.0 - 3.0
As at 1 January 2021 23ﬁ.5 (223.67)7 6.9
Profit for t!i*ngyéar 1.8 - - 19
Transf;}iggtiihéﬂto share-l;ééed ba&ments 2.3 s o 2.3
C_ur;ency exchange translation differences - 1.5 ____1_.5
As at 31 December 2021 234.7 (222.1} 12.6
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31.Incentive plans

Details of the Group's employee ncentive schemes are set out below. Additional inforration regarding the schemes is Included in the
Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 102 to 118, The Group recognised total expenses of $2.7m {2020: $2.2m) in respect of the
schemes during the year, a proportion of which was capitalised in accerdance with the Group's accounting palicies.

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company operates a LTIP for employees of the Group. Awards vest over a period of three years, subject to critenia based on thelr
individual performance. Awards are normally forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the award vests. Awards normally expire
at the end of 10 years following the date of grant, subject to the requirement to exercise certain awards prior to 15 March of the year
following vesting.

Awards would normally be part cash and part squity-settled through a transfer at nil consideration of the Company's ordinary shares.
385,427 awards were exercised during 2021. The Cempany has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle awards in
cash. Details of awards outstanding during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

No. of share No, of share

awards awards

As at 1 January 17,996,007 18.680.757
Adustments - - -
Granted - 6,220,6;85 o Eé;)_éo_a
Exercisod o (385,427) -
Eodeited during the yean - (4,845,708) (7,034 553)
As at”ab;gémber 7 - N 18,985,764 17.996,007

Exercisable as at 31 December - -

Awards outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.4 (2020: 1.4) years. The weighted
average market price and estimated fair value of the 2021 grants {at grant date) were £0.20 and £0.13, raspectively.

The fair value of the LTIPs granted during 2021 and 2020 have been estimated using a Black Scholes model, based on the market price
at date of grant and a nil exercise price. The future vesting proportion in 2021 was 64% (2020: 68%).

The main assumptions for the calculabon are as follows:

2021 2020
Valablity 34.46% 49.07%
Risk free rate of interest - 1.30% 1?6;;
b?rrel_ation with comparatot group S n/a n/a

Other Share Schemes

The Company operates a discretionary share option scheme for employees of the Group. Awards vest over a three-year period, and

are normally forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the option vests. Vested options are exercisable at a price equal to the
average quated market price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant and are expected 1o be equity-settled. The Company has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or sattle options in cash. Unexercised options expire at the end of a 10-year period.

Other than to Directars, the Company can also grant options with a zero exercise price or with an exercise price which is set below
the market price of the Company's shares on the date of grant. Such options, which are included in the table below, are granted by
reference to the rules of the discrationary share opticn scheme and are expected to be equity-settled.

The Company can additionally grant awards under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan with a zero exercise price or with an exercise

price which 13 set below the market price of the Company’s shares on the dale of grant. Awards vest over a two-year period, and are
normally forfeited i the employee lkeaves the Group betore the option vests, Such awards, which are also included in the table below, are
expected to be cash-settled.
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2021 2020
Weighted average - - ---WEIghied average
No. of share exercise price No. of share exercise price
awards £ awards ¢
As at 1 January 3,176,395 0.46 3.785,789 0.47
Adjix-stmen-ts _ 7 ) - N — - ) -
Gr&iﬁod - - - N _ : - . - 7 963,105 -
Forfeted during trhe vear - ) - ) - {250,386) 4.%5
Expired - ) I - - 7 - -
E)ger(:is_e_;d ) R (558,213) - (1,37;2;1 13; -
As at 31 December 2,618,182 0.43 3. ITG.SQE; 040G
Excrcisable as at 31 December 1,245,077 0.67 2,151,638 1.10
The weighted average market price at the date of exercise during 2021 was £0.21 (2020: £0.17). Awards outstanding at the end of the
year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.4 (2020: 7.5) years.
The fair value of the awards granted during 2021 and 2020 have been estmated using a Black Scheles model, based on the market
price at date of grant and a nil exercise price.
The main assumgptions far the calculation are as follows:
2021 2020
Volatility n/a e
As ne options were granted during 2021 and 2620, no volatility assumptions were disclosed.
32. Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to operating cash flows
Group Company
202‘i -2020 2021 2020
$ million & milhen & million ¢ milion
Cperating profit/(loss) 47.7 {231.3} {11.5) (14.3}
Share-based payments 24 28 24 28
Depletion, deprech;—l-tion and amortisation 7 - - N 5.4 64.5 ) o 0.7
Impairment {reversal)j/charge o - (41.4) 234.8 ) : - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 60.1 70.8 (8.1) (10.8)
Dacrease/iincrease) in inventories ) B o - 0.8 (1.5} N o - -
(Increase)/decrease in receivables o B (7.2) 19.76 - B 6.4 {0.1)
Be(:re;ée n ;Sayablgs - o ) ) 7 - (2._2) - ) -(3.4-} 2.2 7 (d.';’;)
Cash generated by (used in) operations 51.5 85.5 (6.5) (14.2)
Interest {paid) /received ) . - 7 (0.1} 0.1 i - -
Other/restructuring expense othTIO\;\;;- i B - ) ib.?) ) (2?) 7 (0.6) (2-‘-,7)
Income taxes paid (899 268 - -
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 10.8 56.4 (7.1} (16.9)

During the year, 2 total of $8.3m (2020: $10,2m) of trade receivables due from EGPC in Egypt were settled by way of non-cash offset

against trade payables.
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33. Lease arrangements

For short-term leases {lease term less than 12 months) and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Group has opted to
recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted under IFRS 18.

$ millton

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2021 0.4
Interest ex;;;se {sec Nole?); o o - o B o N -
IBrirwclpal repamnts o - T o o - o __-(CJ.4J
i;s_.e liability reggnised as aa Decembéaom o o o o o e
Of Whlb?{:;re: o o o o o o o -

Current lesse liabities o o - o o o - -

Non-current lease liabilities N o o - N - -
Right of use assets recognised as at 1 January 2021 01
Deprec%\ o o o - B o o o )
Right of use assets recog;i;ed as at 31 Eecember 2021 B o B o B
E{I & Gas p!c);;eges o o o - o ) )
Other assets o B B o B -
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2020 7.2
E)_érecognihon oﬁéase during 2(;’2-0 o N N 7 i 7 16.0)
Irwte}éé} expensea (sé;/Note 9} o - o ) . o OZ
PrirT(:B—al repaymemép- o B B - . 7 1, 1}
lLease Iiegility recognisea as at 31 De;ember 2020 - B . 0.4
5\:-Whlch are: T - o ) ) 7 i -

CTI’I’;,ITf lease Iiab[mes - - o B . o ". D_/_l

Non%ﬁ?rent lease Iiarbiil}ties o - o N h -
Right of use assets recognised as at 1 January 2020 7.3
Dopreciation o B o N : ' ' (1.0)
Net usgn:,ognltion of IC'dC;E' during 2D271ﬂ - o o ) i 7 (5.7)
Impairmeﬁtg-ﬂght of use-;a_set N - - o o 7 (Q.5)
Right of (Jét;éésets recogr{\sga as at 31 D;cember 20207' o o B - h
a& Gas propé?es o o o o - o - 0.1

Other assets

On 4 December 2020 Pharos signed the transfer of the London office lease to a third party. Accordingly we derecognised the night of
use asset of $5.7m and the associated lease liability of $6.0m. The assets held for office furniture and fixture and fittings were also fully
depreciated. with a resulting charge of $0.4m. Pharcs also paid a premium fo the new tenant of $0.9m as an incentive for them to take
on the lease. The overall income staterment charge of $0.3m (2020: $1.0m) has been recorded within Other/restructuring expense. In
2020, $1.2m was transferred to an escrow account held by a third party (recorded within prepayments) and wil be paid to the new
tenant (and expensed to the incoms statement) over the next 21 months on the condition the new tenant pays the rent to the landlord, In
2021, $0.3 was released from the escrow account and paid to the new tenant.

34. Capital commitments

At 31 December 2021 the Group had exploration heence commitments not accrued of approximately $36.2m (2020: $40.9m).
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35. Relaled party transactions

During the vear, the Company recorded a net cost of $0.01m (2020: net cost of $0.01m) in respect of services rendered between Group
companies.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company, who are considered to be its key management personnel, is set out below in
aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of
individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 102 to 116.

2021 2020

$ million $ miltion

Short-term employee benefits 45 2.7
Post-employment benefits - 0.2 0.8
Share-hased ;)ayments- S a1 T
7.8 4.8

Directors’ transactions

Pursuant to a lease dated 20 April 1987, Comfort Storyville (a company wholly owned by Mr Ed Story) has leased to the Group, office
and storage space in Comfort, Texas. USA. The lease, which was negotiated on an arm's length basis, has a fixed monthly rent of
$1.000.

36. Financial instruments

Financial Risk Management: Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are commodity price nsk, iquidhty risk, credit risk, foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk. The Board of Pharos regularly reviews and agrees policies for managing financial risks that may affect the Group.
In certain cases, the Board delegates responsibility for such reviews and policy setting to the Audit Risk Committee. The management
of these risks is carried out by monitoring of cash flows, investrnent and funding reguirements using a variety of techniques. These
potential exposures are managed while ensuring that the Company and the Group have adequate liquidity at all times in order to meet
their immediate cash requirements. There are no significant concentrations of risks unless otherwise stated. The Group does not enter
into or trade financial instruments, including derivatives, for speculative purposes.

The primary financial assets and lhabilities comprise cash, short- and medium-term deposits, money markst liquidity funds, intra group
loans, trade receivables and other receivables and financial liabilities held at amortised cost, The Group's strategy has been to finance
its operations through a mixture of retaned profits and bank borrowings. Other alternatives such as equity issues are reviswsd by the
Board, when appropriate.

Commodity Price Risk
Commodity price risk arises principally from the Group's Vietnam and Egypt production, which could adversely affect revenue and debt
availability due to changes in commaodity prices.

The Group measures commodity price risk through an anaiysis of the potential impact of changing commeodity prices. Based on this
analysis and considering materiality and the potential business impact, the Group may choose to hedge.

During 2021, Pharos entered into different commodity {swap and zero collar) hedges to protect the Brent component of forecast cil
sales and to ensure future compliance with its obligations under the RBL over the producing assets in Vietnam, The commodity hedges
run until December 2022 and are settled monthly. Details of current hedging arrangements and the categorisation of the swaps in the
fair value hierarchy can be found in Note 25,

Transacted derivatives are designated as cash flow hedge relationships to minimise accounting income statement volatility. The Group is
required to assess the likely effectiveness of any proposed cash flow hedging refationship and demonstrate that the hedging relationship
is expected to be highly effective prior to entering inte a hedging instrument and at subsequent reporting dates,

Liguidity Risk

Pharos closely monitors and manages its liquidity risk using both short- and long-term cash flow projections, supplemented by debt
and equity financing plans and active portfolio management. Cash forecasts are regularly produced and sensitivities run for different
scenarins including, but not limited to, changes in asset production prefiles and cost schedules.

The backdrop of the global COVID-18 pandemic persisted throughout 2021 and the ongoing climate of uncertainty remains the
dominant challenge in planning, forecasting and managing capital. The Group runs various sensitivities on its liquidity position
throughout the year. The refinancing of the RBL over the assets in Vietnam and the new uncommitted revolving credit facility with the
National Bark of Egypt raised additional liguidity for the Group, combined with the successful and oversubscribed equity placing during
the year. This has enabled Pharos to continue with a discretionary capital expenditure programme during 2021,

Details of the Group's borrowings and debt facilities can be found in note 24, The Group is subject to half-yearly forecast liquidity tests
as part of the redetermination process for the RBL facility agreement. The Group has complied with the hquidity requirements of this test
at all times during the year.

Pharos Energy Annual Report and Accounts 2021 160



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

The Group invests cash in a combination of money market liquidity funds and term deposits with a number of international and UK
financial institutions, ensuring sufficient liquidity to enable the Group to meet its shart and medium-term expenditure reguirements.

Credit Risk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, nwestments wath banks and financial mstitutions, trade and other recewables and 1oint
operation receivables,

Customers and joint operation partners are subject to a risk assessment using publicly avalable information and credit reference
agencies. with foliow-up due diligence and monitoring if required.

Investment credit nsk for investrnents with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Group Treasury function in
accordance with the Board-approved policies of the Group. These policies imit counterparty exposure, maturity, collateral and take
account of published ratings, market measures and other market information.

The Company's policy is to invest with banks or other financial institutions that, firstly, offer the greatest degree of security in the view
of the Group and, secondty. the most competitive interest rates. The Board continually re-assesses the Group's policy and updates as
required.

The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets s represented by the carrying value as at the balance sheet date. The
Group's trade receivables in Note 20, although 98% (2020: 84%) concentrated with two customers across both Vietnam and Egyot
producing assets, are predominantly with a major oi! & gas company and the subsidiary of a government regulated entity. The credit risk
is therefore deemed to be negiigible.

Foreign Currency Risk

Pharos manages exposures that arise from non-functional currency receipts and payments by maiching receipts and payments in the
same currency and actively managing the residual net position. The Group does not hedge any foreign exchange exposure.

The Group also aims where possible to hold surplus cash, debt and working capital balances in the functional currency of the subsidiary,
thereby matching the reporting currency and functional currency of most companies in the Group. This minimises the impact of foreign
exchange movements on the Group's Balance Sheet. Ol and gas sales in Vietnam are raised and settled through a combination of
Vietnamese Dong (WND} and US Dollars (USD), along with associated tax and royalty payments. The Group holds & number of VND and
USD bank accounts that provide a natural hedge aganst foreign exchange movements.

The Group's UK head office contributes the majority of administrative costs which are denominated in GBP. The lavel of monetary
working capital balances denominated in GBP is refatively low and therefore the Group's exposure 1o foregn currency changes for all
currencies is not considered to be material.

Interest Rate Risk

The replacement of benchmark interest rates such as LIBOR and cther IBORs has been a pnority for global regulaters. The Group

has closely monitored the market and the output from the various industry working groups managing the transition to new benchmark
mnierest rates, This includes announcements made by LIBOR reguiators {inciuding the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the US
Cormmodity Futures Trading Commission) regarding the transition away from LIBOR (including G8P LIBOR and USD LIBOR). in addition,
the current global high-inflationary economic environment means that interest rates could potentially rise in the short to medium-term,
thus increasing the cost of borrowing.

As at 31 December 2021, Pharos had total borrowings of $80.5m (2020: $53.7m) as described in Note 24, If interest rates increased
by 100 basis points, assuming the principal loans stayed constant, the annualised interest payable by the company would increase
by $C.8m which would translats through to profits and net assets. The Group’s interest received on cash and cash equivalents is
immaterial.
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37.Assets held for sale

In December 2021, the Company announced that shareholders had approved the farm-out of 55% of the Group’s cperated Interest n
each of our Egypttan Concessicns, El Fayum and North Beni Suef, to IPR, a group that has extensive experience in Egypt.

As part of the transaction, IPR wil fund Pharos's share of the ¢osts to a maximum of $33.425m (to be adjusted for working capital and
interim period adjustments from the effective economic date of 1 July 2020). This is in additton to the deposit at signing of the farm-

out agreements of US$2 million and a further US$3 million payable on complstion. In addition, the Group will be entitled to contingent
consideration depending an the average Brant Price each year from 2022 to the end of 2025, capped at a maximum total payment of
US$20 million, We have calculated the contingent considsration using our Brent oil price curve as at 31 December 2021 (not recognised
the full $20m).

An impairment of $10.4m was recognised to bring the value of the net assets classified as held for sale down to the farr value less costs
to sell caloulated as at 31 Decemnber 2021.

2021

$ mullion

Intangible assets 2.1
Property, plant and cquipment — al and gas properties - NBY S o 617.6
Irnpainvent charge — Assets classified as held for sale - - {10.4}
Property, plant and equipment - oil and E;as prop&ties — after mparment 7 51,2
I;’Eoﬂy. plant ar{d equipm_(;nf - other - NBY - 0.4
Irmvemones o o o - 6.3
Trade anzd_mher receivables o - - 20
Assets classified as held for sale ' ' 62.0
Trade and other payabiles o o 18.5)
LTabilities dirécﬁy ;;;ciated with assets classified as held for sale - o (5.5)
Net assets classified as held for sale 535

38. Subsequent events

El Fayum Farm-out

Pharos and EGPG have finalised all necessary documents to be presented to the Minister of Petroleum and Natural Resources to
approve the transaction with IPR and this approval is expected shortly.

Concession Agreement Amendment El Fayum area

On 19 January 2022, the Third Amendment to the El Fayurn Concession Agreerment was signed by His Excellency Eng. Tarek El Molla
{Minister of Petroleum & Minera) Resources of the Arab Republic of Egypt), EGPC and the Company.

Signature of the Third Amendment was a key Condition Precedent for the transfer of a 55% participating interest {and operatorship) in
the El Fayurn and North Beni Suef Concessions to IPR Lake Qarun.

Under the terms, the cost recovery percentage will be increased from 30% to 40% allowing Pharos a significantly faster recovery of all its
past and future investments. In return, Pharos has agreed to waive its rights to recover a portion of the past costs pool ($115 million) and
reduce its share of Excess Cost Recovery Petroleurn from 15% to 7.5%. While in full cost recovery mode, Contractor's share of revenue
Increases from 42.6% to 50.8% as from Novernber 2020 (corresponding to additional net revenues to Contractor of $7.0m to the date of
signature).

The relevant final approvals from the Egyptian Government had not been cbtained at 31 December 2021 and so this has been
accounted as a non-adjusting balance sheet event.

Assuming conditions at 31 December 2021, the discounted cash flows from the remaining 45% share held and calculated for
impairmant purposes would increase from $49.2m to $77.4m
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Non-IFRS measures

The Group uses certain measures of performance that are not specifically defined under IFRS or other generally accepted accounting
principles. These non-IFRS measures include cash operating costs per barrel. DD8A per barrel, gearing and operating cash per share.

For the RBL covenant compliance, three Non-lFRS measures are included: Net debt, EBITDAX and Net debt/EBITDAX.

Cash operating costs per barrel

Cash operating costs are defined as cost of sales less DD&A, production based taxes, movement in inventories and certain other

immaterial cost of sales.

Cash operating costs for the period is then divided by barrels of oil equivalent produced. This is a useful indicator of cash operating
costs ncurred to produce oil and gas from the Group's producing assets.

2021 2020
$ million $ miflicn
Cost of sales 1146 123.8
Less:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (51 .0)”7 o 7?(;;8)
Production based taxes 7 - i1 0.1) (7.0}
Inventaries - 7 Q0.1 {2.3)
Other cost of sales - (1.8) 2.9
Cash operating costs 52.0 48.3
Production (BOEPD) ) o -8-,-878- - 11,373
Cast_l_c:;;ér;tiné cost. -;-JermE-%-(SE_(@- 16.05 11.60
Cash operating costs per barrel
Vietnam Egypt Total
$ milion £ rnillion $ million
Cost of sales 84.3 30.3 114.6
Depraciation. depletion and amortisation (43._0-) B (E;C;) o (5_10)
Production t-J_azsed laxes ) ) -(9.5) {0.3) {10.1)
Inventories _ ) 0.1 - 0.1
Otiher (5651 of sales S (0.6} 1.0 (1.6)
Cash operating costs 31.0 21.0 52.0
Production {(BOEPD) - _€’3_60___ __53.3;8_ ) _“8,878
Cash operating cost per BCE ($) - N 16.28 17.34 16.05

DD&A per barrel

DD&A per barrel is caleulated as net book value of al and gas assets in production, togethet with estimated future development costs
over the remaining 2P reserves. This is a useful indicator of ongoing rates of depreciation and amortisation of the Group’s producing

assets.
2021 2020
$ millicn $ milhon
Depreciation. depletion and armorisation (51.09 (63.3)
Procuction (BOEPDY 8878 11373
DDAA per BOE ($) ) S S :175?;7 15,21
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DD&A per barrel by segment (2021)

Vielnam Egypt Total

$ million $ rmilion $ million

Depreciation, depletion and amorttisation (43.0) 18.0) (51.0)

Production (BOEPD) 5,560 3,318 8,878

DD&A per BOE (3) R 218 661 15.74

Net debt

Net debt comprises interest-bearnng bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.

2021 2020

$ million $ millicon

Cash and cash equivalents 271 24.6

&rirc;m:rirngré - 7 S {84.6) (57.2)

Net Debt {57.5) {32.6)

* Exclude unamortised capitalised set up costs

EBITDAX

EBITCAX is earnings from continuing activities before interest, tax, DD&A, impairment of PP&E and intangibles, exploration other/
expenditure and Other/restructuring expense items in the current year.

2021 2020
$ million $ million
Operating profit/{loss) 48.3 (231.3)
_E-)f-ar;reclahon. deplétion and amortisation - - 51.4 - __64_%
lmpairment {reversall/charge (42.0) 234.8
EBITDAX 57.7 68.0
Net debt/EBITDAX
Net Debt/EBITDAX ratio expresses how many years it would taks to repay the debt, if net debl and EBITDAX stay constant.
2021 2020
$ million $ mitlion
Net Debt (57.5) (32.G}
EBITDAX - s7.7 66.0
Net Debt/EBITDAX 1.0 0.48
Gearing

Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing interest-bearing bank loans by stockholder equity. The debt 1o equily ratio expresses the
refationship between external equity {liabilities) and internal equity (stockholder equity).

2021 2020

$ million E million

Total Debt * 84.6 57.2
Total Eguity 304.4 2U3.7
Debt to Equity 0.28 0.20

© Exclude unamortised capitalised set up costs

Operating cash per share
Operating cash per share is calculated by dividing net cash from {used in) continuing operations by number of shares in the year.

2021 2020

$ million $ imillion

Net cash from operating activities 10.8 56.4
Waightoed number bf é;l:ware:;; i|71ilr;e ;feér 7 - 437,512,648 397,515.684
Operaling cash per share - 002 o014
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Five Year Summary (unaudited)

{Restated)
Year to Year to Year o Year to Vear to
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
$ million $ million % rnillion $ rilion % million
Consolidated income statement
Oil and gas revenues 134.1 118.3 1849 1751 166.2
Commodity hedge (losses)/gains (29.7) 23.7 0.2} - -
Gross profit 19.5 18.2 611 70.5 11,2
Cperating profi/lloss) 48.3 1231.3) 380 79.9 22.%
{Loss)/profit for the year 4.7} {215.8) 124.5) 277 (157.3)
(Restated)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$ million $ rmillion $ million $ mifllion E million
Consolidated balance sheet
Non-current assets 460.3 483.2 740.9 563.6 546.6
Net current assets 5.6 10.4 45.6 236.3 133.3
Non-current liabilities {207.5) (199.9) {276.4) 289.1) {185.3)
Net assets 304.4 293.7 5101 500.8 404.6
Share capntal 929 87.3 87.3 276 27.6
Other reserves 250.5 243.0 246.6 246.6 245.9
Retamed earnings {39.0) {36.6) 176.2 226.6 2231
Total equity 3044 293.7 5101 500.8 496.6
{Restated)
Year to Year to Year 10 Year to Year 1o
31 Dec 2021 31 Bec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
$ million S milhor $ millon & million % million
Consolidated cash flow statement
Net cash from operating activities 10.8 56.4 72.3 54.2 45.0
Caprtal expenditure 41.8 41.3 63.4 22.4 26.2
Distributions - - 27.4 23.3 21.0

" Restated in 2017 when adopted the successful efforts method.
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RESERVES STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)

Reserves Statistics (unaudited)
Net working interest, MMBOE

R S Additional Infonmation

TGT CNV Vietnar- Egypt: Group
Qil and Gas 2P Commercial Reserves'?
As at 1 January 2021 13.0 4.9 17.9 40.8 53.7
Production {1.5) (0.5} 2.0 (1.2 {3.2)
Revision (0.6) {0.1) i0.7) (1.8) (2.5)
2P Commercial Reserves as at 31 December 2021 10.9 4.3 15.2 37.8 53.0
Qil and Gas 2C Contingent Resources’
As at 1 January 2021 8.3 3.9 12.2 19.0 31.2
Revisicn® {0.7) {C. 1} 0.8) ©.4) 1.2
2C Contingent Resources as at 31 December 2021 7.6 3.8 11.4 18.6 30.0
Total of 2P Reserves and 2C Contingent Resources as 18.5 8.1 26.6 56.4 8.0

at 31 December 2021

1} Reserves and Contingent Resources are categorised in line with 2018 SPEAWPC/AAPG/SPEE /SWLA Petroleun Resource Management Systern.

2} Assumes cil eguivalent conversion factor of 6,000 scf/boe.

3} Reserves and Contingent Resources have been independently audited by Risc Advisory Py Lid.

4
5
6

T e

Reserves and Contingent Resources have been independently audited by McDaniels,
Revisions to the assets come from the approach taken by the reserves auditor.
Risks associated with reserves evaluation and estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 4(b) to the Financial Statements.
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REPORT ON PAYMENTS TO GOVERNMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Report on Payments to Governments (unaudited)

Disclosure

In accordance with the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency
Rule 4.34 1n respect of payments made
by the Company to governments for

the year ended 31 December 2021

and in compliance with The Reports on
Payments to Governments Regufations
2014 {8l 2014/3209), Pharos presents

its disclosure for the year ending 31
December 2021.

Basis for preparation

Legislation

This report is prepared in accordance with
the Reports on Payments to Governments
Regulations 2014 as enacted in the UK

in December 2014 and as amended in
December 2015.

The Reports on Payments to Government
Reguiations (UK Regulations) wers
enacted on 1 Decemier 2014 and require
UK companies in extractive industries

to publicly disclose payments they

have made to Governments where they
undertake extractive operations, The

aim of the regulations is to enhance the
transparency of the payments made by
companies in the extractive sector to
host governments in the form of taxes.
bonuses, royaities, fees and support for
infrastructure improvements, The UK
Regulations came into effect an 1 January
2015.

The payments disclosed for 2021 are

in line with the EU Directive and UK
Regulations and we have provided
additional voluntary disclosures on payroll
taxes, export duty, withholding tax and
other taxes.

In line with the UK Regulations, a payment
of a series of related payments which do
not exceed $112,780 (£86,000) has not
been disclosed. Where the aggregate
payments made in the pericd for a project
or country are 1&ss than $112,780,
payments are not disclosed for the project
or country.

All of the payments disclosed in
accordance with the EU Directive have
been made to Maticnal Governments,
either directly or through a Ministry or
Department, or to a national oil company,
who have a working interest in a particular
licence.

Payment

The information 1s reparted under the
following payment types:
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Production entitlements in barrels

These are the host government’s total
share of production in the reporting period
derived from projects operated by Pharos,
This includes the government's non-cash
royalties as a soversign entity or through
its participaticn as an equity or interest
holder in projects within its home country.
The figures produced are on a paid lifting
basis valued at realised sale prices.

Income Taxes

This represents cash tax calculated on the
basis of profits including income or capital
gains. Income taxes are usually reflected
In corporate income tax returns, The cash
payment of income taxes occurs in the
year in which the tax has arisen or up to
one year later. Income taxes also include
any cash tax rebates received from the
government or revenue authority during
the year, Income taxes do not include
fines and penalties. Consumption taxes
including value added taxes, personal
income taxes, sales taxes and property
taxes are exciuded.

Royalties

These reprasent royalties during the year
to governments for the right to extract
oll or gas. The terms of these royalties
are set within the individual Production
Sharing Contracts & Agreements and
can vary from project to project within a
country. The cash payment of royalties
cccurs in the year in which the tax hag
arisen.

Dividends

These are dividend payments, other than
dividends paid to a government as an
ordinary shareholder of an entity, in lieu of
production entitlements or royalties. For
the year ending 31 December 2021, thore
were no reportable dividend payments to
governments.

Bonuses

This represents any bonus paid 1o
governments during the year on
achievement of commercial milestones
such as signing of a petroleum agreement
or contract, achieving commercial
discovery, or after first production.

Licence Fees

This represents licence feses, rental fees.
entry fees and other constderation for
llcences and/or concessions paid for
access to an area during the year (with
the exception of signature bonuses which
are captured within bonus payments).

Infrastructure improvement payments

This represents payments made in
respect of infrastructure improvements
for projects that are not directly related

to oil and gas activities during the year.
This can be a contractually obligated
payment in a Production Sharing Contract
or a discretionary payment for building/
improving local infrastructure such as
roads, bridges, ports, schocls and
hospitals.

Payroll Taxes

This represents payroll and empioyer
taxes including PAYE and national
insurance paid by Pharos as a direct
employer,

Export Duty

This represents payments made to
governments during the year in relation to
the exportation of petroleum products,

Withholding Tax

This represents the amount of tax
deducted at source from third party
service providers during the year and paid
to respective governments.

Other Taxes

This represents business rates pad during
the year on non-domestic properties.



Addiional Information

TRANSPARENCY DISCLOSURE 2021 {(UNAUDITED)

Transparency disclosure 2021 (unaudited)

UK Regulations Voluntary Disclosure

Infaztructuee Total FLJ Withe-
Froduchicn Procuction Incorme Bonus  Leence  ompraverment  Trarsparency Payiroll Expart  halding Cithar

entillements  entiflenants Taxen Royalies  Dwidends Poyments faes payments Crective Taxes Cuty Tax Taxes Total
Licence
Coaporate &i8a tubls {Q0CH %000u 30005 & 0C0s S 0005 F0005  F000°: 5000 %000 5000 5000s SO0 UG0S L060s
Vietnam*
Block 16-1 1047 67 846 26600 ¥ a4n - - 78 - 101,802 - - - - -
Blook 9.2 BEG 34,731 11,065 1,484 - - 75 - 47.355 - - - - -
Total Vietnam 1,687 102,577 38,695 9,433 - - 153 - 151,858 - - - - -
Egypt
El Fayurn 67l 44,130 - - - - - - 43 139 382 - 140 - 522
North Berni Suef - - - - - - - - - 4 - - - a1
Total Egypt 678 44,139 - - - - - - 44,139 146 - 140 - 556
United Kingdom (UK)
Coiponate - - - - - - - - - 3RS - - - 1,585
Total UK - - - - - - - - - 1,365 - - - 1.365
United States of America (US)
Corporate - - - - - - - - - pal:l:) - - - 2R7
Total US - - - - - - - - - 265 - - - 265
Pharos Total 2,275 146,716 35,695 9,433 - - 153 - 195,997 2,046 - 140 - 2,188
Transparency disclosure 2021 (unaudited)

UK Regulations Voluntary Disclosure
Intrac fructure Wiith-
Preductic Production Incon e Borus  Licence  improvement Payioll Expont haolkdng Other

antilements  entitlmesnts Taxes  Royaltes  Dnkdends  Payments 2 paymems Toral Taxes Dty lax Taxes Tatal
Country;
Govenmant kbl (000 $3000s  SC00% S0C0s % 000 ®000T  TO00s T O0Us 5000s 5C000e H000s S000. S0U0% H 000
Vietnam*
Hao ChirbAinh Tty
Tax Dept - - 39635 9433 - - - - J 128 - - - - -
Customg Offes - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Petrovietnam
E&F Corp [PVEP! |.587 2 hY S - - - - 153 - 102,730 - - - - -
Total Vietnam 1,597 102,577 39,685 9,433 - - 153 - 151,858 - - - - -
Egypt
Egyptan General
Petroleurr
Corooratinn
(EGPCI 678 44139 - - - - - - 24139 - - - - -
Tax departrment - - - - - - - — - 416 - 140 - 556
Total Egypt 678 44,139 - - - - - - 44,139 416 B 140 - 556
United Kingdom (UK}
Unitaa Kingriom
1IKE
Inland Revenus - - - - - - - - - 1.360 - - - 1.3865
Total UK - - - - - - - - - 1,365 - - - 1,365
United States of America (US)
Intermal Revenue
Senrace - - - - - - - - _ 785 - - - ZB5
Total US - - - - - - - - - 265 - - - 265
Pharos Total 2,275 146,716 39,695 9,433 - - 153 - 195,997 2,046 - 140 - 2,186

* Joint Operating Company Project's tax payrments reported on Phargs Net Working Interest Basis
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A

ABC
Anti-Bribery and Corruption

AGM
Annual General Meeting

B

bbl
Barrel

blpd
Barrels of liquids per day

BMS
Business Management System

Bn
Billion

boe
Barrels of oil equivalent

BHCPP
Bach Ho Central Processing Platform

hoepd
Barrels of oil equivalent per day

bopd
Barrels of oil per day

bwpd
Batrels of water per day

C

CASH cr cash
Cash, cash equivalent and hquid
investments

CAPEX or capex
Capital expenditure

CcDP
Formerly the Carbon Disclosure Project

CEO
Chief Executive Officer

CFO
Chief Financial Officer

CNV
Ca Ngu Vang field located in Block 9-2

co,
Carbon Dioxide

CO,e
Carbon Dioxide Equivatent

Company
Pharos Energy plc

Contingent Resources

Those quantities of petroleum to be
cotenually recoverable from known
accumulations by application of
deveiopment projects but which are not
currently considered to be commercially
recoverable due o one or mare
contingencies
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Contractor

The party or parties identified as being, or
forming part of, the "CONTRACTOR" as
defined in the B) Fayum Concession or,
as the case may be, the North Beni Suef
Concession

CR
Corpotate Responsibility

D

DD&A
Depreciation, depletion and amaortisation

E

E&P
Exploration & Production

EBITDAX

Earnings pefore mnterest, tax, DO&A,
impairment of PP&E and intangibles,
exploration expenditure and other/
exceptional items in the current year

EBT
Employee benefit trust

E&E
Exploration and Evaluation

EGP
Egyptian Pound

EGPC
Egyptian General Petroleumn Corporation

El Fayum or the El Fayum Concession
The concession agreement for petroleurn
exploration and exploitation entered

into on 15 July 2004 between the Arab
Republic of Egypt. EGPC and Pharos B
Fayum in respect of the Bl Fayumn area,
Western Desert, as amended from time
to time

EU
European Union

F

FFDP
Full Field Development Plan

FPS0O
Floating, Production, Storage and
Offloading Vessel

FY
Full year

G&A
Ganeral and administration

GHG
Greenhouse gas

Group
Ptaros and its direct and indirect
subsidiary underiakings

H

H&S
Health and Safety

HLHVJOC

Hoang Long and Hoan Vu Jont Operating
Companies

HLJOG

Hoang Long Joint Operating Company

HSES
Health, Safety, Environmental and Security

HVJOC
Hoan Vu Joint Operating Company

1ASB
International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS
International Financial Reporting
Standards

IMF
International Monetary Fund

OGP
The International Association of Gl & Gas
Producers

IPIECA
The glcbal ol and gas industry association
for environmental and sccial 1ssues

IPR or |PR Energy Group

The IPR Energy group of companies,
including IPR Lake Qarun and (PR Energy
AG, or such of them as the context may
require

IPR Lake Qarun

IPR Lake Qarun Pstroleum Co, an
exempled company with limited liaility
organised and existing under the laws of
the Cayman islands {registration number
373306), a wholly owned subsidiary of
PR Ernergy AG

J

JOC
Joint Operating Company

Jv
Jount vanture

K

[3
thousands

kbopd
Thousand barrels of ail per day

Km

Kilometre

km?

Square kilometre

e



L

Listing Rules
The Listing Rules of the UK Financial
Conduct Authority

LTI
Lost Time Injury

LTIF
Lost Time Injury Frequency

LTIP
Long Term Incentive Plan

M

m
million

M&A
Mergers and Acquisitions

MENA
Middle East and North Africa region

mmbbl
Million barrels

mmboe
Million barreis of ol equivalent

N

NBS, North Beni Suef or the North Beni
Suef Concession

The concession agreement for petroleun
exploration and explotation entered no

on 24 December 2019 between the Arab
Republic of Egypt. EGPC and Phares E
Fayurm in respect of the North Beri Suef
area, Nile Valiey

NBV
Net Book Value

NED

Non-Executive Director

NPV
Net Prosent Value

O

QOIP
Ornginal Oll in Place

OPECO Vietnam
OPECO Vietnam Limited

Opex
Operational expenditure

p

PEF

Pharos El Fayum, {formerly named Merlon
Petroleum Bl Fayum Company}, an
exempted company with limited liability
organised and existing under the laws of the
Cayman Islands (registration number 78257},
a member of the Group

Petrosilah

An Egyptian joint stock company held 50/50
between the Contraclor partias (being the
Pharos Group and IPR Lake Garun following
completion of the farm-out of the El Fayum
concession) and the Egyptian General
Petroleum Gorporation

PSC
Production shanng contract or production
sharing agreement

Petrovietnam
Vietnam Qil and Gas Group

PTTEP
PTT Exploration and Production Public
Company Limited

R

Reserves

Reserves are those quantities of
petroleum anticipated to be commercially
recoverable by application of development
projects to known accumulations from

a given date forward under defined
conditions. Reserves must further satisfy
four criteria: they must be discovered,
recoverable, commercial and remaining
based on the development projects
appled

RBL
Reserve Based Lending facility

RISC
RISC Advisory Pty Ltd

S

Shares
Ordinary Shares

STOQIIP
Stock Tank Qil Initially In Place

Additional Information

T

TOR
Terms of Reference

TCFD
Task-Force for Chmate-related Financial
Disclosures

TGT
Te Giac Trang field located in Block 16-1

TSR
Total shareholder return

TIA
Tie-in Agreerment

U

UK
United Kingdom

us
United States of America

w

WHP
Wealhead Platform
United States of America

Y

YTD
Year-to-cate

$

United States Dollar
bl

UK Pound Sterling
1C

Low estimate scenatic of Contingent
Resources

1H
First half

1P
Equivalent to Proved Reserves; denotes
low estimate scenario of Reserves

2018 Code
The 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Cade of the Financial Reporting Council

2C
Best estimate scenario of Contingent
Resources

2C Contingent Resources
Best estimate scenario of Contingent
Rescurces

2P Reserves

Equivalent to the sum of Proved plus
Probable Reserves; denctes best estimate
scenario of Reserves. Also referred to as
2P Commercial Reserves
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered office:

Pharos Energy

27/28 Eastcastle Street, London W1W
8DH, United Kingdom Registered in
England T +44 (0)20 7747 2000 F +44
(0)20 7747 2001 Company MNo. 3300821
www.pharos.energy

Company Secretary
Tony Hunter

Financial Calendar

Group results for the year to 31 December
are annhounced in March. The Annual
General Meeting is held during the second
guarter. Interim Results te 30 June are
announced in September,

Advisers Auditor:

Deloitte LLP
London, United Kingdom

Bankers:

J.P. Morgan

125 London Wall London, EG2Y GAY
United Kingdom

HSBC UK Bank plc

60 Queen Victoria Street London EC4N
4TH United Kingdom

BNP Paribas - Singapore Branch

10 Collyer Quay #33-01 QOcean Financial
Center 049315 Singapore

g
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Financial Adviser and
Corporate Brokers:

Jefferies

100 Bishopsgate London, FC2N 4JL
United Kingdom

Peel Hunt

120 London Wall, London EC2Y 5ET
United Kingdom

Capital Markets Advisor:

Auctus Advisors

Robsacks, Long Barn Road, Weald,
Sevencaks, Kent TN14 8NJ United
Kingdom

Registrar:

RD:IR Limited

9 Bridewel: Place, London EC4V AW
United Kingdom

Solicitors:

Shepherd and Wedderburn LLP

1 Exchange Crescent, Conference
Sguare, Edinburgh EH3 8UL United
Kingdom
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